
 
Agenda 

College Station City Council 
Workshop Meeting 

Thursday, December 14, 2006 1:30 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 

College Station, Texas 
 
1. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on items listed on the consent 

agenda.  
 
2. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding College Station 2007 State 

Legislative Program. 
 

3. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding proposed annexation areas 
and related cost considerations.  

 
4. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the appointment of an 

Internal Auditor. 
 

5. Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding the status of a site 
development plan for a new City Hall. 

 
6. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on future agenda items: A Council 

Member may inquire about a subject for which notice has not been given.  A 
statement of specific factual information or the recitation of existing policy may 
be given.  Any deliberation shall be limited to a proposal to place the subject on 
an agenda for a subsequent meeting. 

 
7. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding upcoming events and/or 

meetings of the College Station City Council. 
 

8. Discussion, review and possible action regarding the following meetings:  Brazos 
County Health Dept., Brazos Valley Council of Governments, Cemetery 
Committee, City Center, CSISD/City Joint Meeting, Design Review Board, 
Fraternal Partnership, Historic Preservation Committee, Interfaith Dialogue 
Association, Intergovernmental Committee and School District, Joint Relief 
Funding Review Committee, Library Committee, Making Cities Livable 
Conference,  Metropolitan Planning Organization, Outside Agency Funding 
Review, Parks and Recreation Board, Planning and Zoning Commission, Sister 



City Association, TAMU Student Senate,  Research Valley Partnership, Regional 
Transportation Committee for Council of Governments, Transportation 
Committee, Wolf Pen Creek Oversight Committee, Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board, 
Zoning Board of Adjustments, (see attached posted notices for subject matters). 

 
9. Executive Session will immediately follow the workshop meeting in the 

Administrative Conference Room. 
 
Consultation with Attorney {Gov’t Code Section 551.071}; possible action  The City 
Council may seek advice from its attorney regarding a pending and contemplated 
litigation subject or settlement offer or attorney-client privileged information.  
Litigation is an ongoing process and questions may arise as to a litigation tactic or 
settlement offer, which needs to be discussed with the City Council.  Upon occasion 
the City Council may need information from its attorney as to the status of a pending 
or contemplated litigation subject or settlement offer or attorney-client privileged 
information.  After executive session discussion, any final action or vote taken will be 
in public.  The following subject(s) may be discussed: 

 
a. TCEQ Docket No. 2002-1147-UCR, Applications of Brushy Water Supply and 

College Station (Westside/Highway 60) 
b. TCEQ Docket No. 2003-0544MWD, Application of Nantucket, Ltd. 
c. TXU Lone Star Gas Rate Request. 
d. Cause No. 03-002098-CV-85, Brazos County, College Station v. Wellborn 

Special Utility District 
e. Civil Action No. H-04-4558, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, 

Houston Division, College Station v. U.S. Dept. of Agriculture, etc., and 
Wellborn Special Utility District 

f. Civil Action No. H-04-3876, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, 
Houston Division, JK Development v. College Station 

g. GUD No. 9530 – Gas Cost Prudence Review, Atmos Energy Corporation 
h. GUD No. 9560 – Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (GRIP) rate increases, 

Atmos Energy Corporation  
i. Cause No. GN-502012, Travis County, TMPA v. PUC (College Station filed 

Intervention 7/6/05) 
j. Cause No. 06-000703-CV-85, Patricia Moore, et al. v. Ross Stores, Inc., City of 

College Station, et al. 
k. Possible settlement water CCN with Wellborn 
l. Possible settlement of sewer CCN issue 
m. Legal aspects of Lease Agreements for No. 4 Water Well and possible purchase 

of or lease of another water site from City of Bryan 
n. C.C.N. Issue for Sewer & Water regarding possible overlaps by City of College 

Station and City of Bryan 
 
 
Economic Incentive Negotiations {Gov’t Code Section 551.087}; possible action 



The City Council may deliberate on commercial or financial information that the City 
Council has received from a business prospect that the City Council seeks to have locate, 
stay or expand in or near the city with which the City Council in conducting economic 
development negotiations may deliberate on an offer of financial or other incentives for a 
business prospect.  After executive session discussion, any final action or vote taken will 
be in public.  The following subject(s) may be discussed: 
 
1. Proposed city convention center and associated privately developed hotel. 
2. Large Sporting Outlet 
3. UCS, Reynolds and Reynolds 
4. Data Center 
 
10. Final Action on executive session, if necessary. 
 
11. Adjourn. 
 

 
APPROVED: 
 

_

E-Signed by Glenn Brown
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

______________________________ 
City Manager  

 
Notice is hereby given that a Workshop Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas will be held on the December 14, 2006 at 1:30 p.m. at the City 
Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas.  The following 
subjects will be discussed, to wit:  See Agenda 
Posted this 11th day of December, at 1:30 p.m. 
 

E-Signed by Connie Hooks
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

____________________________ 
City Secretary 

 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing 
Body of the City of College Station, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and 
that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 1101 
Texas Avenue, in College Station, Texas, and the City’s website, www.cstx.gov .  The 
Agenda and Notice are readily accessible to the general public at all times.  Said Notice 
and Agenda were posted on December 11, 2006 at 1:30 p.m. and remained so posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official board at the College Station City Hall 
on the following date and time:  _______________________ by 
___________________________. 

http://www.cstx.gov


 
    Dated this _____day of _______________, 2006. 
    CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 

By____________________________________ 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the ______day of _________________, 
___________________Notary Public – Brazos County, Texas   
My commission expires:_________ 
This building is wheelchair accessible.  Handicap parking spaces are available.  Any 
request for sign interpretive service must be made 48 hours before the meeting.  To make 
arrangements call (979) 764-3517 or (TDD) 1-800-735-2989.  Agendas may be viewed 
on www.cstx.gov.  Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Access Channel 19. 

http://www.cstx.gov


Agenda 
College Station City Council 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, December 14, 2006 at 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chamber, 1101 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Texas 

 
12. Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Consider absence requests, presentation of Boot 

Award by Mayor of the City of Bryan, Brazos Valley Troupe, and Recognition of 
the Police Department 

 
Hear Visitors:  Any citizen may address the City Council on any item which does 
not appear on the posted Agenda.  Registration forms are available in the lobby 
and at the desk of the City Secretary.  This form should be completed and 
delivered to the City Secretary by 6:45 p.m.  Please limit remarks to three 
minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal that you have 
thirty seconds remaining so that you may conclude your remarks.  The City 
Council will receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the 
issue on a future agenda.  Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the 
City Manager. 
 

Consent Agenda 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a consent or regular agenda item not 
posted as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s 
reading of the agenda item.  Registration forms are available in the lobby and at the desk 
of the City Secretary.  The Mayor will recognize individuals who wish to come forward 
to speak for or against the item.  The speaker will please state their name and address for 
the record and provided three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to 
signal thirty seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.     
 

Vision Statement I - Core Services   
Professionals providing world-class customer focused services at a competitive cost 

through innovation and planning. 
 
13.1 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the City of College 

Station’s appointment of one director to the Brazos Valley Groundwater 
Conservation District, with the approval of the Brazos County Commissioner’s 
Court. 

 
13.2 Presentation, discussion, and possible action regarding Change Order No. 2 to a 

contract with Brown Reynolds Watford Architects, Inc. (BRW) for the Fire 
Station No. 5 Project. 

 



13.3 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution determining 
the public necessity to acquire right-of-way and easement interests for the Rock 
Prairie Road Widening Design and ROW Project. 

 
13.4 Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve one (1) Pipeline Crossing 

Agreement for the Wellborn Road Utilities Relocation Project. The permit is 
required to bore under the railroad bed to install a water distribution line. 

 
13.5 Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding renewal of an annual 

contract with Young Contractors for the Installation of Hot Mix Asphalt, MC-
30/AEP Emulsified Asphalt and RC-2 Winter Patch Asphalt, at a cost that 
includes an increase of the approved 5% over the current $507,000.00.  The 
amount for the renewed contract is $532,350. 

 
13.6 Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the award of a construction 

contract between Smiling Mallard Development, Ltd. and Brazos Valley Services 
for the construction of a 6-inch and 8-inch gravity sewer line in the City’s ETJ. 

 
13.7 Presentation, possible action, and discussion for an exception to Policy to allow 

Indivisa Corporation to construct sewer infrastructure necessary to connect the 
upcoming phases of Great Oaks Estates to the City sewer system. 

 
13.8 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a software 

license agreement and award of RFP 06-129 to Survalent Technology Corporation 
for an upgrade to the Electric Utilities Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition 
System (SCADA) in an amount not to exceed $99,800. 

 
13.9 Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the second reading of an 

ordinance granting a non-exclusive medical waste hauling franchise agreement to 
Tejas Medical Waste. 

 
13.10 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding Northgate Tax Increment 

Reinvestment Zone #16 Participation Agreement with Brazos County. 
 
13.11 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution to award 

engineering design contract 07-086 with Malcolm-Pirnie in the amount of 
$224,335 to provide the design package and construction management services 
for the Parallel Collection Line. 

 
13.12 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution to award 

engineering design contract 07-068 with Malcolm-Pirnie in the amount of 
$168,000 to provide the design package and construction management services 
for Well 7. 

 
13.13 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution to award 

engineering design contract 07-085 with Malcolm-Pirnie in the amount of 



$177,598 to provide the design package and construction management services 
for the Well 7 Collection Line. 

 
13.14 Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approving a renewal of an annual 

agreement for gasoline and diesel fuel, contract #05-056, with Brenco Marketing 
Corp. totaling $1,267,340.00. 

 
13.15 Presentation, possible action and discussion on an annual purchase agreement for 

various Automotive and Truck Parts, Bid #07-23. Recommend award to the 
lowest, responsible bidder meeting specifications with estimated annual 
expenditures to NAPA Auto Parts for $53,500, and to Truckmotive, Inc. for 
$48,500, total award request $102,000.00.  

 
 

Vision Statement IV – Economic Development 
Professionals promoting a robust, sustainable, growing, and diverse economic 

environment. 
 
13.16 Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding amendment of Funding 

Agreement with Research Valley Partnership.  
 
13.17 Presentation, possible action and discussion on a resolution supporting a 

community investment incentive for the Texas Institute for Preclinical Studies 
(TIPS). 

 
Vision Statement II – Parks and Leisure Services 

Professionals providing a wide range of leisure, recreational, educational, and cultural 
opportunities 

 
13.18 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution requesting that 

the Governor and members of the 80th Texas Legislative session support 
increased funding for the Texas Recreation and Park Account Local Park Grant 
Program and Texas State Park Funding. 

 
13.19 Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding a resolution of the City 

Council of the City of College Station, Texas, approving and setting fees for 
Parks and Recreation activities and facilities. 

 
13.20 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding Change Order Number 

Three in the amount of $54,356.00 to the professional services contract (Contract 
Number 04-221) with O’Malley Engineers, L.L.P., for additional design services 
for the Veterans Park & Athletic Complex Phase II project. 

 
13.21 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a resolution 

awarding contract number 07-052, a Construction Contract with CLM 



Construction, in the amount of $56,840.00 for the construction of a sidewalk 
cover at the north entrance of Lincoln Center.  The Project Number is PK 0602.  

 
13.22 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution awarding a 

Professional Services Contract (Contract Number 07-082) to Arkitex Studio, Inc., 
for design services related to a replacement bathhouse for Adamson Lagoon in the 
amount of $90,000.00 and a resolution declaring to reimburse certain 
expenditures with proceeds from debt. 

 
 
Regular Agenda 
 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a regular agenda item not posted 
as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s reading of 
the agenda item.  The Mayor will recognize you to come forward to speak for or against 
the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the record and allowed three 
minutes. A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty seconds remaining 
so that the speaker may conclude your remarks. 
  
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on an item posted as a public hearing 
shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s announcement to open the 
public hearing.   The Mayor will recognize individuals who wish to come forward to 
speak for or against the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the record 
and allowed three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty 
seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.    After a public 
hearing is closed, there shall be no additional public comments.  If Council needs 
additional information from the general public, some limited comments may be allowed 
at the discretion of the Mayor.    
 
If an individual does not wish to address the City Council, but still wishes to be recorded 
in the official minutes as being in support or opposition to an agenda item, the individual 
may complete the registration form provided in the lobby by providing the name, address, 
and comments about a city related subject.  These comments will be referred to the City 
Council and City Manager.   
 

Vision Statement IV – Economic Development 
Professionals promoting a robust, sustainable, growing, and diverse economic 

environment. 
 
14.1 Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding a Development 

Agreement with Lonestar – College Station Golf Academy, Ltd. 
 
14.2 Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding an Economic 

Development Agreement with Reynolds and Reynolds Company.  
 
 



 
 
 

Vision Statement III – Planning and Development 
Professionals who plan and develop a sustainable community balancing neighborhood 

and community interests. 
 
14.3 Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an 

ordinance rezoning 13.57 acres located at 2301 Earl Rudder Freeway South, in 
the general vicinity of the northeast corner of the intersection of Horse Haven 
Lane and Earl Rudder Freeway South, from A-O (Agricultural Open) to C-1 
(General Commercial). 

 
14.4 Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 

amending Chapter 12, City of College Station Code of Ordinances, Article 3 of 
the Unified Development Ordinance, regulating the applicability of development 
plats in the City of College Station and its extraterritorial jurisdiction.  

 
Vision Statement I - Core Services   

Professionals providing world-class customer focused services at a competitive cost 
through innovation and planning. 

 
14.5 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the appointment of 

committee members to the Bryan/College Station Library Committee to fill two 
positions that expire in December and one position on the Joint Relief Funding 
Review Committee. 

 
14.6 Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding the status of a site 

development plan for a new City Hall. 
 

15. The City Council may convene the executive session following the regular 
meeting to discuss matters posted on the executive session agenda for December 
14, 2006. 

 
16. Final action on executive session, if necessary. 
 
17. Adjourn. 
 
If litigation issues arise to the posted subject matter of these Council Meetings an 
executive session will be held. 
 
APPROVED: 
 

_

E-Signed by Glenn Brown
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

_______________________________ 



City Manager  
 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas will be held on the Thursday, December 14, 2006 at 7:00 p.m. at the City 
Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas.  The following 
subjects will be discussed, to wit:  See Agenda. 
 
Posted this the 11th   day of December, 2006 at 1:30 p.m. 
 

E-Signed by Connie Hooks
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

________________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing 
Body of the City of College Station, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and 
that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 1101 
Texas Avenue, in College Station, Texas, and the City’s website, www.cstx.gov .  The 
Agenda and Notice are readily accessible to the general public at all times.  Said Notice 
and Agenda were posted on December 11, 2006 at 1:30 p.m. and remained so posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the College Station 
City Hall on the following date and time:  __________________________ by 
________________________. 
 
    Dated this _____day of ________________, 2006. 
    By______________________________________ 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the _____day of ________________, 2006. 
 
______________________________   
Notary Public – Brazos County, Texas  My commission expires: ___________ 
 
The building is wheelchair accessible.  Handicap parking spaces are available.  Any 
request for sign interpretive service must be made 48 hours before the meeting.  To make 
arrangements call (979) 764-3517 or (TDD) 1-800-735-2989.  Agendas may be viewed 
on www.cstx.gov .  Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Access Channel 19. 
 
 
 
 

http://www.cstx.gov
http://www.cstx.gov


 

 

December 14, 2006 
Workshop Agenda   

College Station 2007 Legislative Program 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Kathy Merrill, Assistant City Manager                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding College Station 
2007 State Legislative Program 
 
 
Recommendation(s):   Council is requested to adopt its 2007 State Legislative Program 
and to direct the City Manager to pursue the priorities as established by Council.  
 
 
Summary:  Staff is requesting Council consideration of three (3) different elements of the 
2007 State Legislative Program.  
 
First, Council consideration and support of the 2007 TML Resolutions and the Tex-21 
Regional and Local Resolutions as a part of the Council’s legislative package for 2007.  Both 
organization’s Legislative Programs have had active involvement by College Station Council 
members and city staff.  
 
Second, the Council is also being requested to establish legislative priorities for the City of 
College Station.  Staff recommends the following legislative priorities for Council 
consideration: 
 

1) Extension of Thoroughfare Plan into the County 
Currently, the City’s Thoroughfare Plan applies only to the incorporated city and the 
ETJ. As the city annexes and extends the ETJ development blocks plan routes 
established by the Thoroughfare Plan. The staff in conjunction with the Council’s 
Transportation Committee recommends the Council adopt extension of the 
Thoroughfare Plan into the County as a Legislative Priority. Discussions have been 
coordinated with Brazos County and City of Bryan on this proposal.  
 

2) Sales Tax Extension 
The Council is requested to establish as one of the Legislative priorities the extension 
of sales tax on a local option basis with the proceeds dedicated to transportation. 
The Council has previously discussed the extension of sales tax capability as a 
cornerstone of the Council Transportation Strategy. TEX 21 has also adopted a 
strong position of support to request the Legislature to permit cities increase sales 
taxes on a local option basis.  
 

3) Appraisal and Revenue Caps  
The Governor’s Special Task Force on Revenue and Appraisals Caps is preparing to 
make several recommendations which will likely be submitted as a part of the 
Governor’s legislative package. The significance to College Station to limit revenue 
and or appraisal values could be devastating. The staff strongly recommends the 
opposition to any legislation that would limit the City’s ability to raise revenue to 
support city service requirements.     

   
   



 

 

4) Texas Recreation and Parks Account 
 

State appropriations for the Texas Recreation & Parks Account (TRPA) Local Park Grant 
Program have been drastically reduced during the last two legislative sessions.  TRPA is 
a grant program administered by the Texas Parks & Wildlife Department that provides 
matching grants to local governments for parkland acquisition and development.  The 
annual appropriation of funds for the TRPA prior to the 78th Legislature was $15.5 
million.  TRPA was reduced to $13 million annually during the 78th Legislative Session 
and to $5.6 million for the current biennium.  These funds have a direct impact on the 
local community by providing financial assistance in developing essential park facilities 
for our citizens and for visitors to this area. In addition, this program may provide funds 
for the acquisition and development of the proposed 10,000 acre regional park in Grimes 
County. Staff recommends support of this legislation and approval of a resolution of 
support. 
 

 
 
 
 
Finally, we are submitting the College Station Legislative Program document demonstrating 
how we will manage legislative affairs. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  None. 
 
 
Attachments:  Hard Copy provided of the 2007 TML Legislative Resolutions. Also refer to 
the TML website to review each resolution in its entirety. 
 
2007 Tex-21 Resolutions 
 
2007 College Station Legislative Program 
 
 
 
 
 



Transportation Excellence 
for the  Zlst Century 

2006 VOnNQ MEMBERS: 

Ao0180~'~reg Hlrsch 

ALICE. Reymundo S. Qarcla 

ALLEN. Peter Vargas 

AUNCE FOR I49 TEXAS ' Rose Hemindel 

BECWH~. Jimmy Martinez 
BO~ECOUH~. Jmes Carlow 

BRAZOS CWH~. Randy Slms 

BROWNSVILE. Eddle Trevlho, Jr. ' 
BURLESON Ken Sheliar ' 
CIRRoumn' BscW Mllkr ' 

C w m H ~ u '  Robert K Fmnke 

C-E STATION Ron Sllvla ' 
COUIN CouHn' Jack Hetchell1 

COPPN' Jayne Peters 

CORPUS CWUSTI. Mark Scott 

DAUAS ' Blll Blaydes ' 
DALLAS COUm. Kenneth A Mayfield 

DAIU&AREARAPIOTFIPNSIT' Gary Thomas' 

Da RIO' Representative Pendlng ' 
DENTON' Pete Kamp 

Lksoro' Mlchael Hum 

DUNC-• Kent Csgle 

ELPIBO' John Cook' 
FARMERSBRWCH' Bob Phelps 

WT HIU' Kamn Davis 

F m W m '  Mike Moncrlef 

FwswsMlke Slmpson 
G w ~ w . D l v i d  Southern 

aRum PRw ' Jim SrvatrOrd 

GIUMESCOUW' Frank Glass 
Hvrrus Camr*' Roben Eckels 

HDALGOC~H~'  Ramon Garrla ' 
H-o' Wlll Lomnce 

H O ~ W  Couh'rr'Cletls M. Millsap 

Hw~TON' Michael Beny ' 
HUTCHNS'ARTIS JOHNSON 
Rvrx;'Rlck Stoplar 

I(BLCR.Lyle H. DreSher 
K u ~ ~ ~ ' C o n n l e  Green 
LWCASTER'JOC Tlllotson 

Repmentative Pending 
L m ~ m . T o m  Martin 

McKwNn'lhad Helsley 

MUSA' Dand Dorman ' 
M ~ 6 a m .  Mike Anderson 
M.XIUIo'RIck Menchaca ' 
WOTMAN. Boyce Whatley 

MOTRANU*NCE, 1Nc:James Beauchml 
NORTH RICHUND H I ~  Oscnr Trevlno 

Nonm T a a s  TUWAY A ~ m o w n  

W k n  R m r  
Bill Eisen 

Rmrac. Raul Gonzalez 

P ~ ~ o ' S c o n  Johnson 

P m o F  BRoWNSvlUL' Peter Zavaletta 

PORT OF HOUSTON' Jlm Edmonds 

PU~-T&LUNS TWE COWWR COIMON . Michael Rwves 

RICHARDSOH' John A. Murphy 

ROCUWAU' JuIIe Couch 

R-' Shane Johnson 
SAN ~ T O N I O '  Phil Hardbergar ' 
SULPHUR~PRINQS. Marc MaXW811 

TmmCOUtm.B. Glen Whltley' 

T m ~ ~ ~ * D a v l d  Blackbum 

TUP.RKAN* OeOrge T. Shackenord 

TEXAS Cm.James F. McWhorter 

WAXAHACIIE'JaY Barksdale 
. YYnr'MarkRosth 

'CDCHA~S 

2008 ASSOCl4TEMEMBERS 
PS.P.TEYASaANM O'RVAN 
E c o ~ a m .  Doug Henderson 

HMRBOS WALUER. & HDRPEP. LP. 
.Chip Harper 
URS  CORPORA^. Clnde Qllllland 

TRANSPORTAT~ON EXCELLENCE FOR THE 21ST CENTURY 
BRINGING TEXAS THE STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM IT NEEDS AND DESERVES 

2006 TEX-21 OFFICERS 

KENNETH A. MAYFIELD, CHAIR MARK SCOTT. SECRETARY 
Dallas County Commissioner Corpus Christi Councilmembe~ 

ROBERT ECKELS, VICE CHAIR 
Harris County Judge 

BILL BLAYDES. TREASURER 
Dallas Councilmember 

JACK MILLER, VICE CHAIR 
Former Denton Mayor 

2007 TEX-21 STATE COMMITTEE RESOLUTIONS 
DRAFT 

8oTH TEXAS LEGISLATURE 
Summary 

2006.1 1-7. Support the discontinuation of the diversion of 
transportation user revenues to non-transportation uses 
and ,the appropriation of all revenue generated from 
highway user fees and taxes to fund transportation. 

2006.1 1-8. Encourage the Texas State Legislature to support the 
indexing of the state motor fuels tax, enabling the tax to 
increase with growth in the economy. 

2006.1 1-9. Reallocate $235 million of highway user fees and taxes 
from the General Revenue Fund to the Texas Mobility 
Fund and redirect existing oversize/overweight permit and 
registration fees to that Fund. 

2006.1 1-10. Support the appropriation and allocation of all funds 
collected under the Texas Emissions Reduction Plan and 
use such funds for emission reductions and other related 
programs that aim to improve and manage Texas' air 
quality, as well as support the extension of TERP through 
201 3. 

2006.1 1-1 5. Support life-saving state legislation requiring children to be 
secured in an age and height appropriate child safety seat 
system until age 8 unless 4'9" tall. 

DEAN INTERNATIONAL, INC. 
PUBLIC POLICY CONSULTANTS 

8080 PARK LANE, SUITE 600 . DALLAS, TEXAS 75231 
Phone (214) 750-0123 Fax (214) 750-0124 

www.TEX2l.net . TEX-21Qdean.net 



TRANSPORTATION EXCELLENCE FOR THE 2fST CENTURY 
TM BRINGING TEXAS THE STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM ITNEEDS AND DESERVES 

2006 TEX-21 OFFICERS 

KENNETH A. MAYFIELD, CHAIR MARK SCOT. SECRETARY 
Dallas County Commissioner Corpus Chfisli Councilmember 

Tranrportatlon Excellence 
for the 2lst Century ROBERT ECKELS, VICE CHAIR 

Harris County Judge 

BILL BLAYDES, TREASURER 
Dallas Councilmember 

JACK MILLER, VICE CHAIR 
Former Denton Mayor 

2006VOW MEMEERS: 

ADMSON' GREO HIRSCH 

ALICE. Reymundo S. Garcia 

ALLEN. Peter Vargas 
AUImefmI-bB TEXAS' Rose Hemhndez 

B e ~ C w m '  Jimmy Mafflnez 
Bav lECwm.  Jamas Carlow 

BWOS C O U ~ .  Randy Slms 

BROWU~WUE' Eddie TnviRo. Jr. ' 

BURLESOW. Ken Shatter' 
c m o u i o ~ '  Becky Mlller' 

CEDAR HIU. Robert K. Fnnka 

CUUQESTATUN ' Ron Sllvla ' 
COU~N COUNTI. Jack Hatchell ' 
-ELL' Jayne Peters 

CORPUS CHWS~. Mark Scott 

DUUS 8111 Blaydes ' 
D u u s  C w m .  Kenneth A. Mayfield 

DwAREA~PID TWINS~.  Gary Thomas' 

Da No '  Repnnentatlve Pending ' 
-ON. Pets Kamp 

DESOTO. Michael Hum 

0 u ~ ~ b m U . E '  Kent Cagle 

U PIGO. John Cook' 

FIR~~ERS BRPHcH. Bob Phelps 

FORTWm.Mike Moncrlef 

Fr(18~0' Mlke Slmpson 

MwnaRr'Davld Southern 
G w o  PRLR~. Jim swafford 

QmMBCanm. Frank Glass 

HlvauP Cwm*.Robert Eckels ' 
Hmaw C w m .  Ramon Garcla' 

nuammo' Will Lowance 
HOR(1w Cwm*.Cletls M. Millsap 

H ~ ~ T O I I '  Michael Berry ' 
HUnWARTs  J O H m  

M e R l c k  Stopfar 
-.Lyle H. Dmsher 

K!u€eNbConnie Green 

Lurcanrw.Ja, Tlllotson 
UaEm.RepmsenMive Pending 

LUBBouc' Tom Martin 

McKMNEI' Thad Helsley 

M!ass~.Davld Dorman ' 

M ~ s a u m  *Mike Anderson 

Mmuno' Rlck Menchaca ' 
Mnn-.Boyce Whatley 

M O M  UHCE. INC. ' James Beaucham1 

Nonm RICHLAND HILLS ' Oscar Trevino 

Nonm TUAS TOUWAY AWHoRllY 

'Allan Rutter 
P-0. Bill Bsen 

RURR.R~UI Gonzalu 

P w . S c O n  Johnson 

PORTOF BROWNSWLLE. Peter hvaletta 

PmoFHousTm' Jim Edmonds 

PO(IT6-TdUdN8 W E  CORRlWR COAUIION 
Mk-l Reeves 

RICHUUgOW' John A Murphy 

Roomru .  Julle Couch 

R m - S h a n e  Johnson 

~~JIAAMONIO. Phll Hardberger' 

SURIURSPRINOS'M~~C Maxwell 

T m C o u m . 8 .  Glen Whnley' 

TEMPLE-DBvld Blackbum 

T~~RKANA. George T. Shackelford 

1-Cm. James F. McWhorter 

Wunnacn1~'Jay Barksdale 

W i u .  Mark Roath 

'CDCWRS 

1006 As6OCIAlE MEMBERS: 
AAA T w s .  ANNE O'RYAN 
ECMIOL~' Doug Henderson 
H ~ o N ,  WALKER, 6 HARPER, L.P. 

Chlp Herpsr 
URS COnmRLmN' Cinde Gilliland 

ZOW RESWRCE AOENCIES; 
lklAS TRIIIBWRTATION INSTmm 
TEXAS SOLWMRN UNNwSm 

2007 TEX-21 FEDERAL COMMITTEE RESOLUTIONS 
DRAFT 

able the tax to 

ressional Delegation to support 
of Customs and Border (CBT), as well as 
iculture (USDA), officers in Texas to 
nd efficiency at Texas ports. 

Congressional Delegation to support the 
for rail freight and passenger security 
ss transit security programs. 

ngressional Delegation to eliminate barriers 
to transportation operations and to encourage coordination between 
the Public Transportation and Health and Human Services 
Committees. 

DEAN INTERNATIONAL, INC. 
PUBLIC POLICY CONSULTANTS 

8080 PARK LANE, SUITE 600. DALLAS, TWAS 75231 
Phone (214) 750-0123 Fax (214) 750-0124 

www.TEX2l .net . TEX-21adean.net 



TM 

Transportation Excellence 
for the Zlst Century 

3006 VOWQ MEMBERS: 

AwmoW. Greg Hirsch 

Auc~.Reymundo 5. Garcia 

&LEN. Peter Vargas 

UANCEFOR 149 TEXAS. Rose Hernbndez 

B E E C W ~ '  Jimmy Maninez 

sOIYIECOUmm Jam86 CadOW 

BR.UQI Coum. Randy Sims 

BROWNGWUE. Eddle TrsvlAo, Jr. ' 
BmLEsM1 Ken S h a r e  

CIRROUTDN. w k y  MIII~~' 
CmPd HI&. Roberl K. Franke 

COUK)E STAN' Ron Silvla ' 
COLUNCOU~.  Jack Hatchell ' 
COWELL. Jayne Peters 

CORPUS Cmsn. Mark Scon 

D m '  Bill Blnydes ' 
DM COu~n.Kenneth A. Maymeld 

D ~ A R E A R A P ~ T R I H S I T '  OPw Thomas' 

DEL ~~o.~epresentattve Pending ' 
-ON PEie b m p  

DESOTO' Michael Hum 

DUNC-' Kent Cagle 

U P m .  John Cook' 

FMERSBWCH' Bob Phelps 

F ~ E S T  H u m  b r s n  Davis 

Fonr Warm' Mike Moncrkf 

F m o a M i k e  Slmpson 

G~nwsun '  David Southern 

GRUm PR1RE' Jim SWaffOrd 

GRIMES COUm' Frank Glass 

~ C O U M * ~  Roben Eckelz ' 
HOMW Coum*.Ramon Garcia ' 
HUBORO' Ynli L m n c e  

H m I m  C w m .  CIOlis M. Millsap 

HO(aTON'MIchaei Berry ' 
HlrrCllw'ARm JOHNSON 

Rnr, 'Rkk Stopfer 

I(BLERSbyk H. Dmher 

KUEW' Connle Gfwn 

L L H C m .  Joe liilotson 

bwmo' Representative Pending 

Ulesocu' Tom Martin 

MCKINNEY' Thad Helsky 

MWA' David Dorman ' 
M ~ m . M l k e  Anderson 

MEUANO.R~C~ Menchaca' 

Munonaur'BoyceWhatky - 
MOTWNPIU I~E .  INC: James Beaucham1 

NORTH RICHU~~O HIUS. Oscar Trsvlno 

kmi T a r s  TOUWAY A u n m m  

'Allan Rutter 
PEAFUND' BIII Eisen 

Pwm' Reul Gonralez 

P ~ ~ o ' s c O t t  Johnson 

PORTOF BROWHSWLLE. Peter Zavaleth 

PWOF HDU~TON' Jim Edmonds 

PDRIbTDPwm TFtJDECDRRlDOR C o m m  
'Michael Rmws  

RICnbn~so~. John & Murphy 

RocnwAu'Julie Couch 

R m ' S h a n e J o h n s o n  

SAN ~TOIK). phi1 ~ardberger ' 
SULPHUR SPRINGS.  arc MBXW~~I 

T r n ~ ~ C 0 u m . B .  Glen Whltley' 

TEMRE' David Blackburn 

TE~AFXANA' George T. Shackelford 

T ~ r ~ s C r n '  James F. McWhoner 

WAXAHACHIE' Jay Barksdale 

. VfmPMlrkRoalh 

. C D C ~  

2006 AssoclAlT MEMBERS: 
aA& T a r s  ' ANNE O'RYAN 

ECONOUE' Doug Henderson 

HbRRlSON, WPJX€R. (L HARPER. LP. 
.chip Harper 

URS CORPORA~N Cinde Gilliland 

2006 REWRCE AGENCIES; 
Tmn.8 TWSWRTAMN INSTITUTE 

TRANSPORTAT~ON EXCELLENCE FOR THE 2IST CENTURY 
BRINGING TEXAS THE STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM IT NEEDS AND DESERVES 

2006 TEX-21 OFFICERS 

KENNETH A. MAYFIELD. CHAIR 
Dallas County Commissioner 

MARK SCOT, SECRETARY 
Corpus Christi Councilmember 

ROBERT ECKELS, VICE CHAIR 
Harris County Judge 

BILL BLAYDES. TREASURER 
Dallas Councilmember 

JACK MILLER, VICE CHAIR 
Former Denton Mayor 

2007 TEX-21 TRANSIT COMMITTEE RESOLUTIONS 
DRAFT 

2006.1 1-14. Encourage the capitalization of the Rail Relocation Improvement 
Fund and the location of revenue sources not currently diverted 
to Fund 006. 

2006.1 1-1 1. Support raising the cap on sales tax to be used exclusively for 
transportation improvements and empower cities and counties 
with the ability to enact local option transportation taxes with local 
voter approval. 

2006.1 1-5. Encourage the Texas Congressional Delegation to support the 
authorization of funds for rail freight and passenger security 
improvements and for mass transit security programs. 

2006.1 1-6. Encourage the Texas Congressional Delegation to eliminate 
barriers to transportation operations and encourage coordination 
between the Public Transportation and Health and Human 
Services Committees. 

DEAN INTERNATIONAL, INC. 
Pue~lc POLICY CONSULTANTS 

8080 PARK LANE, SUITE 600 DALLAS, TEXAS 75231 
Phone (214) 7500123. Fax (214) 750-0124 

www.TEX2l .net . TEX-21 @dean.net 



fo; the Zlst Century 

~OOGVOTINQ MEMBERS: 

ADDISON.G~~Q Hinch 

AUCE' Reymundo S. Garcia 

ALLEN Peter Vargas 

ALLIANCEFOR 1-69 TEXAS' Rose Hernkndez 

B E E C W ~ '  Jimmy Martlnez 

BW~IECOUW~ James Carlow 

BWOS Cwrn.Randy Slms 

BROWNSWUE. Eddle Trevlfio, Jr. ' 

BWON Ken Sheller' 

CnwcoumN' Becky Mlller' 

CEDAR HIU' Robert K. Franke 

C O U W  STAmN' Ron SilVia 

COUlNCWw' Jack Hatchell 

COPPEU Jayne Peters 

CORPUS CHRISTI. Mark Scan 

D m  Bill Blaydes + 

D m  C w w  . Kenneth A Maytield 

DAUS AREA WID TRANSIT' Gary Thomas ' 
DaRlo '  Represemative Pending 

Dairo~.Peb Kamp 

Chsom. Mlchstl Hum 

DUHC~VUE Kent Cagle 

E ~ P l t o .  John Cwk '  

FIRIIERSBFUNCH' Bob Phelps 

FcaELlT MU. Karen Davis 

FORT Warm' Mika Moncrief 

F l lsm'  Mlke Simpson 

G R P ~ ~ ~ ~ R I .  David Southern 

J h  Swatrord 
QFUUESCOUWTI. Frank 61186 

HUIRCi COVWTI' Robett Eckels 

HDAMo Coutiri' RMlon Garcia ' 
W ~ a ( ~ . w l l  Lomance 

HWI(INS C w w .  CleUs M. Millsap 

H a ~ ~ ~ w . M i c h s e l  Berry ' 
H m W ' A R n s  JOHNSON 

knwo Rick Stopfer 

KEUER'L~I~ H. Dresher 

I(UEEU.Connm GRen 

L~BTER.  Joe Tillokon 

LUZEW* RspmsenIaIive Pending 

LUa&OCI(' Tom Man~n 

LlcKmNEY' Thad Helsley 

MELISSA. David Dorman ' 

M ~ 8 ~ m . M i k a  Fmderson 

MIDLAND' Rick Menchaca ' 
M a o ~ ~ ~ ~ * B o y c e  Whalley 

M O W  A~IAWE. INC: James Beaucham1 

MRTH RICHWD HIUS. Oscar Trevino - TUPS TOUWAY ALrmORm 

'Ulan Rutter 
W o . 6 i i 1  Elsen 

RauI Gonralez 

Ruro.8call Johnson 

PORT DF BRowHonLLE. Peter Zavalelta 

PDRToF HOUSTON. Jim Edmonds 

P~~TS-TO$UNS TWE CORWDOR COAMON . Mlchnl  Reeves 

RcH~Rmo~.Jahn A. Murphy 

ROCKWAU~JUII~ Couch 

R-.Sham Johnson 

SWANTOHID' Phll HardDerger' 

SULWUR SPWNGS. Marc Maxwell 

T ~ N T  COUNN' 6. Glen whnley ' 
T€~FtE.Davld Blackburn 

T ~ r ~ ~ u r ~ ~ ~ ' Q e o r g e  T. Shackelford 

TUPd C m . J m  F. McWhOner 

W ~ C M E *  Jay Bllrksdale 

Wrm'MarkRanlh 

2006 A8SOClATE MEMBERS: 
A&& T w .  ANMO'RYAN 
ECONOL~. Doug Henderson 

HbRFtU)ON, WMKER, 6 HARPER. LP.  
'Chip Harper 
URS COAWRPImN' Clnde Oilliland 

TRANSPORTAT~ON EXCELLENCE FOR THE 2IST CENTURY 
BRINGING TEXAS THE STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM IT NEEDS AND DESERVES 

2006 TEX-21 OFFICERS 

KENNETH A. MAYFIELD, CHAIR 
Dallas County Commissioner 

MARK SCOTT, SECRETARY 
Corpus Chrisli Councilmember 

ROBERT ECKELS, VICE CHAIR 
Harris County Judge 

BILL BLAYDES, TREASURER 
Dallas Coundlmember 

JACK MILLER, VICE CHAIR 
Former Denton Mayor 

2007 TEX-21 REGIONAL AND LOCAL COMMITTEE 
RESOLUTIONS 

DRAFT 

2006.1 1-1 1. Support raising the cap on sales tax to be used exclusively for 
transportation improvements and empower cities and counties 
with the ability to enact local option transportation taxes with local 
voter approval. 

.I 1-1 2. Support options for counties to address land use in rapidly 
growing unincorporated areas and empower counties with 
the ability to prevent substandard public works initiatives in 
unincorporated areas. 

2006.1 1-1 3. Support the appropriation and allocation of all funds 
collected for the purpose of the Low Income Vehicle 
Repair and Assistance Program and the use of such funds 
for eniission reduction for other programs that can reduce 
mobile source air pollution. 

DEAN INTERNATIONAL, INC. 
Pue~lc POLICY CONSULTANTS 

8080 PARK LANE, SUITE 600 DALLAS, TEXAS 75231 
Phone (21 4) 750-01 23 Fax (214) 750-0124 

w . T E X 2 1  .net TEX-21 @dean.net 



College Station Legislative Program 
 
Purpose  
The purpose of the College Station Legislative Program is to influence legislation at 
the state and federal levels which impact the City of College Station.  
 
Program Goals  
There are four (4) goals for the legislative program to implement the program 
purpose.  
 
1) Establish regular communications with legislative delegation at both the state and 

federal levels.  
    

2) Develop a comprehensive legislative program with other community actors (City 
of Bryan, BCS Chamber of Commerce, CISD, TAMU, RVP, BISD, Brazos County).  

 
3) Lend College Station’s voice to important legislative issues.  
 
4) Identify and develop an annual legislative package which identifies College 

Station’s specific requests for legislative actions.  
 
Strategies and Actions  
Strategy 1 – Communicate with legislative delegation  
Communication with our legislative delegation is critical to our success. Regular 
quality communications with our legislative delegation provides a deeper 
understanding of our issues and concerns while assisting the City to understand 
constraints and needs of our delegation.  
 
⎯ Establish quarterly meetings with members of State delegation. 

1) Formulate meeting agenda(s)  
2) Identify College Station representatives  
3) Coordinate agenda with legislative consultant  
4) Schedule meeting  
5) Maintain meeting notes  
6) Follow-up on meeting discussion  

i) Thank you notes  
ii) Commitments made  
iii) Response to specific requests  

 
⎯ Establish semi-annual meetings with members of Federal delegation.  

1) Formulate meeting agenda(s)  
2) Identify College Station representatives  
3) Coordinate agenda with legislative consultant  
4) Schedule meeting  
5) Maintain meeting notes  
6) Follow-up on meeting discussion  

i) Thank you notes  
ii) Commitments made  
iii) Response to specific requests  

 
 



⎯ Place legislative delegation and key staff on “Important Issues and Events” 
distribution list for City activities.  

1) Identify type of issues and activities to communicate to delegation  
2) Identify the best format to communicate “Important Issues and Events”  
3) Assign point of responsibility for on-going management of communication of 

“Important Issues and Events” 
    
⎯ Communicate College Station’s position on key issues and concerns coming 

before the delegation  
1) Texas Municipal League legislative agenda items  
2) Legislation impacting College Station  

 
Strategy 2 – Develop Comprehensive legislative program with other 
community actors.  
 
⎯ Develop legislative package which identifies and supports activities and actions 

of other community actors.  
1) Use IGC as a vehicle to identify and develop “Joint Legislative Initiatives for 

Brazos Valley”  
2) Communicate with delegation “Joint Program”  
3) Support efforts of other community partners with legislative delegation.     

 
⎯ Conduct joint legislative briefing with actors 

1) Invite legislation delegation to brief community actors on legislative issues  
2) Invite College Station legislative consultants to participate 
3) Develop specific game plan from briefing   

    
Strategy 3 – Lend College Station’s voice to important legislative issues.  
 
⎯ Identify important legislative issues which College Station needs to speak to.  

1) Identify through staff and Council important issues  
2) Develop position on issue  
3) Present issue to Council for consideration  
4) Prepare necessary documentation to communicate position  
5) If appropriate, designate College Station official to speak to the issue in 

appropriate forum  
    

Strategy 4 – Develop and implement College Station legislative program.  
 
⎯ Identify specific legislative concerns, issues, and opportunities  

1) Request staff and Council identification of issues  
2) Develop issues and concerns 
3) Present to Council (consider Council legislative committee)  
4) Present to legislative delegation  
5) Present to community partners (Joint Legislative Forum)  
6) Prepare legislative proposal  
7) Request legislative delegate sponsorship  
8) Develop support with other cities  

 
⎯ Strategy 5 – Recognize legislative delegation for their work 

1) Develop annual legislative breakfast, lunch, dinner “Thank You”  
2) When appropriate, specific “thank you” through media releases and 

acknowledgements through City communication channels 



O/group/legal/resolutions/narcotics.doc 
12/14/2006 

 
 
 

RES OLUTION NO. ____________ 
 
 
A RES OLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE S TATION, 
TEXAS , ES TABLIS HING THE 2007 LEGIS LATIVE AGENDA FOR THE CITY OF 
COLLEGE S TATION.   
 
 
WHEREAS , the  City Council of the  City of Colle ge  S ta tion, Te xa s , is  committe d to a n 
a ctive  le g is la tive  progra m on be ha lf of the  citize ns  of Colle ge  S ta tion; a nd 
 
WHEREAS , the  City Council of the  City of Colle ge  S ta tion, Te xa s , ha s  re vie we d the  
le g is la tive  progra ms  de ve lope d by the  Te xa s  Municipa l Le a gue  a nd TX 21; a nd  
 
WHEREAS , the  City Council of the  City of Colle ge  S ta tion, Te xa s , ha s  ide ntifie d 
s pe cific le g is la tive  prioritie s  for the  City of Colle ge  S ta tion, now, the re fore , 
 
BE IT RES OLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE S TATION, 
TEXAS : 
 
PART 1: Tha t the  City Council he re by s upports  the  Le g is la tive  Progra m a s  a dopte d 

by the  Te xa s  Municipa l Le a gue . 
 
PART 2: Tha t the  City Council he re by s upports  the  S ta te  Le g is la tive  Progra m 

a dopte d by TX 21. 
 
PART 3: Tha t the  City Council he re by s e ts  a s  the  le g is la tive  prioritie s  for the  City 

of Colle ge  S ta tion for the  2007 Le g is la tive  S e s s ion the  following  ite ms :  
 

a . Exte ns ion of Thoroughfa re  Pla n be yond the  Extra -te rritoria l 
J uris diction 

b. S a le s  Ta x Exte ns ion to provide  funding  for tra ns porta tion 
improve me nts   

c. Oppos e  the  impos ition of Re ve nue  a nd Appra is a l Ca ps   
d. S upport Te xa s  Re cre a tion & Pa rks  Account (TRPA) Loca l Pa rk Gra nt 

Progra m 
 
PART 4: Tha t this  re s olution s ha ll ta ke  e ffe ct imme dia te ly from a nd a fte r its  

pa s s a ge . 
 
ADOPTED this  14th da y of De ce mbe r, A.D. 2006. 
 
ATTES T:      APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
 _________________________________ 
CONNIE HOOKS , City S e cre ta ry   RON S ILVIA, Ma yor 
 
 
APPROVED: 



O/group/legal/resolutions/narcotics.doc 
12/14/2006 

 
E-Signed by Harvey Cargill

VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
_______________________________ 
City Attorne y 



 

December 14, 2006 
Workshop Agenda  

Annexation – Exempt Areas 
 

To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning and Development Services                         
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding proposed 
annexation areas and related cost considerations.  
 
Recommendation(s): The Planning & Zoning Commission heard this item at a 
special meeting on 5 December and unanimously recommended moving forward with 
the annexation of the four exempt areas identified by staff. The Commission also 
recommended two additional areas be considered for annexation under the exempt 
status.  Staff will present information on the two additional areas identified by the 
Commission at the meeting.     
 
Summary:  The purpose of this item is to provide Council an opportunity to discuss 
areas identified for annexation under the exempt status.  On 22 June 2006, Council 
received a report on annexation policy. At that meeting, Council directed staff to 
pursue an annexation strategy involving exempt areas and areas that could be 
placed in a three-year plan.  The 2006-2007 Strategic Plan identifies the annexation 
of exempt areas as an “A” (absolute must do).    
 
Cities consider annexation for many reasons, including securing tax base, providing 
for utility planning, ensuring good land use and thoroughfare planning, providing for 
safe building construction as well as providing room for orderly growth.  
 
Staff has identified four areas (totaling 3,411 acres) to be considered for possible 
annexation under the exempt status at this time.  A 3-year annexation plan is also 
being developed and will be presented to Council in 2007. A report summarizing the 
impacts and costs associated with annexing the proposed areas is attached. The 
report will also be presented at the Council workshop for discussion.  
   
Budget & Financial Summary: See Fiscal Impact Analysis included in Annexation 
Cost Considerations.   
 
Attachments: 

1. Annexation Cost Considerations  
2. Current Annexation Plan 
3. Recent Annexation History 
4. ETJ Development Trends 
5. Annexation Areas Map 
6. Area 1 SAM  
7. Area 2 SAM 
8. Area 3 SAM 
9. Area 4 SAM 
 

 
 



Annexation Cost 
Considerations 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Summary Report 
 

30 November 2006



 

Table of Contents 
 
                 
 

        Page 
 
 
Area Descriptions............................................................................................................ 1 

Reasons to Consider Annexation ..................................................................................... 2 

Immediate Impacts  

 Police Services..................................................................................................... 3 

Fire Services (Including EMS, Code Enforcement  

 and Fire Prevention) ................................................................................ 3 

Solid Waste Collection......................................................................................... 4 

Public Works ....................................................................................................... 5  

Building Permits and Inspections ......................................................................... 5 

Proposed Capital Improvements ..................................................................................... 6 

Fiscal Impact Analysis ................................................................................................... 11  

Conclusions................................................................................................................... 12 

Summary by Annexation Area ....................................................................................... 13 

Revenue Summary ........................................................................................................ 14 

 

Appendix A – Service Standard Collection of Annual Public Costs 

 All Areas ........................................................................................................... 15 

 Area 1 ............................................................................................................... 16 

Area 2 ............................................................................................................... 17 

Area 3 ............................................................................................................... 18 

Area 4 ............................................................................................................... 19 

 



1 

Annexation Cost Considerations 
Summary Report 

 
There are many reasons a city considers annexation. These include securing tax base, 
providing for utility planning, ensuring good land use and thoroughfare planning, 
providing for safe building construction as well as providing room for future population 
growth.  As areas on the periphery of a city begin to develop and use city services it is also 
important to consider bringing them into the city limits.  Historically annexation has been a 
very important factor in sustaining the population growth of Texas cities. Annexation is a 
growth strategy and has been a critical one for Texas cities in the past.  Recent legislative 
changes have made annexation more difficult and there are many considerations in using 
this strategy in any community.   
 
A part of any annexation consideration must include the capital expenditures that are 
anticipated, the ultimate costs and revenues anticipated at build-out (the fiscal impact 
analysis), and the immediate impacts on city services the "day after" annexation.  This 
report is intended to present all of these cost considerations. There are four areas being 
considered for possible annexation under the exempt status at this time.    
 

Area Descriptions 
 

Area #1 is generally located at the intersection of Raymond Stotzer Parkway and Turkey 
Creek Road.  This area contains 102 acres.  Land uses consist of approximately six 
residential units and a recently constructed church.  There are also two telecommunication 
towers located within this area.  The area has approximately one mile of public roadway. 
 
Area #2 is generally located at the intersection of SH 30 and William D. Fitch Parkway.  
This area contains 1,756 acres and has five residential units.  There are zero miles of 
public roadway in this area. 
 
Area #3 is generally located at the intersection of Rock Prairie Road West and Jones-
Butler Road. This area contains 1,101 acres. There are over 600 residential units located 
in this area, the majority of which are manufactured homes.  There are approximately 4.2 
miles of public roadway in this area.  
  
Area #4 is a 452-acre area located south of Greens Prairie Road West and bisected by 
Greens Prairie Trail. There are 13 residential units in this area and approximately 2.5 miles 
of public roadway. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



2 

 
 
 

Annexation Considerations  
 
In order to provide for a stable tax base, provide for wastewater planning, ensure good 
land use and thoroughfare planning, provide safe building construction, and secure room 
for future population growth, all areas should be considered for annexation. Additionally, 
Area #1 is virtually surrounded by the City, effectively creating a doughnut effect. 
Property for the new City cemetery is also located within Area #1. Area #2 will ensure 
that the City is able to control the SH 30 corridor as the majority of the SH 30 frontage 
within this area is undeveloped. Securing the property in Area #2 also enables land use and 
thoroughfare planning ahead of development. Areas #3 and #4 are being recommended for 
annexation in response to development pressure. The city is aware of proposed residential 
development in each of these areas.  The development planned for these areas are higher 
in density than we have witnessed in the past and staff is concerned about the lack of 
building permit authority in the ETJ.  Annexing these areas now will enable the City to 
issue building permits and perform safety inspections as construction progresses.  
 
The Brushy Special Utility District has the service territory for a portion of Annexation 
Area#1. However, the City of College Station Water CCN covers the majority of this 
area.  Water for Area #2 is served by Wickson Creek Special Utility District.  Areas #3 
and #4 are totally within the Wellborn Special Utility District's service area. Electrical 
power for all areas identified for annexation is provide by Bryan Texas Utilities (BTU).     
 
Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code allows Cities to annex up to ten percent 
of its size in any given year.  This amount is allowed to be accrued and can accumulate for 
up to three years.  Since College Station has not annexed in the past three years, the City 
may annex up to 30 percent of the current size.  This enables the City to annex 
approximately 9,081 acres.  The total acreage under consideration is 3,411 – 
approximately 37% of the area available for annexation under State law. 
 



3 

Immediate Impacts Upon Annexation 
 

The first cost consideration involves those services that must be provided immediately 
upon annexation.  These include police services, fire services, emergency medical services, 
code enforcement, solid waste collection, public R.O.W. maintenance, utility maintenance 
(as applicable) and building permitting and inspections.  The Departments responsible for 
these services have provided information to assess the potential impact of annexing the 
areas under consideration.  The following is a summary of the initial impact by 
Department. 
 
Police Services 
The areas proposed for annexation should not have an adverse impact on the Police 
Department's ability to provide services.  The land uses as proposed, do not create a need 
for more officers at this time.  There is a possibility that beats will have to be restructured 
to adequately distribute any additional workload.  The Police Department will monitor and 
address issues as the areas proposed for annexation are built out and a larger demand for 
emergency services is necessary.  
 
Fire Services 
Annexation of all areas will have a significant impact on the Fire Department’s service 
levels.  As with any potential annexation there will be impacts on the Fire Department’s 
ability to deliver services within designated drive times. As a result of these annexation 
processes there will also be a significant need to add additional resources to the fire 
department to meet the service demands. It is projected that a new Fire Station that 
houses staffing for one Fire Engine and one Ambulance will need to be built on the East 
end of William D. Fitch Parkway near the SH 30 intersection and a new Fire Station that 
houses staffing for one Fire Engine and one Ambulance will need to be built on the West 
end of Greens Prairie near the Royder Drive intersection. The purchase of a minimum of a 
2,500 gallon water tanker and a grass firefighting truck will also need to be purchased to 
protect the off-road and non fire hydrant areas. The College Station Fire Department will 
continue to work with the Brazos County Volunteer Fire Departments through existing 
mutual aid agreements to protect these response areas as growth occurs. It is important to 
note that the addition of these areas may negatively impact the City’s next ISO evaluation.  
 
Following are comments for each of the proposed annexation areas for Fire Protection, 
Emergency Medical Services, and Code Enforcement Services.  
 
Area #1 - Raymond Stotzer Pkwy. 

• The water supply (fire hydrants and fire flow) in this area is not adequate to 
support new development.    

• The City will need to purchase a grass firefighting truck to fight off-road fires in 
this area. 

• Brazos County Volunteer Fire Department Precinct 4 currently serves this area. 
 
Area #2 - SH 30 & William D. Fitch Parkway 



4 

• The water supply (fire hydrants and fire flow) in this area is not adequate to 
support new development. The City will also need to purchase a water tanker 
truck (minimum 2,500 gallons capacity) to provide water supply for off-road 
firefighting. 

• The City will need to purchase a grass firefighting truck to fight off-road fires in 
this area. 

• Response Times – this area is beyond the standard 5-minute response time, 
therefore the City of College Station will need to purchase or acquire a two (2) 
acre tract of land to build a future fire station.  

• Fire Code Compliance – there are already structures that have been built in this 
area that do not meet our fire protection code. These buildings and structures 
present fire and life safety concerns for the future. 

• Brazos County Volunteer Fire Department Precinct 2 currently serves this area.  
 

Area #3 - Greens Prairie & Royder Dr. 

• The water supply (fire hydrants and fire flow) in this area is not adequate to 
support new development. 

• Response Times – this area is beyond the standard 5-minute response time, 
therefore the City will need to purchase or acquire a  two (2) acre tract of land to 
build a future fire station.  

• Code Enforcement – this area contains a number of properties and structures that 
do not meet present code enforcement requirements. 

• South Brazos County Volunteer Fire Department Precinct 1 currently serves this 
area.   

 
Area #4 - Rock Prairie & Jones Butler 

• The water supply (fire hydrants and fire flow) in this area is not adequate to 
support new development.  

• This area is just on the edge of the standard 5-minute response time - the 
relocation of Fire Station #3 should greatly improve the response times to this 
area.   

• The City will need to purchase a grass firefighting truck to fight off- road fires in 
this area.  

• South Brazos County Volunteer Fire Department Precinct 1 currently serves this 
area.  
 

As the City prepares for this annexation and future annexation opportunities, a decision 
needs to be made concerning water supply as it relates to fire flow and fire hydrant 
distance requirements as our city grows into areas that are served by other water service 
providers (such as Brushy and Wellborn water district). There is a major concern that 
these water service providers will not be able to supply adequate demands for fire 
protection requirements.  

 
 



5 

Solid Waste Collection 
Most of the exempt annexation proposal areas can be absorbed by the Sanitation Division 
without additional personnel or collection equipment. The more densely populated areas 
of the proposed annexation are the three mobile home parks off of Rock Prairie Road, 
west of FM2154, which are Oak Creek, Rolling Ridge, and Sunset Ridge. These areas will 
require an initial cost outlay for additional residential containers. Total costs for the 
proposed annexation are $27,000 for additional containers and $40,000 recurring O&M 
collection costs which would be offset by a sanitation fee revenue increase from the 
additional customers. 
 
Currently, these areas are being serviced by several different private waste service 
providers. Per state law, existing contracted services may continue to be provided by the 
company for a period of two years after the effective annexation date. The necessity for 
these private service providers to apply for a waste collection franchise with the City to 
continue service after annexation is an issue that needs to be addressed.  
 
Public Works - Road mowing and maintenance 
Annual maintenance costs are approximately $7,500 per mile annually. The total annual 
costs are estimated to be $57,900.  
 
Building Permits and Inspections 
Individually, the areas under consideration should not have an adverse impact on current 
service levels.  Collectively, there will be a slight to moderate impact on current 
performance levels depending on the rate of development. Once the annexed areas begin 
to develop, service levels may have to be adjusted to reflect the additional workload unless 
personnel are added.  
 



6 

Proposed Capital Improvements 
 

In determining how utility service would be extended to the areas proposed for 
annexation, the current Utility Extension Policy was applied.  The current policy for 
extension of utility service calls for the extension of water and wastewater main lines 
across major thoroughfares and natural boundaries that would be cost prohibitive for 
private entities.  The City also provides major facilities, such as lift stations and 
wastewater package plants when development warrants the installation of such facilities.  
As an area develops, developers or homeowners extend water distribution and wastewater 
collection lines to individual lots.  The lot owners pay for the costs of these lines; 
however, the City may elect to fund additional capacity.  The City’s financing options 
include the use of utility revenues, bond funds, or impact fees.   
 
The extension of water and wastewater lines is driven by development due to cost and 
operational conditions.  Until an area becomes densely populated, the cost of utility 
extension is not feasible to be borne by a few lot owners.  Also, population density is 
required to prevent septic conditions from occurring in a wastewater line with low flow. 
 
Area #1 Water 
 
College Station has served the area south of F&B and east of Turkey Creek Road for 
many years.  In the 1950’s the residents constructed a small diameter water line that was 
connected to the TAMU system and College Station maintains the meters and billing 
process.  A 12” replacement line has been under design and will be under construction as 
soon as easements are obtained along F&B.  The Brushy Water System CCN service 
territory is located along the west side of Turkey Creek Road.  These residents are served 
by a 6” diameter domestic water line.  The College Station Water CCN covers the 
majority of the area.     
 
Engineering and Water Services have been working for some time with their consultant, 
the City of Bryan, the Parks & Recreation Department and area residents to extend water 
and wastewater lines to this area.  Current plans include an 8” line through the cemetery 
site and a 12-in line crossing Turkey Creek which will extend west past SH 47.   
 
Area #1 Wastewater 
 
Properties within Annexation Area #1 are currently served by private on-site sewer 
facilities (OSSFs).  However, for this area to develop more densely a gravity system or lift 
station is necessary.  The Pornada Tract is served by a lift station which flows to a TAMU 
wastewater line for which a limited ILA has been approved.  Current plans include a lift 
station to the west, a gravity line across Turkey Creek and lateral lines northward along 
Turkey Creek the drainage way.  The City has entered into an ILA with the City of Bryan 
for a limited volume of wastewater to be treated by Bryan.  Bryan is in the process of 
constructing a new wastewater treatment plant to the west of Area #1.   
 



7 

 
 

Area #2 Water 

Area #2 is in the water CCN service territory of Wickson Creek Special Utility District 
(WCSUD).  Residents are either served by private well or by WCSUD.  Due to the fact that 
the City does not serve water in this area, the City is not obligated to extend water 
infrastructure in the area after annexation.  

Area #2 Wastewater 
 
Area #2 is not currently served by an organized collection system.  Any structure within 
the area would have to be served by an OSSF.  OSSFs can serve developments but require 
large acreages for treatment. This, combined with stormwater detention requirements, 
make OSSF a last choice.   
 
The City is currently designing a lift station along William D. Fitch Parkway. at Carter’s Creek 
to serve previously annexed areas.  The lift station can be upgraded to serve the additional 
areas north and south of Fitch Parkway along SH 30.  The gravity line planned in conjunction 
with the lift station will only extend eastward to about 1.5 miles west of SH 30.  Therefore, an 
additional lift station will be required to serve the area.   

 



8 

 

 

Area #3 Water 

The majority of Area #3 is in the water CCN service territory of Wellborn Special Utility 
District (WSUD).  Residents are served by private well or by WCSUD.  The Rolling Ridge 
property is in the City’s CCN and served by a private water line extension.  If the Rolling Ridge 
area is annexed, the City may need to extend a sizeable line to the area to ensure fire supply.   

The City has been planning on an extension to this area.  This line could provide water supply 
for fire protection purposes.  

Area #3 Wastewater 

Area #3 has recently seen new development in which City wastewater facilities have been 
installed.  A 12” sewer trunk line was installed parallel to Cain Road through the Las 
Palomas Subdivision at the southwest end of Cain Road.  The Great Oaks Subdivision is 
planning a lift station that will pump back to this line.  This lift station may have additional 
capacity to serve areas in the Area #3 outside of Great Oaks.   
 
Rolling Ridge operates its own private wastewater treatment plant.  The plant is scheduled 
for upgrade to serve the new housing expansion.   



9 

The recently completed Steeplechase Sewer Line crosses Rock Prairie Road West 
approximately 0.67 miles east of I&GN and will serve a portion of Area #3.  An additional 
lift station and force main sited along North Graham at Hopes Creek will be needed to 
serve the entire area.  

 

Area #4 Water 

Area #4 is located entirely within the water CCN service territory of Wellborn Special Utility 
District (WSUD). The WSUD water tower is located just off Greens Prairie Road and Royder 
Road to the northeast.  WSUD operates and maintains 16” and larger diameter lines within the 
area.   

Area #4 Wastewater 

Area #4 is predominately undeveloped.  Residents in Wellborn Oaks, being comprised of 4-
acre lots, are on OSSF.   

The City is currently reviewing plans for a new proposed development in Area #4 which 
includes a lift station and force main.  The proposed lift station would serve all of Area #4 
except the extreme south portion.   

 



10 

     
 
 



11 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
(Full Build-out Scenario) 

 
The fiscal impact analysis used here is a tool that estimates the annual costs and revenues 
that the City will incur once the identified property is fully developed.  This information is 
provided to help project the need for municipal services, to monitor the costs of land use 
decisions, and to give officials information for making growth and planning decisions.  
 
For this analysis the widely accepted Service Standard Method was used1.  This analysis 
should be treated as an estimate based upon the best data available.  In addition, it is 
important for decision-makers using this information to understand the assumptions upon 
which it is based.   

1. In this model it is assumed that the current level of municipal services in College 
Station will be maintained in newly annexed areas.   

2. This analysis provides estimates for these areas once they are fully developed.  Some 
of these areas may not develop for 20+ years.  The costs / benefits in the interim will 
vary, but typically costs to the City are higher until the areas fully develop. 

3. All costs and revenues are in current dollars based on current budget data.   

4. The model is based on existing tax and utility rates that may change over time.  Future 
changes to the land use plan may also change future fiscal impacts. 

 
Demands and Costs 
The analysis begins by using future land use assumptions, based on development in 
accordance with the City's adopted Land Use Plan, to estimate the population for each 
annexation area.  Using existing development as a model, the average number of dwelling 
units for residential areas is calculated.  Census data for persons per household are used to 
calculate the population. 
 
Existing service levels for the City are then used to calculate the demand for City services 
in the annexation areas.  An equal level of service is applied to the annexation area to yield 
the demand for services.  Costs per year for the demanded services are calculated using 
cost ratios to compensate for the varied nature of service provided by different 
departments.  This results in a cost per year to provide existing level of services to the 
annexation areas. 
 
Revenues 
Revenues are calculated for property taxes, sales taxes, utility fees and miscellaneous 
revenues.  Estimates are based on current revenues from the existing City applied to the 
projected development in the annexation areas. 
 
 
1 - More information on this method is available in The Fiscal Impact Handbook by Robert Burchell 
& Davide Listokin. 
 



12 

Conclusions 
 
The following tables summarize the results of the fiscal impact analysis.  Area #1 and Area 
#2 have the greatest potential for positive revenues. Conversely, Area #3 and Area#4 have 
the highest overall cost. This model does not reflect the possibility of recovering some 
costs through impact fee lines. 
 
Overall the results show that there would be a net annual cost to the City of -$341,000 
once these areas are fully developed. It should be noted that future changes in the Land 
Use Plan or development patterns will affect these projections 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 

Summary of Fiscal Impact Analysis by Area 
 

Area 1 
 
Costs $497,300 
 
Property Tax Revenues $83,600 
Utility Revenues $1,434,900 
 
Total $1,021,200 

 
 

Area 2 
 
Costs $4,483,100 
 
Property Tax Revenues $2,374,600 
Utility Revenues $2,386,900 
 
Total $278,400 
 
 
Area 3 
 
Costs $3,179,100 
 
Property Tax Revenues $643,100 
Utility Revenues $1,632,100 
 
Total -$903,900 
 
Area 4 
 
Costs $2,786,000 
 
Property Tax Revenues $596,700 
Utility Revenues $1,452,300 
 
Total -$737,000 

 
 
 
 



14 

Summary of Revenues – Build-out 
 
 
Property Tax Revenue – Area 1 $83,600 
Property Tax Revenue – Area 2 $2,374,600 
Property Tax Revenue – Area 3 $643,100 
Property Tax Revenue – Area 4 $596,700 
 
Total Property Tax Revenues $3,698,000 

 
 
Utility Revenues – Area 1 $1,434,900 
Utility Revenues – Area 2 $2,386,900 
Utility Revenues – Area 3 $1,632,100 
Utility Revenues – Area 4 $1,452,300 
 
Total Utility Revenues $6,906,200 
 
 
Total Revenues $10,604,200 
 
 
Total Costs $10,945,500 
 
 
Total Annual Fiscal Impact -$341,300 

 
 

Note: Potential miscellaneous revenues (not 
included in the above) constitute a one time positive 
impact of $3,529,000. 

 



15 

Annexation
Service Standard Calculation of Annual Public Costs

All Areas

Anticipated Government Number of Manpower Budget $ Per Future Add’l Annual Capital to Add’l Annual Total Cost
Population Function Employees Ratio 2006 - 2007 Employee Employees Operating Cost Operating Capital Cost To Public

11,459 Fiscal Services 44.00        0.53          3,313,292$     75,302$   6.02          453,235$          0.006       2,719$            455,954$        
General Government 166.25      1.98          16,224,972     97,594     22.74        2,219,460         0.011       24,414            2,243,874       
Police 164.50      1.96          12,387,217     75,302     22.50        1,694,483         0.047       79,641            1,774,123       

Total Oct 1, 2006 Fire 116.00      1.38          9,339,160       80,510     15.87        1,277,530         0.029       37,048            1,314,579       
Population Streets & Drainage 41.00        0.49          4,621,198       112,712   5.61          632,147            1.361       860,352          1,492,499       

Sewer 46.00        0.55          4,236,210       92,092     6.29          579,483            1.021       591,652          1,171,136       
83,769 Sanitation 36.50        0.44          5,268,552       144,344   4.99          720,700            -        -                      720,700          

Water 30.00        0.36          4,158,529       138,618   0.17          23,928              2.432       14,548            38,476            
Utility Billing 29.50        0.35          2,051,464       69,541     4.04          280,626            0.011       3,087              283,712          
Parks 123.50      1.47          8,245,293       66,764     16.89        1,127,897         0.286       322,579          1,450,476       

797.25      69,845,887$   105.13      9,009,489$       1,936,040$     10,945,529$   

General Government includes: General Government, Information Services, Planning and Development Services, Public Works (Admin, Facilities Maint, 
Engineering), Parking Enterprise, Fleet Maintenance, Print Mail, and Communications. BVSWMA is not included.

Notes:
1. Capital to operating cost ratios from Finance Dept.
2. Future population calculated according to acreage in land use scenarios, then existing population was subtracted.
3. The City will not be providing electrical services in these areas.
4. The City will provide water services in area 1, but not in areas 2, 3, or 4.

APPENDIX A



16 

Annexation
Service Standard Calculation of Annual Public Costs

Area 1

Anticipated Government Number of Manpower Budget $ Per Future Add’l Annual Capital to Add’l Annual Total Cost
Population Function Employees Ratio 2006 - 2007 Employee Employees Operating Cost Operating Capital Cost To Public

482 Fiscal Services 44.00            0.53            3,313,292$      75,302$     0.25             19,064$              0.006         114$               19,179$        
General Government 166.25          1.98            16,224,972      97,594       0.96             93,357                0.011         1,027              94,384          
Police 164.50          1.96            12,387,217      75,302       0.95             71,275                0.047         3,350              74,625          

Total Oct 1, 2006 Fire 116.00          1.38            9,339,160        80,510       0.67             53,737                0.029         1,558              55,295          
Population Streets & Drainage 41.00            0.49            4,621,198        112,712     0.24             26,590                1.361         36,189            62,779          

Sewer 46.00            0.55            4,236,210        92,092       0.26             24,375                1.021         24,887            49,261          
83,769 Sanitation 36.50            0.44            5,268,552        144,344     0.21             30,315                -           -                      30,315          

Water 30.00            0.36            4,158,529        138,618     0.17             23,928                0.608         14,548            38,476          
Utility Billing 29.50            0.35            2,051,464        69,541       0.17             11,804                0.011         130                 11,934          
Parks 123.50          1.47            8,245,293        66,764       0.71             47,443                0.286         13,569            61,011          

Total College Station 797.25          69,845,887$    4.59             401,888$            95,372$          497,259$      

General Government includes: General Government, Information Services, Planning and Development Services, Public Works (Admin, Facilities Maint, 
Engineering), Parking Enterprise, Fleet Maintenance, Print Mail, and Communications. BVSWMA is not included.

Notes:
1. Capital to operating cost ratios from Finance Dept.
2. Future population calculated according to acreage in land use scenarios, then existing population was subtracted.
3. The City will not be providing electrical services in this area.



17 

Annexation
Service Standard Calculation of Annual Public Costs

Area 2

Anticipated Government Number of Manpower Budget $ Per Future Add’l Annual Capital to Add’l Annual Total Cost
Population Function Employees Ratio 2006 - 2007 Employee Employees Operating Cost Operating Capital Cost To Public

4,710 Fiscal Services 44.00           0.53           3,313,292$      75,302$     2.47            186,293$           0.006        1,118$           187,411$       
General Government 166.25         1.98           16,224,972      97,594       9.35            912,266             0.011        10,035           922,301         
Police 164.50         1.96           12,387,217      75,302       9.25            696,484             0.047        32,735           729,219         

Total Oct 1, 2006 Fire 116.00         1.38           9,339,160        80,510       6.52            525,104             0.029        15,228           540,332         
Population Streets & Drainage 41.00           0.49           4,621,198        112,712     2.31            259,832             1.361        353,631         613,463         

Sewer 46.00           0.55           4,236,210        92,092       2.59            238,185             1.021        243,187         481,373         
83,769 Sanitation 36.50           0.44           5,268,552        144,344     2.05            296,230             -          -                     296,230         

Water -              -             -                       -                 -             -                         0.608        -                     -                     
Utility Billing 29.50           0.35           2,051,464        69,541       1.66            115,346             0.011        1,269             116,615         
Parks 123.50         1.47           8,245,293        66,764       6.94            463,600             0.286        132,590         596,190         

Total College Station 767.25         65,687,358$    43.14          3,693,341$        789,792$       4,483,133$    

General Government includes: General Government, Information Services, Planning and Development Services, Public Works (Admin, Facilities Maint, 
Engineering), Parking Enterprise, Fleet Maintenance, Print Mail, and Communications. BVSWMA is not included.

Notes:
1. Capital to operating cost ratios from Finance Dept.
2. Future population calculated according to acreage in land use scenarios, then existing population was subtracted.
3. The City will not be providing electrical or water services in this area.



18 

Annexation
Service Standard Calculation of Annual Public Costs

Area 3

Anticipated Government Number of Manpower Budget $ Per Future Add’l Annual Capital to Add’l Annual Total Cost
Population Function Employees Ratio 2006 - 2007 Employee Employees Operating Cost Operating Capital Cost To Public

3,340 Fiscal Services 44.00           0.53            3,313,292$     75,302$     1.75            132,106$            0.006        793$               132,899$     
General Government 166.25         1.98            16,224,972     97,594       6.63            646,915              0.011        7,116              654,031       
Police 164.50         1.96            12,387,217     75,302       6.56            493,898              0.047        23,213            517,111       

Total Oct 1, 2006 Fire 116.00         1.38            9,339,160       80,510       4.63            372,367              0.029        10,799            383,165       
Population Streets & Drainage 41.00           0.49            4,621,198       112,712     1.63            184,254              1.361        250,770          435,024       

Sewer 46.00           0.55            4,236,210       92,092       1.83            168,904              1.021        172,451          341,356       
83,769 Sanitation 36.50           0.44            5,268,552       144,344     1.46            210,065              -          -                     210,065       

Water -               -             -                     -                 -              -                         0.608        -                     -                   
Utility Billing 29.50           0.35            2,051,464       69,541       1.18            81,795                0.011        900                 82,695         
Parks 123.50         1.47            8,245,293       66,764       4.92            328,753              0.286        94,023            422,776       

Total College Station 767.25         65,687,358$   30.59          2,619,057$         560,065$        3,179,122$  

General Government includes: General Government, Information Services, Planning and Development Services, Public Works (Admin, Facilities Maint, 
Engineering), Parking Enterprise, Fleet Maintenance, Print Mail, and Communications. BVSWMA is not included.

Notes:
1. Capital to operating cost ratios from Finance Dept.
2. Future population calculated according to acreage in land use scenarios, then existing population was subtracted.
3. The City will not be providing electrical or water services in this area.



19 

Annexation
Service Standard Calculation of Annual Public Costs

Area 4

Anticipated Government Number of Manpower Budget $ Per Future Add’l Annual Capital to Add’l Annual Total Cost
Population Function Employees Ratio 2006 - 2007 Employee Employees Operating Cost Operating Capital Cost To Public

2,927 Fiscal Services 44.00          0.53          3,313,292$     75,302$    1.54           115,771$          0.006       695$             116,465$     
General Government 166.25        1.98          16,224,972     97,594      5.81           566,922            0.011       6,236            573,158       
Police 164.50        1.96          12,387,217     75,302      5.75           432,826            0.047       20,343          453,169       

Total Oct 1, 2006 Fire 116.00        1.38          9,339,160      80,510      4.05           326,323            0.029       9,463            335,786       
Population Streets & Drainage 41.00          0.49          4,621,198      112,712    1.43           161,471            1.361       219,762        381,233       

Sewer 46.00          0.55          4,236,210      92,092      1.61           148,019            1.021       151,127        299,146       
83,769 Sanitation 36.50          0.44          5,268,552      144,344    1.28           184,090            -         -                   184,090       

Water -             -            -                    -               -            -                      0.608       -                   -                 
Utility Billing 29.50          0.35          2,051,464      69,541      1.03           71,681             0.011       788              72,469         
Parks 123.50        1.47          8,245,293      66,764      4.32           288,101            0.286       82,397          370,498       

Total College Station 767.25        65,687,358$   26.81         2,295,203$       490,811$      2,786,015$  

General Government includes: General Government, Information Services, Planning and Development Services, Public Works (Admin, Facilities Maint, 
Engineering), Parking Enterprise, Fleet Maintenance, Print Mail, and Communications. BVSWMA is not included.

Notes:
1. Capital to operating cost ratios from Finance Dept.
2. Future population calculated according to acreage in land use scenarios, then existing population was subtracted.
3. The City will not be providing electrical or water services in this area.



20 

 



Annexation Plan 
Subchapter C of Chapter 43 Local Government Code requires that cities prepare an annexation 
plan.  Property can be annexed on the third anniversary of inclusion in the plan.  The plan 
serves to provide a three-year notice to property owners of a city's intent to annex. 

The statute provides several exceptions to the requirement for inclusion in an annexation 
plan.  Two of these exceptions are applicable in College Station.  One exception exempts 
annexations that include fewer than 100 separate tracts of land on which one or more 
residential dwellings are located.  Another exception exempts properties that petition for 
annexation. 

The City's statutorily mandated Annexation Pan currently provides that the City has no plans 
for annexation outside those areas that are exempt from the annexation plan requirements of 
the Local Government Code.  This plan is reviewed and updated from time to time. 

 
Current Annexation Plan 
Pursuant to Section 43.052 of the Local Government Code, The City of College Station will only 
annex areas that are identified in this municipal annexation plan or exempt from the 
provisions of Section 43.052.  

Areas specifically identified herein may be annexed on the third anniversary of the adoption 
date of this plan or on the third anniversary an amendment to include such area in this plan. 
Specific areas planned for adoption, if any are: 

• No areas are identified for annexation  

Other areas that may be considered for annexation by the City of College Station include only 
areas which are exempt from Section 43.052 including: 

• Areas which contain fewer than 100 separate tracts of land on which one or more 
residential dwellings are located on each tract.  

• Areas annexed by petition of more than 50 percent of the real property owners in the 
area proposed for annexation or by vote or petition of the qualified voters or real 
property owners.   

• An area which is or was the subject of an industrial district contract under Section 
42.044 of the Local Government Code  

• An area which is or was the subject of a strategic partnership agreement under 
Section 43.0751.  

• An area annexed under Section 43.026, 43.029 or 43.031 of the Local Government 
Code.  

• An area the City Council of the City of College Station determines that the annexation 
of the area is necessary to protect the area proposed for annexation or the City of 
College Station from:  



o Imminent destruction of property or injury to persons.  

o A condition or use that constitutes a public or private nuisance as defined by 
background principles of nuisance and property law of the State of Texas. 

Following adoption of this municipal annexation plan by the College Station City Council, and 
so long as the City of College Station maintains an Internet website, the City of College 
Station will post and maintain on its Internet website: 

• This municipal annexation plan.  

• Any amendments to include an area in this municipal annexation plan until the date 
the area is annexed.  

• Any amendments to remove an area from this municipal annexation plan until the date 
the area is again eligible for inclusion in the plan.  

 



CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
 RECENT ANNEXATION HISTORY  

 
 
1994 
• No annexation policy 
• Annexation plan driven by electric CCNs—utility service (electric and service basins for 2 

WWTPs) became the policy 
 
1995 and 1996 
• 1994 annexation plan completed 
• Approximately 5225 acres annexed 
 
Dec. 9, 1999 
• Annexation plan—exempt and petitions 
 
April 12, 2001 
• Annexation feasibility study presented to Council (part of Council Strategic Plan) 
• Council gave direction to move ahead with Priority 1 areas (exempt areas—general) 
 
May 23, 2002 
• Updated Council on areas to be considered (broken down into specific areas), 

annexation process, and schedule for annexation 
 
June 27, 2002 
• Presentation of Fiscal Impact Analysis of each specific area  
Ø impacts that result from services that must be provided immediately upon 

annexation 
Ø cost of capital improvements that are required under statute 
Ø costs and revenues that will occur once the areas are completely built out 
 

July 11, 2002 
• Council directed staff to begin the preparation of a service plan and adopted an 

ordinance to begin annexation proceedings for the certain properties, setting public 
hearing dates and establishing a date to consider an ordinance for the annexation  

 
Sept. 26, 2002 
• Public hearing 
 
Oct. 2, 2002  
• Public hearing 
 
Oct. 10, 2002 
• Council directed Staff which areas to include in the annexation ordinance 
 
Oct. 24, 2002 
• 2002 annexation complete 
 
March 13, 2003 
• Utility extension policy formalized as part of the on-going annexation strategy 
 
November 23, 2004 
• Annexation petition in F&B area granted (6.843 acres) 
 



 
Feb. 9, 2006 
• Change in ETJ utility extension policy—previously land owners that wanted city utilities 

had to request annexation (exceptions could be granted).  Generally, the time and cost 
involved in permitting private sewage facilities, developing them, and providing 
continuous maintenance for dense ETJ developments are prohibitive.  With sewer CCNs, 
the City is able to provide public services that will allow for denser development with 
waste water facilities to city standards.  The only way to ensure that the quality of 
development that can occur with this service is to all city standards (infrastructure 
construction, fire code, building code, park provision, etc.) is to annex.   

 
As the City is responsible for planning and development of these utilities, and as we do not 
have land use controls in the county, it lends to a more aggressive annexation policy to 
bring these properties in and control the land use (“therein established an annexation policy 
and program to incorporate affected areas in a manner that sufficiently addresses planning 
and development issues for the extended utility systems”). 
 
June 22, 2006 
• Council stated that they wanted to pursue annexation through exempt areas and 

through a 3-year plan. 
• Focus on high density development areas 
• Prioritize areas for Council  
• Provide Fiscal Impact Analysis 
• Back with proposal in 3-4 months 



Annexation Policy Review 
Development Trends in the Extra-territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) 
 
 
Population Estimates & Projections 
 
Since the last Census in 2000, the rate of 
population change has been significant in the 
City of College Station and the ETJ. According 
to the projections, the ETJ population is 
anticipated to increase approximately 17% by 
2016. In the City, the population is projected 
to increase almost 55% for the period 2000 – 
2016. These projections do not account for 
any future annexation activity.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Platting Trends 
 
For the last four out of six years, the 
total number of lots platted has 
exceeded 800. A significant 
proportion of these lots are in the 
ETJ. Recently, the Subdivision 
Regulations were amended to 
require fire flows in the ETJ and 
likely contributed to the reduced 
number of lots platted in the ETJ 
last year. 
 
Since 2003, approximately 23% of 
the lots platted were in the ETJ. 
 

 City ETJ Total 
2000 67,890 11,380 79,270 
2001 72,020 11,494 83,514 
2002 75,752 11,609 87,361 
2003 78,309 11,725 90,034 
2004 80,214 11,842 92,056 
2005 81,930 11,960 93,890 
2006 84,035 12,080 96,115 
2007 86,140 12,201 98,341 
2008 88,246 12,323 100,569 
2009 90,351 12,446 102,797 
2010 92,456 12,571 105,027 
2011 94,562 12,696 107,258 
2012 96,667 12,823 109,490 
2013 98,772 12,952 111,724 
2014 100,877 13,081 113,958 
2015 102,983 13,212 116,194 
2016 105,088 13,344 118,432 

4 8 2
6 35

72 7 7 1 69 0 37 5 64 9 6

1 4 9
1 2 8

9 8 2 4 0 2 5 9

6 24 4

2 000 20 01 20 02 200 3 20 04 200 5 200 6

C ity  L o ts E T J  L o ts





F 
& B

 R
D

COLL
EGE S

TA
TI

ON C
IT

Y LI
M

IT
S

RAYMOND STOTZER PW

RESEARCH PW

RAYMOND STOTZER PW

COLL
EGE S

TA
TIO

N C
IT

Y LI
M

IT
S

HARVEY M
ITCHELL PW

. SO
UTH

RAYM
OND S

TOTZER P
W

Parking

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

 LO
O

P

EASTERWOOD AIRPORT

TAMU

TAMU RESEARCH PARK
OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

COLLEGE STATION
CITY LIMITS

38
48

38
00

8627

45
16

42
48

8878

8390

8360

8746

8676

8818

8816

8844
43

74

43
98

44
42

8590

37
08

37
35

#803

#807
#805

#809

4090

4098

41
02

TURKEY CREEK RD

VALLEY PARKCENTER
1

4

3

2

Annexation A
rea 1

³

EXISTING
 CITY LIM

ITS

EXIS
TIN

G C
IT

Y LI
MIT

S



³

ETJ BOUNDARY

EXISTING
CITY LIM

ITS

EX
IS

TIN
G

C
ITY LIM

ITS

Annexation A
rea 2

W
ILLIAM

 D. FITCH PKW
Y

BIR
D

 PO
N

D
 R

D

TONKAW
AY LAKE

TONKAWAY LAKE

SH 30



FM 2154

I&G
N

 R
D

N DOWLING RD

QUAIL 
RN

DEACON D
R WELSH AVE

VICTORIA AVE

GRAHAM R
D

ROCK P
RAIR

IE
 R

D

HARVEY MITCHELL PKWY S

NORTH G
RAHAM R

D

ALACIA CT

OLD WELLBORN RD

NA
VA

RR
O

 D
R

BARRON R
D

CAIN
 R

D

CAPSTONE DR

HO
PES CREEK RD

RIO GRANDE BLVD

HICKORY RD

PONDEROSA DR

WALNUT RD

BLU
E R

ID
GE D

R
DOW

LIN
G R

D

EAGLE
 AV

E

SU
ZA

N
N

E P
LA

C
E

GREAT OAKS DR

EDELW
EISS AVE

JO
N

ES BU
TLER

 R
D

AB
BA

TE
 R

D

S DOWLING RD
MORTI

ER D
R

PIER
R

E PL

ASHLEY LN

ROBIN DR

HARTFO
RD D

R

MEIR
 LN

H
EAD

W
ATER

 LN

SA
N S

AB
A 

DR

OAK LEAF

GAIL 
PL

SOPHIA
 LN

W
ES

T 
RID

GE 
DR

FAVOR RD

DURRAND ST

B
U

G
G

Y
 L

N

ALL
EY

NOTTINGHAM LN

GRAHAM R
D N

HAUPT 
RD

WESTCHESTER AVE

VA
L V

ER
DE

 D
R

OAK RUN

MARTA ST
VIENNA DR

ORCHID
 S

T

CAR
M

EL
 P

L

ARNOLD
 R

D

NORTON LN

LIENZ LN

RIDG
ELINE

CATERINA LN

APR
IC

O
T G

LEN

CEDAR R
ID

GE D
R

ENCIN
AS P

L

W
H

ITE R
O

C
K R

D

GRAY WOLF TR

SHORT RD

AR
BO

LE
DA

 D
R

SADDLE
 LN

RAYADO CT S

DOW
LIN

G R
D

FM
 2

15
4

AL
LE

Y

CAIN
 R

D

³
EXIS

TIN
G

CITY
 LI

MIT
S

EXISTING

CITY LIMITS

Annexation A
rea 3



FM
 2

15
4

I&G
N

 R
D

ROYDER RD

A
R

R
IN

G
TO

N
 R

D

WOODLAKE DR

S H 6 S

KOPPE B
RID

GE R
D

GREENS P
RAIR

IE
 TR

S H 40 /  WILLIAM D FITCH PKWY

GREENS P
RAIR

IE
 R

D W

BARRON R
D

CAPSTONE DR

S DOWLING RD

GREENS P
RAIR

IE
 R

OAD W

ALACIA CT

INDIAN LAKES DR

CALUMET TR

SWEETWATER DR
VI

CTO
RIA

 AV
E

SOUTH OAKS DR

BARRON C
UT-

OFF
 R

D

GUS ROY RD

SU
ZA

N
N

E P
LA

C
E

HARPER'S FERRY RD

H
EAD

W
ATER

 LN

REDM
AN LN

MIDSUMMER LN

AR
APAH

O
 R

ID
G

E D
R

P1
-7

35

MCCULL
OUGH R

D

CLA
YTO

N
B

U
G

G
Y

 L
N

RIVA RIDGE RD

A&R DR

FR
IE

RSO
N R

D

REGAL OAKS DR

C
H

E
Y

E
N

N
E

 D
R

LE
DGESTO

NE TR
L

W
IN

DHAM R
ANCH R

D

NORTON LN

WHITE'S CREEK LN

BE
LM

O
N

T 
CR

NEW
ARK C

IR

O
LD

 A
R

R
IN

G
TO

N
 R

D

APR
IC

O
T G

LEN

GREENTREE C
R

CHURCH ST

TR
IP

LE
 B

EN
D

 C
R

CAMBER CT

HIDDEN ACRES DR

APPLEBY PL

C
IT

AT
IO

N
 C

R
SC

O
TN

E
Y 

C
T

³
EXISTING

CITY LIMITS

Annexation A
rea 4



 

 

December 14, 2006 
Workshop Agenda  
Internal Auditor 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Julie O'Connell, Director of Human Resources                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the 
appointment of an Internal Auditor. 
 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff will present options at the meeting for the creation of this 
function and will seek direction from the Council. 
 
Summary:   In May 2006, citizens approved a change to the City Charter.  This item 
responds to this change under Section 30 which states: "The City Council may appoint an 
officer of the City to be the City Internal Auditor, who may be removed from office by the 
Council.  The City Internal Auditor shall carry out the audit functions and shall perform such 
other duties as the City Council shall assign to him.  The City Council may also enter into a 
contract for the duties of City Internal Auditor, to be carried out by an outside firm, if it so 
chooses".  
 
 This presentation will review options for the appointment, possible establishment and role 
of an Audit Committee, duties of the Internal Auditor, and role of the City Manager as it 
relates to this function. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are currently budgeted and available in the City 
Manager's Office budget. 
 
 
Attachments: N/A 
 
 
 



December 14, 2006 
Workshop Agenda  
City Hall Update 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works 
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding the status of a 
site development plan for a new City Hall. 
 
Recommendation(s):   
 
Summary:  Staff will make a presentation that will update Council on the process for 
developing a site development plan for City owned property located on Krenek Tap Road. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: 
 
 
Attachments: 
Location Map 
 
 
 





Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 
Cemetery Commit-
tee—Noon Exit Teen 
Center 

13 
Appreciation Open 
House 4:00—7:00  
Council Chambers 

14 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 1:30 and 
7:00 p.m. 

15 16 

17 18 
Intergovernmental 
Committee —Noon—
CS Office  

19 
Transportation Com-
mittee—4:30—Admin. 
Conf Room 

20 21 22 23 

24 25 
Office Closed 

26 
Office Closed 

27 28 29 30 

31       

December 2006 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

26 27 

28 29 30 31    

January 2007 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

8 9 
AMCC 

10 
AMCC 

11 
AMCC 

12 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

13 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

14 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

15 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

16 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

17 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

18 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

19 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

20 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

21 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

22 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 
Filing Period for 

23 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

24 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

25 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

26 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

27 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

28 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

   

February 2007 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
    1 

Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

2 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

3 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

4 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

5 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

6 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

7 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

8 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 
Filing Period for 

9 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

10 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

11 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

12 
Filing Period for 
Place on Ballot for 
City Election 

13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

March 2007 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

27 28 

29 30      

April 2007 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

11 12 
City Election 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

25 26 

27 28 29 30 31   

May 2007 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 
Making Cities Live-
able—Portland, Or 

11 
Making Cities Live-
able—Portland, Or 

12 
Making Cities Live-
able—Portland, Or 

13 
Making Cities Live-
able—Portland, Or 

14 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 
Making Cities Live-

15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

29 30 

June 2007 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
1 2 3 4 

Holiday 
Office Closed 

5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

27 28 

29 30 31     

July 2007 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31  

August 2007 (Transportation Summit Dates TBA) 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
      1 

2 3 
Holiday 
Office Closed 

4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

28 29 

30       

September 2007 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

26 27 

28 29 30 31    

October 2007 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
    1 2 3 

4 5 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

6 7 
TML—Dallas 

8 
TML—Dallas 

9 
TML—Dallas 

10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 
Holiday 
Office Closed 

23 
Holiday 
Office Closed 

24 

25 26 27 28 29 30  

November 2007 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 
Workshop and Regu-
lar Meeting 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. 

14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 
Holiday 
Office Closed 

25 
Holiday 
Office Closed 

26 
 

27 28 29 

30 31      

December 2007 



 

 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Appointment to Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservation District 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Connie Hooks, City Secretary                        
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the City of 
College Station’s appointment of one director to the Brazos Valley Groundwater 
Conservation District, with the approval of the Brazos County Commissioner’s Court. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends the reappointment of John Woody who is 
currently serving on the Board of Directors to the Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservation 
District Board, with approval of the Brazos County Commissioners Court.  Mr. Woody’s term 
began in 2003 and will expire January 1, 2007. 
 
 
Summary:   The appointment requires approval by the Brazos County Commissioner’s 
Court.  The process for appointment by the Council is detailed in section 2.11(3) of HB 
1784. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
District By-Laws 
Board of Directors 
 
 



Page 1 of 9 

District By- Laws 

TABLE OF CONTENTS Click desired section head for detailed info. 

SECTloN. ? . DISTR..!CT .C.R..~.A~r!O_.N sECTloN~l~_Q9.E.R.AT!.0N.AL_..P.F?.0.~.EDU.R.SI~ .~ .. 

SECTION 2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS SECTION 7. USE OF CONSLILTANTS 

SECTloN. 3 ... P.UBL.!..C CO_MMITTE.ES. sS.cT! . 0.N 8. .._A_NNUA_L. R.EeO..RT 
SECTION 4. CODE OF ETHICS SECTION 9. DISTRICT 

.. SECTION.5, . A.DM.!.NISTRAT_!OI\I_ ..~ SECTION ~ 10. .... ~. . FINANC.!AL 

SECTION 1. DISTRICT CREATION 

1 . I .  District Creation and Purpose. 

The Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservation District (District) was created by the Act of May 28, 
1999, 76th Leg., R.S., ch. 1331, ' I (a)(2), 1999 Tex. Gen. Laws 4536 (SB 191 1) and was later 
ratified by Act of May 26, 2001, 77th Leg., R.S., ch. 1307 (HB 1784) (District Act) as a 
governmental agency and a body politic and corporate. 

The District's creation was confirmed by a majority vote of its residents on November 5, 2002. Its 
boundaries are coextensive with the boundaries of Robertson and Brazos counties. It was created 
under and is essential to accomplish the purposes of Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution. 
All of the land and other property included within the boundaries of the District will be benefited by 
the works and projects that are to be accomplished by the District under powers conferred by the 
Texas Constitution. The District was created to serve a public use and benefit. 

SEC1-ION 2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

2.1. Management of the District. 

The Board is responsible for the management of all the affairs of the District. The District shall 
employ or contract with all persons, firms, partnerships, corporations, or other entities, public or 
private, deemed necessary by the board for the conduct of the affairs of the district. 

2.2 Initial Board of Directors. 

Initial directors serve until permanent directors have been appointed, which will occur as soon as 
possible after the District's confirmation election. 

2.3. Terms of Office of Permanent Directors. 

The first permanent directors sworn in to office, after the District's confirmation election, must draw 
lots to determine the length of their terms of office. Two directors from Robertson County and two 
directors from Brazos County will serve terms that will expire on January 1, 2005. Two directors 
from Robertson County and two directors from Brazos County will serve terms that will expire on 
January 1,2007. 

Each of the directors shall then serve four-year terms, which are staggered in accordance to the 
drawing of lots for office terms by the first permanent directors of the District. 

2.4. Elections of Officers. 

A. As soon as the first permanent directors, are sworn in and take the oath of office, the Board 
shall meet and elect a president, vice president, secretary andlor secretaryltreasurer, and any 
other officer or assistant officers as the Board may deem necessary. 

B. The Board shall meet and elect new officers annually at the first meeting following January 1 of 
each year. The Board shall also fill vacant officer positions as needed. 

C. The president is the chief executive officer of the District, presides at all meetings of the Board, 
and shall execute all documents on behalf of the District. The vice president shall act as president 



Page 2 of 9 

in case of the absence or disability of the president. The secretary is responsible for seeing that all 
records and books of the District are properly kept and shall attest the president's signature on all 
documents. 

D. After any appointment of a director, the District shall notify the Executive Director of the Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality within 30 days of the appointment of the director's name, 
address, and expiration of term of office. 

E. A director serves until tlie director's successor has qualified. 

2.5. Fees of Office; Reimbursement. 

A director is not entitled to receive compensation for serving as a director, but may be reimbursed 
for actual, reasonable, expenses incurred in the discharge of official duties. 

2.6. Indemnification of Directors and Employees. 

Each director and employee is indemnified by the District against any liability imposed upor1 I-~im 
and for any expense reasonably incurred by him in connection with any claim made against him, 
or any action, suit or proceeding to which he may be a party by reason of his being, or having 
been, a director or employee, and against such sums as counsel selected by the Board shall 
deem reasonable payment made in settlement of any such claim, action, suit, or proceeding; 
provided, however, that no director or employee shall be indemnified with respect to actual 
damages arising out of a cause of action for a willful act of omission, an act or omission 
constituting gross negligence or official misconduct, or with respect to matters for which such 
indemnification would be unlawful or against public policy. Any right of indemnification granted by 
this Section is in addition to and not in lieu of any other such right of which any director or 
employee of the District may at any time be entitled under the laws of the State of Texas; and if 
any indemnification that would otherwise be granted by this Section is disallowed by any 
competent court or administrative body as illegal or against public policy, then any director or 
employee with respect to whom such adjudication was made, and any other director or employee, 
shall be indemnified to the fullest extent permitted by law and public policy, it being the express 
intent of the District to indemnify its directors and employees to the fullest extent possible in 
conformity with these Bylaws, all applicable laws and public policy. The District may purchase and 
maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is a director or employee of the District in any 
capacity, or arising out of his status as such. The i~iderr~r~ificatio~i provided herein shall inure to the 
benefit of the heirs, executors, and administrators of the directors and employees of the District. 

2.7. Board Meetings. 

A. Regular Meetings. The Board will hold a regular meeting, at least quarterly, as the Board may 
establish from time to time by resolution. At the request of the President, or by written request of at 
least three members, the Board may hold special meetings. All Board meetings will be held 
according to the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 

A meeting of a committee of the Board where less than a quorum of any one board is present is 
not subject to the provisions of ,the Open Meetings Act. 

The Boards may adopt rules of procedure. Such rules may not conflict with orders or resolutions of 
the Board, or State law. If the Board does not adopt rules of procedure, it shall be governed by 
Robert's Rules of Order when procedural questions arise, insofar as Robert's Rules of Order does 
not conflict with orders or resolutions of the District, or State law. 

B. Work Sessions. From time to time as may be necessary, the Board may hold work sessions to 
discuss and evaluate issues in such detail as to reqi-lire open and free discussion not normally 
possible in regular Board meetings. During work sessions of the Board, no public corr~ment will be 
heard, unless specifically requested by a Director and recognized by the Board chair. Public 
comment may be made at the time the item(s) is up for discussion at a regular Board Meeting. 

2.8. Public Comment. 



Page 3 of 9 

During Board meetings, other than a work session, public comment may be heard by the Board. 
Public comment during a Board meeting will be of two types: 

(1) Public comments of a general nature may be made under the public comment item on the 
agenda; or 

(2) Specific comments on any posted agenda item may be made following recognition of the 
speaker by the Board chair. Such corn~nents may be made after the presentation of the item, or 
during the Board discussion of the item, if the speaker is called upon. 

Public comments of either type will be accepted by the Board chair only after the person wishing to 
speak has completed an information card, which is available at the meeting. The card must 
contain the speakers name, address, phone number, and the number of the agenda item that will 
be addressed, if applicable. A speaker may speak for three (3) minutes or less. Speakers shall 
address only the item for which they signed up, u~iless their general corrlment is heard during ,the 
Public Comment period. No speaker will be allowed to pass his time to someone else, nor will be 
permitted to repeat comments made by another, except to concur with those remarks. 

2.9. Cancellation of Posted Meetings. 

All meetings requiring posting in accordance with the Open Meetings Act will be held regardless of 
weather conditions when a quorum of the Board is present. Should weather conditions or other 
circumstances prohibit the regular meeting, the meeting will be rescheduled for a later date, not 
sooner than seventy-two (72) hours after the canceled meeting, unless posted as an emergency in 
compliance with State Law. 

2.10. Subcommittees 

The President of the Board may establish subcommittees of the Board, and appoint the chair and 
membership of the committees. The Board shall have an audit and/or finance committee. 

SECTION 3. PUBLIC COMMITTEES 

3.1. Public Committee Memberships. 

The President of the Board niay establish corrlmittees for formulation of policy recorr~niendations 
to the Board. The Board shall appoint the chair and membership of the committees. 

Members of the various committees shall be appointed from residents of the District as much as is 
feasible. Membership may include individuals residing outside the District when it would be in the 
best interest of the committee's work efforts and the District. Membership is voluntary and without 
compensation. 

A. Members of committees will be selected from persons recommended to the Board by directors, 
public officials, and citizen request. 

B. All members appointed to a committee by the Board or Board President shall have a single vote 
on any issue before the committee. 

C. Written proxy votes may be accepted when the vote is cast by an informed and active 
committee member as determined by the committee chair. 

D. Members of the committees are appointed by the directors. Technical representatives are 
appointed by the Board, based on recommendations from the General Manager. 

E. Committee size will be limited to a number that may reasonably address an issue and will be 
determined by the Board. Subcommittees appointed by the committee chair may be formed to 
create a work product for Board andlor full committee review and input. 

F. Members of cornmittees who miss three or more consecutive committee meetings may, at the 
request of the committee chair, be replaced by the appointing director. 

SECTION 4. CODE OF ETHICS 



Page 4 of 9 

4.1. Conflict of Interest. 

All members of the Board, employees, and agents shall disclose any conflicts of interest that may 
exist between the personal interests of that board member, officer, employee, or agent and to 
avoid taking responsibility for District decisions related to areas in which those conf icts exist. 

A. Board Action. Each District official shall corr~ply with Chapter 171 of the Texas Local 
Government Code to the extent applicable. Board members shall, pursuant to the standards of 
Texas Local Government Code ' 171.001, et seq., disclose any conflict of interest with matters 
pending before the Board execute an Affidavit disclosing such interest, and refrain from 
participation in the discussion on such matters. 

B. Directors, employees, and agents. Any director, employee, or agent of the District, using the 
standards specified by Texas Local Government Code ' 171.001, et seq., shall disclose to his 
supervisor any conflict of interest that exists with regard to District business for which that director, 
agent, or employee has responsibility. The General Manager shall make a written record of the 
conflict and be responsible for independently reviewing all decisions made by the director, 
employee, or agent in that area. 

4.2. Standards of Conduct. 

A. No director or employee should accept or solicit any gift, favor, or service that might reasonably 
tend to influence him in tlie discharge of his official duties or ,that he knows or should know is 
being offered him with the intent to influence his official conduct. 

B. No director or employee should accept employment or engage in any business or professional 
activity that he might reasonably expect would require or induce him to disclose confidential 
information acquired by reason of his official position. 

C. No director or employee should accept other employment or compensation that could 
reasonably be expected to impair his independence of judgment in the performance of his official 
duties. 

D. No director or employee should make personal investments that could reasonably be expected 
to create a substantial conflict between his private interest and the public interest. 

E. No director or employee should intentionally or knowingly solicit, accept, or agree to accept any 
benefit for having exercised his official powers or performed his official duties in favor of another. 

4.3. Nepotism. 

All Board members shall comply with the standards enunciated in Texas Government Code ' 
573.041. Board members may not appoint, confirm the appointment of, or vote for the appointment 
or confirmation of the appointment of an individual to a position that is directly or indirectly 
compensated from public funds or fees of ofice if tlie individual is related to the board member 
within the third degree of consanguinity or within the second degree by affinity, as defined in 
Texas Government Code ' 573.002. 

SEC1-ION 5. ADMINISTRATION 

5.1. General Manager. 

The Board may err~ploy or corltract with a person/entity to perform such services as general 
manager for the District as the Board may from time to time specify. The Board may delegate to 
the general manager full authority to manage and operate the offices of the District subject only to 
orders of the Board. The Board will determine the salary and/or review the position of general 
manager each year at the beginning of the third quarter of every fiscal year. 

The board may delegate to the general manager the authority to employ all persons necessary for 
the proper handling of the business and operation of the district and to determine the 
compensation to be paid all employees other than the general manager. 



Page 5 of 9 

If the Board has not appointed a general manager, the Board shall act to manage the District and 
may perform any function of the General Manager identified by these rules. 

5.2. Delegation of Authority. 

The General Manager may delegate his administrative duties as may be necessary to effectively 
and expeditiously accomplish his duties, provided, however, that no such delegation shall ever 
relieve him of responsibilities that are ultimately his under the Act, Rules and Bylaws, or Board 
orders. 

5.3. Travel Expenses. 

A. The General Manager, with the Board's approval, shall provide and periodically revise a written 
policy concerning the incurring and reimbursement of travel expenses on District business. 
Directors and employees shall be entitled to reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses 
incurred in performing District business. 

Travel expenditures submitted for reimbl-~rsement must be approved by the General Manager or 
Board President, or the Board Vice President in the absence of the Board President. 

Travel will be reirrlbursed at the current mileage rate established by the Internal Revenue Service. 

B. Nornial Reirrlbursable Expenses: 

"Actual and necessary expenses" includes: 

(1) Mileage -- All mileage traveled in behalf of District related matters; 

(2) Travel -- All actual costs incurred in out-of-town District related business (taxi, bus, air, car, 
rental, gasoline, etc.); 

(3) Parkingrrolls -- All, anywhere; 

(4) Telephone -- All for District business; and 

(5) Lodging -- All costs for lodging and meals on out-of-town trips and other District business. 

(6) Conventions/Seminars -- The General Manager has the privilege and discretion to attend or 
approve District staff attendance at conventions and/or seminars where matters pertinent to 
District business are to be discussed or where there is to be an exchange in regards to 
information, education, or legislation pertinent to District business. The General Manager will seek 
approval of ,the Board to attend out of state conventions andlor seminars of interest and value to 
the District. 

(7) Purchasing -- The General Manager is entrusted and has the authority to purchase education, 
conservation, and/or pollution related materials to be used by the District, while attending meetings 
with state agencies, political subdivisions, conventions, seminars, or other conferences. 

FoodIBeverage -- The General Manager is entrusted with the privilege and discretion of 
purchasing food and/or non-alcoholic beverages within budget constraints. 

Original receipt or proper documentation, must be submitted in order to be reimbursed. 

5.4. Employee Benefits 

The Board may provide for and administer retirement disability, and death compensation funds for 
the employees of the District. 

The Board may establish a public retirement system in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 
81 0, Texas Goverrlment Code. The Board may also provide for a deferred compensation plan 
described by Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,26 U.S.C. ' 457. 

The Board may include hospitalization and medical benefits to its employees as part of the 
compensation paid to the employees and may adopt any plan, rule, or regulation in connection 
with it and amend or change the plan, rule, or regulation as it may determine necessary. 



Page 6 of 9 

SEC1-ION 6. OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES 

6.1. Operational Procedures. 

The Board or the General Manager may establish and approve operational procedures for the 
District and such other procedures mandated by state law. 

SECTION 7. USE OF CONSULTANTS 

7.1. Use of Consultants. 

Tlie Board shall set the compensation and terms for cons~~~ltants. In selecting attorneys, engineers, 
auditors, financial advisors, or other professio~ial services as defined by law, the District shall 
follow the procedures provided in the Professional Services Procurement Act, Subchapter A, 
Chapter 2254, Texas Government Code. 

SECI'ION 8. ANNUAL REPORT 

8.1. Annual Report. 

The President or the General Manager shall report to the Board on the status of the District and its 
programs at fiscal year end. The report may include at least the following: (i) the status of ,the 
Aquifer and the District's programs to protect and conserve the Aquifer; (ii) a financial report, 
including a report from the Board's audit committee, and a report on the performance and security 
of District investments; (iii) a review and evaluation of professional services rendered to the District 
during the year; (iv) a report on the status of any capital projects of the Districts; and (v) an 
evaluation of the District's performance in light of long range plans developed pursua~it to Section 
36.1 071, Texas Water Code. 

SECTION 9. DISTRICT 

9.1. District Address. 

The District's mailing address is P.O. Box 528, Hearne, Texas 77859. Such address may be 
changed by resolution of the Board. 

9.2. Minutes and Records of the District. 

The Board shall keep a complete account of all of its meetings and proceedings and shall 
preserve its minutes, contracts, records, notices, accounts, receipts, and other records in a safe 
place. The records of the District are the property of the District and are subject to Chapter 552, 
Texas Government Code. The preservation, storage, destruction, or other disposition of the 
records of each district is subject to the requirenients of Chapter 201, Texas Local Government 
Code, and the rules adopted there under. All documents, reports, records, and minutes 

of the District are available for public inspection and copying following the Open Records Act. 
Upon written application of any person, the District will furnish copies of its public records. A 
copying charge pursuant to policies established by the District. A list of the charges for copies will 
be furnished by ,the District. 

9.3. Certified Copies. 

Requests for certified copies must be in writing. A certification charge and copying charge may be 
assessed, pursuant to policies established by the Board. 

9.4. Office Hours. 

The regular office hours of the District shall be 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, 
except for District holidays, or as may be set from time to time by the Board. 

9.5. Official Seal. 

The Board by resolution may adopt an official seal for the District to be used on perrr~its and other 
official documents of the District. 



Page 7 of 9 

SECTION 10. FINANCIAL 

10.1. Contracts, Instruments, and Documents. 

The Board may authorize the President or the General Manager to negotiate a contract and 
deliver any instrument or document in the name of and on behalf of ,the District, and such authority 
may be general or confined to specific instances. All contracts shall be executed by the President 
and attested by the Board Secretary, and approved by General Counsel, as requested by the 
Board, unless otherwise provided in the Board's Order / Resolution regarding the contract. 

10.2. Bond Requirement. 

The Board shall require an officer, employee, or consultant who collects, pays, or handles any 
funds of the District to furnish good and sufficient bond, payable to the District, in an amount 
determined by the Board to be sufficient to safeguard the District. The bond shall be conditioned 
on the faithful performance of that person=s duties and on accounting for all funds and property of 
the District. Such bond shall be signed or endorsed by a surety company authorized to do 
business in Texas. 

The Board may pay the premium on surety bonds required of officials, employees, or consultants 
of the District out of any available funds of the District, including proceeds from the sale of bonds. 

10.3. Loans. 

No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the District, and no evidence of indebtedness shall be 
issued in its name, unless authorized by order or resolution of the Board, executed by the 
President, and attested to by the Board Secretary. 

10.4. Banking and Investments. 

A. Checks, Drafts, etc. All checks, drafts, notes, or other orders for the payment of money issued 
in the name of the District shall be signed by such officers or employees of the District as shall 
from time to time be authorized by order or resolution of the Board. 

B. Depositories. All funds of the District, except petty cash, shall be deposited from time to time to 
.the credit of the District in such banks or accounts as the Board may, from time to time, designate, 
and upon such terms and conditions as shall be fixed by the Board, unless otherwise required by 
orders or resolutions authorizing the issuance of the District's bonds or notes. The Board may, 
from time to time, authorize the opening and maintaining of general and special accounts within 
any such depository as it may designate, and may make such special rules and regulations with 
respect thereto as it may deem expedient. To the extent that funds in the depository bank or banks 
are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, they shall be secured as provided 
by Texas Water Code Section 36.1 55. The depository shall be located within the counties of the 
District unless the Board determines that a suitable depository cannot be found within the 
counties. The Board may also utilize the Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company, commonly 
referred to as "TEXPOOL" as a depository. 

C. Investments. The Board may provide that an authorized representative of the District may 
invest and reinvest the funds of the District and provide for money to be witlidraw~i froni the 
appropriate accounts of the District for such investments on terms as the Board considers 
advisable. Unless expressly authorized by the Board, such investments must be made in direct or 
indirect obligations of the United States, the State, or any county, city, school district or other 
political subdivision of the State, or in certificates of deposit of state or national banks, saving and 
loans associations within the State of Texas, or the Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company, 
provided that such certificates are secured in the manner provided for the security of the funds of 
counties of the State of Texas. All purchases and sales of investments must conform to 
investment objectives and regulations and are properly documented and approved. Periodic 
reviews of District investments are required to evaluate investment performance and security. 

10.5. Audit. 



Page 8 of 9 

The Board, at the end of each fiscal year, shall have prepared an audit of its affairs by an 
independent certified PI-~blic accol-~ntant or a firm of independent certified public accountants, 
which audit shall be open to public inspection. Such auditors shall have no personal interest 
directly or indirectly in the fiscal affairs of the District and shall be experienced and qualified in ,the 
accounting and auditing of public bodies. The audit shall be performed in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards, including the use of AAudits of State and Local 
Government Units@ as a guide on audit working papers and AGovernmental Accounting and 
Financial Reporti~ig Standards,@ and shall satisfy all requirements imposed by Chapter 36, Texas 
Water Code. It is provided, however, that the District's auditors may undertake consulti~ig services 
for the District in addition to their duties in connection with the annual audit. 

10.6. Budget. 

The Board shall adopt an annual budget prior to the commencement of the fiscal year, for use in 
planning and controlling cost. The budget shall contain a complete financial statement, including a 
statement, or estimate, if appropriate, of: 

(1) The outstanding obligations of the District; 

(2) The amount of cash on hand to the credit of each fund of the District; 

(3) The amount of money available to the District from all sources during the ensuing year; 

(4) The amounts of the balances expected at the end of the year in which the budget is being 
prepared; 

(5) The estimated amol-~nts of revenues and balances available to cover the proposed budget; and 

(6) The estimated water use fee that will be required. 

The annual budget may be amended on the Board's approval. 

10.7. Setting Fee Schedule. 

A. Each year at the time that the Board approves its annual budget, the Board shall, by resolution, 
adopt a fee schedule to apply to all applications, registrations, inspections, and permits that are 
issued, renewed, or amended during the following fiscal year, as well as fees or for other services 
the District performs or fees to cover charges incurred by the District. The schedule shall establish 
a rate sufficient to produce revenues required by the budget and may include a reasonable 
allowance to take into account for the annual variability in pumping and groundwater demands. 

B. The Board may amend the fee schedule from time to time, as deemed appropriate by the Board 
and as allowed by the law. 

10.8. Fiscal Year. 

The District's fiscal year shall begin on the first day of October. 

10.9. Purchasing. 

The Board shall have the right to purchase all materials, supplies, equipment, vehicles, and 
machinery needed by the District to perform its purposes. 

A. Expenditures to acquire goods or services valued at greater than $2,000 require approval by 
the Board in advance, unless an emergency occurs that endangers life or property and an 
emergency acquisition requiring an expenditure greater than $2,000 shall be presented to the 
Board for approval and validation at its next following meeting. Emergency acquisitions valued at 
less than $5,000 may be made by the General Manager and approved by the Board President 
without prior Board approval and if within budget constraints. 

B. No expenditures may be niade that are not authorized by the budget. This requirement shall 
not, however, prevent the Board from amending the budget at the same time that it authorizes an 
expenditure, provided that funds are available in other budget categories or that reserve funds are 



Page 9 of 9 

available. 

C. In the case of acquisitions of goods valued at $1,000 or more, competitive quotations shall be 
obtained from three vendors, if possible, and documented for the District's records prior to making 
,the purchase. 

D. The Board may solicit proposals for professional services according to the Professional 
Services Procurement Act, Chapter 2254, Government Code, Subchapter A. 

E. The Board authorizes purchasing through the State's cooperative local purchasing program, 
established under Texas Local Government Code " 271.081, et seq. 

Construction contracts and contracts for the acquisition of materials and machinery requiring the 
expenditure of $25,000 or more may be competitively bid, or as provided by law. 

Home 
Copyright O 2003 



Page 1 of 2 

Board of Directors 
The district is governed locally by an eight member board comprised of four members from Robertson Count 
and four members from Brazos County. The board members are appointed by the respective County 
Commissioners Courts. House Bill 1784, the districts enabling legislation, dictates the required areas of 
representation by the board. 

Robertson County 

Pete Brien Carl Cotropia Steve Lazarus Dale Johnson 
Rural Water Agriculture Municipal Industry 
Secretary 2003-2009 2003-2007 Treasurer 
2003-2007 2005-2009 

Rt. 1 Box 702 P.O. Box 407 1 18 West 4th Street 
Hearne, TX 77859 Hearne, TX 77859 Hearne, TX 77859 P.O. Box 624 
PH: 979-279-2427 PH: 979-279-3244 PH: 979-279-21 73 Franklin, TX 77856 
FAX: 979-279-21 85 FAX: 9791279-2983 PH :254-746-5060 

FAX: 254-746-7753 

Brazos County 

City of Bryan ~griculture Rural Water City of College station 
President 2003-2007 Vice-president 2003-2007 
2003-2009 2005-2009 

7026 E OSR 
P.O. Box 1085 Bryan, TX 77808 3686 Woodville Rd P.O. Box 9960 

Bryan, Texas 77806 PH: 979-598-21 36 Bryan, TX 77808 College Station, TX 77842 
PH: 979-822-3759 FAX: 979-589-1 896 PH 1979-589-3030 PH: 979-764-3660 
FAX: 979-822-3580 FAX:979-589-3275 FAX: 979-764-3452 



 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

BRW Change Order No. 2 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, discussion, and possible action regarding Change Order 
No. 2 to a contract with Brown Reynolds Watford Architects, Inc. (BRW) in an amount not to 
exceed $1,650.00 for the Fire Station No. 5 Project. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the change order in an amount 
not to exceed $1,650.00. 
 
Summary: BRW is currently under contract for the design of the Fire Station No. 5 
Project. This change order is for an increase in construction management services due to 
delays by the bonding company’s contractor meeting Substantial Completion and Final 
Completion dates.  The delays necessitated additional site visits and inspections by the 
architect to document progress by the bonding company’s contractor. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: The budget for this project is $1,795,000.00. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. BRW Change Order No. 2 
2. Location Map 

 
 
 







 

 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Rock Prairie Road Widening Needs Resolution 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution 
determining the public necessity to acquire right-of-way and easement interests for the 
Rock Prairie Road Widening Design and ROW Project. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the resolution. 
 
 
Summary: Additional easement and right-of-way space is required for public utilities, 
access, landscape, and construction of improvements along Rock Prairie Road between the 
frontage road at Highway 6 and William D. Fitch Parkway. The design will be completed by 
the June 2007.  Pending right-of-way and easement acquisition is expected to start soon 
after City Council’s approval of this resolution.   
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: The budget for the design of the Rock Prairie Road 
Widening Design and ROW Project is $795,000.  Funding for this project is from the 2003 
general obligation bond fund.   
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Location Map 
2. Needs Resolution 
3. Exhibits A  

 
 
 



The needs resolution for Rock Prairie Road Widening Design & 
ROW is for widening the existing RPR to a major arterial from just 
west of Stonebrook Drive (the Uvacek tract) to Bird Pond Road.

Rock Prairie Rd

W
oodcr

ee
k D

r

St
on

e b
ro

ok
 D

r

Bird
 P

on
d 

Rd

A
lley

Ritc
he

y R
d

Whitney Ln

Frontage 6  Rd E

Bro
okw

ate
r C

ir

W
ate rf ord D

r

Old 
Roc

k P
ra

iri
e R

d

Stonebridge Dr

Shadow
crest D

r Riv
er

st
on

e 
C

t

Tim
ber K

noll D
r

Essex Green

Sussex Dr

Fontaine Dr

Chadwick Ln

Lake Forest Ct S

O
ffram

p 6 N

Bloomfield Ln

Wilshire Ct

Autumnwood Dr

Am
berwood Ct

Brittany Dr

Onramp 6 S

Lakeside Ct

Weslayan Ct

Sunlake Ct

F

1 inch equals 500 feet

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

1 inch equals 500 feet



RESOLUTION DETERMINING NEED 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, RELATING TO: (I) THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY TO INITIATE, 
COMPLETE, AND ACQUIRE, BY PURCHASE OR CONDEMNATION, RIGHT-OF-
WAY AND EASEMENT INTEREST IN CERTAIN PROPERTY FOR THE ROCK 
PRAIRIE ROAD WIDENING PROJECT; (2) A DECLARATION THAT PUBLIC 
NECESSITY EXISTS FOR THE CITY TO ACQUIRE SUCH INTEREST, THROUGH 
PURCHASE OR CONDEMNATION; AND (3) ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR 
THE ACQUISITION OF SUCH INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas (“City”) is a home rule municipality duly 
incorporated and chartered under the Constitution and laws of Texas; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City owns, operates, constructs, repairs and maintains a city roadway 
system as a public service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s ownership, operation, construction, repair, and maintenance of 
the city roadway system is a benefit to the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City, through a condemnation proceeding, may exercise the power of 
eminent domain to acquire property in order to carry out the ownership, operation, 
construction, repair, and maintenance of its street system pursuant to Chapter 251 of the 
Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 21 of the Texas Property Code, and Article II of 
the City’s Charter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is engaged in the following project regarding improvements to 
Rock Prairie Road between the frontage road at Highway 6 and William D. Fitch 
Parkway including widening of the road, installation of public utilities, access, and 
landscaping, (the “Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City determines that the best interests and needs of the public, including 
the health, safety and welfare of the public, require that the City improve Rock Prairie 
Road between the frontage road at Highway 6 and William D. Fitch Parkway, through the 
City’s acquisition, by purchase or condemnation proceeding, of the right-of-way and 
easements as provided in Exhibits A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference for all purposes (the “Right-of-Way and Easements”); now, therefore; 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, hereby officially 

determines that there is a public necessity for the Right-of-Way and 
Easements, and the public welfare and convenience will be served by the 
acquisition of the Right-of-Way and Easements. 



RESOLUTION NO. _______________________      Page 2 
 
 

 
PART 2:  That the City Manager is hereby authorized to contract, on behalf of the City 

of College Station, with a professional appraiser for the appraisal services, 
with a professional real estate agent to act as a Land Agent for the City and 
with attorneys for preparation of title opinions needed by the City from time 
to time in connection with acquisition of the Right-of-Way and Easements. 

 
PART 3:  That the City’s Land Agent or other staff appraiser is hereby authorized and 

directed to examine the independent appraisal reports as they are submitted to 
the City to determine whether said appraisal reports are supported by 
sufficient data. Based upon such examination of said appraisal reports, the 
Land Agent or other staff appraiser shall make a recommendation to the City 
Manager as to the establishment and approval of the amount of the just 
compensation for the Right-of-Way and Easements. 

 
PART 4:  After consideration of said recommendation, the City Manager shall establish 

and approve the amount determined for acquisition of the Right- of-Way and 
Easements. 

 
PART 5:  Upon establishment and approval by the City Manager of the amount of just 

compensation for the acquisition of the Right-of-Way and Easements, the 
City’s Land Agent or other staff appraiser is authorized to communicate a 
written offer to the property owners for the acquisition of such interest at the 
full amount determined and established to be just compensation therefore and 
to negotiate with said owners on behalf of the City. 

 
PART 6:  That the Mayor after approval by City Council, or the City Manager as 

delegated, is hereby authorized to execute all documents necessary to acquire 
said Right-of-Way and Easements for the Project, on behalf of the City of 
College Station. 

 
PART 7:  That, if necessary, and should a property owner fail to accept a bona fide, 

good faith offer from the City to purchase the required Right-of-Way and 
Easements, City representatives shall have the authority to initiate and 
complete condemnation proceedings against said owner, in order to acquire 
through condemnation all required property interests and title regarding such 
property. 

 
PART 8: That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized to sell any such surplus 

improvements, or order the demolition thereof, if any, located on the real 
property acquired in connection with this Project. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _______________________      Page 3 
 
 

PART 9:  That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
 
ADOPTED this 14th day of December, A.D. 2006. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
            
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary  RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

     
City Attorney 



EXHIBIT A 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2 167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 

Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed 20' Easement 
Edward Uvacek Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 ~c tober  2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, 
Abstract No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 7.0 acre Second Tract 
conveyed to Edward Uvacek, Jr. and wife, Beatrice G. Uvacek by deed recorded in Volume 321, 
Page 664 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, being a strip of land Twenty feet (20') wide 
through the said Uvacek tract and being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a %" iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set in the 
southwest line of Lot 1 Block 1 Riviera Addition to the City of College Station, Texas, according to 
plat of record in Volume 6607, Page 97 of the 0ffi~&! ~ ;wic  Records of Brazos County, Texas N 
15" 28' 36" W - 15.87 feet fiom a 518" iron rod ~ i th \~$las t id  cap stamped "Kerr 4502" found in the 
north line of Rock Prairie Road at the southwest ?qqer'&? **-x the said Lot 1. 

- t v  

Thence N 86" 27' 34" W - 13 1.22 feet tkP6gh @. ..-r, .::, the =%9 said Uvacek tract, parallel to and 15' fiom the 
northeast line of Rock Prairie Road as,d@q%@by deed recorded in Volume 4134, Page 304 of the 
Official Public Records of Brazos ~ & n t ~ ~ $ x a s ,  to the approximate line between the First Tract 
and Second Tract described in said VO?&~& 321, Page 664 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, 
Texas; 

Thence N 42" 16' 55" E - 25.64 feet along said line to the northwest comer of this tract; 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 108.28 feet through the said Uvacek Second Tract, parallel to and Thirty- 
five feet (35') fkom the said north right-of-way line of Rock Prairie Road to the northeast comer of 
this tract in the southwest line of the said Riviera Addition; 

Thence S 15" 28' 36" E - 21.15 feet along the southwest line of the said Riviera Addition to the 
Point of Beginning and containing 2395 square feet of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone 
NAD83 (1986) datum, based on 1994 City of 
College Station GPS monument nos. 148 and 
130 (N 89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 



Woodcreek - Section Seven 
Vol. 2580, Pg. 113 

I 

See separate metes and bounds 
description prepared with this plat. 

All existing easements and utilities 
are not shown on this plat. 

Edward Uvacek. Jr. and 
wife, Beatrice G. Uvacek 

23.233 acres - First Tract 
Vol. 321, Pg. 664 

This proposed 20' easement 
i s  contiguous to the proposed Edward Uvacek, Jr. and 
120' wide Right-of-way line. wife, Beatrice G. Uvacek See separate R.O.W. Parcel plat. 

7.0 acres - Second Tract 
Vol. 321, Pg. 664 

Edward Uvacek, Jr. and 
wife, Beatrice Uvacek 

4.507 acres - Tract Two 
Vol. 274, Pg. 383 

2.39 ac. R.O.W. Parcel 
Vol. 4134. Pg. 304 

in Vol. 98, Pg. 79 

.- 
Z b  

Weingarten Realty 

Uvacek Tract Investors 
17.21 acres 

Vol. 7095, Pg. 66  

College Station, Texas 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed 20' Easement 
Riviera Addition 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, 
Abstract No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of the Riviera Addition as 
described by plat recorded in Volume 6607, Page 97 of the Official Public Records of Brazos 
County, Texas, being a strip of land lying along and adjoining the present north line of the 15' Public 
Utility Easement along the south side of Lot 1 Block 1 of the said Riviera Addition and being more 
particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a W iron rod with an orange plastic cap stiwped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set in the 
southwest line of the said Riviera Addition N 15" 28' 36%\W - 15.87 feet from a 518" iron rod with a 
plastic cap stamped "Kerr 4502" found at the southw&(co&ekof the said Lot 1. 

j '  

Thence S 86O 27' 34" E - 154.10 feet through th*s@d&iera Addition, parallel to and fifteen (15') 
feet fkom the present northwest line of Rock ~ ra&i~ '~ '@ad  to a %" iron rod with an orange plastic cap 
stamped "H.P. Mayo W L S  5045" set at t&,$!gim$hg g-+%qqys5 of a tangent curve to the left (R=25.009); 

, "<\'\\yT A 

Thence along the arc of said curve4na counter clockwise direction through a central angle of 78O 
27' 47" to the northeast comer of this trac$Qi"n the northwest line of Stonebrook Drive; 

Thence N 86" 27' 34" W - 185.49 feet through the Riviera Addition to the northwest comer of this 
tract; 

Thence S 15" 28' 36" E - 21.15 feet along the southwest line of the said Riviera Addition to the 
Point of Beginning and containing 3518 square feet of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone NAD83 
(1986) dahun, based on 1994 City of College Station GPS 
monument nos. 148 and 130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 



I 
Woodcreek - Section Seven Joe O r r ,  I ~ c .  

Vol. 2580, Pg. 1 13 
I 

Surueyors  & Engineer s  
2167  Post  O a k  Circle + 

College Station, TX 77845  c 
cr / .- 

(979) 690 -3378  MI\ r) 

.- 
C 
o rs, 
a n  

October 2006 "'- 
7 

I - 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, Central 
Zone NAD83(1986) datum, based an 
1994 City of CS GPS control monument 
no. 148 and no. 130 (N 89"35'06"W). 

separate metes and bounds 
description prepared with this plat. 

All existing easements and utilities 
are not shown on this plat. 

Riviera Addition 
Vol. 6607,  Pg. 9 7  

eparate R.O.W. Parcel plat. 

0' Easement a 

N 15°28'36"W-1 5.87' 

2.39 ac. R.O.W. Parcel 

in Vol. 98, Pg. 79 

- 
0.12 ac. R.O.W. Parcel - Vol. 4134, Pg. 304 

I - _ - - - -  
> f 

Proposed 20' Easement 
DRAFT 

Weingarten Realty / 
Investors Riviera Addition 17.21 acres 

Vol. 7095, Pg. 66 Thomas Caruthers League A-9 
College Station, Texas 

* 
r, 

. z C L a .  5 s . -  
d ~ . : : "  u a &  L 

a  $-OM' 
m a  =Jon 
Z - . ~ ~ O ,  o +  or, 
0 " ' :  

0 > 

ex i s t i s  aerial powerline - CS - 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2 167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed 20' Easement 
Luepnitz Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers 
League, Abstract No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 
0.96 acre tract conveyed to Dr. Roy R. Luepnitz by deed recorded in Volume 4792, Page 
42 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, Texas, being a strip of land lying 
parallel to and 15' fi-om the present north right-of-way line of Rock Prairie Road and 
being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a K" iron rod with an orange stamped "H,P. Mayo RPLS 5045" 
set in the southeast line of the said Luepnitz tra@'bN TO: 57' 23" E - 16.90 feet fi-om a $4'' 
iron rod found (bent) at the southeast corner4& tBe said Luepnitz tract which is also the 
northeast comer of that 2011 square foot r i g h ? w a y  easement described in Volume 
4012, Page 79 of the Official Public ~ecordddfe&'azos ,a%. County, Texas. 

,, >f 

Thence N 86" 27' 34" W - 158.40 fa&bthrough the said Luepnitz tract, parallel to and 
fifteen (15') feet fi-om the presegt n&h#est line of Rock Prairie Road to a !h" iron rod 
with an orange plastic cap stam$& '$.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set at the beginning of a 
tangent curve to the right (R=25.00'); 

Thence along the arc of said curve in a clockwise direction through a central angle of 78" 
27' 47" to the northwest corner of this tract in the southeast line of Stonebrook Drive; 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 193.27 feet through the said Luepnitz tract to the southeast line 
of same; 

Thence S 30" 57' 23" W - 22.53 feet along the line between the said Luepnitz tract and 
that tract conveyed to Marguerite H. Carroll, trustee and Linda Carroll Lantz by deed 
recorded in Volume 4297, Page 194 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, 
Texas, to the Point of Beginning and containing 3639 square feet of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone 
NAD83 (1986) datum, based on 1994 City of 
College Station GPS monument nos. 148 and 
130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 



. 

- I <  College 2 1 6 7  S u r u e y o r s  Joe Stat ion,  Post Orr, & Oak E n g i n e e r s  TX I ~ c .  Circle 7 7 8 4 5  

October 2006 (979)  6 9 0 - 3 3 7 8  

- 0 5 0  100 Feet 
I 

Bearings are Texas State Plane. Central 
Zone NAD83(1986) datum, based on 
1994 City of CS GPS control monument Woodcreek /I - Section Eight 
no. 148 and no. 130  (N 89°35'06"W). Vol. 371 1, Pg. 237  

See separate metes and bounds 
description prepared with this plat. 

All existing easements and utilities 
are no t  shown on this plat. 

7 

a 13 
h] ,?/3 

.%&'4/ c - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  ------ 
a, a" cc'oOb 6 

4c 4p"o~ Note: .- 'cd a 'S 
%- 

This proposed 20' easement 
28~p is contiguous to  the proposed & s  7 Ir 

r- o 120' wide Right-of-way line. 
u 

YO) 
a 

See separate R.O.W. Parcel plat. 
.o Y rsr . 52 w 

m a  "r u 0 I - Dr. Roy R. Luepnitz 
<< L 7 0.96 acres (rem. of 1 .O1 ac.) 0 e m  -a 2 d + 
o m  .- a s  7 

> 
Vol. 4792, Pg. 42 

.- I .  ~ r i  5 + 
.w 3 v"g > 

+ Z  2 r "  k W S  Proposed m g  0 

% $ 2  20' Easement 
b z +& 

P? (D 

N 86"T27'34n~ - '158:40' ----- 
201 1 sq.ft. R.O.W. Easement/ 
Vol. 4012. Pq. 79 

in Vol. 98, Pg. 79 

Rock Prairie Road East 

0.24 ac. R.O.W. Easement - Vol. 4026. 3. 323 
f - - - exist~ng aerial powerline - - CS 

- - - - - - - - - 

Weingarten Realty 
Investors 

17.21 acres 
Vol. 7095, Pg. 6 6  

- - - - -  - - -  DRAFT'--- 
\ / 

Proposed 20' Easement College Station Independent 

Luepnitz Tract school District 30.00 acres 
Thomas Caruthers League A-9 VOI. 1033, pg. 534  

College Station, Texas 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2 167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed 20' Easement 
Carroll and Lantz Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
17 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, 
Abstract No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that tract conveyed to 
Marguerite H. Carroll, trustee and Linda Carroll Lantz ,by deed recorded in Volume 4297, Page 
194 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, Texas, being a strip of land lying along and 
adjoining the proposed north right-of-way line (120' width) of Rock Prairie Road and being 
more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a ?4" iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set in 
the line between the said Carroll and Lantz tract and.that"0.96 acre tract conveyed to Dr. Roy R. 
Luepnitz by deed recorded in Volume 4792, ~ a g e : ~ 2  of the Official Public Records of Brazos 
County, Texas, fiom which a K" iron rod was fd&$ (bent) S 30" 57' W - 16.9 feet at the 
southeast comer of the said Luepnitz tract. ;e -y 

Thence N 30" 57' 23" E - 22.53 feet al&k&line between the said Carroll and Lantz tract and 
the said Luepnitz tract to the north4q~t c&n&fof k s  tract; 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 52.41 feet through the said Carroll and Lantz tract to the northeast 
comer of k s  tract in the northwest line of that 45.23 acre tract conveyed to Britton Rice by deed 
recorded in Volume 3387, Page 1 15 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, Texas; 

Thence S 32" 16' 40" W - 22.81 feet along the line between the said Carroll and Lantz tract and 
the said Britton Rice tract to a W' iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 
5045" set for the southeast comer of this tract; 

Thence N 86" 27' 34" W - 51.82 feet through the said Carroll and Lantz tract to the Point of 
Beginning and containing 1042 square feet of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone NAD83 
(1986) datum, based on 1994 City of College Station 
GPS monument nos. 148 and 130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 



I ;  
\ Joe Orr, Inc. / 
Surveyors & Engineers 
2167  Post Oak Circle 

College Station, TX 77845  

I / (979) 690-3378 
October 2006 

- 0 50 100 Feet 

Bearings are Texas State Plane. Central 
Zone NAD83(1986) datum, based on 
1994 City of CS GPS control monument 
no. 148 and no. 130 (N 89O35'06"W). 

See separate metes and bounds 
description prepared with this plat. 

All existing easements and utilities 
are not shown on this plat. / 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Note: 
a, This proposed 20' easement > is contiguous to the proposed .- 
L 120' wide Right-of-way line. 
0 See separate R.O.W. Parcel plat. 

Y 
0 
0 Dr. Roy R. Luepnitz 
L 0.96 acres (rem. of 1.01 ac.) 
a Vol. 4792, Pg. 42 
a, 
s 
0 

5 
Proposed 

20 '  Easement 
\ 1,042 sq. ft. 
\ 

*Note: This found IR was set for 
a R.O.W. survey in 2000. 

201 1 sq.ft. R.O.W. Easement -* Vol. 4012, P . - 
existing aerial powerline - BTU 

R.O.W. Dedicated by Plat 
Vol. 1308, Pg. 281 

m% 
.; 0 
m K  .- Rock Prairie Road East a 
Z b  Pb 

0, a m  7 

ex~sting aer~al powerline - CS , 0.24 ac. R.O.W. Easement - Vol. 4026, Pg. 323 

- " ., - --X-A-A ,. - ,. ,. ,. - ,. 

[e] Proposed 20'  Easement 
College Station 

Independent 

CarroII and Lantz Tract school 30.00 District acres 

Thomas Caruthers League A-9 VOI. 1033, pg. 534 

College Station, Texas 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed 20' Easement 
Britton Rice 45.23 Acre Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, 
Abstract No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 45.23 acre tract 
conveyed to Britton Rice by deed recorded in Volume 3387, Page 115 of the Official Public 
Records of Brazos County, Texas being a strip of land lying along and adjoining the proposed 
north right-of-way line (120' width) of Rock Prairie Road and being more particularly described 
as follows: 

Beginning at a %" iron rod with an orange plastic capfit"amPed "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set in 
the line between the said Britton Rice tract and th&6%eerite H. Carroll, trustee and Linda 
Carroll Lantz tract described by deed recorded ini$$lme '4297, Page 194 of the Official Public 
Records of Brazos County, Texas, N 32" 16' -93.40 feet fi-om where a 34" iron rod was 
found in 1999 at the southwest comer tract in the prescriptive north line of Rock 
Prairie Road. 

Thence N 32' 16' 40" E - 22.81, 
?'" 

the line between the said Rice tract and the said 
Carroll and Lantz tract to the northwdkQ&ner ?Y of t h s  tract; 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 701.76 feet through the said Britton Rice tract to the northeast comer 
of this tract in the southeast line of the said 45.23 acre tract; 

Thence S 41" 36' 28" W - 25.40 feet along the line between the said Britton Rice 45.23 acre 
tract and that 45.00 acre tract conveyed to Britt Rice by deed recorded in Volume 3636, Page 85 
of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, Texas, to a %" iron rod with an orange plastic 
cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set at the southeast comer of this tract fi-om which the 
southeast comer of the said Britton Rice 45.23 acre tract in the prescriptive north right-of-way of 
Rock Prairie Road bears S 41" 36' 28" W - 36.34 feet; 

Thence N 86" 27' 34" W - 697.06 feet through the said Britton Rice 45.23 acre tract to the Point 
of Beginning and containing 0.321 acres of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone NAD83 
(1986) datum, based on 1994 City of College Station 
GPS monument nos. 148 and 130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 



(979) 690-3378 
October 2006 

~ H H H H ~  

Bearings are Texas State Plane, Central 
Zone N~D83(1986) datum, based on 
1994 City of CS GPS control monument 
no. 148 and no. 130 (N 89O35'06"W). 

Britton Rice See separate metes and bounds 
45.23 acres description prepared with this plat. 

Val. 3387, Pg. 1 15 All existing easements and utilities 
are not shown on this plat. 

Dr. Roy R. Luepnitz 
0.96 acres 

Proposed 20' Easement 
0.321 acres 

S 86'27'34"E - 701.76' ----------- 

College Station Stewart Thompson, trustee for 
Independent School District the Brian Howard Perry Trust 

30.00 acres Proposed 20' Easement 25.79 acres 
Vol. 1033, Pg. 534 Vol. 1980, Pg. 272 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed 20' Easement 
Britt Rice 45.00 Acre Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, 
Abstract No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 45.00 acre tract 
conveyed to Britt Rice by deed recorded in Volume 3636, Page 85 of the Official Public Records 
of Brazos County, Texas, being a strip of land lying along and adjoining the proposed north 
right-of-way line (120' width) of Rock Prairie Road and being more particularly described as 
follows: 

Beginning at a %" iron rod with an orange plastic cap,@amped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set in 
the line between the said Britt Rice 45.00 acre track A d  that 45.23 acre tract conveyed to Britton 
Rice by deed recorded in Volume 3387, Page &\@of the Official Public Records of Brazos 
County, Texas, from which the southwest co said 45.00 acre tract bears S 41" 36' 28" 
W - 67.13 feet. 

Thence N 41" 36' 28" E - 25.40 feet#algng\the d e  between the said Rice 45.00 acre tract and the 
said Rice 45.23 acre tract to the nortbwest.cd&er of this tract; 

' ' 
\ ' 's 
i' C 
\ J 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 1545.77 feet though the said Britton Rice tract to an angle point; 

Thence S 85" 02' 05" E - 58.06 feet continuing through the said Britt Rice 45.00 acre tract to the 
northeast comer of this tract in the southeast line of the said 45.00 acre tract; 

Thence S 40" 26' 52" W - 24.56 feet along the southeast line of the said Britt Rice 45.00 acre 
tract to a mag nail set at the southeast comer of this tract; 

Thence N 85" 02' 05" W - 43.55 feet through the said Britt Rice 45.00 acre tract to a %" iron rod 
with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set at an angle point; 

Thence N 86" 27' 34" W - 1561.18 feet through the said Britt Rice 45.00 acre tract to the Point 
of Beginning and containing 0.754 acres of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone NAD83 
(1986) datum, based on 1994 City of College Station 
GPS monument nos. 148 and 130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 



October 2006 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, Central 
Zone NAD83(1986) datum, based on 
1994 City of CS GPS control monument 
no. 148 and no. 130 (N 89"35'06"W). 

Britton Rice Britt Rice See separate metes and bounds 
45.23 acres 45.00 acres description prepared with this plat 

Vol. 3387, Pg. 11 5 V O ~ .  3636, Pg. 85 All existing easements and utilities 
are not shown on thls plat. 

0.737 acres 

86O27'34" E - 1545.77 ----- 
27'34"W-1561.1 

Stewart Thompson, trustee for 
Jo Ann Atkins W.G. Ritchey and 

the Brian Howard Perry Trust 10.846 acres wife, Sybll 0. R~tchey 
25.79 acres Vol. 267, Pg. 483 341.60 acres 

Vol. 1980, Pg. 272 Vol. 237, Pg. 29 

Rice 45.00 acre Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League A-9 is contiguous to the proposed 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed 20' Easement 
College Station I.S.D. Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, Abstract 
No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 30.00 acre tract conveyed to 
College Station Independent School District by deed recorded in Volume 1033, Page 534 of the Official 
Records of Brazos County, Texas and being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a $4'' iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set in the line 
between the said College Station I.S.D. tract and that 17.21 acre tract conveyed to Weingarten Realty 
Investors by deed recorded in Volume 7095, Page 66 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, 
Texas, S 3" 20' 28" W - 15.00 feet fiom a plastic cap (tamped "Strong RPLS 4961" found at the 
northeast comer of the said Weingarten tract and a %" @on rod was found S 3" 20' 28" W - 680.50 feet. 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 741.24 feet through th Station Independent School District tract 
to a $4" iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamp yo RPLS 5045" set at the northeast comer 
of this tract in the line between the said Csp3Y% . and that 25.79 acre tract conveyed to 
Stewart Thompson, trustee for the ~ r i a n , , ~ ~ & & - d & ~  g,+t,-eki,y~c Trust by deed recorded in Volume 1980, Page 
272 of the Official Public Records of &pos;.~6,pty, Texas, fiom which a 518" iron rod was found N 2" 
42' 27" W - 30.47 feet at the northwest"'&orner ?:'$, ,*, of the said Brian Howard Perry Trust tract and a 3/4" iron 
rod was found S 2" 42' 27" E - 1025 feet; Y 

Thence S 2" 42' 27" E - 20.12 feet along the line between the said College Station I.S.D. tract and the 
said Brian Howard Perry Trust tract to the southeast comer of this tract; 

Thence N 86" 27' 34" W - 743.36 feet through the said College Station I.S.D. 30.00 acre tract to the line 
between the said College Station I.S.D. tract and the said Weingarten Realty Investors tract; 

Thence N 3" 20' 28" E - 20.00 feet along the said line between the said College Station I.S.D. tract and 
the said Weingarten Realty Investors tract to the Point of Beginning and containing 0.341 acres of land 
more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone NAD83 (1986) 
datum, based on 1994 City of College Station GPS monument 
nos. 148 and 130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 



Britton Rice 
45.23 acres 

Vol. 3387, Pg. 1 15 

College Station 
Independent School District 

30.00 acres 
Vol. 1033, Pg. 534 

October 2006 

Dr. Roy R. Luepnitz 
0.96 acres (rem. of 1 .O1 ac.) 

Vol. 4792, Pg. 42 Bearings are Texas State Plane. Central 
Zone ~ ~ D 8 3 ( 1 9 8 6 )  datum, based on 
1994 City of CS GPS control monument 
no. 148 and no. 130 (N 89O35'06"W). 

See separate metes and bounds 
description prepared with this plat. 

All existing easements and utilities 
are not shown on this plat. 

---- ------ ----- 
existing 7' Utility Easem N 86O27'34"W - 743.36' 

Vol. 5760. Pg. 1 

roposed 20 '  Easement 
0.341 acres 

5 :zg 
0 5 ~ b  

.C - . - S 

Proposed 20 '  Easement 
Note: College Station 1.S.D. Tract 
This proposed 20' easement 

[DRAFT] 
is contiguous to the proposed Thomas Caruthers League A-9 
120' wide Right-of-way line. 
See separate R.O.W. Parcel plat. College Station, Texas 

.- 
0; 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed 20' Easement 
Brian Howard Perry Trust Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, Abstract 
No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 25.79 acre tract conveyed to 
Stewart Thompson, trustee for the Brian Howard Perry Trust by deed recorded in Volume 1980, Page 
272 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, Texas, and being more particularly described as 
follows: 

Beginning at a %" iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set in the line 
between the said Brain Howard Perry Trust tract and that 30.00 acre tract conveyed to College Station 
Independent School District by deed recorded in Volume 1'033, Page 534 of the Official Records of 
Brazos County, Texas, from which a 518" iron rod w&''k~p.nd N 2" 42' 27" W - 30.47 feet at the 
northwest comer of the said Perry Trust tract in the soithline bfthe existing prescriptive right-of-way of 
Rock Prairie Road and from which a 3/4" iron rod was fo$d S 2" 42' 27" E - 1025 feet; 

*: %% 
-. *% . - *< 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 489.53 feet throqP*e said ~ r i a n  Howard Perry Trust tract to a ?4" iron rod 
, b*., \v 

with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. ~,b%; 6 2 
c " X * ,  

%PLS 5045" set at the northeast comer of this tract fiom 
which a 518" iron rod was found N ,To 55+ !$2d' W - 31.57 feet at the common comer of the Brian 
Howard Perry Trust tract and that 10.8$@,a&e tract conveyed to Jo Ann Atkins by deed recorded in 
Volume 267, Page 483 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, and fiom which a fence comer 
post bears S 7" 55' 42" E - 994.6 feet; 

Thence S 7" 55' 42" E - 20.4.1 feet along the line between the said Jo Ann Atkins tract and the said 
Brian Howard Perry Trust tract to the southeast comer of this tract; 

Thence l?T 86" 27' 34" W - 491.39 feet through the said Brian Howard Perry Trust tract to the southwest 
comer of this tract in the line between the said Brian Howard Trust tract and the College Station I.S.D. 
tract; 

Thence N 2" 42' 27" W - 20.12 feet along the line between the said College Station I.S.D. tract and the 
said Brian Howard Perry Trust tract to the Point of Beginning and containing 0.225 acres of land more 
or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone NAD83 (1986) 
datum, based on 1994 City of College Station GPS monument 
nos. 148 and 130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 



Britt Rice 
45.00 acres 

Vol. 3636, Pg. 85 

October 2006 

Britton Rice 
45.23 acres 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, Central 
Vol. 3387, Pg. 1 15 

Zone N ~ ~ 8 3 ( 1 9 8 6 )  datum, based on 
1994 City of CS GPS control monument 
no. 148 and no. 130 (N 89"35'06"W). 

All existing easements and utilities 
are not shown on this plat. 

0.225 acres 

Stewart Thompson, 
College Station trustee for the 

Brian Howard Perry Trust 
Jo Ann Atkins 

Independent School District 10.846 acres 
30.00 acres 25.79 acres Vol. 267, Pg. 483 

Vol. 1033, Pg. 534 Vol. 1980, Pg. 272 

Proposed 20' Easement 
Perry Trust Tract 

This proposed 20' easement 
is contiguous to the proposed 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2 167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed 20' Easement 
Jo Ann Atkins Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, Abstract 
No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 10.846 acre tract conveyed to Jo 
Ann Atkins by deed recorded in Volume 267, Page 483 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas; 
and being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a %" iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set in the line 
between the said Jo Ann Atkins tract and that 25.79 acre tract conveyed to Stewart Thompson, trustee 
for the Brian Howard Perry Trust by deed recorded in Volume 1980, Page 272 of the Official Public 
Records of Brazos County, Texas, fiom which a 518" ironzod was found N 7" 55' 42" W - 3 1.57 feet at 
the common corner of said tracts in the south line isting prescriptive right-of-way of Rock 
Prairie Road. 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 663.72 feet through the s&Q Jo Ann Atluns tract to a %" iron rod with an 
orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo 50451ket'in the line between the said Atkins tract and that 
341.60 acre tract conveyed to W.G. Ritchey~&d:wife, Sybil D. Ritchey by deed recorded in Volume 
237, Page 29 of the Deed Records of ~ r & o ~ ~ C p u n t ~ ,  Texas, fiom which a 518" iron rod was found N 
13" 53' 07" E - 31.28 feet at the north$@ yorner of the said Atkins tract in the northwest line of the 
said Ritchey tract, and fiom which a fence *hgle point at an 18" post oak bears S 13" 53' W - 526 feet; 

Thence S 13" 53' 07" W - 20.33 feet along the line between the said Jo Ann Atkins tract and the said 
Ritchey tract to the southeast corner of this tract; 

Thence N 86" 27' 34" W - 656.01 feet through the said Jo Ann Atkins tract to the southwest corner of 
this tract in the line between the said Jo Ann Atkins tract and the said Brian Howard Perry Trust tract; 

Thence N 7" 55' 42" W - 20.41 feet along the line between the said Jo Ann Atluns tract and the said 
Brian Howard Perry Trust tract to the Point of Beginning and containing 0.303 acres of land more or 
less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone NAD83 (1986) 
datum, based on 1994 City of College Station GPS monument 
nos. 148 and 130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 



Britt Rice 
45.00 acres 

Vol. 3636, Pg. 85  

O c t o b e r  2006 

~ H H H H ~  

Bearings are Texas State Plane, Central 
Zone ~ ~ D 8 3 ( 1 9 8 6 )  datum, based on 
1994 City of CS GPS control monument 
no. 148 and no. 130 (N 89'35'06"W). 

See separate metes and bounds 
description prepared with this plat. - - - 

0.303 a c r e s  

Stewart Thompson, 
trustee for the JO Ann Atkins W.G. Ritchey and 

Brian Howard Perry Trust wife, Sybil D. Ritchey 
25.79 acres 10.846 acres 341.60 acres 

Vol. 1980, Pg. 272 VO~.  267, Pg. 483 Vol. 237, Pg. 29 

Proposed 20' Easement 
Atkins Tract 

Thomas Caruthers League A-9 This proposed 20' easement 
is contiguous to the proposed 

College Station, Texas 120' wide Right-of-way line. 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2 167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed 20' Easement (Part 1) 
W.G. Ritchey Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, 
Abstract No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 341.60 acre tract 
conveyed to W.G. Ritchey and wife, Sybil D. Ritchey by deed recorded in Volume 237, Page 29 
of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas and being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a W iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set in 
the line between the said W.G. Ritchey 341.60 acre tract and that 10.846 acre tract conveyed to &\ 
Jo Ann Atkins by deed recorded in Volume 267, ,$&ge 483 of the Deed Records of Brazos 
County, Texas, from which a fence angle point at,ad,l@"t:post oak tree bears S 13" 53' W- 526 
feet and a 518" iron rod was found N 13" 53' O@-:E?~ 31:28 feet at the northeast comer of the 
said Atkins tract in the existing prescriptive rigbt-of-& -:..:.;"- I., of Rock Prairie Road. 

.. 'i*q.':>, " 
: .,' ..> :Y' . .  . 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 300.91 feet,-&&&thesaid -,, Pe,, Ritchey tract to a ?4', iron rod with an 
orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. h$ay&k~3%045" “..+ y*,*i* set at the northeast comer of this tract in 
the southwest line of that 11 ac&*a~6~c~nve~ed to Willis S. Ritchey by deed recorded in 
Volume 260, Page 466 of the ~ e e d ' ~ ~ $ r d s  of Brazos County, Texas, from which a 318" iron 
rod was found in 1984 N 0" 42' 01" - 30.44 feet at the northwest comer of the said Willis 
Ritchey tract; 

Thence S 0" 42' 01" E - 20.05 through the said Ritchey 341.60 acre tract and along the 
southwest line of the said Willis Ritchey tract to the southeast comer of this tract; 

Thence N 86" 27' 34" W - 306.05 feet through the said Ritchey 341.60 acre tract to the line 
between the said W.G. Ritchey tract and the said Jo Ann Atkins tract; 

Thence N 13" 53' 07" E - 20.33 feet along the line between the said W.G. Ritchey tract and the 
said Jo Ann Atkins tract to the Point of Beginning and containing 0.139 acres of land more or 
less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone NAD83 
(1986) datum, based on 1994 City of College Station 
GPS monument nos. 148 and 130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 





Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2 167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed 20' Easement 
Willis Ritchey Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
17 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, Abstract No. 
9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 11 acre tract conveyed to Willis S. Ritchey 
by deed recorded in Volume 260, Page 466 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas and being more 
particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a %" iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set in the west line 
of the said Willis Ritchey tract S 0" 42' 01" E - 30.44 feet from where a 318'' iron rod was found in 1984 at 
the northwest corner of same in the south line of the existing prescriptive right-of-way of Rock Prairie Road. ,." 
Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 302.53 feet through the said RitGhy 11 acre tract to a %" iron rod with an orange 
plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set at an angie p%j, 

"\+, - 
V', .. % 

Thence S 85" 02' 05" E - 1226.39 feet continuing t@$h& th'e said Ritchey 11 acre tract to a W iron rod with 
a \%:. 

an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RP 4947 &fat an angle point; 
'.> .. 

Thence S 84" 23' 02" E - 70.86 feet continui the said Ritchey 11 acre tract to a '/z" iron rod with 
an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. M~$&$$P et at the northeast corner of this tract in the east line 
of the said Ritchey 11 acre tract which is focated S 0" 42' 23" E - 33.00 feet from a 318'' iron rod found 
(bent) at the northeast corner of said Ritchey 1 1 acre tract; 

Thence S 0" 42' 23" E - 20.12 feet along the east line of the said Ritchey 11 acre tract to the southeast corner 
of this tract; 

Thence N 84" 23' 02" W - 72.96 feet through the said Ritchey tract to an angle point; 

Thence N 85" 02' 05" W - 1226.02 feet continuing through the said Ritchey tract to an angle point; 

Thence N 86" 27' 34" W - 300.80 feet continuing through the said Ritchey acre tract to the west line of 
same; 

Thence N 0" 42' 01" W- 20.05 feet along the west line of the said Ritchey 11 acre tract to the Point of 
Beginning and containing 0.734 acres of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone NAD83 (1 986) datum, 
based on 1994 City of College Station GPS monument nos. 148 and 
130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 



Britt Rice 
45.00 acres 

Vol. 3636, Pg. 85 

Joe O r r ,  Inc. / 
Surveyors & Engineers 
2167 Post Oak Circle 

College Station, TX 77845 
(979) 690-3378 

October 2006 

0 100 200 
1 400 , Feet 

Dale W. Conrad and 
wife, Reba J. Conrad 

26.25 acres Bearings are Texas State Plane, Central 
Val. 460, pg, 505 ZOW NADD8(1986) datum, based on 

1994 City of CS GPS control monument 
no. 148 and no. 130 (N 89O35'06"~). 

See separate metes and bounds 
description prepared with this plat. 

All existing easements and utilities 
are not shown on this plat. 

Proposed 120' R.0.w. 
__ 

sting aerial powerline - BTu 

Prairie Road E 
_02L05"_E_-- -1_226_ - - - - -  

N 85O02 '05"~  - 1226 

Willis S. Ritchey 
11 acres 

Vol. 260, Pg. 466  b++~3 
0 
> ro A 
zi 

0.734 acres N 5 W.G. Ritchey and q a  
wife, Sybil D. Ritchey 

341.60 acres m 
Vol. 237, Pg. 29 ,oJ' 

W.G. Ritchey and 0 

wife, Sybil D. Ritchey ,I P"" 
341.60 acres 

Vol. 237, Pg. 29 

Proposed 20' Easement 
Willis Ritchey Tract Note: 

This proposed 20' easement 
Thomas Caruthers League A-9 is contiguous to  the proposed 

120' wide Right-of-way line. 
College Station, Texas See separate R.O.W. Parcel plat. 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2 167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed 20' Easement (Part 2) 
W.G. Ritchey Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, Abstract No. 
9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 341.60 acre tract conveyed to W.G. Ritchey 
and wife, Sybil D. Ritchey by deed recorded in Volume 237, Page 29 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, 
Texas and being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a %" iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set in the east line of 
that 11 acre tract conveyed to Willis S. Ritchey by deed recorded in Volume 260, Page 466 of the Deed 
Records of Brazos County, Texas, fi-om which a 318" iron rod found (bent) at the northeast corner of the said 
Willis Ritchey tract bears N 0" 42' 23" W - 33.00 feet and ,a 318" iron rod found (bent) at the southeast 
comer of the said Willis Ritchey tract bears S 0" 42' 23" E - ~ 6 7 . 1  feet. 

A '  

P' 
Thence S 84" 23' 02" E - 542.77 feet through the said<W,G. Rifchey tract to a %" iron rod with an orange 
plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set at an angje;p,oint; 

, ? \* 
Thence S 82" 02' 02" E - 195.30 feet continuhg &ou& the said W.G. Ritchey tract to a 54" iron rod with an 
orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RP>iI:5~45'%&t at the northeast comer of this tract in the west line of 
Lot 1 of the Rock Prairie Baptist ~hurch,,addi?ion described by plat recorded in Volume 73 12, Page 207 of 
the Official Public Records of Brazos ~ o h ~ ~ ~ ~ e x a s ,  fi-om which a %"iron rod with an orange plastic cap 
stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" was foundw 7" 57' 58" E - 10.00 feet at the northwest comer of the said 
Lot 1; 

Thence S 7" 57' 58" W - 20.00 feet along the west line of the said Lot 1 to the southeast comer of this tract; 

Thence N 82" 02' 02" W - 194.89 feet through the said W.G. Ritchey tract to an angle point; 

Thence N 84" 23' 02" W - 540.14 feet continuing through the said W.G. Ritchey tract to the east line of the 
said Willis Ritchey 11 acre tract; 

Thence N 0" 42' 23" W - 20.12 feet along the east line of the said Willis Ritchey 11 acre tract to the Point of 
Beginning and containing 0.338 acres of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone NAD83 (1986) datum, 
based on 1994 City of College Station GPS monument nos. 148 and 
130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 





Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 

Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed Addition to Right-of-way 
Edward Uvacek Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, 
Abstract No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 30.233 acres conveyed 
to Edward Uvacek, Jr. and wife, Beatrice G. Uvacek as 23.233 acre First Tract and 7 acre Second 
Tract by deed recorded in Volume 321, Page 664 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, and 
a part of that 4.507 acre Tract Two conveyed to Edward Uvacek, Jr. and wife Beatrice Uvacek by 
deed recorded in Volume 274, Page 383 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, being a strip 
of land lying along and adjoining the present north ri&t-of-way line of Rock Prairie Road as 
described in Volume 4134, Page 304 of the Official ~ d l i c  Records of Brazos County, Texas, and 

1 ,  

being more particularly described as follows: 
$1 ' TY \> 

Beginning at a 518" iron rod with err 4502" found in the north line of Rock 
Prairie Road at the southwest com e Riviera Addition to the City of College 
Station according to plat of record i age 97 of the Official Public Records of Brazos 
County, Texas. 

Thence N 86" 27' 34" W - 300.81 feet&pg the north line of Rock Prairie Road to southwest comer 
of this tract, fiom which a bent 518" iron ;od was found S 44" 30' 35" E - 87.7 feet in 1999; 

Thence N 44" 30' 35" W - 22.44 feet along an old fence line to a ?4" iron rod with an orange plastic 
cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set at the northwest comer of this tract; 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 312.33 feet through the said Uvacek tracts, parallel to and fifteen feet 
(15') fiom the north right-of-way line of Rock Prairie Road to a ?4" iron rod with an orange plastic 
cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set in the southwest line of the said Riviera Addition; 

Thence S 15" 28' 36" E - 15.87 feet along the southwest line of the said Riviera Addition to the 
Point of Beginning and containing 4,599 square feet of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone 
NAD83 (1986) datum, based on 1994 City of 
College Station GPS monument nos. 148 and 
130 (N 89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 



Joe O r r ,  Inc. 
\ I 

Woodcreek - Section Seven 
Surveyors & Engineers Vol. 2580, Pg. 113 
2167 Post Oak Circle 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, Central 
Zone NAD83(1986) datum, based on 
1994 City of CS GPS control monument 
no. 148 and no. 130 (N 89"3 

See separate metes and bounds 
description prepared with this plat. 

All existing easements and utilities 
are not shown on this plat. 

Edward Uvacek. Jr. and 
wife, Beatrice G. Uvacek 

23.233 acres - First Tract 
Vol. 321, Pg. 664  

Edward Uvacek, Jr. and 
wife, Beatrice Uvacek 

4.507 acres - Tract Two 
Vol. 274, Pg. 383 

N 86'27'34"W - 300.81' 

2.39 oc. R.O.W. Parcel 
Vol. 4134. Pg. 304 

0.12 oc. R.O.W. Parcel - Vol. 4134, Pg. 304 

Uvacek Tracts Investors 
17.21 acres 

Vol. 7095, Pg. 66 

/ College Station, Texas 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2 167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed Addition to Right-of-way 
Riviera Addition 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, Abstract 
No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of Lot 1 Block 1 of the Riviera Addition 
as described by plat recorded in Volume 6607, Page 97 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, 
Texas, being a strip of land lying along and adjoining the present north right-of-way line of Rock Prairie 
Road and being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a 518" iron rod with a plastic cap stamped "Kerr 4502" found at the southwest comer of the 
said Lot 1 Block 1 of the Riviera Addition. 

<''\ 
Thence N 15" 28' 36" W - 15.87 feet along the southwestlQ of the said Riviera Addition to a %" iron 
rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. ~ a ~ ~ & b  5.045" set for the northwest comer of this 
tract; ' 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 154.10 iera Addition, parallel to and fifteen (15') feet 
from the present northwest line o dad to a ?4" iron rod with an orange plastic cap 
stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" s ng of a tangent curve to the left @=25.00'); 

Thence along the arc of said curve in a codter clockwise direction through a central angle of 90" 28' 
13" to a Yi" iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set in the northwest 
line of Stonebrook Drive; 

Thence S 3" 04' 13" W - 15.00 feet along the northwest line of Stonebrook drive to an "X" found 
chipped in the concrete sidewalk for the beginning of a curve to the right in the northwest right-of-way 
line of Rock Prairie Road (R=25.00'); 

Thence along the arc of said curve in a clockwise direction through a central angle of 90" 27' 44" and 
chord of which bears S 48" 18' 34" W - 35.50 feet to a 518" iron rod with a plastic cap stamped "Kerr 
4502" found at the end of said curve; 

Thence N 86" 27' 34" W - 149.06 feet along the south line of Lot 1 Block 1 of the said Riviera 
Addition to the Point of Beginning and containing 2652 square feet of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone NAD83 (1986) 
datum, based on 1994 City of College Station GPS monument 
nos. 148 and 130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 



I 
Woodcreek - Section Seven Joe Orr, I ~ c .  

Vol. 2580, Pg. 113 
I 

Surveyor s  & Engineer s  
2167 Post Oak Circle 

College Station, TX 77845 
(979) 690-3378 

October 2006 

100 Feet 
T 

I H H ~  
a, 
N 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, Central 
Zone NAD83(1986) datum, based on 
1994 City of CS GPS control monument 
no. 148 and no. 130 (N 89"35'06"W). 

See separate metes and bounds 
description prepared with this plat. 

All existing easements and utilities 
are not shown on this plat. 

Block I 

Riviera Addition 
Vol. 6607, Pg. 9 7  

V) 1 Z 

4- 

c 
m / .- 
M I \  M 

/P .- 
4 2 .  

U m 
a, a 
( I ) -  

7 

I - 
Y b  
a,M 
a , .  

b z 
TI> o 

2 

r\ 

i, 
0 

zsN . - 

c,* a u.+ 6 
3 O n  

& E &  
2 m  

2-% 
Il: 03 

a 2  
; b ?  
n 0 

a 

2 

Vol. 6607, Pg. 97 

a 
g b  Rock Prairie Road East eb 
m LN 

7 

I 0.12 ac. R.O.W. Parcel - Vol. 4134, Pg. 304 

f \ 

DRAFT 
/ 

Proposed R.O.W.  arce el^ Weingarten Realty 
Investors Riviera Addition 17.21 acres 

Vol. 7095, Pg. 66 Thomas Caruthers League A-9 
College Station, Texas 

C u m  + Fl 
.- 0u.u  0, 
u K i u .  

gzE u a,+ L 

a, &om' 
g+je8g - 
o= Urn-  
0 0 ,  

3 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2 167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed Addition to Right-of-way 
Luepnitz Tract 
Thomas Canrthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers 
League, Abstract No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 
0.96 acre tract conveyed to Dr. Roy R. Luepnitz by deed recorded in Volume 4792, Page 
42 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, Texas, being a strip of land lying 
along and adjoining the present north right-of-way line of Rock Prairie Road and being 
more particularly described as follows: 

p. 

Beginning at a K" iron rod found (bent) at the sopGast comer of the said Luepnitz tract 
which is also the northeast comer of that 20lP$~~&$feet right-of-way easement tract 
conveyed to the City of College Station by de& .yx2eorded %is: in Volume 4012, Page 79 of the 

:, .#, 

%% Official Public Records of Brazos County t!Kg$as>.iijijf ' 3 -*;>>& ;.,, '.. .r"l,$"w.' 
'' 
gj' 3' 

Thence N 30" 57' 23" E - 16.90 fe&$bngt&e line between the said Luepnitz tract and 
.::> @%&:&Q;** "* 

that tract conveyed to ~arguer$+e~~$&':~arroll, ".; ... -<%,- trustee and Linda Carroll Lantz by deed 
recorded in Volume 4297, ~ag'e,l94~s~$$he Official Public Records of Brazos County, 
Texas, to a %" iron rod with an d h &  plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set 
for the northeast comer of this tract? 

Thence N 86" 27' 34" W - 158.40 feet through the said Luepnitz tract, parallel to and 
fifteen (15') feet from the present northwest line of Rock Prairie Road to a $4" iron rod 
with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set at the beginning of a 
tangent curve to the right (R=25.00'); 

Thence along the arc of said curve in a clockwise direction through a central angle of 89" 
3 1' 47" to a ?4" iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set 
in the southeast line of Stonebrook Drive; 

Thence S 3" 04' 13" W - 15.00 feet along the northeast line of Stonebrook drive to a W 
iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" found at the 
beginning of a curve to the left in the existing right-of-way line of Rock Prairie Road 
(R=25 .OO'); 

Thence along the arc of said curve in a counterclockwise direction through a central angle 
of 89" 32' 16" and the chord of which bears S 4 1" 4 1 ' 26" E - 35.2 1 feet to a 54'' iron rod 

Rock Prairie Road Luepnitz Page 1 of 2 



with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" found at the end of said 
curve; 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 150.50 feet along the south line of the said Luepnitz tract to the 
Point of Beginning and containing 2689 square feet of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone 
NAD83 (1986) d a m ,  based on 1994 City of 
College Station GPS monument nos. 148 and 
130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 

Rock Prairie Road Luepnitz Page 2 of 2 



Dr. Roy R. Luepnitz 
0.96 acres (rem. of 1 .O1 ac.) 

Vol. 4792, Pg. 42 

- - I <  College 2 1 67 Station, Post Oak TX Circle 77845 

October 2006 
(979) 690-3378 

- 0 50 100 Feet 
I 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, Central 
Zone ~ ~ D 8 3 ( 1 9 8 6 )  datum, based on 
1994 City of CS GPS control monument Woodcreek - Section Eight 
no. 148 and no. 130 (N 89°35'06"W). Vol. 3711, Pg. 237 

See separate metes and bounds 
description prepared with this plat. 

All existing easements and util~ties 
are not shown on this plat. 

b 

.- . e rJ1 
na 
n 
a b- 

0 
Fco 
O c o  .- > 

9 

1 
/ 

L N  
7 

Rock p r a i r i e P ~ o a d  East 

- - - - - - - - - 

Weingarten Realty 
Investors 

17.21 acres 
Vol. 7095, Pg. 66 

0.24 ac. R.O.W. Easement 7 Vol. 4026, Pg. 323 

- - - {ej----- 
Proposed R.O.W. Parcel College Station 

Independent 

Luepnitz Tract school District 30.00 acres 

T ~ o ~ I ~ s  Caruthers League A-9 VOI. 1033, pg. 534 

College Station, Texas 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors &Engineers 

2 1 67 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed Addition to Right-of-way 
Carroll and Lantz Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, 
Abstract No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that tract conveyed to 
Marguerite H. Carroll, trustee and Linda Carroll Lantz by deed recorded in Volume 4297, Page 
194 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, Texas, being more particularly described as 
follows: 

Beginning at a W iron rod found (mangled) at the southwest comer of the said Carroll and Lantz 
tract at the southeast comer of that 201 1 square fogt ribt-of-way easement tract described in 
Volume 4012, Page 79 of the Official Public ~ e c o r d s  of hazos  County, Texas. 

\ ", 
" 

Thence N 30" 57' 23" E - 29.5 1 feet, at 12.6 feet pas3,y 54" iron rod found (bent) at the southeast 
corner of that 0.96 acre tract conveyed to RO; $. Lu'epnitz by deed recorded in Volume 4792, 
Page 42 of the Official Public Records,-<f Brazo,~ County, Texas, and continuing along the line 
between the said Carroll and Lantz tract\a@'~e said Luepnitz tract to a 54" iron rod with an 
orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mqyo .. , Q ~ g 5 0 4 5 "  set for the northwest comer of this tract; 

/ 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 51.82 feet through the said Carroll and Lantz tract to a %" iron rod 
with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" set at the northeast comer of this 
tract in the northwest line of that 45.23 acre tract conveyed to Britton Rice by deed recorded in 
Volume 3387, Page 115 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, Texas; 

Thence S 32" 16' 40" W - 33.40 feet along the line between the said Carroll and Lantz tract and 
the said Britton Rice tract to where a %" iron rod was found in 1999 at the common comer of the 
said Carroll and Lantz tract and the said Britton Rice trace in the prescriptive north right-of-way 
of Rock Prairie Road; 

Thence N 82" 52' 58" W - 49.45 feet along the south line of the said Carroll and Lantz tract to 
the Point of Beginning and containing 1426 square feet of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone NAD83 
(1986) datum, based on 1994 City of College Station 
GPS monument nos. 148 and 130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 



College Station, TX 7 7 8 4 5  

October 2006 
(979) 690 -3378  

Bearings are Texas State Plane. Central 
Zone NAD83(1986) datum, based on 
1994 City of CS GPS control monument 
no. 148 and no. 130 (N 89°35'06"W). 

See separate metes and bounds 
description prepared with this plat. 

All existing easements and utilities 
are not shown on this plat. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 

Q) > .- 
L 
0 

3 
0 Dr. Roy R. Luepnitz 0 
L 0.96 acres (rem. of 1.01 ac.) 
13 Vol. 4792. Pg. 42 
Q) 

Britton Rice 

!z 
0 

\ *Note: This found IR was set for 
\ a R.O.W. survey in 2000. 

201 1 sq.ft. R.O.W. Easement '- Vo 

R.O.W. Dedicated by Plat 
Vol. 1308, Pg. 281 

u s  g z  
.- Rock Prairie Road East a 
G b  Pb 
0) L N  

7 

t 0.24 ac. R.O.W. Easement - Vol. 4026, Pg. 323 
- --x- - n-- - 

- - A  

[-6Gf) Proposed R.0.W. Parcel College Independent Station 

Carroll and Lantz Tract school District 30.00 acres 
Thomas Caruthers League A-9 VOI. 1033, pg. 534 

College Station, Texas 



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors & Engineers 

2 167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 
Rock Prairie Road 
Proposed Addition to Right-of-way 
Britton Rice 45.23 Acre Tract 
Thomas Caruthers League 
College Station, Texas 
25 October 2006 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Thomas Caruthers League, 
Abstract No. 9, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 45.23 acre tract 
conveyed to Britton Rice by deed recorded in Volume 3387, Page 115 of the Official Public 
Records of Brazos County, Texas being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning where a %" iron rod was found (bent) at the common corner of the said Britton Rice 
tract and Marguerite H. Carroll, trustee and Linda Carroll Lantz tract described by deed recorded 
in Volume 4297, Page 194 of the Official Public J&&ords of Brazos County, Texas, in the 
prescriptive north line of Rock Prairie Road. w> +T t i 

4 c\,dh , 
Thence N 32" 16' 40" E - 33.40 feet along fbe lkQjbetween the said Rice tract and the said 
Carroll and Lantz tract to a ?h" iron rod with &(krange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 
5045" set for the northwest comer of thi$:&ct; i 

& \$$, 
. /*< 

Thence S 86" 27' 34" E - 697.06 fdet &*%the said Britton Rice tract to a %"iron rod with an 
orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. & x Q R P ~ ~  5045" set at the northeast corner of this tract in 
the southeast line of the said 45.23 acre h-act; 

Thence S 41" 36' 28'' W - 36.34 feet along the line between the said Britton Rice 45.23 acre 
tract and that 45.00 acre tract conveyed to Britt Rice by deed recorded in Volume 3636, Page 85 
of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, Texas, to the southeast corner of the said 
Britton Rice 45.23 acre tract in the prescriptive north right-of-way of Rock Prairie Road; 

Thence N 86" 30' 55" W - 690.71 feet along the south line of the said Britton Rice 45.23 acre 
tract to the Point of Beginning and containing 0.46 1 acres of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, central Zone NAD83 
(1986) datum, based on 1994 City of College Station 
GPS monument nos. 148 and 130 (N89" 35' 06" W). 

See attached survey plat dated October 2006. 





































 

December, 14 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Pipeline Crossing Agreement for the Wellborn Road Utilities Relocation Project 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve one (1) 
Pipeline Crossing Agreement for the Wellborn Road Utilities Relocation Project. The permit is 
required to bore under the railroad bed to install a water distribution line. 
 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval of the Pipeline Crossing Agreement. 
 
 
Summary: This item is for the approval of a Pipeline Crossing Agreement in order to install 
a water line from the relocated water transmission line along the west side of the railroad 
track to the existing water distribution system along Graham Road.  This item is in 
conjunction with the TxDOT Wellborn Road Widening Project and the City’s Wellborn Road 
Utility Relocation Project.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary: The funding for this project is from the Water Fund and 
budgeted under “Wellborn Widening”.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Pipeline Crossing Agreement 

2. Location Map 























518/851 & 1165/617

1.96 ac.

B.D. Russell, et al

University Industrial

Center
Phase I

456/249

1722/55
Elliott Subdivision

~

Triro, Inc.
0.259 ac.
1839/215

~

~

1415/43
0.50 ac.
R

obert B
. W

altm
an

Sall

Enterprise, Inc.

2.00 ac.
475/130

Lieven J.
Van R

iet, trustee
159.657 ac.

964/818

Laboratories, Inc.

1.00 ac.- 807/390

Deuel and Zahray

641/426

2.24 ac.

Jack Kindt

D
onald F. C

arroll
100 ac.
147/514

327/533 &
 328/340

200 ac.
B

ernard O
. Ellington

365/376
5.00 ac.

R
obert K

. Straw
n

712/353
5.00 ac.

W
anona R

andolph
7.382 ac.
1035/135

2257/308
14.0753 ac.

Lim
ited Partnership

C
ottages of R

ock Prairie

CS GPS control

mon. no. 132

U
nion Pacific R

ailroad C
o.

200' w
ide R

ight-of-W
ay

U
/387, 215/418, 4650/990 600 1,200300 Feet

³

Water Transmission Line
UPRR Crossing and
ROW Encroachment

Ellington Ranch



December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Annual Blanket Purchase Order for the Installation of Hot Mix Asphalt 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding renewal 
of an annual contract with Young Contractors for the Installation of Hot Mix Asphalt, 
MC-30/AEP Emulsified Asphalt and RC-2 Winter Patch Asphalt.  The amount for the 
renewed contract is $532,350. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the contract. 
 
Summary:  Young Contractors was the successful bidder for the FY2006 annual 
contract.  This FY2007 renewal is the first of two optional annual renewals of the 
FY2006 contract (P.O. 060426).  The contract provides for up to a 5% increase for 
renewal.  This renewal is an increase of 5% over the previous contract amount.  
Staff feels that the increase would be higher than 5% if this item were re-bid. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funding for the Annual Blanket Purchase Order for 
the Installation of Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete is provided from the operating budget of 
the Street Maintenance Division.  
 
Attachments: 
1. Renewal Letter 
 







 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Construction of 6-in and 8-in Gravity Sewer Trunkline 
in the College Station ETJ 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works 
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the award of a 
construction contract between Smiling Mallard Development, Ltd. and Brazos Valley 
Services for the construction of a 6-inch and 8-inch gravity sewer line in the City’s ETJ in 
the amount of $136,576.50.   
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends award of Bid #07-20 to Brazos Valley Services, 
being the lowest responsible bidder, in the amount of $136,576.50  
 
Summary:  This item is for the award of a construction contract to Brazos Valley Services 
for the construction of a gravity sewer line which will connect to the Nantucket Sewer Line 
currently under construction.  The contract is between Smiling Mallard Development, Ltd. 
and the contractor, Brazos Valley Services, and is in keeping with the Public Bidding 
process.  The 8 and 6 inch gravity line will serve existing homes in Nantucket as well as the 
area to the south.  At present, Indian Lakes Phase IX is constructing a lift station that will 
pump into the gravity line.  Water Services elected to utilize funds to participate in the 
construction cost of a gravity line in lieu of a forced-main so that additional customers can 
gravity flow into the sewer rather than pump.  A Development Agreement regarding this 
expenditure of funds was approved by Council as item # 13.3 on May 25, 2006.   
 
Sealed competitive bids for Bid # 06-87 were received from four (4) contracting firms and 
the summary of the results is as follows: 
 

Brazos Valley Services $ 136,576.50 
Elliott Construction $ 138,356.90 
Dudley Construction $ 166,780.93 
Doughtie Construction $ 271,978.60 

 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  Funds for the City’s portion of the construction costs are 
budgeted and available in the Wastewater Service Capital Improvements Program under 
Collection and Oversize Participation and Planning.   
 
Attachments:   
 1. Contract 

2. Bid tabulation #07-20 
 3. Location Map 
 

































































































Bid #07-20

Item No. Approx. 
Quantity Unit Description Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

1 GRAVITY LINE IMPROVEMENTS

1.01 919 LF 8" ASTM D3034, SDR 26 PVC Sewer Line $28.00 $25,732.00 $7.75 $7,122.25 $26.88 $24,702.72 $34.00 $31,246.00

1.02 158 LF 8" ASTM D2241, SDR 26 PVC Sewer Line $28.00 $4,424.00 $8.00 $1,264.00 $26.64 $4,209.12 $36.00 $5,688.00

1.03 1,929 LF 6" ASTM D3034, SDR 26 PVC Sewer Line $23.00 $44,367.00 $6.25 $12,056.25 $25.05 $48,321.45 $33.00 $63,657.00

1.04 140 LF 5" - 8" Trenching & Backfill - Structural $21.00 $2,940.00 $40.00 $5,600.00 $32.19 $4,506.60 $70.00 $9,800.00

1.05 805 LF 5" - 8" Trenching & Backfill -  Non Structural $2.05 $1,650.25 $18.00 $14,490.00 $4.00 $3,220.00 $25.00 $20,125.00

1.06 125 LF 8" - 10" Trenching & Backfill - Structural $30.00 $3,750.00 $47.00 $5,875.00 $48.93 $6,116.25 $80.00 $10,000.00

1.07 1,835 LF 8" - 10" Trenching & Backfill - Non Structural $2.10 $3,853.50 $20.00 $36,700.00 $4.00 $7,340.00 $25.00 $45,875.00

1.08 2,905 LF Trench Safety $1.50 $4,357.50 $2.00 $5,810.00 $2.10 $6,100.50 $6.00 $17,430.00

1.09 9 EACH 4' Standard Manhole $2,250.00 $20,250.00 $2,000.00 $18,000.00 $2,908.00 $26,172.00 $2,900.00 $26,100.00

1.10 22 VF Additional Depth for manholes $175.00 $3,850.00 $200.00 $4,400.00 $210.74 $4,636.28 $275.00 $6,050.00

1.11 1 EACH Drop Structure $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,238.00 $3,238.00 $3,410.00 $3,410.00

1.12 100 LF 8" Dry Mechanical Bore $125.00 $12,500.00 $150.00 $15,000.00 $136.25 $13,625.00 $175.00 $17,500.00

1.13 150 SY Gravel Driveway Repair $20.00 $3,000.00 $10.00 $1,500.00 $18.29 $2,743.50 $38.00 $5,700.00

Sub-Total Item: 1.00 $131,674.25 $128,817.50 $154,931.42 $262,581.00

2.00 MISCELLANEOUS

2.01 180 LF Silt Fence $2.50 $450.00 $3.00 $540.00 $5.00 $900.00 $4.00 $720.00

2.02 3,233 SY Hydro Seeding with Fiber Mulch $1.05 $3,394.65 $0.50 $1,616.50 $1.53 $4,946.49 $0.70 $2,263.10

2.03 1 EACH Construction Access/Exit Driveway $500.00 $500.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $3,069.00 $3,069.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00

2.04 159 LF Removal & Replacement of Barbed Wire Fence $6.00 $951.00 $15.00 $2,377.50 $7.05 $1,117.43 $7.00 $1,109.50

2.05 19 SY Removal & Replacement of Concrete Riprap $73.00 $1,387.00 $75.00 $1,425.00 $95.61 $1,816.59 $95.00 $1,805.00

Sub- Total Item: 2.00 $6,682.65 $7,759.00 $11,849.51 $9,397.60

TOTAL BID $138,356.90 $136,576.50 $166,780.93 $271,978.60

Dudley Construction Doughtie ConstructionElliott Construction

BID TABULATION

November 3, 2006 Brazos Valley Services

Page 1 of 3



AR
RI

NG
TO

N 
RO

AD

NA
NTUCKET DR

M IDSUMMER LN

 

³
 

City Project 12" Wastewater Line
Developer Project
Existing Wastewater Lines

Area to be served by lift station



 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Exception to Policy for Sewer Service to Great Oaks Estates 
 
To: Mr. Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Mr. John Woody, Water Services Department Director 
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action, and discussion for an exception to Policy 
to allow Indivisa Corporation to construct sewer infrastructure necessary to connect the 
upcoming phases of Great Oaks Estates to the City sewer system. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends Council approve this request. 
 
Summary:   Indivisa Corporation has requested the City provide sewer service to 
approximately 300 homes that will be constructed in phases 1A-8 of Great Oaks Estates, 
which is located off Rock Prairie Road West.  Their letter, with map, is attached.  This 
subdivision is outside the City’s current certificated area for sewer, but it is within the City’s 
extra-territorial jurisdiction (ETJ) and within the area that the City has applied for the sewer 
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity (CCN).  The Developer has consented to be 
included in the City’s CCN, and will bear all infrastructure cost for connecting to the City 
system.  The City’s sewer CCN application has not yet been approved by the TCEQ, 
however, the area is presently not certificated and the City has the legal right to provide 
this sewer service.  Please note, the property is not a candidate for annexation, since it is 
not contiguous with the City limits. 
 
 In January 2006, City Council approved a request from Mr. Tony Jones for him to 
construct a sewer line along Cain Road, for the City to provide sewer service to his 
development, Las Palomas.  This current request for Great Oaks, if approved, would allow 
Indivisa to participate with Mr. Jones in the cost of constructing the sewer line that would 
service Great Oaks, Las Palomas and another development, Oakland Ridge. 
 
 City Policy states that the City may provide sewer service outside the City limits or 
the City’s sewer certificated area, only in certain situations.  (See attachment.)  Since the 
City does not yet hold the CCN for this area, an exception to Policy is required.  Exceptions 
are allowed for three cases, one of which is for health and safety reasons.  The health and 
safety of all the area residents is much better served by having this development connected 
to the City sewer system, rather than being served by a small sewage treatment package 
plant that would discharge into one of the local ponds.  On this basis, staff recommends 
approval of this request, to grant an exception to City Policy. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  City funds are not required to execute this project.  
 
Attachments: 
 Letter from Indivisa Corporation including map 

Policy on extension of utilities to the ETJ 
Resolution 













 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  __________________ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING AN EXCEPTION TO THE CITY’S UTILITY EXTENSION 
POLICY TO ALLOW THE EXTENSION OF SEWER UTILITY SERVICES TO 
GREAT OAKS ESTATES PHASES 1A-8 ON ROCK PRAIRIE ROAD WEST, 
WITHIN THE EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION (ETJ) OF THE CITY OF 
COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS.  
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station adopted Resolution Number 02-09-2006-13.04 
on February 9, 2006, which states in Part 1 “that water and sewer utility services will not 
be available to properties outside the City’s corporate limits without a petition for 
annexation from said properties meeting the legal requirements of such petitions or areas 
not certificated to the City of College Station for that purpose” and further states in Part 3 
“That the City Council hereby agrees that it may grant exceptions as it deems necessary 
to the best interests of the City of College Station in the following cases:  For other 
governmental agencies through an interlocal agreement, For the purposes of economic 
development, or For health and safety reasons” (such resolution referred to hereinafter as 
the “City’s Utility Extension Policy”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Indivisa Corporation, developer of Great Oaks Estates, has requested an 
exception to the City’s Utility Extension Policy for Great Oaks Estates Phases 1A-8, 
located on Rock Prairie Road West, in the City’s ETJ; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station has a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity 
for water and a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity for wastewater pending in 
certain parts of the City's Extraterritorial Jurisdiction, including the area in which Great 
Oaks Estates is located, in order to facilitate orderly development in that area; and 
 
WHEREAS, under State law a certificated entity has the duty to serve in the area of 
convenience and necessity; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of College Station previously approved 
exceptions to the City’s Utility Extension Policy to provide sewer utility service to 
adjacent developments of Las Palomas and Oakland Ridge, based on improving the 
health and safety of the residents in the City’s ETJ;  now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS: 
 



RESOLUTION NO. ______________________     Page 2 
 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby approves an exception to the City’s Utility 

Extension Policy to make sewer utility services available to Great Oaks 
Estates Phases 1A-8, on Rock Prairie Road West in College Station, 
Texas, based on improving the health and safety of the residents in the 
City’s ETJ. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby requires that the developer of Great Oaks 

Estates extend sewer utility service to Phases 1A-8 as provided in the 
City’s Utility Extension Policy.  

 
PART 3: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its 

passage. 
 
ADOPTED this ____________ day of ________________________________, 2006. 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________  _________________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary  Ron Silvia, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

____________________________ 
City Attorney 



 

 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition Upgrade  
RFP 06-129 

 
 

To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Massey, Director of Electric Utilities                        
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a 
software license agreement and award of RFP 06-129 to Survalent Technology Corporation 
for an upgrade to the Electric Utilities Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition System 
(SCADA) in an amount not to exceed $99,800. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends award of RFP 06-129 to the most responsive 
proposal from Survalent Technology Corporation.  
 
 
Summary: On August 8, 2006 two proposals were received for RFP 06-129 for an upgrade 
to the electric SCADA system. A proposal was received from Survalent Technology 
Corporation and QEI Inc. The proposals were ranked by staff using the following criteria: 
  

Vender Qualification and Experience 
 Rates and Expenses 
 Methodology and Approach 
 References 
 Remote Terminal Unit Protocol Interface Ability 
 
Survalent Technology Corporation’s proposal was ranked by staff to be the most conforming 
to the RFP. 
  
The present system was last upgraded in 1999. The system is in need of upgrade due to 
age and support. The SCADA system is used by Utilities Dispatch operation to operate and 
control our electric system as well as meeting the requirements of linking our SCADA 
system to the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT). 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds in the amount of $45,000 are budgeted for this 
project as part of the FY07 Electric Capital Improvements Budget. An additional $45,000 
was budgeted and estimated for this project in FY06, but the funds were not spent because 
of unanticipated delays. The additional $9,800 needed for this project is also available from 
funds estimated but not spent in FY06. The funds for this project are budgeted in the 
Electric Utility Capital Improvement Projects Fund. 
 
 
Attachments: 1. License Agreement 
 
   
 



SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT made the of ,20- 

BETWEEN: 

Survalent Technology Corporation., a corporation incorporated under the laws of the Province of 
Ontario 

(hereinafter the "Licensor") 

OF THE FIRST PART 

City of College Station, Texas 

(hereinafter the "Licensee") 

OF THE SECOND PART 

WITNESSETH THAT: 

WHEREAS Survalent Technology Corporation is the owner of the supervisory control and data 
acquisition computer software known as Survalent and Survalent-LT Master Station Software; 

AND WHEREAS the Licensor has the right and the ability to grant licenses to use such software; 

AND WHEREAS the Licensee wishes to acquire a license to use the Licensed Software. 

NOW THEREFORE IN CONSIDERATION of the premises and mutual covenants herein 
contained, the Fee paid by the Licensee to the Licensor and other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and subject to the terms and conditions herein 
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

Article I 
INTERPRETATION 

1.0 1 Definitions: The following definitions shall apply to the following terms used in this Agreement, 
unless there is something in the subject matter or context inconsistent therewith; 

"Designated Computer" shall mean the computer specified in Section 2.02 and Schedule "A" 
hereto, or any replacement therefor approved by the Licensor pursuant to Section 2.03; 

"Designated Site" shall mean the location identified as such in Section 2.02 and Schedule "A" 
hereto, or any replacement therefore, approved by the Licensor pursuant to Section 2.03; 

"Fee" means the license fee agreed upon to be paid by the Licensee to the Licensor in the amount 
set out on Schedule "A"; 

c:\docunients and settingskieve mueller\my documents\softwarelicenseagree093b.doc 
November 2 1,2006 



"License" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 2.01 

"License Fee" shall mean the fee paid by the Licensee for the right to use the Licensed Software 
that is granted under this Agreement; 

"Licensed Software" shall mean the Survalent and Survalent-LT Master Station Software in an 
object code or source code form together with any procedures or rules related thereto and the Related 
Documentation and shall include any updates, improvements, enhancements, modifications or amendments 
to such software, procedures, rules and Related Documentation supplied during the term of this Agreement; 
and 

"Related Documentation" shall mean all documentation, manuals and guides supplied by the 
Licensor to the Licensee related to the installation, use, support or maintenance of the Licensed Software. 

1.02 Software. Any reference to software in this Agreement shall be deemed to include, unless there is 
something in the context inconsistent therewith, any and all representations of the software or any 
part thereof, whether in source code, object code, machine code or other tangible or intangible 
form and shall include any physical media containing any representation of the software. 

1.03 Headings. The division of this Agreement into Articles, sections and subsections and the 
insertion of headings are for the convenience of reference only and shall not affect the 
construction or interpretation of this Agreement. 

1.04 Agreement. The terms "this Agreement", "hereof', "hereunder", and similar expressions refer to 
this Agreement and not to any particular Article, section, subsection or other portion hereof and 
include any agreement supplement hereto. Unless something in the subject matter or context is 
inconsistent therewith, references herein to Articles, sections and subsections are to Articles, 
sections and subsections of this Agreement. 

1.05 Gender. In this Agreement words importing the singular number only shall include the plural and 
vice versa, words importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine and neuter genders 
and vice versa and words importing persons shall include individuals, partnerships, association, 
tiusts, ui~incorporated orgailizations and corporations and vice versa. 

1.06 Governine Law. This Agreement shall be governed by a construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas. 

1.07 Severabilitv. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable in 
any jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability shall attach only to such provision in such 
jurisdiction and shall not in any manner affect such provision or render it invalid or unenforceable 
in any other jurisdiction or affect any other provision of this Agreement in any other jurisdiction. 

1.08 Schedules. The following are the schedules annexed hereto and incorporated by reference and 
deemed to be a part hereof: 

Schedule "A" - Designated Computer 
- Designated Site 

Schedule "B" - Licensor's proposaVquotation to the Licensee 

1.09 Langua~e .  The parties acknowledge that they have required this Agreement and all other 
documents pertaining to this transaction to be drawn up in the English language. 

c:\docurnents and settingskiteve mueller\rny docurnentskoftwarelicenseagree093b.doc 
November 2 1,2006 



Article I1 
LICENSE 

2.01 License. The Licensor grants to the Licensee the personal, non-exclusive, non-transferable license 
(the "License") to use the Licensed Software in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The 
Licensor shall retain all title, copyright, trademark, trade secret and other proprietary rights in the 
Licensed Software and all modifications, enhancements and other works derivative of the 
Licensed Software. The License is not a sale of any or all of the rights of the Licensor. The 
Licensee does not acquire any ownership rights in the Licensed Software or other rights, express 
or implied, except as specified in this Agreement. The Licensee shall pay the Fee to the Licensor 
prior to delivery of the Licensed Software. 

2.02 Designated Computer. The License granted hereunder authorizes the Licensee to use the 
Licensed Software, for its own purposes and not for the benefit of any other person, on the 
Designated Computer, or on the Designated Computer and such one other central processing unit 
as is configured with the Designated Computer in an activehot standby architecture, at the 
Designated Site as specified in Schedule "A". Subject to this Section 2.02, a separate license is 
required for each computer system upon which the Licensee wishes to use the Licensed Software. 

2.03 Change of Designated Computer or Designated Site. In the event that the Licensee wishes to 
change or changes the designation of the Designated Computer or Designated Site, the Licensee 
shall provide notice to the Licensor of such change. The notice shall provide the same information 
with respect to the computer system or location on or at which the Licensee proposes to use the 
Licensed Software as is set out in Schedule "A". After the Licensor receives the change, it will be 
effective on such date as is agreed by the parties. On such date: 

(i) the computer system designated in the Notice shall be deemed to be the "Designated 
Computer", the Licensee shall be entitled to use the Licensed Software on the computer 
system designated by it in the Notice in accordance with the terms of this Agreement at 
the Designated Site and the Licensee shall cease to use the Licensed Software on the 
computer system previously designated by it; or 

(ii) the location designated in the Notice shall be deemed to be the Designated Site, the 
Licensee shall be entitled to use the Licensed Software at the location designated by it in 
the Notice in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the Licensee shall cease to 
use the Licensed Software at the location previously designated by it; 

(iii) if the change of the designated computer includes a change of the operating system, 
additional licensee fees will be required. 

2.04 Copies. The Licensee shall not make any copies or duplicates of the Licensed Software or of any 
part thereof other than for security back-up purposes (which copies or duplicates shall be governed 
by this Agreement) and provided that the Licensee shall reproduce and incorporate the trade 
secret, copyright and other proprietary notices and legends of the Licensor in any such copy or 
partial copy. The Licensee shall maintain a record of the number and location of any such copies 
or duplicates of the Licensed Software and shall make such record available to the Licensor upon 
request. 

2.05 Use of Licensed Software. The Licensee shall not use the Licensed Software other than in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the 
Licensee shall not use the Licensed Software on any computer system not unauthorized hereunder 
or pursuant hereto, or in violation of any law, ordinance, order, regulation or government or 
contractual requirement applicable to it or its properties. The Licensee shall not use any part of 
the Licensed Software to develop or derive any other data product or data service for distribution 
or commercial sale. 

c:\docurnents and settings\steve mueller\my documentskoftwarelicenseagree093b.doc 
November 21,2006 



2.06 Modifications. Licensed Software modified in any way by the Licensee and any parts thereof 
included in a Licensee's programs shall become and remain the property of the Licensor. The 
Licensee shall assign any patent, copyright, trade secret or other proprietary rights arising in any 
development or modification to the Licensed Software to Licensor forthwith upon receipt of and in 
accordance with a direction in writing from the Licensor. 

2.07 No Reverse Engineerina The Licensee shall not cause or permit the reverse engineering, 
disassembly or decompilation of the Licensed Software except in jurisdictions where a right to 
reverse engineer is provided by law in circumstances where information is otherwise unavailable 
about software in order to achieve interoperability, functional compatibility or similar objectives. 
In such jurisdictions, the Licensee shall submit a detailed written proposal to Licensor concerning 
the information requirements of the Licensee and shall provide Licensor with a period of 30 days 
to otherwise provide such information before engaging in such reverse engineering. The Licensor 
may, in its sole discretion, provide such information to the Licensee during such 30-day period on 
such terms and conditions as Licensor determines are appropriate. 

2.08 Verification. The Licensee shall, on the request of the Licensor made not more than once 
annually, furnish to the Licensor a signed certificate of a senior officer of Licensee confirming that 
the Licensed Software is being used in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and 
confirming the identity of the Designated Computer and the Designated Site. The Licensor may, 
at it's expense, have access to all of the premises of the Licensee from which its business and 
operations are conducted during normal business hours to audit such premises to confirm that the 
Licensee is in compliance of its obligations under this Agreement, provided that the Licensor shall 
not unreasonably interfere with the business activities of the Licensee. 

2.09 Source Code. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall require the Licensor to supply the 
Licensee with the source code of the Licensed Software. The Licensee shall not be entitled to 
obtain the source code of the Licensed Software except pursuant to a written agreement entered 
into between the Licensor and the Licensee, provided that the Licensor shall be under no 
obligation to enter into such an agreement with the Licensee. 

Article 111 
CONFIDENTIALITY AND UNAUTHORIZED USE 

3.01 Obligations of Licensee. The Licensed Software is the confidential and proprietary information 
of the Licensor. The Licensee shall take all steps necessary or desirable to ensure that the 
Licensed Software and all parts and copies thereof are held in confidence by the Licensee and that 
they are not disclosed or made available to any third party except: (i) to employees of the Licensee 
to whom such disclosure is necessary in order to permit the Licensee access for the purposes of 
programming as permitted hereunder; or (ii) as required by law, provided that the Licensee shall, 
prior to making any disclosure pursuant to this clause (ii), give the Licensor written notice of 
the disclosure requirements and shall assist the Licensor in the taking of such steps as the 
Licensor deem necessary or desirable to resist the disclosure. The Licensee agrees to take all steps 
necessary or desirable to protect the Licensed Software from unauthorized use, reservation, 
distribution or publication. The Licensee shall instruct all employees and any other persons 
having access to the Licensed Software of its obligations hereunder and shall not permit such 
employees or other persons to disclose any information related to the Licensed Software to, or 
permit access for the benefit of, any other party except as permitted hereunder. 

3.02 Infrin~ements.  The Licensee shall forthwith give notice in writing to the Licensor of any 
infringement or threatened infringement of any patent, copyright, trade secret or other proprietary 
right or any unauthorized copying of the Licensed Software which shall at any time during the 
term of this Agreement come to the knowledge of the Licensee. The Licensor may, but shall not 

c:\documents and settingshteve mueller\my documentsLoftwarelicenseagree093b.doc 
November 21,2006 



be obliged to, enter suit to prevent infringement or further infringement and to prosecute the suit. 
The Licensee agrees to provide, at Licensor's cost, such reasonable assistance as may be required 
by the Licensor for the purpose of such suit and may, at its own expense, be represented by 
counsel of its own choosing. Subject to the terms of an order of a court of competent jurisdiction, 
the costs of the suit (other than the costs of Licensee's own counsel) shall be borne by the 
Licensor. Any money recovered by way of damages or otherwise with respect to such action shall 
be for the Licensor and the Licensee. 

3.03 Exception. The Licensee shall not be obliged to keep confidential and shall not incur any liability 
for disclosure to a third party (the "Recipient") of information which: 

(a) has been public or is otherwise public at the time of its disclosure to the 
Recipient; 

(b) comes into the public domain without any breach of this Agreement; or 

(c) becomes known or available to the Recipient other than as a result of the 
activities of the Licensee but without any breach of this Agreement by the 
Licensee. 

Article IV 
MAINTENANCE & Support 

4.01 Maintenance & S u ~ p o r t  Obligations. 

Maintenance shall be provided by the Licensor to the Licensee, for a period of one (1) year unless specified 
differently in the Licensor's proposayquotation to the Licensee. This one (1) year service period shall start 
from the date that the Licensed Software is shipped to the Licensee unless specified differently in the 
Licensor's proposal/quotation to the Licensee. 

Maintenance support during this period of time includes: 

Privileged access to the "Licensee only" area of the Licensor's website. 

Incremental upgrades of Licensed Software during the Term of this Agreement. The Licensee may 
freely download and install the latest version from the Licensor's website. 

Phone support for problems, questions or technical issues related to the Master Station Software 

Troubleshooting and bug fixes for Licensed Software. 

Business hour Hot-line support, telephone support from 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM EST. Support phone 
number is 905-826-5000 or 905-826-7327 extension 152 

This maintenance obligation can be voided by the Licensor if the Licensee does any of the following 
without prior written approval of the Licensor: 

Licensee understands that Licensor's performance of its maintenance obligation is dependent in 
part on Licensee's actions. If the Licensee is deemed to be not responsive in assisting with the 
resolution of a given problem, the Licensor shall void its maintenance obligation. 

Any modification by the Licensee to the source code of the Licensed Software 

c:\doc~~metlts and settingskteve mueller\niy documents\softwarelicenseagree093b.doc 
November 2 I ,  2006 



Adding software to the Designated Computer as specified in Schedule " A  

Modifying the Scada network infrastructure 

Modifying the Scada communications infrastructure 

If the Licensor voids the maintenance obligation, all fees paid to the Licensor shall be deemed to have been 
earned and may be retained by the Licensor as a genuine pre-estimate of the minimum damages that the 
Licensor shall have suffered as a result of the changes made by the Licensee, without prejudice to the 
Licensor's right to recover from the Licensee all costs incurred by the Licensor in supporting such altered 
Licensed Software. 

It is possible that the Licensor cannot provide a bug fix to the Licensed Software. If this occurs, the 
Licensor will work with the Licensee to provide the best possible work around to the problem. 

Article V 
LIABILITY O F  LICENSOR 

5.01 Patent and Copyright Indemnity 

(1) Subject to the limitation contained in Section 5.03, the Licensor will defend the Licensee 
and hold it harmless against a claim that the Licensed Software used within the scope of the 
License infringes a Canadian or United States patent, copyright or trade secret and the Licensor 
will pay resulting costs, damages and legal fees finally awarded against the Licensee, provided 
that: 

(a) The Licensee promptly notifies the Licensor in writing of the claim; 
(b) The Licensee shall have made no admissions without the Licensor's prior 

written consent; 
(c) The Licensor has sole control of the defence and all related settlement 

negotiations upon approval By College Station City Council; and 
(d) The Licensee has provided the Licensor will all information and assistance 

reasonably requested by the Licensor to defend or settle such action (for which 
the Licensee shall be reimbursed by the Licensor for its reasonable out-of- 
pocket expenses). 

If such a claim has occurred, or in the opinion of the Licensor is likely to occur, the Licensee 
agrees to pennit the Licensor, at its option and expense, either to procure for the Licensee the right 
to continue using the Licensed Software or to replace or modify the same so that it becomes non- 
infringing. 

(2) The Licensor shall have no liability or responsibility under this Section 5.01 for any 
claim of infringement based on (i) use of suspended or altered versions of the Licensed Software if 
the infringement could have been avoided by the use of a current unaltered release of the Licensed 
Software that the Licensor provides to the Licensee; or (ii) the combination, operation or use of 
the Licensed Software with software, hardware or other materials not -shed by the Licensor if 
such infringement would have been avoided by the use of the Licensed Software without such 
other software, hardware or materials. 

(3) In the event the Licensed Software is held or otherwise determined by the Licensor to 
infi-inge any right of a third party, the Licensor shall have the option, at its expense, to (i) modify 
the Licensed Software to be non-infringing and provide the Licensee with a copy of such Licensed 
Software on substantially the same terms and conditions as those contained in this Agreement; (ii) 
obtain for the Licensee from the third party a license to continue to use the Licensed Software 
notwithstanding such infringement; or (iii) terminate the License under this Agreement and 

c:\docurnents and settingskteve rnueller\rny docurnentskoftwarelicenseagree093b.doc 
November 2 1.2006 



refund the fees paid by the Licensee for such License. This Section 5.01 states the Licensor's 
entire liability and the Licensee's exclusive remedy for any such infringement. 

5.02 Limitation of Liability. The liability of the Licensor under this Agreement or in connection 
herewith from any and all causes shall be limited to general damages in an amount not to exceed 
the Fee. Such limitation shall be the extent of the Licensor's liability regardless of the form in 
which any legal or equitable action may be brought against the Licensor. 

5.03 No Special Damages. IN NO EVENT WILL THE LICENSOR BE LIABLE TO THE 
LICENSEE OR ANY THIRD PARTY OR RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY GENERAL, SPECIAL, 
INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR SIMILAR DAMAGES OR FOR LOSS OF 
PROFITS, REVENUES, OR USE ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE SUPPLY 
OF THE LICENSED SOFTWARE, WHETHER IN AN ACTION IN CONTRACT OR TORT 
EVEN IF THE LICENSOR HAS BEEN ADVISED IN ADVANCE OF THE POSSIBILITY OF 
SUCH DAMAGE. 

Article VI 
TERM 

6.01 Term. This Agreement and the License provided hereunder shall become effective on the date on 
which this Agreement is executed by both the Licensor and the Licensee and shall remain in effect 
until terminated in accordance with the provisions hereof. 

Article VII 
TERMINATION 

7.01 Automatic Termination. This Agreement shall terminate automatically in the event that (i) any 
secured creditor appoints a receiver, manager, agent, monitor, liquidator or other similar person to 
assume possession, control or direction over the property or assets of the Licensee or Licensor; or 
any application is filled with any court to have any such person appointed; or (ii) the Licensee or 
Licensor acknowledges its insolvency or an application is made by or on behalf of the Licensee 01. 

Licensor on the behalf of any of its creditors pursuant to which the Licensee or Licensor would 
become subject to any bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar laws of any jurisdiction. Licensee 
or Licensor shall notify in writing in event of possible bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar 
laws of any jurisdiction. 

7.02 Termination bv Licensor. The Licensor may immediately terminate this Agreement with prior 
written notice if the Licensee is in breach of any of its obligations hereunder. 

7.03 Obligations on Termination. On termination of this Agreement for any cause the Licensee shall, 
in accordance with the instruction of the Licensor, return the Licensed Software and all copies 
thereof in its possession or control to the Licensor or destroy the Licensed Software and all such 
copies to the extent allowed by Texas law. The Licensee shall warrant in writing that the Licensed 
Software and all copies have been returned or destroyed in accordance with the instructions of the 
Licensor and the extent allowed by Texas law.. The Licensee shall also destroy or deliver up to 
the Licensor, at the request of the Licensor, all labels, signs, promotional, advertising and other 
printed materials, and all non-printed materials and objects, bearing the reference to the Licensed 
Software under the power or control or in the possession or custody of the Licensee. 

7.04 No License After Termination. No license under any confidential information, trademark, patent 
or copyright of the Licensor shall survive or exist, whether express or implied, after termination of 
this Agreement to the extent allowed by Texas law. Termination of this Agreement for any reason 
shall terminate the License. The Licensee shall have no right hereunder following termination 

c:\docunients and settingskteve niueller\my documentskoftwarelicenseagreeO93b.doc 
November 2 1,2006 



and, in particular but without limitation, will not make use of the Licensed Software after 
termination of this Agreement. 

7.05 Survival. All obligations of confidentiality hereunder shall survive any termination of this 
Agreement to the extent allowed by Texas law. 

Article VIII 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

8.01 Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given hereunder to a party shall be in writing and 
shall be effectively given if personally delivered or sent by fax or (except during a mail disruption) 
sent by prepaid registered mail addressed: 

(a) if the Licensor, to it at 

c:\docurnents and settingskteve rnueller\rny docurnentskoftwarelicenseagree093b.doc 
November 2 1,2006 



Survalent Technology Corporation 
2600 Argentia Rd. 
Mississauga, Ontario, CANADA 
L4K 2G3 
Attention: President 
FAX: 905-826-7144 

(b) if to the Licensee, 
College Station Utilities 
1601 Graham Rd. 
P.O.Box 9960 
College Station, Texas 77842 
Attention : Director. 
Fax9797643452 

or to such other address of a party as it shall specify to the other party by written notice given in 
the manner aforesaid. Any notice personally delivered shall be effective on delivery. Any notice 
sent by fax should be effective on the business day following transmission provided confirmation 
of transmission is obtained by the sender. Any such notice mailed as aforesaid shall be deemed to 
have been given and received three business days (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and Bank 
holidays) following the day on which it is mailed; provided, however that in the event of an 
interruption of normal mail service receipt shall be deemed to occur on the third business day 
(excluding Saturdays, Sundays and Bank holidays) following the day on which normal mail 
service is restored. 

8.02 Waiver. No consent or waiver, express or implied, by a party to or of any breach or default by the 
other party in the performance of such other party of its obligations hereunder shall be deemed or 
construed to be a consent or waiver to or of any such other breach or default in the performance by 
such other party hereunder. Failure on the part of a party to complain of any act or failure to act of 
the other party or to declare the other party in default, irrespective of how long such failure 
continues, shall not constitute a waiver by such mentioned party of its rights hereunder. 

8.03 Elitire Agreement. This Agreement and the Licensor's proposal/quotation to the Licensee 
constitute the entire agreement between the parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof 
and supersede all prior and contemporaneous agreements, understandings, negotiations, and 
discussions, whether oral or written, of the parties and there are no other agreements between the 
parties in connection with the subject matter hereof except as specifically set forth herein or in the 
schedules attached hereto. 

8.04 NO M e r ~ e r .  Any provision of this Agreement, (i) under which an obligation of any party hereto 
has accrued but has not been discharged; or (ii) which contemplates or imports any hture 
obligation or right extending beyond termination of this Agreement, shall not be affected by 
termination of this Agreement, nor shall the party liable to perform be discharged as a result of any 
such termination, nor shall termination prejudice any right of one party against the other in respect 
of anything done or omitted hereunder prior to such termination or in respect of any right to 
damages or other remedies. 

8.05 Amendments. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except with the written consent 
ofthe parties hereto. 

8.06 Assignment. The License and related right granted hereunder are personal to the Licensee and the 
Licensee shall not transfer, assign, lend, sell, lease or sublicense this Agreement or any of its 
rights hereunder or the Licensed Software, including any transfer or assignment resulting from an 
amalgamation, merger or other reorganization of the business of the Licensee, without the express 
written consent of the Licensor which permission shall not unreasonably be withheld and for such 

c:\documents and settings\steve mueller\rny documentsLoftwarelicenseagree093b.doc 
November 2 1,2006 



purpose any direct or indirect transfer of shares of Licensee or other similar transaction resulting 
in a change of control of the Licensee shall constitute a transfer of this Agreement requiring the 
consent of.the Licensor. 

c:\documents and settingskteve mueller\my documentskoftwarelicenseagree093b.doc 
Novembel- 2 1,2006 



8.07 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 
to be an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this agreement effective as of the day and the 
year first written above. 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 

By: 
Ron Silvia, Mayor 
Date: 
ATTEST: 

Connie Hooks, City Secretary 

Date: 

APPROVED: 

- -  

City Manager 
Date: 

City Attorney 
Date: 

Chef Financial Officer 
Date: 

Name: &ephen H. ~ u k l l e r  
Title: President 

Licensee 

Per: 
Authorized Signing Officer 

c:\documents and settingskteve mueller\my documentskoftwarelicenseagree093b.doc 
November 2 1.2006 



SCHEDULE "A" 
TO 

SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

See attached Schedule B 

1. Designated Computer 

(a) Name of Manufacturer: 
(b) System Model Type: 
(c) System Function: 
(d) CPU Serial Number: 
(e) Peripheral Serial Number: 

Description 

2. Designated Site 

Serial Number 

3. &e 

4. Signatures 

Survalent Technology Corporation 

Signature Date 

Print Name Position 

Stephen H. Mueller 
President 

Print Name Position 

c:\docurne~its and settingskteve rnueller\rny docurnentskoftwarelicenseagree093b.doc 
November 2 1,2006 



SCHEDULE "A" 
TO 

SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

CPU A 

CPU B 

PRINTERS 

SOFTWARE 

OPERATOR WORKSTATION 1 

OPERATOR WORKSTATION 2 

OPERATOR WORKSTATION 3 

OPERATOR WORKSTATION 4 

c:\documents and settingskteve mueller\my documentskoftwarelicenseagree093b.doc 
November 2 1,2006 



SCHEDULE "B" 



Survalen t - 
Technology 

City of College Station, Texas 
1 1 01 Texas Ave. 
College Station, TX 77842 

Attention: Cheryl Turney - Purchasing Manager 

Subject: Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) System Upgrade - 
STC Bid Proposal No. 

Dear Ms. Turney, 

Sut-valent Technology Corporation (STC) is pleased to submit the present bid 
proposal for the delivery, installation and commissioning of a complete SCADA 
system to the City of College Station, Texas (City) in response to the Invitation 
for Bids dated July 1 4 ' ~ ~  2006. 

STC proposes that our reseller, Hometown Connections Inc (HCI), be involved in 
the commercial transactions to enable the City to take advantage of the benefits 
of doing business with APPA. Hometown Connections Inc, a member of APPA, 
is an exclusive reseller of STC for the mur~icipalities in the United States. 

STC will perform the entire work including staging of the system in the factory, 
factory acceptance testing, shipment to the site, installation, commissioning, site 
acceptance testing, maintenance, warranty and training. STC will have no 
subcontractors for the work defined in this bid proposal. 

STC has a 42-year background in the manufacture and installation of SCADA 
systems. We have been supplying SCADA systems and RTUs to the electrical 
industry since 1964. 

Our persor~nel include very experienced SCADA software development 
engineers totaling over 175 man-years of SCADA experience. This stability and 
long-term experience should provide to the City the assurance that they will enter 
in a long-term partnership with a supplier who will always be available for 
support. 

With an installed base of over 170 operational systems worldwide we are placed 
in the first tier of SCADA suppliers in IVorth America. We have a 100% customer 



Surva/ent 
Technology 

retention record. There is no STC customer that has ever converted to a SCADA 
platform of another vendor. 

We are pleased to subrr~it to you our bid proposal for a complete system. We 
assure you that our proposal fully complies with your technical specification and 
your overall requirements. 

We would appreciate discussing our proposal in more detail with you. If you have 
any questions, please contact us at your earliest convenience. 

Sincerely, 

Weijun Run 
Sales Engineer 
Survalent Technology Corporation 



The undersigned affirms that they are duly authorized to execute this contract, that this RFP has 
not been prepared in collusion with any other firm, and that the contents of this FWP have not 
been communicated to any other firm prior to the official opening of this FWP. Additionally, the 
undersigned affirms that the firm is willing to sign the enclosed Standard Form of Agreement (if 
applicable), 

Signed By: T-i-rc-c Title: 
Vice President 

Rup Dhami Survalent Technology Corporation Typed Name: Company Name: 

905-826 5000 905-826 71 44 Phone No.: Fax No.: 

rdhami@survalent.com 
Email: 

2600 Argentia Road Mississauga ON L5N 5V4 Canada 
Bid Address: 

P.O. Box or Street City State Zip 

2600 Argentia Road Mississauga ON L5N 5V4 Canada 
Order Address: 

P.O. Box or Street City State Zip 

2600 Argentia Road Mississauga ON L5N 5V4 Canada 
Remit Address: 

P.O. Box or Street City State Zip 

Survalent's Federal Employer Identification Tax No in USA is 98 - 0471 177 
Federal Tax ID No.: 

August 4,2006 
Date: 

Page 11 of 52 



Survalent 
Technology 

SECTION 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 



Survalent 
Technology 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Survalent Technology Corporation (STC) is pleased to submit the present bid 
proposal for the delivery, installation and commissioning of a complete SCADA 
system to the City of College Station, Texas (City) in response to the Invitation 
for Bids dated July 14th, 2006. 

STC will perform the entire work including staging of the system in the factory, 
factory acceptance testing, shipment to the site, installation, commissioning, site 
acceptance testing, maintenance, warranty and training. STC will have no 
subcontractors for the work defined in this bid proposal. 

ABOUT STC 

STC has a 42-year background in the manufacture and installation of 
SCADAIAGC systems. We have been supplying SCADA systems and RTUs to 
the electrical industry since 1964. 

With an installed base of over 170 operational systems worldwide we are placed 
in the first tier of SCADA suppliers in North America. We have a 100% customer 
retention record. There is no STC customer that has ever converted to a SCADA 
platform of another vendor. On the contrary, our installed base includes a large 
number of systems, basically the vast majority of our projects, that have been 
converted from other vendors' platforms. Two major factors have contributed to 
the decision made by our present customers to join the family of STC users. 

The first reason is our system state-of-art architecture and our preparedness to 
embrace the newest IT Technologies and to incorporate them into our system 
architecture. 

The second reason is our outstanding technical support which is unparalleled in 
the industry. Our 2417 hotline technical support, the professionalism and 
dedication of our support team, have won praise throughout the industry. 

STC is a major proponent and ardent supported of "open system" architecture - 
our systems are available on multiple operating system platforms, multiple 
hardware platforms and, more importantly, our system allows an easy and 
transparent integration with third party and in-house developed applications. 
STC has implemented open standards for real-time data access and 
importlexport including: ODBC, DDE, SQL, ICCP (TASE.2), OPC and SNMP. 

A powerful set of more than 40 modular software applications allows users to 
exert total and efficient control on their electrical network including: AGC, 
Switching Order Management, System Connectivity Status, Load Forecast, Web 



Survalent 
Technology 

Server, etc. Our Worldview GUI provides unparalleled ease-of-use, yet is feature 
rich and easy to maintain. 'The SCADA Explorer and Graphic Editors provide 
intuitive and user-friendly tools for on-line editing of database definitions and 
displays. 

Testimonials from our installed base customers have invariably praised the ease 
of operation, low cost of ownership and, particularly, the high quality of our 
customer support service. Some of the most representative of our projects which 
are installed at electrical utilities include: 

Within the State of Texas: 

- Cap Rock Electric, TX 
- Golden Spread Electric, TX (3 systems) 
- Deaf Smith Electric Coop, TX 
- Deep East Texas Electric Coop, TX 
- Farmers Electric Coop, TX 
- North Plains Electric Coop, TX 
- San Bernard Electric Coop, TX 
- Rusk County Electric Coop, TX 
- Bowie-Cass County Electric Coop, TX 
- Trinity Valley Electric Coop, TX 

Within neighboring states: 

Sho-Me Power Electric, MO 
White River Electric, MO 
Laclede Electric Coop, MO 
M&A Electric Power, MO 
Citizens Electric, MO 
Hastings Municipal Utilities, IVE 
Perennial Public Power, NE 
Hopkinsville Electric, KY 
Miami Dept. of Public Utilities, OK 
Platte River Power Authority, CO 
Tri-County Electric, OK 
City of Miami, OK 
Etc. 

With a total of 100 systems in operation in the United States, 65 systems in 
Canada and a dozen of systems overseas, STC has the experience, competence 
and motivation to provide the City with the most cost-effective system and the 
most dedicated and efficient after-deployment technical support in the industry. 



Survalent 
Technology 

IMPLEMENTATION 

STC will be the prime contractor for the City project with full responsibilities for 
the overall execution and support of the project. 

The hardware platform will be staged at the STC facilities. Our headquarters are 
located in Mississauga, a 750,000-inhabitants city near the Toronto International 
Airport, Canada. Our technical support is rendered via remote diagnose and 
downloading. 

Factory acceptance testing and training will take place at the factory in Canada, 
with an option for additional training on site. 

SYSTEM ARCHITECTURE 

STC has proposed the Windows-based SCADA system as the solution for 
meeting the City needs as specified in the RFP. 

STC provides a system with a distributed architecture allowing the major 
subsystems to be distributed to dual-redundant nodes on the system network 
such as Host Servers, Communication Processors, Users Consoles, etc. The 
nodes are interconnected through dual-redundant Local Area Networks and are 
exchanging data using the TCPIIP protocol. 

The proposed system is based on Windows 2003 Server Edition which is the 
latest operating system version for small enterprise applications. Unlike other 
vendors, we do not use Windows XP as a platform for the SCADA hosts due to 
security, reliability and performance reasons. 

The Master Station architecture is distributed across a dual-redundant 100BaseT 
Local Area Network (LAN) and includes dedicated nodes for: 

- SCADA Servers 
- Workstation Consoles 
- Communication Servers 

The SCADA Servers are based on the DELL PowerEdge servers with substantial 
expansion capabilities for further CPUs, RAM memory and disk units. The 
operating systerr~ platform will be Windows 2003 Server Edition and the RDBMS 
platform will be MS SQL Server. 

Our proposed system will provide not only the integration of the existing legacy 
protocols but will also provide the instant communication with IP-based RTUs 
and lEDs using DNP 3.0, and Modbus over TCPIIP. The proposed 



Survulent 
Technology 

Communication Servers will ensure the connection of both serial RS232 and 
TCPIIP communication channels with no hardware modification, now or in the 
future. 

The proposed operator consoles will be high-performance graphical DELL 
Precision workstations. Each workstation is based on a high speed CPU and will 
be equipped with dual Dell Flat Panel LCDs. The operating system platform on 
the workstations will be Windows 2003 XP Professional. 

The communication system with the existing RTUs consists of TCPIIP based 
dual Terminal Servers each with 16 ports. Each port on the Terminal Servers 
may be assigned to either a serial RS232 communication channel or an IP-based 
channel over the network. Three serial ports are provided with PCM (Port 
Combination Module) for bridging the paths from the two redundant Terminal 
Servers. One PCM will be used for the communication channel to the RTUs, the 
other two PCMs will be used for connecting the Alarm Printer and the GPS Clock. 

The initial system architecture will retain the existing CIU (Communication 
Interface Unit) which converts the byte-oriented QUICS4 protocol to the bit 
oriented format which is then accepted by the existing 6TM2 modems at 1000 
Bd. 'This will ensure compatibility with the same modems used at the existing 
RTUs. 

In a second phase when the corr~munication infrastructure will be changed to the 
Focus Channel Bank of fiber links, the communication will not require the CIU 
module, since the DNP3.0 over IP protocol will be used. 

The proposed system is unique in that it allows the direct connection of IP-based 
IEDs, e.g. SEL relays, PML meters, etc, to the proposed Master Station over the 
Wide Area Network without the need to connect the lEDs to RTUs. The 
information from lEDs can be visualized on the IED Control Panels on the Master 
Station Operator Consoles in the same way as the operators would stand in front 
of the IED panels in the substations. 

APPLICATION SOFTWARE 

STC has proposed a SCADA platform which is based on a truly open and 
distributed architecture. While our competitors are trying to simplify and to reduce 
the definition of "open systenis" to the possible use of a couple of operating 
systems, e.g UNIX, Windows, which are in fact proprietary software platforms, 
our philosophy of openness is to allow the users of our system to exchange any 
data from the real-time database and the HIS database with any third party 
commercial application. 



Survulent 
Technology 

Our philosophy is implemented by supporting the industry standards including 
ODBC, DDE, ICCP (TASE.2) and SNMP which allow the user to integrate the 
various enterprise applications within their electrical transmission and distribution 
networks. These standards as well as the new emerging technologies such as 
Multispeak 3.0, OPC (Ole for Process Control), XIVIL, etc, ensure a seamless 
data exchange between various "islands of automation" and a level of integration 
which is unthinkable on older, legacy, monolithic systems of other vendors. 
STC is a Multispeak 3.0 Integrator having generated standard interfaces with 
other utility applications such as Milsoft OMS and Windmill Engineering Analysis, 
etc. 

A powerful set of software applications allows users to exert total and efficient 
control on their electrical network. STC has a large library of APl's (Application 
Programming Interfaces) which can be made available to the City for the addition 
of future third party or in-house applications. The results of such third party or in- 
house custom applications can be transferred back into our system. 

TECHNICAL SUPPORT 

STC proposes a timeline for project completion of 12 - 16 weeks after receipt of 
a Purchase Order. STC will develop the necessary tools to automatically convert 
the existing SCADA databases to STC Worldview database management 
system. STC has converted a multitude of SCADA system databases of various 
suppliers, including over 40 legacy systems in the past and has accumulated 
experience with legacy SCADA data structures. The City will need to provide the 
current SCADA database in an electronic format. 

STC will provide the automatic conversion of the existing system SLDs (Single- 
Line Diagrams) to STC Worldview system. STC will also provide training to the 
City for future modification or expansion of graphic displays including the single- 
line diagrams of the substations. It should be noted that all tabular and other 
standard displays will be provided by STC. The City personnel who have been 
trained will be able to make changes to the single-line diagrams in the future. 

It is STC's policy to continuously enhance the product and to schedule a major 
software release every year. The annual software releases are sent to all existing 
Customers at no charge provided that they are covered by a maintenance 
agreement (95% of STC Customers are under a maintenance agreement). 
Customers who are under a maintenance agreement may also download new 
releases for individual software module from the STC website using a password 
to a User Only web page. 



Survcalent 
Technology 

STC will consider the City project as one of the most important projects in the 
2006107 financial year if the contract will be awarded to us. The STC 
management will provide undivided attention and will work with a dedicated 
Project Team to make sure that the project will be implemented within costs and 
budget. 





1 
L ,&-' . . j - -:. 

L .,, 
L'. ; ' # .  . 
f: '  

processor X m  3.2W 2 ME4 160 MB SATA HM3.1'6 x DM) I Cache, 1 GB RAM. 2 x j3G% 48 x CD-RW, 1 x 10' D d  LCD Flat lM RFrM HD6 RAID 1,24X CD- I Panel Monitor. 84MB nMd~s PCk 
card Dual Vd*o copabdity. RW and WDROM. Dual 
Wndomr XP Pro Opsrabng Ethernot pats, Intamai SW 
Systsrn D i ~ o s t i c  Modcm, 2 Post h d s ,  

2K3 SE %twf OS, 3 
eM b u h m  day wmmty 

Dell Preoson 380. I W  
Processor Penbum D930 
3 OGHz, 1 GB RAM 
160 MB SATA HDD. 16x 

DVD 148 x CD-RW, 2 x 
20" Dell LCD Flat Panel 
Mon~tor. 64MB nV&a 
PCle card Dual Vidae 
capabil~ty, WindowsXP - P a , O p r r ~ ~ 8 r m  

- 4 -n 

i" ,--.-a 
1 1 ........ 1 1 
1 2  15 16 

nn. .cs 
t 

Survalent Technology 
Corporation 

COIW Station~x I 8Bmm I 
Blodc Diagram 



,--- Survalent 
Technology 

SECTION 3 PRICE QUOTA'rION 



- Survalent 
Technology 

Hometown Connections 
"-. "- - - . - 

D E L I V E R I N G  V A L U E  T O  P U B L I C  P O W E R "  Technology 

1153 Bergen Parkway #M, Evergreen, CO 80439-9501 USA 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ont., L5N 5V4, 
Phone: (303) 940-7331, fax: (303) 940-7555 Canada 

www.hometownconnections.com Phone: (905) 826-5000 Fax: (905) 826-7144 
www.survalent.com 

TO: College Station DATE: August 8,2006 
ATTENTION: David Royce QUOTATION: Q05-04-7337rev6 

REFERENCE: 

LIST 

us $ 

9 99.800 

Included 

UNIT PRICE 

us $ 

ITEM 

1 

QTY 
DESCRIPTION 

SCADA SYSTEM - Hardware & Software Upgrade of 
current VMS system to Windows based Survalent SCADA 
system. 
BASE HARDWARE: 

Host Servers 

2 Dell PowerEdge 2850 rack-mounted servers, 
each equipped with: 

Intel processor Xeon 3.2GHz, 2 MB Cache 
1 GB RAM 
2 x 73GB 10K RPM HDs RAID 1 
24X CD-RW and DVD-ROM 
Dual Ethernet ports 
Internal 56K Diagnostic Modem 
2 Post Rails 
Windows 2K3 SE Server OS 
3 year next business day warranty 

Reolicant Server (Webserver) 

1 Dell PowerEdge 2850 rack-mounted server, 
equipped with: 

Intel processor Xeon 3.2GHz, 2MB Cache 
2GB RAM 
2 x 146GB 10K RPM HDs RAID 1 
24X CD-RW and DVD-ROM 
Dual Ethernet ports 
Internal 56K Diagnostic Modem 
2 Post Rails 
Windows 2K3 SE Server OS 



- Survalent 
Technology 

ITEM 

Microsoft SQL Server 2000 Standard 
Edition 
3 year next business day warranty 

Image Server 

1 Dell PowerEdge 2850 rack-mounted server, 
equipped with: 

Intel processor Xeon 3.2GHz, 2MB Cache 
2GB RAM 
3 x 146GB 10K RPM HDs RAID 5 
24X CD-RW and DVD-ROM 
Dual Ethernet ports 
Internal 56K Diagnostic Modem 
2 Post Rails 
Windows 2K3 SE Server OS 
3 year next business day warranty 

1 Dell Powervault 124 LTO -2-L with: 
Backup Exec Server software 
External VHDCI 68 pin SCSI cable 
Chassis rack mount 

1 KVM Switch 4 ports 

1 Dell 17" Ultrasharp 1707FP LCD 

Network Eauivment 

2 Dell Powerconnect 2716 Port Ethernet 
Switch with: 

IOOMB 10/100BaseT 16 Ports 
Web-based managed 

2 Lantronix ETS-16PR Port Terminal server 

3 Port Combiner Module w1Redundant Power 
Supply 

1 Cisco PIX 515E Firewall 

Workstations 

4 Dell Precision 380 Performance 
Workstations, equipped with: 

QTY 
DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE 

us $ 

LIST 

us $ 



7. Survalent 
Technology 

LIST 

us $ 

Included 

Included 

UNIT PRICE 

us $ 

ITEM 

2 

3 

QTY 
DESCRIPTION 

Intel Processor Pentium D930 3.0GHz 
1 GB RAM 
160 MB SATA HDD 
16 x DVD 148 x CD-RW 
1 x 20" Dell LCD Flat Panel Monitor 
64MB nVidia PCIe card Dual Video capability 
Windows XP Pro Operating System 

1 Additional Dell 2007 WFP Flat Panel Monitor 
for the Programmer's Console 

Printers 

1 Epson LX300 Printer for AlarmsIEvents 

Others 

1 Single Bay Cabinet, 78"H X 24"W X 36"D 

1 Truetime NMC-100 GPS Clock 

Engineering, Assembly, Internal Test included 

BASE SOFTWARE: 

Base SCADA Software for Dual Master: 
Base SCADA software includes: no limits for status points, 
control points, analog points, or communication lines. 
Base SCADA software includes WorldView graphical user 
interface and SCADA Explorer database editing software. 
Including 2 Worldview Control licenses. 
Worldview: 
WorldView is a full featured graphical user interface (GUI) 
that includes: 

continuous panning and zooming 
user-extendable library of ready-to-use symbols, 
colors and text styles 
coordinate space of up to 1 billion by 1 billion world 
units 
layer control and declutter 
import DXF and DWG maps 



- 
Survalent 
Technology 

DESCRIPTION 

"stick-on" notes 
alarm summary displays 
operator summary displays 
tabular data displays 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

3 

1 

I I I the standard menu bar within MS Excel or MS Access. 
SCADA Add-in is compatible with: MS Windows 98, 2000, I 

support of multiple dialog boxes 
graphing toolset for ad hoc, historical, and trend 
comparison graphs. 

Worldview Dispatching Control Licenses 

Remote Worldview Non Dispatching License 

SCADA Explorer: 
SCADA Explorer database editing software includes: editing 
tools for all database points, access control, control zones, 
system parameters, and setup of advanced applications. Also 
includes station clone and point modeling features. 

APPLICATIONS: 

Command Sequencing with Templates: 
Command Sequencing is an easy-to-use high-level 
programming language which is specifically designed to be 
used with SURVALENT systems. It allows you to define and 
execute programs which use database points as variables. 
Command Sequence programs can be used for calculations, 
open-loop control or switching sequences and for closed-loop 
control. 
Event Data Recording: 
Event Data Recording records all status changes, operator 
controls and Sequence of Events (SOE) data. Non-SOE 
events are time-stamped to the nearest second. SOE events 
are stamped to the nearest 1 millisecond (subject to the 
capabilities of the RTU). 
SCADA Add-in: 
A Microsoft Excel and Microsoft Access option allows the 
user to export current and historical data from the SCADA 
system into Excel. All point data fields (not just values) are 
available to export. The menu commands are available from 

I 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 



- Survalent 
Technology 

one of the existing SUI-valent-developed templates. Currently, 
the existing templates (with the associated protocol) are: 

DPU2000R Relay (DNP) 
TPU2000R Relay (DNP) 
SPCD 2D55 Earth-Fault Relay Module (SPA-BUS) 
SPCD 3D53 Stabilized Differential Relay Module 

SPCJ 4D28 Overcurrent and Earth-Fault Relay 
Module (SPA-BUS) 
SPCJ 4D29 Overcurrent and Earth-Fault Relay 
Module (SPA-BUS) 
SPCT 5D54 Auto-Reclose Relay Module (SPA-BUS) 

Bitronics MultiCornm Meter (DNP) with scale 
factors for a PT ratio of 150 and a CT ratio of 120 

Beckwith Electric 

C2 Relay (DNP) 
C3 Relay (DNP) 

Cooper Power Systems 

F4C Recloser (DNP and 2179) 
Form 5 Recloser (DNP and 2 179) 
Form 6 Recloser (DNP and 2 179) 
iXP-420 Transformer Protection Relay (DNP) 



Survulent 
Technology 



.- Survalent 
Technology 

MJX V2.04 and MJXL V3.0701 Regulator (DNP) 

For HMI applications, it is particularly useful to represent an 
IED in the map using a representation of the IED's front 
panel. This feature simplifies the learning process, and helps 
to overcome some peoples' initial reaction to operating from a 
computer rather than directly from the actual device. 
Survalent's Control Panel allows you have an IED 
represented by an image of the IED's front panel, on which 
dynamic elements are superimposed. These dynamic 
elements not only display current values of the points in the 
IED, but also allow you to issue controls and setpoints. 

The required tools to generate the control panel template are 
included. Survalent also has some templates that have already 
been developed. Currently, these include: 

PML ION 6200 
PNL ION 7330 
PML ION 7600 
PML ION 8300 
PML ION 8500 

ABB DPU 2000R 

Access, SQL Server, Sybase, and Oracle. The type of data 

A powerful application to serve real-time SCADA 



.-. Survalent 
Technology 

ITEM 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

QTY 
DESCRIPTION 

information to users via web browser and without the need 
for custom installation or maintenance. Allows the user to call 
up and view any graphical WorldView display, substation 
one-line, or tabular display. Refresh of dynamic data, alarms, 
and graphics can be user defined and achieved on a periodic 
basis every few seconds. Access to reports, graphs, and point 
setting information is provided in a SCADA Explorer type 
interface. WebSurv uses Special Vector Graphics (SVG) to 
generate the dynamic rendition WorldView graphics in the 
users' web browser, and supports panning, zooming, dynamic 
line coloring and other dynamic features of the WorldView 
interface. 
Includes: Web Administrator, WEB Applications, 
Scada Replicator. 
MasterlSlave Alarm Suppression: 
MasterlSlave Alarms Suppression allows a defined hierarchy 
of primarylsecondary (masterlslave) alarm point 
relationships. These relationships may be used for either 
alarm suppression or group acknowledgement, or both. 
Operations and Outages Accounting: 
The Operations and Outage Accounting function is based on 
the Event Data Recording facility. The event data recording 
facility records all status changes and control operations in an 
event data file capable of storing events for up to 30 days. 
Every night at midnight, an accounting program scans the 
previous day's event data to generate that day's accounting 
information. 
Special-purpose report programs produce operations and 
outage reports. An equipment editor allows you to define the 
devices for which you want operation andor outage 
accounting. Requires Event Data Recording. 
Remote Alarm Annunciation: 
The ability to send an e-mail andor a paging message for 
certain alarms. The user can define which points are 
annunciated in this fashion, and for each point, which alarms 
(e.g., which states for a status point and which limits for 
analog point). 
Disturbance Analysis This functionality monitors changes 
to all analog and status points periodically, defines 
events that trigger disturbance data captures, monitors 
disturbance triggers and generates disturbance data 
capture files. 
ICCP Master to Master Protocol: 
ICCP (Inter-Control Center Communications Protocol) is an 

UNIT PRICE 
us $ 

LIST 
us $ 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 



- Survalent 
Technology 

DESCFUPTION UNIT PRICE 

sfer between two or more SCADAIEMS master 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A switch order is a sequence of steps involving both 
switching operations and tags that produce conditions for 
which a guarantee may be issued. Each switch order can 
contain up to 200 steps. 
Guarantees are database forms that allow you to define, issue 
and surrender condition guarantees complete with tags. 
(Guarantees are also commonly known as clearances.) Each 
guarantee can have up to 50 tags associated with it. 
Load Curtailment: 
The Load Curtailment program makes use of command 
sequencing at the upper supervisory level and a special 
application program at the lower execution level. The goal of 
this architecture is to provide: 

Flexibility at the supervisory level, where requirements 
vary greatly from user to user 
Ready-to-use functionality at the execution level, where 
operation is standard and user programming is not needed 

External Clock Interface (GPS): 
External Clock Interface synchronizes the computer time to 
that of the external (GPS) clock every minute. An alarm is 
raised if the SCADA system cannot read the clock. 
Multispeak 3.0 Interoperability Interface to Milsoft 
Windmill Engineering Analysis Software 

SCAN TASKS: 

QUICS IV Scan Task: 
QUICS IV scan task is designed to communicate with one or 
more devices that use the QUICS IV protocol over serial 
asynchronous or TCPIIP communication lines. 
DNP 3.0 Server Scan Task 
This scan task allows the master station to be polled by an 
external system as though it were a DNP RTU. 
Modbus Server Scan Task 
This scan task allows the master station to be polled by an 
external system as though it were a Modbus RTU 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 

Included 



- Survalent 
Technology 

DESCRIPTION 

The system carries a one year warranty on hardware, except 
for the Dell servers, which are covered by a 3-year next 
business day on-site service fiom Dell. 

Software is also covered for one year, and includes both 
telephone assistance and remote diagnostics by modem. 

Standard service includes: 
Business hour Hot-Line telephone support from 8:00 AM 
to 6:00 PM Eastern time 

Software patches 
Annual software upgrade1; keep your system as new as the 
day it was installed 

Latest revision of PC software (Worldview, QWindows 
or SCADA Explorer, ODBC, Transcription, etc.. .) 
available for download at any time from our Web page 

Support phone number is 905-826-5000 or 905-826-7237 
extension 152 

' Applies only to SURVALENT application software already 
purchased. A once a year upgrade includes software patches 
and functional enhancements to the application modules 
already installed by the user. The upgrade will be scheduled 
within 90 days of support contract purchase. Any required 
hardware or operating system upgrades will be provided at an 



Survalent 
Technology 

TERMS: Please see HCI Terms and Conditions (attached) I SUB-TOTAL I 11 

ITEM 

3 1 

SHIPMENT: 16 weeks after receipt of order I I 11 

QTY 

FOB: 

Prepared by: Weijun Ren, Survalent Technology Corporation, 08/08/2006 weijun@survalent.com (905)-8265000 ext 244 
Please make P.O. out to Hometown Connections International, LLC and Fax to (905)-826-7144 Attn: Weijun Ren 

. DESCRIPTION 

Manuals: 
One set of manuals for system operation, database setup, and 
for each selected software application. Manuals may also be 
accessed on the Survalent website for any customer with a 
current maintenance contract. 

VALIDITY: This quotation remains valid for 90 days. After that time prices 
andlor shipment times may be subject to revision. 

x 

NET TOTAL 

UNIT PRICE 
us $ 

LIST 
us $ 

Included 

EXW EX WORKS(Mississauga Ontario Canada) 

Site 

SALES TAX 

FREIGHT Included 



- Survalent 
Technology 

D E L I V E R I N G  V A L U E  T O  P U B L I C  P O W E R "  

Hometown Connections Terms and Conditions of Sale 
for SCADA hardware and software provided by Survalent Technology 

General. Hometown Connections (HCI) is a distributor for Survalent Technology. Warranties and license agreements for 
hardware and software will be provided directly by Survalent. 

Orders. All orders received are subject to acceptance by Survalent. All products will be shipped FOB Mississauga, Ontario, 
Canada by common carrier. 

Payment Terms. Payment terms are net twenty (20) days from the date of invoice from HCI. Past due accounts will be assessed a 
late charge equal to one and one-half percent ( I  '/z %) per month. 

Prices. Prices quoted will be honored for at least 30 days from the date of the written quote and may be subject to change after 
that date. 

HCI's liability arising out of this sales shall not exceed the actual purchase price paid by customer for the products. HCI shall not 
be liable for special, incidental or consequential damages, including loss of protits, loss of data or loss of use arising out of the 
sale of the products. 



- Survulent 
Technology 

SECTION 4 - COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFICATION 



Survalent 
Technology 

SECTION 4 - COMPLIANCE WITH THE SPECIFICATION 

After having carefully reviewed the SCADA Specification of the City of College 
Station, Texas, we have concluded that our proposal fully complies (100%) with 
your technical specification and your overall requirements. There is no exception 
whatsoever taken to any of the specified requirements in the City's SCADA 
specification. 

The information required by the City in the section "Format Requirements" can be 
found in our Bid Proposal as follows: 

Tab A - Qualifications and experience. 
Please refer to Section 6 of our Bid Proposal 

Tab B - Rates and expenses 
Please refer to Section 3 - Price Quotation - of our Bid Proposal 

Tab C - Methodology 
The narrative description of the scope of project is included in Section 1 - 
Executive Summary" - of our Bid Proposal. This section also includes 
description of the scope of work with clear distinction between STC and the City's 
responsibilities. 

A proposed Project Plan is included in Section 8 - Project Plan - of our Bid 
Proposal. 

Tab D - References 
A complete list of our reference projects in the US is included in Attachment 3 to 
our Bid Proposal. For each project the list identifies the customer name, contact 
name and phone, operating system platform, short description of the system 
functionality and applications. 

This list includes the projects within the State of Texas. These projects are also 
listed in Section 1 - Executive Summary. 

Tab E - A copy of the certificate of property rights on the QUICS4 protocol is 
included in Section 7 of our Bid proposal. 

Tab F - STC is willing to sign the City's Standard Form of Agreement and any 
Addenda issued to the RFP. 

A copy of the Maintenance Support description is included in Section 9 of our Bid 
Proposal. 



Survulent 
Technology 

SECTION 5 TRAINING PROGRAMS 



Survalent 
Technology 

TRAINING COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 

Training Course Descriptions 

Course outlines for the following courses are found in this Section; 

- Control Room Operations Training - at STC site 
- Master Station Hardware Training - at STC site 
- Master Station Software Training - at STC site 
- System Administration Training - at STC site 

Following is the general agenda for training: 

SCADA TRAINING 

DAY I 

Setup of SCADA Client, SCADA Server, and Worldview on all attendees' 
machines 
Hardware, Software and R'TU overview 
Client-server, host-workstation relationships 
SCADA startup and shutdown 

PM 

Documentation, SCADA database concepts 
SCADA Users, and "user rights" 
Point database editing 
Stations, status bits for comm lines and RTUs 

Day 2 

Point database editing 
Comm lines & RTUs 
Status points 
Analog points 
Text points 



Survalent 
Technology 

Points (cont'd) 
Related database elements 
User type, zones & groups, format, 
Alarm format, commandlstate strings 
Alarm types and severities, limits 
Use of SCADA explorer and Analog and Status point viewers 
Remainder of SCADA Programs 

Day 3 

WorldView - maps 
WorldView introduction: maps, alarm views, operator summaries 
Standard "blank" database 
Map viewer, navigation, views (buttons) 
Layers & decluttering 
Editing the map 
WorldView - resources 
Dwg styles & tables, text styles, symbols 
Pmacros 
Example: map with station point, view of station I-line, with pmacros 
Operation: status, analog, and controls 
Tagging, notes, 

WorldView - alarm viewer 
Selection criteria, stations 
Files, alarm views 
audible 
Operation: silence, ack, block, goto alarm view 
WorldView - operator summary 
Selection criteria 
Files, oprsum views 
Annotation 

Day 4 

Review of database and WorldView issues 
Additional database 
Calculations, 
Reports & schedules 



Survcrlent 
Technology 

Loggers 
Tag types & tagging 

PM 

Advanced database subjects 
Historical data, graphs 
Analog limit matrices 
Setpoint copy 
Master-slave alarm suppression 
Multiple-status-change validation 
Overview of system setup parameters 

Day 5 

Overview of optional components 
Command sequencing, templates, matrices 
External bells, paging annunciation & schedules 
Outage accounting 
External clock 
Worldview 
SCS & line sections 
Guarantees & switching orders 

Automatic Generation Control (AGC) 
Operator Training Simulator (OTS) 

Master Station Training Outline 

System Configuration 

Network Devices and Addresses 
Installation of Software 

o Server Software - hostlmaster station 
o Client Software - database access to host 
o Worldview - operator's interface 

User Interface Familiarization 
o SCADA Explorer - use to edit database 
o Tabular Displays - useful on commissioning of points 
o Worldview - Maps, Alarms View and Operator Summary 

License Registration 

SCA DA Explorer 



Survalent 
Technology F- 

o Database Concepts and Structure 
o Organization 

Station 
o Communication Lines 

Remote Terminal Units 
o Database Points 

o Planning the Database - items prior the development 
Station - logical designation of points 
Zones and Access Control 
User Point Type - user defined groupings 
CommandIState Strings 
Alarm Message Formats 
o Definition of Station 
o Definition of Communication Line 

Indication and Control of Communication Line 
Statistical Points 

o Definition of RTU 
0 Indication and Control of RTU 
C Port Switching 
0 Statistical Points 

o Alarm Priorities or Severities 
o Definition of Status Point 

O Tele-Indication Codes ABCD 
Format Codes 
Alarms 



Survalent 
Technology 

SECTION 6 QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 



Survalent 
Technology 

STC has a 42-year background in the manufacture and installation of SCADA 
systems. We have been supplying SCADA systems and RTUs to the electrical 
industry since 1964. 

Our personnel include very experienced SCADA software development 
engineers totaling over 175 man-years of SCADA experience. This stability and 
long-term experience should provide to the City the assurance that they will enter 
in a long-term partnership with a supplier who will always be available for 
support. 

With an installed base of over 170 operational systems worldwide we are placed 
in the first tier of SCADA suppliers in North America. We have a 100% customer 
retention record. There is no STC customer that has ever converted to a SCADA 
platform of another vendor. 

STC will be the prime contractor for the City project with full responsibilities for 
the overall execution and support of the project. 

The hardware platform will be staged at the STC facilities. Our headquarters are 
located in Mississauga, a 750,000-inhabitants city near the Toronto International 
Airport, Canada. Our technical support is rendered via remote diagnose and 
downloading. 

Factory acceptance testirrg and training will take place at the factory in Canada, 
with an option for additional training on site. 

STC has undertaken a large number of projects in the last thirty six (36) months 
at an average rate of one project per month. The projects are at least similar in 
size and scope with some projects being significantly larger. 

STC has no anticipated changes in ownership or major corporate policy changes 
in the next 12 months. 

STC states that there are not and there have not been any legal claims or 
litigation actions against STC regarding the performance of the projects. 

An organizational chart is included below. 



Survalent 
Technology %- 

Survalent Technology 
March 15,2005 

Steve Mueller 
President 

M~ke Bnwdle 
Vtca Pres~Cent 
Sales 8 Mkln'g I I 
Tony Thomas 

US Cenlrai RSVP 

Benjamw Perez 
lnstds Sales 8 

Bustless r[ V I ~  Pres~den! Sales. 
Vce.Prestdent of 

lnlernat~onal 
Devekpmeni F1nance:Operatwns 

Pratao Waole 

Cornel Munteanu Ivan Pedersen 
V~urPresidenl, RTU!Conlrols 

Development , Developmsnl , Manager 

Vice-President Alex Arandorenko 

Lee Schwab I I Celvre Conireras 
Engineering 

Marceb Gorzaler Jlwar! Ssndhu 
1 1 VasileVarlobme~ 

Bill Rambo 
US Wosl RSVP 

Steve Slrauss 
US East RSVP 

Dan Dykas 
Canadlav Sales 

Manager 

JM Def~ltppts 
Oeprarims I Manager I Customer Suppod 

Devebpmenl 

I Anne Hroval 1 Wlllan, Klkpavkk 

A~and  Lulchmsn 1 Stephen Allen 

Vlsh Mon~laN Sali~e S1111llie Abdel Husses! 

Terri MoWala Thelma SIerers Tao Zhang 

I Farshfd Bastan1 Wamck G~ll~rgham Alar N~mllan 

Marlin Kiun Roehl Deduro 

Richard Hayden 

Bob Vallle~e 

Mguel Cenlceros 

Colln T~an 

Quality ksurance 

Parni~nder Sahota Aull Handa 

Tony LarviUolla 



Surva/ent 
Technology 

SECTION 7 

CERTIFICATE OF PROPERTY RIGHTS FOR QUICS4 PROTOCOL 



INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY JOINT OWNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

This Agreement made as of Noveinber 12, 1993 between QEI, Inc. (the "Vendor"), a New Jersey 
corporation, and Quindar Products .Ltd. (the "Corporation"), an Ontario corporation. 

WHEREAS: 

A. The Vendor is the owner of (i) a substantial body of valuable Technical Information 
relating to the design, development and production of the Products, and (ii) the Copyrights and 
Trade Marks relating - to the Products. 

, B. Prior to the date hereof the Corporation has carried on business as the whoily-owned 
subsidiary of the Vendor and has manufactured and sold the Products in the Quindar Territory 
under the Copyright and Trade Marks in consideration of the payment to the Vendor of certain 
royalty payments. 

C. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement (i) certain investors (collectively, the 
"Investors") are acquiring from the Vendor all of the issued and outstanding securities of the 
Corporation; and (ii) the Corporation is acquiring certain property and assets of the Vendor (the 
"Purchased Assets"), including a joint ownership interest in and to all of the Intellectual Property, 
all pursuant to a share purchase agreement made as of November 12, 1993 between the Investors 
and the Vendor and an asset purchase agreement made as of November 12, 1993 between the 
Vendor and the Corporation (the "Purchase Agreements"). 

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the completion of the .transactions contemplated by the 
Purchase Agreements, and for other consideration that is mutually acceptable and accepted, the 
-- 

parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 

1.1 Definitions. In this Agreement the following terms shall have the following meanings 
unlesgthe context otherwise requires: 

"Copyright" means all copyright and rights in the nature of copyright to which the 
Vendor or Corporation may now be entitled, in any jurisdiction, in or in respect of all drawings 
and other documents, recordings in any form and all other articles bearing or embodying any part 
of the Technical Information, including without limitation the copyrights and rights with respect 
to the Products. 



"Improvements" means all improvements, modifications or adaptations to any part of 
the Technical Information which are now or might hereafter be developed relating to the design, 
manufacture or supply of the Products, whether or not any Copyright or Trade Mark is sought or 
obtained by either Party pertaining thereto. 

"Initial Period" means the period from the date hereof to November 12, 1998. 
I --- 

"Intellectual Property" means, collectively, the Technical Information and the 
Copyright and the Trade Marks, all as more particularly set forth in Section 2.1. 

"Parties" means the Vendor, the Corporation and any other person who may become a 
party tp this Agreement; and "Party" m e w  any one of them; 

. "Person" means an individual, partnership, corporation, trust, unincorpdrated 
association, joint venture or other entity, and pronouns having a similar extended meaning; - 

"Products" means all of the products made available by the Vendor and the Corporation 
to their customers or under development as of the date hereof, including the products set out in 
Schedule 1 as modified and supplemented and any other products as they may hereafter mutually 
agree from time to time. 

"QEI Territory" has the meaning specified in Schedule 2. 

"Quindar Territory" has the meaning specified in Schedule 2. 

"Technical Information" means all exlsting know-how, experience, drawings, designs, 
circuit diagrams, computer programs and all other technical information relating to the design, 
production or sale of the Products, including, without limitation, the Copyright. - 

"Territories" means, collectively, the QEI Territory and the Quindar Territory and 
"Territory" means either of the Temtories as the context requires. 

"Trade Marks" means all trade marks, trade mark applications, license agreements, 
goodwill and other similar intellectual property rights which the Vendor or the Corporation is 
now entitled to in respect of the Products in any jurisdiction, whether or not registered, and 
including, without limitation, the Canadian and United States registered Trade Marks and the 
applications for registrations set out in Schedule 3 hereto, and any reference to "Trade Marks" 
shall include a reference to any one of them. 

1.2 Interpretation. In this Agreement (i) Articles, Sections, Subsections and headings are 
used for convenient reference only and shall not affect its interpretation; (ii) words importing the 
singular number only shall include the plural and vice versa, and words importing the masculine 
gender shall include the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa; and (iii) references to 
persons shall include individuals, firms, partnerships, associations, unincorporated organizations, 
trusts, corporations, governments and any department, agency or instrumentality thereof. I 



ARTICLE 11 
GRANT OF RIGHTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON RIGHTS 

2.1 Grant by the Vendor. The Vendor hereby unconditionally and irrevocably grants, 
assigns anauansfers over to tne corporation, on and subject aiways to the terms, conditions and 
limitations set forth in this Agreement, as of and with effect from the date hereof, an individual 
joint ownership interest in and to all of the Intellectual Property as more particularly described 
herein, including without limitation all rights, rights of action, benefits, franchises, registrations 
and other proprietary and intellectual property rights of or pertaining thereto, with full right, 
power and authority on its own behalf to use and deal as the Corporation sees fit (all of the 
foregoing being the "Ownership Interest" of the Corporation in and to the Intellectual Property). 
Without in any way restricting or limiting the foregoing the Corporation shall be entitled to: 

(i) use the Intellectual Property to manufacture the Products: 
(ii) modify, develop, and incorporate Improvements into the Products as it sees fit; 
(iii) sell and otherwise deal with the Products manufactured by it and to use the 

Intellectual Property on or in relation to the Products; and 
(iv) to grant licenses (including the right of any such lice~lsees to grant sub-licenses) to 

my other person with respect to the use of all or any portion of the Intellectual 
Property, subject to Section 2.4. 

The grant of the Ownership Interest shall not make the Corporation liable for any action, cause of 
action, or other proceeding or claim against the Vendor in relation to the Intellectual Property or 
the sale or use of the Products by the Vendor arising from or relating to the period prior to the 
date hereof. 

2.2 Reservation of Rights. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, the grant of the 
Ownership Interest shall not reduce, restrict or otherwise affect the rights of the Vendor with 
respect to its ownership interest in and use of the Intellectual Property, and its right to 
manufacture and sell the Products, all of which rights shall continue in full force and effect. 

2.3 Restrictions on Use of Rights by Vendor and Corporation. Notwithstanding the 
provisions of Sections 2.1 and 2.2, until the expiry of the Initial Period: 

(a) the vendor shall retain the right to carry on in those states of the United States 
forming part of the Quindar Temtory the business activities referred to in Schedule 2 and 
to use the Intellectual Property and sell the Products in such states in furtherance thereof 
with those customers referred to in Schedule 2 to the exclusion of the Corporation and 
any persons claiming by or under the Corporation the right to do so but shall not 
otherwise be permitted to carry on in the Quindar Tenitory any business activities 
pertaining to the use of the Intellectual Property and the sale of the Products, and shall 
use reasonable efforts to not cause, permit or suffer any other person to do so, whether 
under license, sub-license or otherwise (except for those customers of QEI and Quindar 



doing so under sub-license agreements in effect as of the date hereof with respect to 
Products sold prior to the date hereof), without the express prior written consent of the 
Corporation; and 

(b) the Corporation shall not be permitted to carry on in the QEI Territory any 
business activities pertaining to the use of the Intellectual Property and the sale of the 
Products, or cause, permit or suffer any other person to do so, whether under license, sub- 
license or otherwise, without the express written consent of the Vendor. 

Following the expiry of the Initial Period, the Corporation and the Vendor (and all persons 
claiming by or under them) shall be entitled, under the grants made under Section 2.1 and 
reserved under Section 2.2 respectively, to use the Intellectual Property and sell the Products 
throughout the Territories or elsewhere upon and subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

2.4 Restrictions on Grants of Rights During Initial Period. Except for sub-licenses 
entered into with customers for their own use of the Products in the ordinary course of business 
and in a manner consistent with past business practices, neither the Vendor nor the Corporation 
shall be entitled, during 'the Initial Period, to grant to any person for use in either or both the 
Territories any W e r  interest in or to all or any portion of their ownership interest in the 
Intellectual Property, or enter 'into any license, sub-license, royalty or other similar arrangement 
with any person in either or both of the Territories providing for their use of the Intellectual 
Property without the prior written consent of the other party and on terms and conditions 
acceptable to it unless such person enters into an agreement in favour of the Vendor and the 
Corporation agreeing to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement. All sub-licenses entered 
into by each of the parties with customers after the date hereof shall expressly refer to the joint 
ownership of the Vendor and the Corporation in and to the Intellectual Property. 

2.5 Rights of Parties Outside of Territories. Each of the Vendor and the Corporation shall 
be permitted to manufacture, distribute, market and sell the Products in all jurisdictions other 
than the Temtories from and after the date hereof All of such Product sales (whether made 
directly or indirectly through any permitted licensee, sub-licensee, distributor, agent, or other 
person permitted to do so under this Agreement) made during the Initial Period shall be reported 
by the party on whose behalf they have been made forthwith following their completion. Except 
for sub-licenses entered into with customers for their own use of the Products in the ordinary 
course of business and in a manner consistent with past business practices, neither the Vendor 
nor the Corporation shall be entitled during the Initial Period to grant to any person for use in the 
jurisdictions outside the Temtories any further interest in or to all or any portion of their 
ownership interest in the Intellectual Property or enter into any license, sub-license, royalty or 
other similar arrangement with any person in'any such jurisdiction providing for their use of the 
Intellectual Property to manufacture the Products for resale, to sell the Products or to 
manufacture or sell any products which compete with the Products without the prior written 
consent of the other party and on terms and conditions acceptable to it unless such person (the 
"proposed user") enters into an agreement in favour of the Vendor and the Corporation agreeing 
to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement. In the event any such agreement is proposed, it 



shall provide that the payments made by the proposed user to acquire such rights, whether in the 
form of sales revenues, royalty revenues, licensing revenues, or any other fees and payments 
reasonably attributable to the acquisition of such rights by the proposed user, shall be allocated 
and earned as to 60% by the party initiating the relationship with the proposed user and as to 
40% to the other party. 

2.6 Ansaldo Transaction. Each of the Parties acknowledge that the Vendor is negotiating a 
licensing arrangement with Ansaldo SPA (the "Ansaldo Transaction"). The foregoing provisions 
of this Article I1 including, without limitation, the restrictions on licensing and the requirement to 
share proceeds shall not apply to the Ansaldo Transaction. 

2.7 Further Assurances. The Parties hereto agree to execute and register, at the expense of 
the Party requesting it, any amendment to the registrations relating to the Trade Marks, license 
agreement, or other similar agreement reasonably necessary or required to give further effect to 
the grant of the Ownership Interest to the Corporation and the other provisions of this section 2. 

ARTICLE I11 
/IMPROVEMENTS AND TECHNICAL INFORMATION 

3.1 Ownership and Use of Improvements. Improvements arising from work carried out by 
the Vendor alone shall remain the exclusive property of the Vendor and Improvements arising 

- from work carried out by the Corporation alone shall remain the exclusive property of the 
Corporation. Improvements arising from work carried out jointly shall belong to the Parties 
equally unless they shall otherwise agree. Each Party shall have the irrevocable right to use such 
joint Improvements independently of the other in respect only of sales of Products in their 
respective Territories until the expiry of the Initial Period and thereafter they shall have the right 
to do so throughout the Temtories. Both Parties shall also be entitled to use the Improvements. 
jointly developed for sales in jurisdictions outside the Temtories in the same manner as the 
grants and rights referred to in Section 2.5. To the extent necessary for such use, each Party shall 
have and hereby grants, transfers and assigns to the other, an undivided ownership interest under 
atl jointly held intellectual property rights relating to jointly developed Improvements including, 
subject to Section 2.5, the right to grant licenses and sub-licenses thereunder. Each Party hereby 
undertakes that on request it will c o n f i  to any prospective customer of the other Party the right 
of that Party pursuant to this paragraph to grant such a license. 

3.2 Disclosure of Technical Information. Each of the Parties warrants that all Technical 
Information disclosed to the other Party hereunder at or prior to the date hereof with respect to 
the Products is, to the best of its knowledge and belief, accurate. During the first three years of 
the Initial Period each Party will promptly disclose to the other Party any significant errors in 
such Technical Information that are discovered by it and advise the other Party of any corrections 
or modifications it has developed to the Technical Information or the Products to remedy such 
errors. Neither party shall have any further liability to the other, or to any customer of the other, 
in respect of the other Party's use of the Technical Information or its production, use, sale or 

- , - other disposition of the Products. 



3.3 Responsibility for Products. Except as provided in Sections 3.1 and 3.2, each Party 
shall be exclusively responsible for the technical and commercial operation of its business, for 
incorporating any modifications or developments that might be necessary or desirable into the 
Products, and for all Products sold or supplied by it, including the marketing, sales, servicing and 
warranting of such Products. 

ARTICLE IV 
CONFIDENTIALITY AND NON-COMPETITION 

4.1 Confidentiality Obligations. Each Party agrees to maintain secret and confidential all 
Technical Information and all other information relating to the affairs of the other party and its 
subsidiaries, including all information relating to its financial position, operations, suppliers, 
customers, research and development matters, product lines, projects undertaken for clients, 
tenders and pricing information, and other similar information (all of which being "Confidential 
Information") obtained fiom the other Party both pursuant to this Agreement and prior to it and 
all other information that it may acquire fiom the other during the term of this Agreement. Each 
Party agrees (i) to maintain the same degree of confidentiality with respect to such Confidential 
Information as a reasonably prudent Person would maintain with respect to its own confidential 
and proprietary information, (ii) to not at any time disclose, divulge or communicate orally, in 
writing or otherwise any such C ~ ~ d e n t i a l  Information to any Person or Persons other than the 
Parties hereto; (iii) to respect the other's proprietary rights therein, (iv) to use the same 
exclusively for the purposes of this Agreement, and (v) to disclose the same only to those of its 
employees to whom and to the extent that such disclosure is reasonably necessary for the purpose 
of this Agreement. 

4.2 Exception. The foregoing obligations of Section 4.1 above shall not apply to . 
- Confidential Information which: 

(A) prior to receipt thereof from one party was in the possession of the recipient party 
I at its fiee disposal; -- 

(B) is subsequently disclosed to the recipient party without any- obligations ~ o f .  . .. 
/confidence by a third party who has not derived it directly-or indirectly from the other party 
hereto; 

(C) is or becomes generally available to the public through no act or default of the 
recipient party or its agents or employees; or 

(D) is disclosed to actual or potential customers for Products insofar as such 
disclosure is reasonably necessary to promote the sale or use of Products. 

4.3 Employees and Sub-Licensees. Each Party shall ensure all its employees, contractors 
and sub-licenses pursuant to this Agreement (if any) who have access to any Coddentid 



Information of the other to which the obligations of Section 4.1 apply shall be made aware of and 
subject to these obligations. 

4.4 Non-Competition. In furtherance of the grants set forth in Sections 2.1 and 2.2, and the 
restrictions set forth in Section 2.3, each Party covenants and agrees with the other party that it 
shall not, during the Initial Period, unless expressly permitted to do so under Section 2.3: 

(A) directly or indirectly, in any manner whatsoever, including, without limitation, 
either individually or in partnership or jointly, or in conjunction with any other Person or 
Persons, as principal, agent, officer, employee, shareholder or in any other manner whatsoever, 
cany on, be engaged in or propose to commence any business carried on within the Territory of 
the other party which is competitive with the business carried on by t h e  other Party (a 
"Competitive Business") or be concerned with or interested in or lend money to, guarantee the 
debts or obligations of or permit its name or any part to be used or employed by any Person or 
Persons, engaged or concerned with or interested in any Competitive Business; or 

(B) divulge any Confidential Information to any Person who may reasonably be 
regarded, either individually or in partnership or jointly, or in conjunction with any other Person 
or Persons, as principal, agent, officer, employee, shareholder or in any other manner 
whatsoever, as carrying on, being engaged in or proposing to commence a Competitive Business; 
or 

(C) directly or indirectly solicit, interfere with or endeavour to direct or entice away 
fiom the other party any supplier, customer, client or any other person dealing with the other 
party, provided that each of the Parties shall be permitted to deal with Persons who were 
suppliers to both of the Parties prior to the date hereof; or 

@) interfere with, entice away or otherwise attempt to obtain the withdrawal or 
discontinuance of employment of any officer, employee or agent o f  the Corporation. 

The foregoing provisions of this Section 4.4 shall not prevent any Party fiom acquiring, as a 
passive investment, up to 5% of the securities of a corporation carrying on a Competitive 
Business which are listed for trading on a public stock exchange. 

4.5 Severability and Enforceability. (1) The Parties each acknowledge and agree that all 
restrictions contained in Section 2.3 and this Article IV are reasonable, necessary and valid, 
including, without limitation, the time and geographic limitations specified in Section 2.3. All 
defences to the strict enforcement thereof by the other Party are hereby waived by each Party. 
Each Party hereby recognizes and agrees that any violation of any of the covenants contained in 
this Article IV will cause irreparable damage or injury to the other Party, the exact amount of 
which would be impossible to ascertain, and that, for such reason, among others, the other Party 
will be entitled to an injunction, without the necessity of any undertakings as to damages 
therefor, restraining any further violations of such covenant. Each Party hereby consents to the 
issuance of such injunction or restraining order. Such rights to any injunction will be in addition 
to, and not in limitation of, any other rights and remedies the other Parties may have against it. 



(2) If any of the covenants contained in Section 4.4 shall be held unreasonable in any 
jurisdiction by reason of the area, duration or scope of such covenant, then such covenant shall 
be given effect in such reduced form as may be decided by the courts of such jurisdiction and 
shall remain in full force and effect in all other jurisdictions. If any Section or any portion of any 
such covenant should be unenforceable or be declared invalid in its entirety for any reason 
whatsoever in any jurisdiction, such enforceability or invalidity shall not affect the enforceability 
or validity of the covenant in any other jurisdictions or of the remaining portions of the 
covenants in that jurisdiction and such enforceable or invalid portions shall be severable and 
severed to that extent from the remainder of this Agreement. 

4.6 Contravention of Article IV. If either Party becomes aware of a contravention by the 
other Party of the provisions of this Article IV it shall immediately thereafter notify the other 
party of such contravention, specifying the particulars thereof. Forthwith following the receipt of 
such notice the other Party shall take all necessary steps and proceedings to discontinue such 
contravention, failing which it shall be in default of its obligations hereunder and the other Party 
shall be entitled to take all steps and proceedings it deems necessary or appropriate under this 
Agreement or otherwise at law to ensure that such default is remedied. 

ARTICLE V 
OWNERSHIP OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS 

5.1 Ownership. The Vendor warrants that there is no litigation in progress, pending or, to 
the best of its knowledge, or information or belief, threatened in relation to its ownership and use 
of the Intellectual Property. 

-- 

5.2 Renewals. The Vendor shall pay all renewal fees necessary to maintain the registrations . 
of the registered Trade Marks referred to in Schedule 3 in effect during the tenn of this 
Agreement provided it continues to use such registered Trade Marks in its own business. 

5.3 Protection of Trade Marks. Each Party undertakes not to do or permit to be done any 
act which would or might (i) jeopardize or invalidate the Intellectual Property and any 
registration of the registered Trade Marks in whole or in part; (ii) assist or give rise to an action 
to invalidate the Intellectual Property or an application remove or invalidate the registrations for 
any of the registered Trade Marks; or (iii) prejudice the right or title of either Party to any of the 
Intellectual Property. 

5.4 Assistance. Each Party shall on request give to the other Party or its authorized 
representative any information as to its use of the Copyright and Trade Marks which that Party 
may require and shall render any assistance reasonably required by the other party in maintaining 
the registrations of the registered Trade Marks. The Vendor shall assist the Corporation as may 
be necessary (including by executing any necessary documents or acknowledgments), at the 
expense of the Corporation, in recording, perfecting or otherwise establishing the Ownership 
Interest of the Corporation in and to the Intellectual Property in the Quindar Territory and, 

,-- 



following the expiry of the Initial Period, in the Territories. . 
5.5 Future Registrations. In the event that the Vendor does not, after the date hereof, 
register or otherwise perfect or establish my Trade Mark or other Intellectual Property in any 
jurisdiction other than the Territories, the Corporation shall have the right, on not less than 30 
days prior written notice to the Vendor, to take all necessary steps and proceedings to do so in 
such jurisdiction at the expense of the Corporation and in the name of the Corporation and the 
Vendor, if permitted, or in the name of the Corporation alone but subject always in either case to 
the rights of the Vendor under this Agreement. The Corporation shall not be entitled to do so, 
however, if within ten days after the receipt of such notice the Vendor notifies the Corporation 
that it intends to proceed to register or otherwise perfect or establish such Trade Mark or other 
Intellectual Property and proceeds expeditiously to do so. In such event, the Ownership Interest 
of the Corporation shall extend to and include such Trade Mark or other Intellectual Property as 
so registered, perfected or otherwise established. 

ARTICLE VI 
USE OF TRADE MARKS 

6.1 Use of Trade Marks. The use of the Trade Marks by the Parties shall, at all times, be in 
keeping with and seek to maintain their distinctiveness and reputation. Whenever the Trade 
Marks are used by either party after the date hereof they shall be accompanied by wording to 
show that they are jointly owned registered Trade Marks (or, as the case may be, Trade Marks). 

6.2 Discontinuance of Use. If the Vendor decides to discontinue the use of any of the Trade 
Marks, whether in conjunction with the discontinuance of the manufacture or sale of Products 
using such Trade Marks or otherwise, the Corporation shall, at its option, have the right to an 
assignment of same for nominal consideration and upon the same being assigned the Corporation 
shall become the exclusive owner of such Trade Mark and the rights of the Vendor whether as 
owner of such Trade Mark, by grant under this Agreement or otherwise shall cease. 

ARTICLE VII 
INFRINGEMENTS 

7.1 Notice of Infringements. Each Party shall give the other Party in writing fill particulars 
of any use or proposed use by any other Person, of a product, trade name, trade mark or get-up of 
goods or mode of promotion or advertising which amounts or might amount to infringement of 
either of the Parties' rights in relation to the Copyright or the Trade Marks or to passing off as 
soon as it becomes aware thereof. . . 

7.2 Notice of Claims. If either Party becomes aware that any other Person alleges that the 
Copyright or Trade Marks are invalid or that their use infringes any rights of another Person or 
that the Copyright or Trade Marks are otherwise attacked or attackable the Party shall 
immediately give the other Party full particulars in writing thereof and shall make no comment or 



admission to any third party in respect thereof. 

7.3 Conduct of Proceedings. The Parties shall jointly have the responsibility for conducting 
all proceedings relating to the Copyright or Trade Marks and shall consult with each other in 
good faith in deciding what action, if any, to take in respect of any infringement or alleged 
infringement of the Copyright or the Trade Marks or passing-off or any other claim or counter- 
claim brought or threatened by or against either of the Parties in respect of the use or registration 
of the Copyright or Trade Marks (each of the foregoing being a "Claim"). Neither Party shall be 
entitled or required to bring or defend any action in relation to any Claim acting alone unless the 
Parties do not reach a mutually acceptable understanding to bring or defend such Claim jointly or 
in such other manner as they agree within a reasonable period of time (not to exceed 90 days) 
after becoming aware of such Claim. In that event either Party shall be entitled to bring or 
defend such Claim at its own expense and in such manner as it sees fit for and on behalf of both 
Parties and shall have full authority to prosecute, defend or settle such Claim for and on behalf of 
both Parties. . 

7.4 Co-operation in Proceedings. Subject to Section 7.3, each Party will at the request of 
the other Party give full 'c~o~eration to such Party in any proceedings brought or threatened by or 
against either or both of the Parties in respect of the Copyright or the Trade Marks. 

ARTICLE VIII 
TERM AND TERMINATION 

.8.1 Term. Subject to the provisions of this Article VIII, this Agreement shall be for an initial 
term of five years and thereafter shall be automatically renewed for consecutive terms of five 
years. 

8.2 Termination Events. This Agreement may only be terminated by mutual consent of the 
Parties. 

8.3 Continuing Rights. Termination of this Agreement shall not affect the accrued rights of 
the Parties arising in any way out of this Agreement as at the date of termination and in particular 
but without limitation the right to recover damages from the other. All provisions of this - 
Agreement which in order to give effect to their meaning need to survive its termination shdl 
remain in full force and effect after its termination and such termination for any reason shall not 
bring such obligations to an end. 



ARTICLE IX 
GENERAL 

9.1 Successors and Assigns. Subject to the next following sentence, this Agreement shall be 
binding upon and enure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective legal successors 
but shall not otherwise be transferable or assignable by either party, absolutely, by way of 
security or otherwise, without the prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall 
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. The Parties expressly acknowledge that Chemical 
Bank New Jersey, National Association has a security interest that extends to the interest of the 
Vendor in this Agreement, that the Corporation has granted security interests with respect to its 
interest in this Agreement to Bank of Nova Scotia , Ontario Development Corporation and the 
Vendor, and that the Corporation may, in certain circumstances, be required to grant a security 
interest with respect to its interest in this Agreement to Innovation Ontario Corporation, all of 
which grants are hereby consented to by the other Party. In the event either Party enters into an 
agreement, understanding or other arrangement which results in its merger, amalgamation or 
other combination with any other person; sells or otherwise transfers all or substantially all of its 
assets; or becomes insolvent, has a receiver appointed over the whole or any part of its assets, 
proposes any compromise with creditors, or has an order made or resolution passed for it to be 
wound up, the continuing person, including any successor corporation, acquiror of assets, 
receiver, trustee in bankruptcy, administrator or other successor in interest to such Party, whether 
succeeding in interest by consent, agreement or operation of law, shall continue to be bound by 
the provisions of this Agreement to the maximum extent permitted by law. 

9.2 Amendments end Waivers. No variation or amendment of this Agreement shall bind 
either Party unless made and agreed to in writing by both Parties. A failure by either Party to 
exercise or enforce any rights conferred upon it by this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 
waiver of any such rights or operate so as to bar the exercise or enforcement of such rights at any 
subsequent time or times. 

9.3 Illegality. If any provision of this Agreement is agreed by the Parties to be illegal, void 
or unenforceable under any law that is applicable hereto or if any court of competent jurisdiction 
in a final decision so determines this Agreement shall continue in force save that such provisions 
shall be deemed to be excised here from with earlier date as the parties may agree. . 

9.4 Notices. Any notice required to be given hereunder by either Party to the other shall be 
in writing and shall be served by sending the same by registered mail to the address of the other 
party as given herein or to such other address as that Party may have previously notified to the 
Party giving notice as its address for such service. Any notice or other document to be given 
under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if left at or 
sent by hand or by registered post; or by telex, facsimile or other electronic media to a Party at 
the address, telex or facsimile number set out below for such party or such other address as one 
party may from time to time designate by written notice to the other. Any such notice or other 
document shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee two working days following 
the date of dispatch if the notice or other document is sent by registered post. or simultaneously 
with the delivery or transmission if sent by hand or if given by telex, facsimile or other electronic 



The Vendor's address for service is: 

60 Fadem Road 
Springfield, New Jersey 
07081-3186 

The Corporation's address for service is: 

106 Rayette Road 
Concord, Ontario 
L4K 2G3 

Fax: (201) 379-2138 I 

Fax: (905) 669-6384 

9.5 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of 
Ontario and of Canada applicable therein. 

. 
--ppp 

QUINDAR PRQDUCTS LTD. 

Per: 
Authorized s i g n i n g a r  

QEI, INC. 

/Authorized Signing Officer 

Per: 
Authorized Signing Offtcer 



JUVI or.5 & t h l i ~ ~ ~ t i t ~ ~ v l  LIU. a l l -  3-33 12:12 ST I KEMAN . ELL I OTT- 201 845 9627:#16 

means. 

The Vendor's addrcss for scrvicc is: 

60 Ftldem Rod 
Springiield, New Jersey 
0708 1-3 1 86 

The Corporatioil's address tor sservicc is: 

106 Rayetle Road 
Concord, Onl;mri( t 
L.4K 2Ci3 

Fax: (201) 379-21 38 

9.5 , G'overning Law, 'I'his Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of 
p-pp--- - - - 

Ontario and. of ~ a u d a  applicable therein. 
-- - - 

-7 

QUMUAR PRODUCTS LTD. 

Per: 
Aud1oriz;ed Signing Officer 

QEI, INF. 

P e r : R  
7- 

James D. Krugman 
Secretary 



SCHEDULE 1 
PRODUCTS 

All hardware assets specified in Schedule 1 to the Asset Purchase Agreement between the 
Vendor and the Corporation dated as of November 12, 1993. 

2) SCADAP-11 SOFTWARE 

All related software executable on VAX or PDP- I 1 series of computers, including source 
and object codes and all related design, operating and maintenance documentation. The 
software includes the base line package, layered products and all programs developed by 
either Quindar Products Ltd. or QEI Inc. for their customers prior to the date hereof. 

3) QUICS IV SOFTWARE 

All related software executable on the VAX series of computers, including source and 
object codes and all related design, operating and maintenance documentation. The 
software includes the base line package, layered products and all programs developed by 
either Quindar Products Ltd. or QEI Inc. for their customers prior to the date hereof. 

Software residing in a PC known as Display Generator (DG) and Datalink (DL). 
* 

5) QUICS IV SOFTWARE (ALPHA) 

Software executable on the Alpha series of computers, including source and object codes 
and all related design, operating and maintenance documentation. The software includes 
the Baseline and layered products as listed below. 

The baseline includes all of the basic SCADA fimctions: 

Telemetry Reports 
Alanns Historical Data 
Calculations Failover 
Operator Interface 

The laycred products consist of the following: 

Command Sequencing 
DECtalk Autodialer 
Event Data Recording 
Load Management 
Mapboard 



Message Display 
OperationdOutage Accounting 
Operator Training Simulator 
Qnet 
Qwindows 
Short-Term Load Forecasting 
SQL Server 
Worldview 

6) QUICS RTU'S 

The hardware and software designs, including all manufacturing dE!&!Ee~ion for the 
following products developed by Quindar prior to the date hereof. 

- Mini-QUICS 
- QUICS RTU (Ontario Hydro designs) 
- Sequence of Events RTU 
- 386/486 RTU 

7) QUICS IV RTU 

The hardware and software designs, including source code and all manufacturing 
documentation for thk Quics IV RTU product developed by QEI prior to the date hereof. 

8) RTU 6ACP AND 6ATP 

The hardware and software designs, including source code and all manufacturing 
documentation for these RTU products developed by QEI prior to the date hereof. 

9 )  TONE AND TELEMETRY 

30 series tones 
50.series tones 
1 130 series 
QD20 series 



SCHEDULE 2 
TERNTOMES 

The "QEI Territory" shall mean and include (i) all states in the United States other than those 
states included in the Quindar Territory; (ii) Mexico; and (iii) Taiwan 

The "Quindar Territory" shall mean and include (i) all provinces and territories of Canada; and 
(ii) the states of Alaska, Arizona, California, Colorado, Hawaii, Idaho, Montana, Nevada, 
Oregon, Utah, Washington and Wyoming. 

For purposes of determining whether a customer is in either of the Territories, reference shall be 
made to the geographic location where the master station of such customer is installed. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the Initial Period only: 

1. QEI shall retain all U.S. Government Accounts in those states of the United States 
forming part of the Quindar Territory as at the Closing Date for GSA Purchases. 

2. QEI shall be entitled, together with Quindar, to bid on U.S. federal government tenders in 
those states of the United States formine  art of the Ouindar Temtow. 

3. QEI shall be entitled to retain all "add on" business for the following installations: 
- --- - 

4. QEI shall be entitled to retain the tone hardware business and customer base in those 
states of the United States forming part of the Quindar Territory. 

'' a - 



GENERAL ASSIGNMENT OF TRADEMARKS 

BE IT KNOWN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT: 

WHEREAS, QEI, MC., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State 
of New Jersey, with offices at 60 Fadem Road, Springfield, New Jersey, (hereinafter referred to 
as the "Assignor"), is the sole and exclusive owner of certain trademarks and trademark 
registrations, to wit: 

TRADEMARK 

"QUICS" 
"QUINDAR" 
"QUICS" (Stylized Letters) 
" Q U M D r n R "  

; and 

WHEREAS, QUINDAR PRODUCTS LTD., with offices at 106 Rayette Road, Concord, 
Ontario, is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of Ontario (hereinafter refened to 
as "QPL"; the Assignor and QPL are jointly and collectively hereinafter referred to as the 
"Assignees") and the Assignees are desirous of jointly acquiring al l  right, title and interest of the 
Assignor in such trademarks, trademark registrations and the goodwill symbolized thereby; I , 

- 

NOW,'I'HEREFORE, the Assignor, for One Dollar ($1.00), and other good and v a l k l d  
cansideration, has sold and assigned, and does hereby sell and assign to the Assignees, the; 
successors, asdgns and legal representatives, the entire right, title and interest of the Assignor in. 
and to the aforesaid trademarks, d e d ~ g i s t r a t i o n s  and the goodwill symbolized thereby. 

The Assignor hereby constitutes and appoints the Assignees, their successors and assigns, 
the true and l a m  attorney 'or attorneys of the Assignor, with full power of substitution, for it 
and in its name and stead or othenvise, but at the sole expense and on behaif of and for the 
benefit of the Assignees, their successors and assigns, to institute and prosecute from time to 
time, any proceedings at law, in equity or otherwise, that the Assignees, their successors o_r 
assigns, may deem proper in order to assert or enforce any claim, right or title of any kind in and 
to the assets hereby sold and transferred, and to defend and compromise any and all actions, suits 
or proceedings in respect of any said assets, and, generally to do any and all such acts and things 
in relation thereto as Assignees, their successors or assigns shall deem advisable, including, but 
not limited to, the execution and delivery of any and all assignments and instruments in 
furtherance hereof. The Assignor declares that the appointment hereby made and the powers 
hereby granted are coupled with an interest and shall be irrevocable by the Assignor. 

This instrument and all of its terms shall inure to the benefit of and shall bind the 
Assignor and Assignees and their respective successors and assigns. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Assignor has caused this ,instrument to be executed and 
delivered by its proper officers thereunto duly authorized. 

Dated: as of November 12, 1993 

ATTEST: QEI, INC. (ASSIGNOR) 

Terence 4. ~rent;$ll 
Vice-President 

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO ) 
) 

MUNICIPALITY OF ) 
.METROPOLITAN TORONTO ) 

On this 12th day of ~overnber, 1993 before me personally came cwr%.)kfL 
and'Tm-uto me known, who, after being by me duly sworn, did &po?md say that 
they are the f 3 r ~ s  LC&,& and \/KO - PKS tch&  , respectively, of QEI, Inc., the 
Assignor named in the within instrument; and that they signed their respective names thereto by 
order of the board of directors of said corporation. 
- - ~ ~ . ~ p ~ ~ ~ ~ - p  ~ p-.ppp-.... . 

WITNESS my hand and seal at office this 12th day of November, 1993. 

/ 

of Ontario 





- Owner 

QUICS QEI 

QUINDAR 

Trade Mark R 'sttalion Numlx~ Descnpt~on o 
. . .  

e ~ i  f Wares 

I [expired] 

computers; computer peripherals; parts therefor, computer 
operating programs; computer utility programs; computer 
programs for use in monitoring, metering and control of the 
flow of fluids, gases, electrical power, and traffic in 
transportation systems; and instruction manuals distributed 
therwith 

line of telemetering products com$sed of; various plug-i 
mduies, which contain switches and/or inciicator lights to 
transmit or receive signals relating to the status of events, and 
are thereby used to collect data or monitor or control certain 
processes, including frequency domain multiplexing, point 
status scanning, analog control and data transmission, audio 
tone signaling and digital signaling 

telemetering systems and components, namely, supervisory 
control systems and components 



I1 APPLICATIONS 

All current, pending and proposed applications for the registration of trade r in Canada and 
the United States in respect of the QUICS IV hardware and sohare designs 

-- 



Survalent 
Technology 

SECTION 8 PROPOSED PROJECT PLAN 



SurvaIent 
Technology 

The following proposed Project Plan shows the main milestones in weeks after award of contract. 
The time milestone indicates the end of the project activity. The total project completion time will 
not exceed . 

PHASE l 

Weeks 
after Contract 

Week 0 

Week 1 

Week 2 

Week 2 

Week 4 

Week 6 

Week 8 

Week 10 

Week 10 

Week 10 

Week 11 

Week 12 

Week 13 

Week 14 

Week 16 

Week 18 

Week 18 

Week 18 

Week 18 

Week 20 

Proiect Activitv or Milestone 

STC Bid Proposal accepted by City, P.O. issued 

STC internal review of P.O. 

Project kick-off meeting 

Project schedule submitted to City 

BOM (Bill of Materials) submitted to City 

City's Training on DatabaselDisplays Generation 

Hardware for SCADA System received at STC 

Hardware staging at testing at STC 

Received copy of existing City's databaseldisplays copy 

Standard software installed on system at STC 

Application software installed on system at STC 

Converted City's Database and Displays 

Internal FAT testing completed at STC 

FAT at STC 

System shipment to City 

System hardware installed at City 

STC software installation on site 

Operators' training on site 

System commissioning on site 

System Cutover by City 



Survalent 
Technology 

SECTION 9 MAINTENANCE SUPPORT DESCRIPTION 



Survalen t 
Technology 

TO: All SLIRVALENT Stations Users 

FAX #: 
SUBJECT: Annual Maintenance & Support prices 
DATE: December 19,2003 
PAGES: 4 

Standard Annual Software SupportlMaintenance: 

Svstem Size Windows Based A l ~ h a  Based VAX Based 
Single Remote workstation or HMI 1,500 $/year 

Single Server 4,500 $/year 7,350 $/year 15,000 $/year 
(Non-dual redundant system) 
Plus number of control room workstations 

Dual redundant system 7,850 $/year 9,800 $/year 20,000 $/year 
Plus number of control room workstations 

Quad redundant 14,850 $/year 17,880 $/year NA 

1 Per control room workstation 750 $/year 750 $/year 750 $/year 

Standard service includes: 
Business hour Hot-line support, telephone support from 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM EST 
Support phone number is 905-826-5000 or 905-826-7237 ext 152 or ext 247 
Software enhancements. 
Annual software upgrade2 Keep your system as new as the day it was installed 
Latest revision of PC software (Worldview, Qwindows or SCADA Explorer, ODBC, 
Transcription, etc ...) available for download at any time from our Web page 
Effective January 1,2004, emergency after hours support 

Phone number is 41 6-893-7276 
A 500 $ activation/utilization fee will be charged per call 

Control Room Workstation Definition: A workstation that is primary used to 
operate/control the SCADA system. 

For SURVALENT application software already purchased only. A once a year upgrade 
includes functional enhancements to the application modules already installed by the 
user. The upgrade will be scheduled within 90 days of support contract purchase. Any 
required hardware or operating system upgrades will be provided at an additional 
charge. 

3 ~ h e  activation/utilization fee will be charged regardless of the nature of the problem. 



Survalent 
Technology 

Supportlmaintenance is for hardwarelsoftware that exists at the time of contract renewal. 
There will be an additional charge for any support required for installing or configuring 
new hardware or software applications. 

Discounts for Annual Maintenance Contracts: 

> 25% discount off of the annual maintenance fee if customer signs up for 3-year 
maintenance contract. Payment terms are net 30 days for the full 3-year 
amount. 

> 3% discount if customer has a signed STC license agreement on file. 

> 2% discount if the customer verifies and signs the attached system diagram and 
configuration specification. (or Users Group form if no system diagram) 

Non- Active Customers: 

> A customer will be considered not active if they are not on warranty or a 
supportlmaintenance ag reement. 

> A non-active customer will: 

o Not receive any hot line or technical support. 
o Not be able to access customer only area of the Survalent WEB site. 
o Not be able to download any PC based or Worldview application patches 

or enhancements. 
o Not be able to purchase any additional applications or upgrades to their 

system 
o Not receive after hours emergency support under any circumstances 

> For a customer to re-instate maintenancelsupport, they must pay the 
maintenancelsupport contract fees retroactive to January 1, 2003. 



t 
Technology 

Frequently Asked Questions 

Q. How do the discounts work? 
A. If you have a dual redundant Alpha system with two non server control room 

workstations, purchase a 3 year agreement, a signed license agreement on 
file, and a current hardware and configuration data on file then your price 
would work out as follows: 
Base 29,400 $ Dual redundant price for three years 
Plus 4,500 $ Two control room workstations for three years 

33,900 $ 
Less 8,475 $ 3 year 25% agreement discount 
Less 1,017 $ 3%, signed software license agreement discount 
Less 678 $ 2%, signed configuration & system diagram document 
Total 23,730 $ 

Q. What if I don't want annual hotline supporVmaintenance now, but want to use 
it in the future? 
A. You have to pay for the maintenance at the current pricing retroactive to 
January 1,2003 

Q. Can I purchaseluse hot line support on an hourly basis? 
A. No 

Q. What if I have already signed a three agreement in 2002, do I have access to 
the 24 hour hot line support number? If yes, at what price? 
A. Yes, you have access to the 24 hour hot line support number. There is no 
additional charge other than the utilization charge of 500 $ per call. 

Q. What if I need to use the 24 hours hot line support nurr~ber as a result of 
problem with the software, do I still need to pay the 500 $ activationlutilization 
fee? 
A. Yes, regardless of the reason why, if you use the after hours support, you 
must pay the 500 $ activationlutilization fee 

Q. What kind of support should I expect after hours? 
A. The primary objective of the after-hours support program is to restore 
operation of mission-critical functionality. Some effort would be made for 
the loss of a workstation or the standby, but not as much as for a true 
emergency (e.g. loss of both servers, or the loss of alarms, a communication 
line, or the ability to perform controls, etc). If a problem can be 
corrected by means of an existing software patch, that patch will be sent via 
modem or e-mail. If a new software patch is required, an effort will be made to 
come up with a workaround until the developers are available the next day. 



Survalen t 
Technology 

Q. What will the maintenance charge per HMI if I am already using Survalent in 
my Scada control room. 
A. If you are already running Survalent as your Scada system, any additional 
substation HMl's will be charged at a rate of 750$ per installed substation as 
opposed to the 1,500$ per site. 



Survalent 
Technology 



Survalent 
Technology 

ATTACHMENT 1 - SYSTEM FUNCTIONAL 

DESCRIPTION 



Corporate 

Overview 

Survalent Technology is a leading pro- 
vider of SCADA software and hardware for auto- 
mation solutions. Survalent delivers proven, reli- 
able SCADA master software, station controllers, 
service and support to help companies worldwide 
gather data, display information, and control their 
systems. 

Our Mission: 
Our mission is to provide the most 

Reliable 
Cost-Effective 
User-Friendly 

SCADA software and support throughout the world. 

Experience: 
Survalent Technology has been supplying leading- 
edge SCADA systems and accessories since 
1964. With over 175 man-years of SCADA devel- 
opment experience and a 100% customer reten- 
t ion record, we are the premier supplier of SCADA 
systems to the automation industry. 

Everything in life should be easy 
Survalent 
Technology including your SCADA system. 



Markets Served: 
Electric 
Water 

Oil and Gas 
Transportation 

Industrial 

Mission critical systems with industry leaders, 
such as: Sho-Me Power G&T, WAPA, Electricites 
NC, Tampa Bay Water, and Suncor Energy. 

Our staff of industry experts understand customer 
requirements. Our applications provide solutions 
to customer needs. With consulting and represen- 
tation partners throughout the world, Survalent 
provides unequaled service and support. 

Survalent is I S 0  9001 Quality Certified 

Survalent 
Technology 

Survalent Technology 
2600 Argentia Road 

Mississauga, Ontario 
L5N5V4Canada 

Visit Survalent Technology at 
www.survalent.com or  call 905.826.5000 



WOI-Idview is a world map graphical user interface (GUI) for both the 
Windows and VlYS SCADA systems. WorldView itself runs on Windows 
95/98/NT/2000/XPI and operates as a client to the SCADA host computer. The 
WorldView application uses its own local copy of the map (stored on the PC's 
hard drive), on which it overlays dynamic analog and status data that is retrieved 
from the host computer. Operator actions, such as control and alarm 
acknowledgement, are forwarded to the host computer for execution. 

MFl le  Edit Wevl NMOULQ MUD Notes SCS Alarm S O D A  Wndow Helo - d l x  

- ~~ ~ -. 
f i r  H O I ~ ,  press FI X : B ~ . Z ~ Z , ~ Z V  Y : P D , D ~ ~ . ~ ~ Q  I i i s m *  iw I-- 21 zoneis-- 6 ~ i h o s t ~ i i 7 i o O l ~ ~ d i ~  

WorldMap Displayconsists of a t-~igh-resolution vector drawing of the owner's 
system, with the current analog values and status of devices superimposed on 
the drawing. It features sophisticated navigation tools such as pan, zoom (both 
continuous and incremental) and automatic declutter. Navigation within the map 
is a local function in the sense that the PC does not have to communicate with 
the host computer to modify the current view of the map except to obtain new 
point values. 

Survalent Technology, 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 5V4 
Tel: (905) 826-7237, Fax: (905) 826-7144) sales@survalent.comJ www.survalent.com 



The map allows the operator to select displayed objects in order to issue or 
inhibit controls, acknowledge or block alarms, or modify operating parameters 
(such as limits). The world map display system accommodates a coordinate 
space of up to I billion by I billion world ur~its. 

Alarm Displayshows a user-customizable list of alarms that are in the system. 
An operator can acknowledge and/or block alarms and to control the operation 
of the audible alarm from within the alarm display. The alarm selection criterion 
includes: 

Chronological or reverse 
chronological order of 
display 

Filtered by station, zone 
group and alarm priorities 

Typeface and size of text in 
the alarm displays 

View (and be able to 
unblock) blocked alarms 

View any combination of 
active, cleared, 
acknowledged or 
unacknowledged alarms 

Users can create an alarm color-coding scheme that colors alarms by any 
combination of priol-ity, and by active, cleared, acknowledged, unacknowledged 
status. 

OperatorSummary Display. This display shows operations messages that 
have been logged by the system. The display can be configurable by the 
operator via the following parameters: 

Filtered by alarm priority 

Filtered by station 

Filtered by zone group 

Filtered by specific database point 

Filtered by time range 

Typeface and size of text 

Survalent Technology, 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 5V4 
Tel: (905) 826-7237, Fax: (905) 826-7144, sales@survalent.com, www.survalent.com 

092703 



Tabular Data Display lists each station's status and analog points including the 
point names, descriptions, current values, quality code, and other parameters 
froni the database (e.g. transition counts and alarm limits).. This display allows 
the operator to view points on a per station basis and servers as an operatirlg 
display in the sense that the operator can perform point operations such as 
control, tag, alarm acknowledge or block, as well as modify operating limits and 
reset transition counts. 

Trend Graphs display pixel-resolution graphs of historical and ad hoc data. The 
graphs are displayed in separate windows that can be moved, re-sized, and 
minimized to an icon. The graph displays are interactive, and allow the operator 
to quickly adjust the time frame, duration, and resolution of the graph. 

A trend graph window can plot up to five points from a common historical 
dataset, or use the "ad hoc" trending capability allows that trends of points 
whose values are not being collected in historical datasets. I n  such trend graphs, 
the samples can be collected in memory only, and are discarded when the trend 
graph is disrrrissed. Ad hoc trend graphs are definable with or without points, at 
the user's option. When invoking an ad hoc trend graph that is defined without 
points, the user can select up to five points to trend by browsing for them. 
Sample rates as low as I second is supported. 

Adjustments possible through the pull-down menus and/or tool bar shall include 
the specificaion of: 

- 

Dataset from which to draw 
the points 

Points in the dataset that are 
to be traced 

Two scale factors, each point 
being assigned to one scale 
factor or the other 

Type of graph (e.g. area, line, 
histogram, 3D) 

Color of each trace, type of 
point, width of line 

., . , . ,  r~ ,X ~ - .  - 
Load 

420mr I I I I I 

I-WSLOL~AD ; .'SYSTEM LOAD [ - m T L O A D  : ' S Y w  LOAD " 01 

I-SYS$&OAo ' 'SYSTEM LOAD ' 02hWI994 H [-SYSS&OAD : 'SYSTEM LOAD " 02rrm994 

11994/03/08 lh00.M 1-JTop 

Color and spacing of grid, color of background 

Number of consecutive samples to average together (compresses the 
graph to show more time) 

Survalent Technology, 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 5V4 
Tel: (905) 826-7237, Fax: (905) 826-7144, sales@survalent.com, www.survalent.com 

092703 



Comparison Graphsfeature allows traces to be displayed in from multiple days 
in the same graph. Traces are plotted from left to right, with the time origin at 
the extreme left of the graph as a fixed time of day. The purpose of this is to 
allow you to observe the build-up of the current day's trace (e.g. load curve) 
against that of other days in the past (typically the days that contained last 
week's peak or the current month's peak, etc). 

Interadve Dialog Boxes respond to operator selections for control. The 
dialog boxes are context sensitive, and present a customized control panel of 
pushbuttons that are appropriate to the item that is selected. I f  the item selected 
is a point, the title bar of the dialog box will display the point's name and 
description. Some functions (e.g. tagging) bring up additional dialog boxes. The 
operator functions that can be performed using the dialog boxes include: 

h c e s  ] X Axis ] yl Axis 1 Y2 Axis I Display 1 Host 1 

Open/Close/Execute 

Tag/Untag/Group Tag 

-Trace SWDA P o i n t s  

1 : p -AYI t; Y2 r 
2: JSYS$,LOAD . "SYSTEM LOAD Y l  t; Y2 r 

Cancel I & ~ b  I Help 1 

+ Enable Trace Comparison - 

3: 

4: 

5: 

Alarm Acknowledge 

Alarm Block 

Set Manual (status points) 

Note 

- v 

F~xed Date 

SYS$,LOAD : "SYSTEM LOAD Y1 t; Y2 r 
,SYS$,LOAD . "SYSTEM LOAD " Y1 t; Y2 r 

Y1 r Y2 r 

'.'a. 

301 BT ACB w 
set ~ a n u a l  ...] 3 Alarm Ackn I 

Activate 1 Alarm Block I 
Set Alarm Limits (analog points) 

ActivatelDeactivate 

Survalent Technology, 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 5V4 
Tel: (905) 826-7237, Fax: (905) 826-7144, sales@survalent.com, www.survalent.com 

1 1/30/1994 3 

S u n p l a p a p o d m - n  

I I 

Deactivate [+ : I~  11 I 11 ,-A I TagNntag ... ( 
r G a  

F~xed Date A I- 
F~xed Date 1 2/22/1994 3 

]Current Date v 

Start Date Start Time 



SCADA Explorer is a friendly database editing environment for tlie Windows 
SCADA System. An intuitive graphical environment provides the user with ready 
access to ALL configuration settings. 

File Helo 

Stations 
,mmn,cation Lines 

12 , R tus 
r+ 9 leds 
I+, @ Data Exchange 
I? a Polnt Resources 
I+, 1 Alarms 
kt a Automat~on 
k, a Access Control 
I+, @ Pager Services 
14 Reports 
14 Tags & Guarantees 
I a System 

H~storlcal Data Sets 

17 NT17 BEACH TIS 
NT20 UO HAWK TIS 
NT24 GAGE TIS 
HT26 NEWTON TIS 
NT27 KENILWORTH TIS 
NT28 ELGlN TIS 
NT29 LAKE TIS 

NAC4 HORNING TIS 
NT48 STlRTON TIS 
l 4 X O  BIRMINGHAM TIS 
ABERDEEN SIS 

AGC SYSTEM POINTS 

Since the development time is one of the most important contributors to total 
cost for any HMIISCADA project, these tools are seriously considered by our 
users when evaluating the overall cost of the system, not only on the initial stage 
but also when considering future enhancements, expansions, and day to day 
maintenance. 

f , - "  .." 
~ ~ ~ n e r a t  1 Alarm T Slaves r IED 1 

Experienced automation and 
control users agree on the 
fact that the tools provided 
within SCADA Explorer have 
allowed them to save 
significant integration time. 
Complete systems have been 
integrated in a fraction of the 
time it would have taken to 
complete the project with 
other SCADA systems (in 
some cases, the total 
integration time is as little as 
20-25% of the time required 
with other systems). 

.General I Name l y d  ,301 BA 

1 Description ) ~ K V  301 BT BLUE AMPS 

I I Eng.Units ]AMPS Scale Factor 1 0.48852 

User Type ] 4KV BA A 
Device Class )Analog A 
Zone Group /ZONES 1 TO 8 

Format Code l ~ n ~ o r m a t ~ l  3 

I I Jog Amount 1 1  1 7  L --.___---- -l 
Options - -- - - 

Ann Delay uamP 7 Privilege mode r ED* ] 
Meter Point Excep. Window 7 I;? SOE event 

- 
Telemetry 

RTU 
Address IABERDEEN S/S RTU 1 1 E ~ Y I  ~ a m e  1 Type 10 

Survalent Technology, 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 5V4 
Tel: (905) 826-7237, Fax: (905) 826-7144, sales@survalent.com, www.survalent.com 



Survalen t 
Technology 

Operations and Outage Accounting records all status changes and control 
operations on an event data file. 

An Equipment Editor allows you to specify the devices for which accounting is 
required. An Operations/Outage Accounting module, which runs every day, scans 
the event data file for the previous day and generates tlie required accounting 
data. Special-purpose report modules generate the Device Operations and 
Outage reports. 

For operations accounting, the Accounting module counts operations found in 
the event data file. Separate counts are maintained for the number of operations 
caused by operator control and the number of operations caused by protective 
relaying. The program raises an alarm for any operation counts that have 
reached or exceeded user-defined warning limits. 

For each breaker, the Device Operations report includes the time and date of the 
most recent operation, the number of days elapsed since the last operation, and 
the number of operations (caused by operator control, caused by protective 
relaying, and the total). 

For outage accounting, the Accounting module produces a daily outage summary 
file. It also updates the total accumulated outage (duration) value for each 
breaker. Outages with durations of less than one minute and outages caused by 
operator control are excluded from the Outage report and from the total 
acc~~m~llated outage time. 

For each outage, the Outage report includes the time and date of the start of the 
outage, the duration of the outage, and the last phase currents available 
immediately prior to the outage. 

Survalent Technology, 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 5V4 
Tel: (905) 826-7237, Fax: (905) 826-7144, sales@survalent.com, www.survalent.com 



MasterjSlave Alarm allows alarms to be filtered so only the real cause of the 
problem is presented on the alarm display. It allows the user to define a 
hierarchy of priniary and secondary (master/slave) alarm point relationships. 
These relationships may be used for Alarm Suppression, and for Group 
Acknowledgement. 

I f  the alarm suppression function is enabled for a particular master/slave 
relationship, then as long as the master point is in the alarm state, alarms on its 
slave points are si~ppressed (i.e. the alarm severity is reduced to zero). The 
suppression may be specified to be either time-limited or indefinite. 

I f  the group acknowledgement function is enabled for a particular master/slave 
relationship, then whenever an alarm is acknowledged on the master point, its 
slaves are acknowledged as well. 

Each master can have any number of slaves, each slave can have ally number of 
masters, and a slave can also be a master and have slaves of its own. 

Survalent Technology, 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 5V4 
Tel: (905) 826-7237, Fax: (905) 826-7144, sales@survalent.com, www.survalent.com 

101103 



IED Wizard is an application that automates the creation of the database points 
for supported IEDs. The database points are created for the SCADA system, and 
the mapping can be automatically downloaded to the SCOUT Station Controller 
for an IED that is slaved to the Station Controller. 

Device: Form dC Recloser 

Version: standard 

~. . . 

Survalent Technology, 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 5V4 
Tel: (905) 826-7237, Fax: (905) 826-7144, sales@survalent.com, www.survalent.com 



External Clock Interface allows the SCADA master to synchronize its 
corr~puter time to that of the external (GPS) clock every minute. An alarm is 
raised if the SCADA system cannot read the clock. 

When outfitted with a Frequency and Time Deviation Monitor option, the clock 
provides, in addition to a GPS-based reference time, the following data: 

Line freauencv (in mHz) 
~ r e ~ u e n ; ~  deiiit ion frdm 
60 Hz (in mHz) 
System time based on line 
frequency 
Accumulated time 
deviation (in milliseconds) 
between the reference 
time and the system time 

all of which are stored into the 
SCADA master database points. 
The system allows you to preset 
the time deviation to the clock. 
Both the frequency deviation and 
the time deviation points may 
used as inputs to Automatic 
Generation Control. 

External Clock Interface can also 
contain an RFC-868 compliant 
time server that allows other subsystems on the network to synchronize their 
time to that of the SCADAIHMI system. Any client can update its time as 
required by sending a UDP packet to port 37 on the SCADA master and picking 
up a LlDP reply packet containing the SCADAIHMI system's time in GMT. 

. . *.- - 
Clock - - 

p a .  
Type I ~ r u e ~ l m e  NMC.100 

Status  one> 
L - .  - 

Communication- - - 

Port Swltch  one> 

Host Port ] 

Update ~nterval 7 sec Correct~on Llmlt 17 sec 
.- -- _ _ - - -1 

1 - - - .- - - 

System T~me  one> 
Time Devlatlon l < ~ o n e >  

& ( set 

I 
- 

~ S V L I I ~  I I )  

Devlatlon ]<Nonw _I 
Frequency I < ~ o n e >  _I 

Dual redundant GPS clock configuration ready, in case of primary clock or 
communications failure. 

Survalent Technology, 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 5V4 
Tel: (905) 826-7237, Fax: (905) 826-7144, sales@survalent.com, www.survalent.com 

092703 



Event Data Recording application provides a facility to record the following 
events: 

all status changes 
all changes for selected analog points (can be calculated points) 
all control actions 
all sequence of events (SOE) data 
all radio load shed commands 

The event data is stored 011 disk in an ordine data file that can contain up to 30 
days of event data. Sequence of events data is time stamped to milliseconds 
(subject to the capabilities of the RTU). All other events are time stamped to 
seconds. 

For PI-lrposes of analysis, you can request reports of event data filtered by: 

event type 
point name (with wildcards) 
date and time range 

On command, or on schedule, online event data may be dumped into offline files 
for backup to tape. These files may be recovered at a later date and reported on 
in the same way as for orbline event data. 

Survalent Technology, 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 5V4 
Tel: (905) 826-7237, Fax: (905) 826-7144, sales@survalent.com, www.survalent.com 

092703 



Disturbance Capture http://www.suwalent.comlproductslApplicationsldistcap.h~ 

Survalent 
Technology - 

Newsletter Siqn-up 7- Request Quotation Book an Appointment Technical SUDDOI~ Users' Group 

New Application 
- . 
I i Home 
I 

1 New Application 
1 Back 1 Disturbance Capture 



Disturbance Capture 

Disturbance Capture, available for both VMS and Windows SCADA, allows the user to analyze 
the entire state of the system leading up to, and after a disturbance. All changes in analog and status 
points system-wide are recorded when a user defined disturbance is detected. 

Features: 

Users can define the pre- and post-disturbance duration and sampling rates. 

The pre-disturbance duration can be set from 1 to 15 minutes, with a sampling rate of 15 
seconds to 15 minutes. 
The post-disturbance duration can be set from 1 to 15 minutes, with a sampling rate of 5 
seconds to 15 minutes 

In the example below, all status and analog points system-wide are sampled at 15 second intervals. 
When a disturbance is detected, the analog sample rate is increased to 5 seconds for 5 minutes. After 
5 minutes, a capture file is created. The capture file contains the 15-second samples for 5 minutes 
before the disturbance ,plus the 5 minutes' worth of 5 second samples recorded immediately after the 
disturbance. 

The Disturbance Capture editor allows the user to specify which points can trigger disturbance 
captures, and for each point, what would signal a disturbance. Points can be drag-and-drop into the 
disturbance capture settings box, and right-clicked to set the state or limit. 

Status can trigger a disturbance capture for a change of state: 

Abnormal 
Open 
Closed 
Any change 

Analog points can trigger a disturbance capture for any limit violation: 

Low Pre-Emergency 
High Pre-Emergency 
Low or High Pre-Emergency 
Low Emergency 
High Emergency 
Low or High Emergency 
Low Unreasonable 
High Unreasonable 
Low or High Unreasonable 
Any Limit Violation 

Disturbance Capture keeps a log of all disturbances, detailing the date and time of the disturbance, the 



Disturbance Capture 

point that triggered the disturbance, the reason code, and the recorded length pre- and 
post-disturbance. For Windows SCADA, the Disturbance Capture settings and log are accessed 
through SCADA Explorer. 

3 a~~fai2~1~fi e03 4 7 ~ ~  A R I ~ R ~  u 60 €71 
4 41:013nm5 BO.I:=AM ~ 6 . 1 2 ~ ~  4 60 rn 

t l ~ r l m e l  Ddc Sd: 
- DDluhncr Crplu* 

There is no limit (other than that imposed by disk space) on the number of disturbance capture files 
that can be accumulated. 

Disturbance Capture includes the Point Capture Viewer, which allows users to analyze points from 
anywhere in the system, for a given disturbance. 

The Point Capture Viewer also allows the user to select any disturbance file and export it to Microsoft 
Excel for further analysis. 

Benefits: 

Allows the user to analyze the entire state of the system leading up to, and after a disturbance 
Records all changes in analog and status points system-wide 
Define pre- and post-disturbance duration and sampling rates 
Specify which points can trigger disturbance captures, and for each point, what would signal a 
disturbance 
Includes Point Capture Viewer to analyze points from anywhere in the system 
Export any disturbance file to Microsoft Excel for further analysis 



Disturbance Capture 

Click Here to Request a Quotation for Disturbance Capture! 

I Contact Survalenl 
Copyright 02004 Su~alent Technology. 



Application 

1 Overview 

C0nf r01 Panel is a rapid graphical user interface (GUI) development tool for Worldview. It allows opera- 
I tors to interact with a graphic representation of an intelligent electronic device (IED), just like they were standing 

in front of it. It is based on a library of control panel templates designed for the most common lEDs available on 
the market. 

Features: 
For each IED in the station, you simply select the template and 
specify the station name of the IEQ. The Control Panel editor takes 
care of instantiating all offhe indications and controls. It can" be 
much simpler. If you don't quite like the templates that we provide, 
you can customize them or create new ones of your own. Control 
Panel allows you have an IED represented by an image on which 
dynamic elements are superimposed. These dynamic elements not 
only display current values of the points in the IED, but also allow 
you to issue mntrols and set~points. For HUlB appllications, it is par- 
ticularly useful to represent an IED in the SCADA map using a rep- 
resentation of the IED's front panel. This feature simplifies the learn 
ing process, and helps to overcome the initial reaction to operating 
from a computer rather than directly from the actual device. 

The Control Panel need not be a graphic of an IED, but can be a graphic of anything the user wants to superim- 
pose dynamic element on. For example, a picture of a pump can be used with indication and control points su- 
perimposed on the picture. Several graphic formats can be used, including .jpg, .gif, and .bmp. 
When used in coniunction with the IED Wizard, Control Panel 
greatly reduces the graphic development time of setting up IED's 
for the SCADA map. 

Benefits: 
Rapid SCADA GLll development tool 
Increases operator confidence in data from lEDs 
Reduces development time with pre-designed templates for 
common lEDs 
User configurable to create custom templates for any IED 
faceplate 
Supports multiple graphic formats, including .jpg, .gif, 
and .bmp. 

Survalen t 
Tcchnology 

Visit Survalent Technology at 
www.survalent.com or  call 905.826.5000 



Command Sequencing is an easy-to-use high-level programming language 
which is specifically designed to be used with SLIRVALENTB systems. I t  allows 
you to define and execute programs which use database points as variables. 
Command Sequence programs can be used for calculations, open-loop control or 
switching sequences and for closed-loop control. 

Features of the Command Sequencing language: 

Arithmetic and boolean operators and expressions. 
Circular, exponential and logarithmic fl-~nctions. 
IYinimum, maximum, absolute value and modulus functions. 
Delay, get time, get date functions. 
Conlparison and test with branch forward or backward to labels. 
Issue controls and setpoints, raise alarms and trigger reports. 
52 temporary variables per program. 
Arrays of constants or database points. 
Comments fields. 
Call other command sequences as subroutines. 
Execl~te user-written functions. 
Two-dimensional table lookup with planar interpolation. 
AGA-8 supercompressibility function. 

A command sequence program may be started and stopped from the command 
sequencing editor, or via a pushbutton menu in WorldViewB, or it may be 
triggered automatically by a status change. 

Applications of commalid sequencing have included hydro-electric generator 
control based on hydraulic tables, load curtailment via load shedding and voltage 
reduction and under-frequency load shedding. 

Survalent Technology, 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 5V4 
Tel: (905) 826-7237, Fax: (905) 826-7144, sales@survalent.com, www.survalent.com 



Web Server provides a web browser interface to your Windows SCADA system. 
The application includes SCADA Replicator, which provides real-time replication 
of the entire SCADA database to an SQL server. Access to SCADA system 
information can be shared enterprise wide, without user having to be trained to 
use WorldView operator interface. 

-------- -- .--.----- 

I 
B! &$ 

lil ~Zomrnun~ca(lon Lnec 

W MIFS 
It? 3 led:. 

Lti *r ALet:ns 

ltl @ Oprrab6rrs hrler;sagcs 

Lfl Reports 
It? Maps 

El 0 lz,aplls 
Ttl hdy Profilc 

The browser interface combines many of the common features that are available in 
both WorldView, and SCADA Explorer. You can drill-down for point, commur~ication 
line, RTU, IED, alarm, operation messages, and report information, as well as bring 
up interactive maps and graphs just as they are displayed in WorldView. 



Web Server displays alarm summaries, operation messages, and reports just as it 
does in Worldview. Preset views are included; however, you can create as many 
custom views and reports as needed. 



No client-side software is required to access the Web Server; all you need is a web 
browser (a free plug-in from Adobe is required to view SVG maps). 

Since Web Server is an off-loaded application, client workstations making request 
for SCADA information have no impact on the SCADA system itself. All request are 
made to the Web Server, which is up-to-date in real-time from Survalent's Replicator 
application. 



Switch Order Preparation application includes both switch orders and 
guarantees (guarantees are also commonly known as clearances). The Switch 
Order Preparation application is accessed through WorldView. For Windows 
SCADA systems, switch orders and guarantees are setup through SCADA 
Explorer. 

Check Open and Tag 

Check Open and Tag 

Check Open and Tag 

A switch order is a sequence of steps involving both switching operations and 
tags that produce conditions for which a guarantee may be issued. Each switch 
order can contain up to 200 steps. Both Order To Operate and Restoration 
Orders can be created, executed, and printed. 

Guarantees are database forms that allow you to define, issue and surrender 
condition guarantees complete with tags. Each guarantee can have up to 50 tags 
associated with it. 

Survalent Technology, 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 5V4 
Tel: (905) 826-7237, Fax: (905) 826-7144, sales@survalent.com, www.survalent.com 

101103 



Survalen t 
Technology 

Remote Alarm Annunciation adds the ability to send an e-mail and/or page 
for alarm messages. Users may define which points are annunciated in this 
fashion, and for each point, which alarms (e.g., which states for a status point 
and which limits for analog point). 

Pagers can be identified in up to eight groups, with up to 30 pagers per group. 
For each group, the user can specify the telephone nurr~ber of the paging 
computer, and the alarm priorities and areas of responsibilities of the alarms that 
are to be sent to those pagers. The same alarm may be directed to multiple 
pager groups. 

The user can define a schedule for remote alarm annunciation so that it becomes 
active automatically after business hours and deactivates automatically in the 
morning. Users may also specify: 

annunciation time delay, so that if someone is in the building but not in 
the control room, he/she will have time to come back to the control room and 
respond to the alarm before someone is paged 

re-annunciation time inten/a( such that if the alarm is not acknowledged 
after this time interval, the page will be re-issued. 

Survalent Technology, 2600 Argentia Road, Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 5V4 
Tel: (905) 826-7237, Fax: (905) 826-7144, sales@survalent.com, www.survalent.com 

101103 



Currently supported protocols by operating system: 

OpenVMS Windows63 

P DNP 3.0 (Serial and TCPIIP) P DNP 3.0 (Serial and TCPIIP) 
P IEC-870-5-101 P Modbus (Serial and TCPIIP) 

P UCA2.0 P QUlN 
P Modbus (Serial and TCPIIP) P QUlCS lV 
P QUlN P QPLH2 
P QUlCS lV P Tejas Series 5 
P QPLH2 P Allen Bradley DFI 
P Tejas Series 3 and 5 

P Landis & Gyr 8979 
P Willowglen 

P Systems Northwest SCOMMI I 
P Allen Bradley DFI 

P Texas Instruments TlWAY 
P Wesdac 

P RTC 1032 
P DACP 

Survalent Technology is continuously developing protocol interfaces in  order to keep our 
customers' systems open and up to  date. If you are looking for a protocol that is not listed 
above, please check with our Technical Department as this is just a partial list of the protocols 
available with our systems. 

Su~alent Technology 
5600 Argentia Road 
Mississauga, ON L5N 5V4 

www.survalent.com 

Revised 4/1/2003 

Phone 905.826.5000 
Fax 905.826.7144 

sales@su~alent.corn 



Survalent 
Technology 

SCADA MASTER STATION 

TECHNICAL DESCRIPTION 

IMPORTANT NOTE 

THE FOLLOWING IS A STANDARD DESCRIPTION OF OUR SCADA 
MASTER STATION SOFTWARE. SOME OF THE APPLICATIONS 
AND PROGRAMS ARE OPTIONAL PACKAGES, AND ARE 
SUPPLIED UNDER A SEPARA TE LICENSE. 

PLEASE REFER TO THE ''LIST OF DELIVERABLES" IN THE 
PROPOSAL FOR THE SOFTWARE PACKAGES THAT ARE 
INCLUDED IN OUR BID. 



Survalent 
Technology 

Data Acquisition and Control 

The DNP 3.0 and Modbus protocols are standard features of our master station. We have 
communicated with many foreign devices using these protocols, including PML meters, 
ABB TPU and DPU relays, Schweitzer relays and other manufacturers' RTUs and PLCs. 

The Telegyr 8979 scan task is designed to communicate with one or more devices 
conforming to the Landis & Gyr Telegyr 8979 protocol over serial asynchronous 
communication lines. Tejas Series V, QUICS IVY and Allen-Bradley protocols are also 
available. These scan tasks reside in the server computer; the user assigns each individual 
serial communication port to a specific protocol. Different devices can be mixed on the 
same communication line, as long as all of them are compliant with the published 
standards for that protocol. 

The parameters for control time-out, accumulator freeze, and all-data (integrity) polls are 
user-adjustable, using the system editors. For devices such as tap changers, the ability to 
do direct control is available. 

Sequence of Events Recording 

This feature is a standard package. Along with basic SOE, we also have an application 
for Event Data Recording. This allows recording of the following events: 

All status changes 
All changes for selected analog points 
All control actions 
All SOE data 

The events are stored on disk, with a capacity of 30 days storage. The file can then be 
filtered by event type, point name, and time and date range. 



Survalent 
Technology 

Areas of Responsibility 

The standard software has 128 Areas of Responsibility. Any combination of the 128 
zones may be assigned to each data base point, to each printer, to each operator, and to 
individual passwords. 

This provides the ability to restrict (or allow) certain functions, such as: 
Audible alarm annunciation 
Ability to acknowledge alarms 
Logging of alarms 
Defining which points are listed on alarm displays 
Control of field devices 
Tagging or un-tagging 

Alarms 

Below are two typical dialog boxes for an analog and a status point. The different fields 
allow Customization of alarm limits, priorities, and areas of responsibility. 

Point 
Name: / 4 ~  ,T2BV PID: 15030 

Point Type : ] ~ K V  BV Descri~tion: 172 BANK BLUE VOLTS 

Device Class : l ~ ~ e l 1 - 0 ~  POINT d v ZoneGroup: 1-A v 

CL RTU A B C 

Address: w] Engineering Units : 
I- Trend 

Window: 10d  Scale Factor: Zero Clamp : 7 
I- Auto-Load 

Format Code: Offset: 1 7  Jog Amount : 1 1 '  
I 

ulallll 

Lower 

Unreas. Emerg. Pre-Emerg. 

Limit. 120001 2160 
Severity : [XSijwd 

voice : lort] 1 

Normal 

11y 

Upper 
Pre-Emerg. Emerg. Unreas. Rate Of Change 

1 2 5 2 0 1 m  l iEE 
I- Positive 

Negative 

I 

: 1- 69 Annunc. Delay : 1 0 9  [Secl 

Task Name : ( Meter Point : 7 1 



Survalent 
Technology 

I 

Descr~pt~on : 302 BT ACB 

Telemetry 

CL RTU A B C D Format Code. 

Address / - - i ? J ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  Normal State ]A (0/1 I 
C0ntr01-0 Jx I W ~ ~ ~ t ~ o l  ~nerlln$lval: 7 _I I 
Controll ' 1- ( 8Y Response Tlmeout : 1 [Ses] 

-Alarm 
~2 u u N1 ,U ,D,U U ,C , , , 

State0 State 1 State 2 State 3 1 
Severties . ] l ~ ~ j - g  Alarm Format Code: Refresh1 

Voice Codes 17 1 TaskName: 7 
~ r e f ~ x  : Prefix-Suffix Code : ) ~efresh l  

suffix . ) OPEN Meter Point : 7 1 
Annunciation Delay . [Sec] 

All alarm lists are also Customizable for color, font, chronology, and format. Any alarm 
can also be selected as an input to the paging system, which uses a modem to access a 
Paging Provider. 

Historical data and Hierarchical Data Collection 

By allotting 1 GB of disk space, up to 160,000,000 historical points can be stored on line, 
using the system disk (not off-line, as with a tape or CD.) 

The system provides a historical data collection facility that allows the user to define the 
points that are to be sampled, the sample frequency and how long to retain the sample 
data. In each dataset, the oldest samples should be overwritten by the newest. 

The collected historical data can be graphed, reported, exported to Excel (using the 
optional Excel export function) and transcribed to relational databases (using the optional 
transcription program). 

The historical data software is capable of sampling at intervals as low as 1 second. There 
is no upper bound on the duration of samples held within each dataset, other than the size 



Survalent 
Technology 

of the disk file used to store the historical data. This file is configurable to accommodate 
up to 160 million samples. 

The historical data software allows the user to specify recording of statistics in the sample 
records. These statistics include time averages, summations, maximums and minimums, 
and times of maximums and, minimums, and are based on user-settable observation 
intervals. 

The system also allows the user to create "secondary" datasets that extract information 
from primary datasets. For example, a primary dataset could contain 15-second samples 
for several days. A secondary dataset could extract daily maximums and minimums, as 
well as the times of the maximums and minimums, and record these for several years. 

Calculations 

The system includes a periodic calculations program that allows the user to define both 
arithmetic and boolean calculations. 

The built-in functions that are available include the following: 
Arithmetic (+, -, *, I ) operations 
Boolean (AND, OR, XOR, NOT) operations 
Comparisons (GT, LT, EQ, etc) 
Trigonometric functions (sine and cosine) 
Exponential and natural logarithm 
General digital filter 
Minute/hourlyldaily/weeklylmonthly sample 
Minute/hourlyldaily/weekly/monthly reset 
Average over time 
Current date and time 
Accumulated time openlclosed 
Hourlyldaily maximum, minimum and average 
Normalized rate accumulation 
Interlock (inhibit control) 
Setpoint Deviation 
AGA-3 and AGA-7 corrected flow calculations (using either NX-19 or AGA-8) 
Electrical power functions (apparent KVA, current imbalance, total demand) 

In the list above, the sample functions copy values from one point to another. The reset 
functions reset point values to zero. The interlock function applies a control-inhibiting 
interlock (but not a tag) to a set of control points if an associated status point (typically 
telemetered by a key switch) is set. The setpoint deviation function calculates the 
difference between a setpoint and its corresponding feedback point, but delays the 
calculation for a user-settable time period after each new setpoint command. 



Survalent 
Technology 

It is also possible for the user to create Custom complex functions using expressions and 
a high-level language similar to or identical to that offered in the Command Sequencing 
option. 

Reports 

The system supports a report generation capability that allows the user a high level of 
flexibility in the definition, formatting and scheduling of database reports. The system 
allows the user to schedule reports for automatic printing or saving to hard disk files (for 
subsequent transfer to CD or tape). 

Report Definition 

A report editor allows the user to define the format of the report, selection criteria for the 
points to be included in the report, and information to be listed for the points selected for 
inclusion 

Point selection criteria for inclusion in a report include the following: 
points in specific "point type" categories 
points in different station groups 
points in specific zone(s) of responsibility 
points associated with a specific communication line 
points that are manually set 
analog values which are in overrange condition 
points that are tagged 
points in alarm condition 

The data that can be defined for inclusion in a report format include: 

point address, name, type, and description 
current value or status of the point 
daily minimum and maximum values plus the times of their occurrences 
analog point alarm limits (3 high, 3 low, rate of change, dead bands) 
analog point scaling factor and engineering unit label 
zones of responsibility assigned to a point 
status point transition count 
column or row subtotals and averages 

Reaort Schedulinq 
The system includes a scheduling facility that the operator can use to define the schedules 
and destinations for all reports. All reports defined by the user on the SCADA system are 
automatically listed on the report schedule display. 



Survalent 
Technology F 

It is possible to direct a scheduled report to multiple printers, one or more of which can 
be directories on disk. The operator has the ability to designate a backup printer to which 
reports will be automatically re-directed in the case of a printer failure. Any scheduled 
reports that cannot reach a hnctioning printer are spooled to hard disk files, which can be 
retrieved and printed at later time. 

Application-Generated Reports 
The report definition process allows for the easy integration of reports generated by 
external programs. The system includes report-generating applications for the following 
purposes: 

Operator Event Log. This application shall list the contents of the system event log, and allow 
filtering of the data by time range, alarm priority, zones, or restricted to any database point of 
interest. 
Tagged Devices Report. This application shall list all the points that are currently tagged in 
the  system by name, description and tag(s). For each tag the  dateltime stamp, tag type, and 
operator comments shall be listed. 
WorldView Page Report. This application shall print any defined view from the WorldView 
map (on a printer with suitable color graphics capability). 

The system allows operators to inhibit control of devices by means of a secure, multi- 
level tagging feature. This feature allows operators to apply up to eight tags to each point, 
each tag being stored with a datehime stamp and optional operator-entered description. 
Every tag and untag operation is logged. 

The user has the capability to configure a Custom set of tag types that are mapped to four 
basic types listed below: 

lnhibit ON and OFF controls 
lnhibit ON control only 
lnhibit OFF control only 
Information only (no control inhibit) 

For example, a tag type named "Hold Off' could be mapped to the "Inhibit ON control 
only" basic tag type. In the SCADA map, it is possible to create tables of symbols that 
are to be displayed on tagged points. If a point is tagged, the map displays the symbol 
that corresponds to the highest-level tag on the point. 

The system does not permit any means of bypassing the control inhibit caused by a tag. 
This applies to any and every application supplied by the vendor or written by the 
purchaser using the vendor's API. 



Survalent 
Technology F- 

A group tag function is also included that allows an operator to define a tag, select 
multiple points and apply the tag to all selected points. 

A typical "Tag" dialog box is shown below. 

301 BT ACB 0 I 
Tags 

r Modify I Bemove r Remove Group 

Type Tag # I Station Guarantee 

Description 

l~ rew 13 at station 

Editing 

The SCADA system database is defined and maintained by a set of interactive editors, 
which are accessible from the host computer and designated operator workstations. The 
editors are of consistent style, fill-in-the-blank format, and are supported by a detailed 
database manual that explains the format and purpose of all database fields. 

Database items to be edited in this way include the following: 

Communication Lines 
The definition of a communication line includes: 

name and description 

protocol 

line parameters (baud rate etc) or link parameters (e.g., IP address and port number) 

response timeout and retry count 

time between exception polls 

accumulator and integrity poll intervals 

associated status point which the scan task is to use to represent the status of the 
communication line (and which the operator can use to temporarily shut down the entire 
communication line) 

RTUs - 
The definition of an RTU includes: 

name and description 



Survalent 
Technology F 

communication line that the RTU is on 

analog points to be used to maintain communication statistics 

port switch status point (if the RTU is accessible via two ports at the master station) 

associated point which the scan task is to use to represent the status of the RTU (and which 
the operator can use to temporarily shut down polling of that RTU) 

Status Points (Indication and Control) 
It is possible to define a status point as indication or control or both. 

The definition o f  a status point includes: 

station 

point name and description 

user-defined point type (for reports and queries) 

zones of responsibility 

communication line and RTU that the status point is on 

point number within the RTU 

normal state (0 or 1) 

2-state or 4-state, with a variety of mappings of raw data into the database 

alarm severity ( I  - 5) for each state 

alarm format string 

alarm annunciation delay (if point clears before delay expires, no alarm is raised) 

enableldisable remote alarm annunciation for each state 

state strings to represent the states of the point (e.g., runninglstopped, openltravellclosed) 

open and close control numbers (if left blank, point is not controllable) 

control duration (for momentary controls) 

control response timeout (control failure alarm is to be raised if the point does not go to the 
expected state after a control) 

command strings for controls (e.g., runlstop, triplclose) 

Analog Values 
The definition o f  an analog point includes: 

station 

point name and description 

user-defined point type (for reports and queries) 

zones of responsibility 

communication line and RTU that the analog point is on 

point number within the RTU 

scale and offset 

engineering units string 



Survalent 
Technology F 

clamp to zero deadband 

jog amount (for setpoint controls) 

3 sets of nested upper and lower alarm limits, with separate deadbands and severity codes 
for each limit (in electrical systems, support for inverted nesting of limits for power factor 
points is required) 

rate of change alarm limit, with a severity code and positive and/or negative check options 

alarm annunciation delay (if point clears before delay expires, no alarm is raised) 

enableldisable remote alarm annunciation for each of the 6 alarm limits 

Remote console suwPort 

The system allows for a variety of workstations that are not directly connected to the 
SCADA Local Area Network. In all cases, the requirement is that all data and other 
system functionality be available on any workstation (subject to password control). 

For off-site workstations, we provide a modem interface. The workstations themselves 
are PC's, loaded with our Worldview software. By dialing in to the system modem, 
through one of the Terminal Servers, the remote PC will be connected to the LAN. In 
order to provide good update times for data, all the graphics are resident on the PC. There 
is no need to upload these from the server, over a phone line. Only point data is 
transmitted when requested, so the overall system performance is not compromised. 

A similar philosophy governs the use of the Customer's PC's that are connected to a 
corporate LAN. We provide a router as a firewall between the two LAN's. Again, the 
Customers PC's are loaded with Worldview and all the graphics. 

The Internet can be used as a communication medium, in addition to the techniques 
explained above. Suitable firewalls have to be provided at each end. 

Functionally, there is no difference between any of the approaches outlined here. All the 
remote equipment appears as just another workstation, no matter what physical 
connection is used. 

User Interface 

The operator interface software provides a single all-encompassing graphical view of the 
system, arranged schematically or geographically as defined by the user's own graphics. 
It is possible to navigate freely in this map, scrolling in two dimensions, and zooming in 
or out to view any location at any desired degree of magnification. The map contains 
static graphical information, as well as dynamic elements that reflect the information 
contained in the host computer's database. Database point values displayed by such 
dynamic elements may be either telemetered from RTUs or calculated by the host 
computer. 

Operator interaction with database points is by means of clicking the mouse on the 
dynamic map elements. This includes operations such as controlling field devices, setting 



Survalent 
Technology 

database values (e.g., alarm limits), acknowledging or blocking alarms, and tagging 
points to inhibit control. 

It is also possible to use elements on the map as pushbuttons to initiate pre-defined 
actions. These include, as a minimum, the ability to: 

bring up pop-up notes 
bring up trend graphs 
bring up images 
bring up Excel-based reports 
activate command sequences 
access records in other databases 
access other views within the map 

Views are specific rectangular areas within the map. It is possible to define any number 
of views in the map. The operator can go to a view by means of either a pushbutton or by 
selection from a list. To facilitate navigation through the list of views, it is possible to 
organize the list in a hierarchical set of named folders. 

The map supports "layers" which can be decluttered either automatically (based on zoom 
level) or manually by the operator. 

The operator interface utilizes the Windows graphical user interface (GUI) environment, 
making extensive use of mouse point-click-drag functions, pull-down menus and 
interactive dialog boxes. The operator interface supports the display of multiple windows 
that can be re-sized, moved, overlaid in a tiled fashion, or shrunk to an icon. 

Operator Displavs 
The system provides the following types of displays for use by the operators: 

World Map Display. This consists of a high-resolution vector drawing of the owner's system, 
with the current analog values and status of devices superimposed on the drawing. The map 
allows the operator to select displayed objects in order to issue or inhibit controls, 
acknowledge or block alarms, or modify operating parameters (such as limits). 
Alarm Display. This display shows a user-Customizable list of alarms that are in the system. 
The operator has the ability to acknowledge and/or block alarms and to control the operation 
of the audible alarm. 
Operator Summary Display. This display shows operations messages that have been logged 
by the system. 
Tabular Data Display. This display lists each station's status and analog points. This is an 
operating display in the sense that from this display, the operator can perform point 
operations such as  control, tag, alarm acknowledge or block, as  well as  modify operating 
limits and reset transition counts. 



Survalen t 
Technology 

World Map Display 
This display consists of a high-resolution environment in which the operator uses a 
movable window on a large-scale world map. The operator can navigate through the map 
using convenient mouse-oriented tools that include continuous panning and zooming, as 
well as poke points that cause the display to jump to pre-defined views. A user- 
extendable library of ready-to-use symbols, colors and text styles is provided. The world 
map display system accommodates a coordinate space of up to 1 billion by 1 billion 
world units. 

Dialog Boxes 
The SCADA system will respond to operator selections by displaying interactive dialog 
boxes. The dialog boxes are context sensitive, and present a Customized control panel of 
pushbuttons that are appropriate to the item that is selected. If the item selected is a point, 
the title bar of the dialog box will display the point's name and description. Some 
functions (e.g., tagging) bring up additional dialog boxes. The operator functions that can 
be performed using the dialog boxes includes the following: 

Status Points 

OpenICloselExecute 
TagIUntaglGroup Tag 
Alarm Acknowledge 
Alarm Block 
Set Manual 
ActivateIDeactivate 
Note 

Analog Points 

Set Manual (includes issuing setpoints) 
TagIUntaglGroup Tag 
Alarm Acknowledge 
Alarm Block 
Set Alarm Limits 
ActivateIDeactivate 
Note 

Continuous Pan And Zoom 
Methods of navigation within the world map display include the ability to: 

continuously pan and zoom 
jump to other views at pre-defined locations and magnification levels 
snap to a view that is defined by rubber-band mouse operation (i.e., a view selection 
rectangle) 

Layer Control and Declutter 



Survalent 
Technology F- 

The world map display is implemented in a multi-layered structure. When a map is 
imported from a DXF or DWG OR DWG file, the layers that are contained in the DXF or 
DWG OR DWG file are preserved in the resulting SCADA map. There is no upper limit 
on the number of layers that may be contained in the world map. 

It is possible to assign to each layer zoom levels for automatic decluttering. Such 
assignments are easy to make by navigating to desired zoom levels and clicking on 
pushbuttons in a dialog. Declutter levels are not lost when the map is re-imported from an 
updated DXF or DWG file. 

The operator has the ability to override the automatic decluttering and manually turn a 
layer either on or off regardless of the current zoom level. By organizing layers in a 
hierarchical system of folders, it is possible to easily turn entire folders of layers on or 
off. The system of folders is preserved when the map is re-imported from an updated 
DXF or DWG file. 

Views 
The user has the ability to create any number of views within the map. The views may be 
accessed via a scrollable list box or via pushbutton (poke points) in the map. 

For ease of navigation in the views list box, the views can be organized in a hierarchical 
system of folders. Both the folders and the views themselves are preserved when the map 
is re-imported from an updated DXF or DWG file. 

Full Graphics Drawing Tools 
The map-based operator interface includes a full graphics editor to allow the user to add 
to and/or modify the map that was imported via DXF or DWG file. If the user is logged 
into an account with map editing privileges, it is possible to switch in and out of edit 
mode via the click of a button. The drawing tools that are provided in edit mode include 
the following: 

draw line 

draw rectangle (open and filled) 

draw polygon (open and filled) 

draw circle and ellipse (open and filled) 

draw arc (open and filled) 

insert text 

insert symbol 

insert dynamic element (e.g., database point or poke point) 

The following editing functions are provided: 

cut and paste 

rotate 

snap to grid 



Survalent 
Technology 

stretch 

The user can create libraries of the following: 

drawing styles (colors and line styles) 

text styles 

symbols 

dynamic elements 

The system includes an initial ready-to-use set of such libraries. On import of a DXF or DWG file, 
the colors, text styles and symbols that are contained in the DXF or DWG file are imported into 
the libraries, where they may be Customized or used as they are. 

Display Of Dynamic Data Fields 
The display editors allow the user to define display of dynamic data fields as follows: 

analog values 

status values 

station alarm status 

remote station status 

dynamic line segment coloring 

historical data trend graphs 

text strings 

Analoa Values 

It is possible to display a telemetered or calculated analog value in the form of a numeric 
string or a horizontal or vertical bar graph (the length of a bar graph reflects the value of 
the analog point). Both numeric strings and bar graphs are color-coded to reflect any 
violation of alarm limits. The color-coding is user-defined, and it is possible to create 
multiple color-coding schemes. 

It is possible to display data-quality indications adjacent to each analog value indication. 
These include the following: 

telemetry failed 

manually set 

calculated from manually set data 

alarm blocked 

overrange 

tagged 

interlocked (calculated control-inhibiting tag) 

Status Values 

It is possible to display the state of a telemetered or calculated status point by means of a 
user-definable dynamic element that specifies one of the following: 



Survalent 
Technology 

a set of four symbols 

a set of four text strings 

one symbol and a set of four colors. 

Two-state points use only two of the four symbols, strings or colors. 

It is possible to display data-quality indications adjacent to each status point indication. 
These include the following: 

telemetry failed 

manually set 

calculated from manually set data 

alarm blocked 

selected for control 

tagged 

interlocked (calculated control-inhibiting tag) 

Dynamic Dis~lay Segments 

The user has the ability to color-code non-dynamic graphic elements in the map 
according to the current state of status points using user-definable color schemes. 

Notes 
The world map supports a system of "stick-on" notes that allows operators to add and 
remove note icons anywhere in the world map. Clicking on a note icon will cause a pop- 
up window to appear to display free-form notes on any topic. The notes can be entered 
and modified in this window. 

The system also supports notes that are specific to database points. Such notes are 
accessible from a pushbutton in the point dialog box that appears when the point is 
selected. When a point has some notes, the pushbutton icon in the dialog box is 
highlighted. 

Point-specific notes are also accessible from the Alarms display. When a point-related 
alarm is selected, a pushbutton in the tool bar highlights if there are notes for the selected 
point. Clicking on this pushbutton brings up the point's notes. 

It is possible to review all the notes that are in the system, both "stick on" and point- 
specific, no matter where they are in the map, by accessing a list dialog that shows all the 
notes in alphabetical order by topic or point name. It is possible to open and read any note 
in this list. 

DXF or D WG Import 



Survalent 
Technology F 

It is possible to import graphics from other drawing packages (e.g., AutoCAD and GIs 
systems) via direct DXF or DWG file import. The layers contained in the DXF or DWG 
file are preserved as layers in the SCADA world map. The symbols, colors and text styles 
contained in the DXF or DWG file are imported into the libraries used by the SCADA 
world map, where they may be edited or used as is in dynamic map elements. 

It is possible to import multiple DXF or DWG files into the same SCADA map. 

It is possible to subsequently re-import an updated DXF or DWG file and have its layers 
replace the corresponding layers in the existing SCADA map. This can be done without 
disturbing the graphics contained in the other layers of the SCADA map. 

Alarm Summary Displays 
The Alarm displays are configurable by the operator via the following parameters: 

Chronological or reverse chronological order of display 

Filtered by station, zone group and alarm priorities 

Typeface and size of text in the alarm displays 

View (and be able to unblock) blocked alarms 

View any combination of active, cleared, acknowledged or unacknowledged alarms 

It is possible for the user to create an alarm color-coding scheme that colors alarms by 
combination of priority and active/cleared/acknowledged/unacknowledged status. 

Operator Summary Display 
The SCADA system provides an operator's summary display, which is a summary of the 
events contained in the operation log file. This display is configurable by the operator via 
the following parameters: 

Filtered by alarm priority 

Filtered by station 

Filtered by zone group 

Filtered by specific database point 

Filtered by time range 

Typeface and size of text 

Tabular Data Displays 
It is possible to view lists of all status or all analog points in the database. This display 
allows the operator to view points on a per station basis. The information shown in this 
display includes the point names, descriptions, current values and quality code, and other 
parameters from the database (e.g., transition counts and alarm limits). 



Survalont 
Technology -. 

It is possible to operate fi-om a tabular display (i.e., to acknowledge or block alarms, to 
perform controls, manually set data, and to add and remove tags). 

Map Editor 
The map editor is an integral part of the map viewer. Access to the editing capabilities is 
available at all operator and engineering workstations, but must be password-protected. 

A copy of the maps and supporting libraries resides on each workstation, such that when 
viewed in live mode, only dynamic data such as point values and alarms are retrieved 
fi-om the server (to minimize network traffic and make feasible dial-up connections even 
with large maps). Publication of changes to the maps and libraries to other workstations 
is done via standard file transfer mechanisms (network neighborhood, FTP, e-mail etc.). 

The editor allows the user to create any number of layers and views of the world map. 
For each layer, the editor allows the user to assign zoom levels for automatic declutter. . 

For any view, the editor allows the user to specify an image file that is to be used as a 
background for the view. Image file formats that can be used for this include JPG, GIF 
and BMP. It is possible to associate views with multiple poke points in the map. 

The editor contains easy-to-use tools for re-layering, re-coloring and re-styling (text) as 
well duplication (copylcut and paste). 

Some sample screen printouts are attached. 

SCADA Login Accounts 

Accounts are controlled by the SCADA Password Editor. 

The different data fields on the editor are described below. 

Username 

This is the username of the SCADA account. It can be up to 14 characters long. 

Password 

This is the password assigned to the account. 

Windows 



Survalen t 
Technology 

This is a password of up to eight characters that you type into login dialog boxes 
of Windows-based user interfaces. An example of such a dialog box is shown 
below. 

Mode 

This is the mode that your window assumes when you log into this account. The possible 
mode codes are listed below. 



Survalent 
Technology 

T Training 
N Normal 
P Privileged 

When you log into a privileged account, you are allowed access to privileged points and 
displays. Points can be made privileged via the Station Data displays. Displays can be 
made privileged via the Links display. You have to be in privileged mode in order to 
change the privilege status of either points or displays. 

When you log into a training account, you are restricted in two ways: 

Although you can review any part of the database for which the editor has not been 
made privileged, you cannot save any edits you make in the editor. For example, if 
the Station Editor is not privileged, you can invoke it and look at any point's 
definition. You can even over-type any of the data fields. But the editor will not 
honor the STORE key while you are in training mode. 

You cannot perform any operations (control, alarm acknowledge, manual set, tag, etc) 
on any points other those that are on stations that are themselves in training mode. A 
station is placed in or out of training mode via the Station Editor. 

Zones 

This is the set of zones that you acquire when you log into this account. 

If the system is configured for 8 zones, this field is just a list of the 8 zone numbers 
assigned to this account. 

If the system is configured for 128 zones, then this field is the name of a zone group, as 
defined on the Zone Group editor (ZONED). 

User Privileges 

This is the name of a user privileges record associated with this account. This defines a 
set of capabilities that you have while you are logged into this account. The capabilities 
are defined via the User Privileges editor. 

User privileges record names are 20 characters long. The special name 

* *  ALL PRIVILEGES * *  



Survalent 
Technology 

may be used to indicate no user privileges record, in which case the system defaults to all 
privileges. 

Application Programming Interface 

The SCADA system can include a network API (application programming interface) that 
allows applications running on other Windows PCs to have readlwrite access to the 
SCADA system database. The PCs that contain such user-written applications must be 
able to connect to the host computers via TCPJIP. 

The following categories of functions are available in the API: 
Connect functions, which allow applications to connect and disconnect from the SCADA host 
computer 
Database Access functions, which allow applications to read and write selected fields in the 
real-time point database 
Control functions, which allow applications to issue controls and set-point commands 
Alarm functions, which allow applications to raise SCADA alarms and display messages to 
the operators 

Master to Master Data Exchan~e 

The SCADA software includes, as an option, the ICCP master-to-master data exchange 
protocol. The implementation supports links to both clients and servers on multiple nodes 
using TCPJIP, and supports the following conformance blocks: 
1 - Basic Services 
2 - Extended Dataset Condition Monitoring 
4 - Operator Stations 
5 - Device Control 

The ability to provide DNP communication between masters is available. If a foreign 
master wishes to access data, the DNP would be in a "slave" mode, essentially making 
the entire SCADA data base look like a very large RTU. If the host master wishes to 
access a foreign master, the other master would have to loaded with the same "slave" 
version of DNP so that we could poll for data from the host master. 

Data Access 

The master station has an "open" system architecture, with all hardware and operating 
system software manufactured by recusnized suppliers who can support it and 
demonstrate open system interconnection to other hardware and software platforms. 

The SCADA system can also provide specific connectivity to other computer systems by 
one or more of the following means: 



Survalent 
Technology 

Excel Import 
An Excel import option is available that allows the user to import current and historical 
data from the SCADA system into Excel. All point data fields (not just values) are 
available to import. In addition to specifying the desired data fields, the user can define 
compound selection criteria that will filter the data that is to be imported (e.g., Value > 
100 OR Value < 100). 

It is possible to save multiple queries in the same spreadsheet, and have the queries 
automatically executed when the spreadsheet is invoked. 

Database Transcription 
An facility for transcribing SCADA data into relational databases is available. Target 
databases that are supported include Microsoft Access, SQL Server, Sybase, and Oracle. 
The type of data that can be transcribed includes: 

Current values 

Historical data 

Operation messages (including alarms) 

Event logs (including SOE) 

Transcription of current values is bi-directional (i.e., it is possible to transcribe data from 
a table in a relational database into SCADA database points). Manual sets must be 
respected, however (i.e., if a SCADA point is manually set, the transcription program 
must not update it). 

It is possible to transcribe data to multiple databases on multiple platforms. For each 
target database, the user can specify exactly what is to be transcribed (e.g., what points 
and what historical data tables). The user is able to specify the schedule of transcriptions. 

The transcription facility maintains a connection to the currently active host computer 
across failovers (if the SCADA system is configured with dual redundant host 
computers). The transcription program can keep track of where it left off since the last 
connection, and after a period of downtime, is able to recover all historical data that was 
not transcribed during the downtime. 

DDE Server 
A DDE server option is available that allows Excel spreadsheet cells to be linked to 
points in the SCADA database. The values of the cells are updated from the SCADA 
system at user-defined intervals. 

Switch Order Preparation (Optional) 
A switch order is a series of steps involving both switching operations and tags that 
produce conditions for which a guarantee may be issued. 



Survalen t 
Technology 

There are two types of switch orders: 

Order to Operate (OTO) 

This is used to define switching actions and application of tags. An order to operate is 
executed prior to issuing the accompanying puarantee(s1. 

Restoration order 

This is used to define switching actions and removal of tags to undo the work performed 
by an order to operate. The restoration order is executed after all of the guarantees 
associated with the order to operate have been surrendered. 

Switch order editing is interactive and performed in a form built into the Worldview map 
viewer. For each sequence (or step) in the switch order, you select the operation and then 
click on the point on the map. The menu of operations is user-defined. If a sequence 
involves adding a tag, you select the tag type. Tag types are also user-defined. If special 
conditions require an operation that is not in the operations menu, you can select 
"Special" and type in the desired operation. Similarly, if the apparatus involved is not 
represented by a database point in the SCADA system, you can simply type in its name 
and location. 

You can add up to 200 sequences to each switch order. Sequences already in the switch 
order can be modified, deleted, or shuffled up and down within the list via arrow buttons. 
Each sequence can be annotated by a 20-character note string. The annotation can be 
done either during editing or execution. 

You can create up to five associated guarantees for each switch order. You do this 
directly from the switch order dialog. When the system creates the guarantee, it 
transcribes general information such as job number and description to the guarantee. It 
also automatically adds the tags to the guarantee, so you don't really have to go to the 
guarantee dialog itself until you're ready to issue or surrender the guarantee. 
Before you can execute the switch order, it must be checked (by clicking on the Checked 
By pushbutton). This is usually done by a supervisor, but can be done by the operator in 
an emergency. The check function is logged and the login account name of the person 
who did it is included in the log message as well as displayed on the switch order form. 
When you print a switch order that has not yet been checked, the printout includes the 
word "UNCHECKED" in big letters in the background. 

Below is a scanned printout of an example of a switch order that has not been checked. 



Survalent 
Technology 

~ r t u  I :  11R7 M Y  ~ O X P A N Y  ~ ~ Y D R O - B L , U C T R I C  C O X M I S S I U I J  [raga: 1 of 1 
Print  1:atr: 1997/66/14 Prjnt Tinet  15:15:54 R B S T d R A T I O l /  O R D E R  Snr la l  4 :  71 

Orders to Cperate mwt bs liated and execuied i n  the ordez in 'Hbich Lhe issuer intends them t o  ba pp.rfor;red. 
The Operbt6r or Agmc who is dalagaced t c  perform the operaticna shall verify (ChWKI  the podlion arid taqqing of ally 
device which must be Ln a pbrilcular position whiie the o ~ r a t i o n s  are k i n g  pertocmed. 
under th. I)PEi(kTION R) BE PERWRMBD, rtate the required condition or position of the ilppzatus. The u ~ & r  noauo that th- 
apparatllr. si1.5t he l e f t .  in the Etate  or pssitton indlcrted. 

I G  DR. 
,:p~,:,:,:,:*\$~ h ;jj8$ 

/LP PAh\'IlJE 'iU d'l'REEP/IrXATi(lN 
OY r\PPAHA'1'11.9 

1 lZ60\N BLB TO 112555 'V2.293 IN FROIE OF 619 A W I A  O 

2 

PI-rpcre oL tlus Order: 1?&7ThLL i - L P  ELBOW IN 'v'1253 ON H C A V I i i _ M i L P W ~ ~ B  

OPEXTiON TD DB 
PERFOWED 

CLUSE 

TAG 

Prwaret? By; &l? OF3 checked Dy: Restorstior. Checked By: 
Or:: Cnacged By: Restoritior. ChsngerJ By: LTT 

k G W  

3 B UD TD n 2 9 3  IN $2295 ON X A D I A  DR,N-SUPRB! RIT h CLC,5E 

PLfO\W DB T3 '$2556 

The sequences in the switch order can be executed in any order you wish. You select the 
sequence you wish to execute (by clicking on it), enter the name or initials of your field 
agent and click on Execute. If the operation involves a SCADA control, the system will 
execute the control for you. If the operation involves a tag, you enter the tag number, and 
the system will apply the tag to the point and add it to all associated guarantees. 

R .- . 1 
V2555 E SV CNS SUP= & FANO 1 CHEEK OPEY 
DF. I 

If, after having executed some sequences, you need to make some changes, you can still 
edit the switch order and change some of the sequences not yet executed. Sequences that 
have already been executed cannot be edited. They can be undone, however, by adding 
more sequences. After editing, you must get the switch order rechecked before you are 
allowed to continue execution. 

 TI^ I DATE 

Preparation and execution of the restoration order is similar to that of the order to operate. 
On creation, the restoration order is initialized to the contents of the associated order to 
operate. A pushbutton allows you to reverse the order of the sequences, and of course, 
you can add, modify and delete any and all sequences. 

D PBRPmXING 
I? 

DERFOyPD 
Nrn" 



Survalent 
Technology 

Save Model and Use Model functions allow you to save frequently used switch orders as 
models for future switch orders. You can create and execute a switch order 
in OTS (see Operator Training Simulator). When you are satisfied with 
the switch order in OTS, you can then export it to the realtime system and 
execute it for real. 

The following pages are print-outs of some of the editors on the Windows 2000-based 
SCADA servers. These have been completely developed by Quindar to take advantage of 
the tools in the Windows 2000 operating system. The look and feel is familiar to users of 
other Windows applications. 

The end result is an enormously powerful and friendly editor. There is nothing that 
requires look-up tables, or other memory aids; everything is presented on pull-down 
menus. Typing, and its associated errors, has been eliminated as much as possible, in 
favor of "click and drag" techniques. 

No knowledge of the operating system is required; the average user can quickly become 
proficient, and much more productive, with this type of interface. Data base changes, 
which occur frequently in any SCADA system, are made easily and quickly. 

The advantages of a series of editors like this should not be overlooked. Data base entry 
has historically been a time consuming and error-prone activity. It now becomes less 
onerous, more intuitive, and does not require constant reference to a Users Guide, or 
frequent phone calls to the factory. The single example of Station Cloning can save hours 
of tedious labor. 

We think that this type of editor will greatly enhance the user's interaction with the 
systeni, and provide a cleaner method of entering data into the system. 



cn 
(5 .- 
C, 
V) .- 
X 
a  
a  
5 
cn 
(5 .- 
C, 
m  
w 
P 
3 
I- 
a  
5 .- 
a  
'- 
0 
a  u  .- 
0 
C u  
a  
5 
a  > 
m  
C 
3 
0 
> 
2 
0 .- 
C, 

J ai 
V) s 
c n s  
s m  .- 
C, .; 
a  5 
s 0 
m  s ."Z 
8 2 
m ' -  
s O 
g .& 
.- s 
E o  
z 2  
w m  

C, 

F m  
m  5 
C, 

V) a  C, 

5 .5 
'-0 
H P 

a E 
9 
u 7 
V) P 

a E  C 
- a  
'- C 
0 C, 

z z i  .- - 
0 

s . d ' L  
o a u  .- 
E g g  z 2 '- 

5 . i  5 w w  m  
s 
HPV) 



Survaient 
Technology 

I n  the Clone Station dialog that appears, enter the 
name of the target station. I f  it's an existing 

station, its point I D  wil l  be displayed. I f  the target 
station is an existing station, choose whether you 

want t o  update existing points or not. ( I f  it's a 
brand new station name, it doesn't matter which 

option you choose.) 

'. '3 
S o u r c e  Station 

Name r.E PID 1- 

Name IAB~ PID I- 

r Replace G Leave 

OK I cancel 1 

When you click on OK, the editor proceeds t o  duplicate 
the station and all of its points. 

For each new RTU encountered in  either a telemetry 
address or a control address, the Convert RTU dialog wil l  
be displayed to  allow you t o  select an alternate RTU for 
the points on the target station. 

Cloning of station AB2 completed 
Done. I 





Survujent 
Technology 

FEEDER 1 IA 13 30 0 302066 
FEEDER 1 IB 14 30 0 302067 
FEEDER 1 IC 15 30 0 302068 
FEEDER 2 IA 16 30 0 302069 
FEEDER 2 IB 17 30 0 302070 
FEEDER 2 IC 18 30 0 302071 
FEEDER 3 IA 19 30 0 302072 
FEEDER 3 IB 20 30 0 302073 
FEEDER 3 IC 21 30 0 302074 
FEEDER 4 IA 22 30 0 302075 
FEEDER 4 IB 23 30 0 302076 
FEEDER 4 IC 24 30 0 302077 

10 30 0 302060 
Historical Data Sets 11 30 0 302061 

12 30 0 302062 
1 30 0 302057 

Main Breaker IB 2 30 0 302058 
Main Breaker IC 3 30 0 302059 
Main Breaker VA  4 30 0 302063 
Main Breaker VB 5 30 0 302064 

6 30 0 302065 
38 1 0 300283 
37 3 0 300281 







Survalent 
Technology F- 

Edit a 
Communication 

Line 

Associated Points 

Line ID 1 Name F ~ ~ C i i i n e  Status Point DNP.CLSTAT 

Description 1Dnp Communication Line Timeout Point DNP.CLTimeouts 

l f C P n P  Unexpect.Msgs DNP.CLUnxMsgs 

Build Scan Table I Delete Scan Table I switch ~NP,CLCswitch 

Accumulator 1 sec Time Sync Interval 1 sec 

Hourly Offset r - 7  sec Demand Average Interval 1 7  sec 

Configuration Switches 

























Survalent 
Technology 













Survalent 
Technology 

Windows SCADA Explorer 

<<Previous Next >> 

Calculation Editor 

















5 
5.5 S.Z 5 
.E rrr E.r E zz:c E:c 

A A A A A 
a, w a , c E z ~ = z ~  
6 6 6 6 a,, s 
Z Z Z Z Z  0 . -  0.- 0  > 
vvvvvLLl -LLl -LQ 





Survalent 
Technology 

General 1 Samples 1 Condition 1 points )' Review samples, and modify if desired 

Jan 04.01 07:15:30 [Jan 04,01 121 5:30 UTC] 
1.5445E+04 <NO..> F s d  1 
1.2000E+01 Manual 

AB.Angle 8.2523E+03 <None> 
L14.ACC6 0.0000E+00 

Display 
<None> 

AB.TlWA 8.0000E+00 
AB.TlRA 1.2000E+01 Calculated : ................................ 
AB.TlRA Jan 04,01 06:15:45 C. 
AB.TlWA 8.0000E+00 Calculated 
AB.TlWA Jan 04.01 06:15:45 C. 
ART1 RA 1.2000E+01 Calculated 
AB.T1 RA 1.2000E+01 Calculated 

Point 1 ,4~.~ngle I 
I I 

Value I 



Survalent 
Technology 

ATTACHMENT 2 PROJECT TEAM RESUMES 



Survalen t 
Technology 

RESUME 
Come/ Munteanu 

c~~~u~~tea~zu(ii)survalcnt. coin 

Res~onsi bilities: Responsible for development and maintenance of 
SCADA systems on Intel and Alpha platforms 

Ex~erience: 

1993 - Present Survalent Technology Corporation 
Mississauga, Ontario - Canada 

VP of Software Development 

1991 - 1993 Quindar Products Ltd. 
Concord Ontario - Canada 

Manager of Software Development 
Responsible for development and maintenance of SCADA 
systems on Alpha platforms 

Quindar Products Ltd. 
Concord, Ontario - Canada 

System Analyst 

Multiple Access Computer Group 
(later Canada Systems Group) 
Don Mills, Ontario 

Programmer 
Participated in design and development of SCADA systems on 
PDP-11 and VAX 

Defence Research Establishment Valcartier 
Valcartier, Quebec - Canada 

Scientist 
Research in image processing applications to target tracking 

Education: 
1973 B. Eng., Electrical Engineering 

1975 M. Eng., Electrical Engineering 

Skill Base: 

Mr. Munteanu has 25 years of experience in SCADA systems. His experience includes 
design, development and testing. Mr. Munteanu's responsibilities include project 
management, SI- perv vision of  the quality assurance (IS0 9000) program and the 
Customer service department, and sales support (quotations and product 
demonstrations). I n  addition to SCADA protocols and interfaces, Mr. Munteanu's 
knowledge extends to applications such as automatic generation control, load forecasting 
and load management, and load flow. 



Survalent 
Technology 

RESUME 
Bob Va//iere 
bvallicr@urvalent.cott~ 

Res~onsibilities: Design, implementation, testing and documentation of SCADA 
applications in Windows and VMS environments. System 
configuration, installation and training, technical support. 

1998 - Present 

Education: 

1981 

Survalent Technology Corporation 
Mississauga, Ontario 

Quindar Products Ltd. 
Concord, Ontario 

Project Manager 

Specifying and managing the design, manufacture and 
integration of SCADA systems, and similar projects. 

Custom RTU firmware development. 

Quindar Products Ltd 
Concord, Ontario 

Software Engineer 

Developing real-time multi-tasking firmware for SCADA RTUs 
and other microprocessor-based industrial devices. 

Ferranti-Packard Electronics Ltd. 
Mississauga, Ontario 

Programmer 

Developing Custom cor~trol software for large display signs 
for highway, retail and airport applications. 

Honours Cooperative Bachelor of Applied Science 
(Electrical Engineering) 
University of WaterlooWaterloo, ON 

Skill Base: 

A PEO-licensed Professional Engineer with extensive experience in Supervisory Control 
and Data Acquisition Systems. 
Areas of expertise include application and firmware development, system design and 
integration, documentation, testing, installation, database generation and user training. 
Experienced with various forms of network and serial communications with devices from 
many different manufacturers. 



Survalent 
Technology 

RESUME 
Colin T/an 
ctian@urvabrtt.corn 

Res~onsi bilities: Responsible for sofhnrare development and 
maintenance of SCADA systems on Intel platforms 

Experience: 

1998 - Present Survalent Technology Corporation 
Mississauga, Ontario - Canada 

Software Engineer 

1997 - 1998 EPS Limited 
Nottingham, England 

Senior Design & Development Engineer 

Responsible for switchgear controls design 

University. of West England 
Bristol, England 

Research Associate 

Power Electronic Drive Design 

1991 - 1996 National Grid Company Ltd 
(But worked from the University of Manchester, LIK) 
London, England 
R&D Engineer 

Power equipment design, computer simulation and control 
Thermal Power Research Institute 
Xian, Shaanxi - China 
Research Engineer 

SCADA sys tems development 

Education: 
1996 Ph.D., Electrical Engineering, University of Ivlanchester, UK 

1984 
M. Eng., Electrical Engineering, Thermal Power Research 

Institute, China 

1982 
B.Eng., Instrumentations & Automation, Tsinghua University, 

China 

Skill Base: 

Mr. Tian has 16 years of design, development and application experience in SCADA 
systems, irr~bedded systems and power electroriic circuits. Mr. Tian responsibilities include 
SCADA software design, development, test, trouble-shooting and documentations. I n  
addition to SCADA protocols (such as DNP, IEC, RTC, MODBUS, 2179 etc) and interfaces, 

i Mr. Tian's knowledge extends to applications such as automatic generation control, load 
management and process instrumentations and control systems. 



Survalent 
Technology RESUME 

Ken Do/be/ 
kriolb~l@~urvalerzt.co~~z 

Res~onsi bilities: Field commissioning and training for SCADA 
equipment. System set-up and factory acceptance 
testing. Database and graphics generation. 

Ex~erience: 

2002 - Present Survalent Technology Corporation 
Mississauga, Ontario - Canada 

System Specialist 

Windows SCADA, Worldview, RTU's, and Switch Controllers 
set-up, test, field commissioning and training. 

Education: 

Quindar Products Limited 
Mississauga, Ontario - Canada 

Project Leader 

Project management of Master Stations, RTU's, and 
Controllers. Responsible for drawings, bills of materials, 
configurations and test plans. 

Dacscan Limited 
Mississauga, Ontario - Canada 

Production Supervisor 

Production planning, stock handling, and shipping. Managed 
assembly of RTU cabinets and printed circuit board 
assemblies. Supervised production employees. 

Motorola Dacscan / G & W Dacscan 
Markham, Ontario - Canada 

Project Leader / Testing Leader / Technician 

Project management of R-I-U's and Switch Controllers. 
Supervise Test Department. Test and troubleshoot electronic 
equipment. Field Service. 

1982 Ryerson Polytechnic Institute Toronto, Canada 
+ Diploma in Electrical Technology - Electronics Option 

Skill Base: 
The year 2005 mark the 25th anniversary of Mr. Dolbel working in the field of SCADA. He started 
in the company working as a technician on microprocessor based RIU1s. As time marched on Mr. 
Dolbel took on more responsibilities of managing projects and supervising departments. 
Eventually Survalent's products moved into Master Stations, for which Mr. Dolbel designed VMS 
and Windows SCADA systems, R-TU's, as well as communication infrastructures. Responsibilities 
of Mr. Dolbel include the set-up of systems, ranging from single NT Masters to Quad Redundant 
host computers and with integration of dual LANs, multiple communication lines, various 

\ protocols, and off site Workstations. Also a responsibility of Mr. Dolbel is performing Factory 
Acceptance Testing (FAT), and to provide field commissioning and Customer training. 



Survalent 
Technology 

RESUME 
Abdel-meguid Husseh 

alzusseiir@siirvabi~t. coiil 

Res~onsi bilities: Configuration, Testing, Commissioning and Training 
for Windows and VMS SCADA Systems. 

2003 - Present 
Survalent Technology Corporation 
Mississauga, Ontario - Canada 

Systems Engineer 

ABB Automation 
Cairo ,Egypt 

Controls Engineer 

Design and maintenance of DCS and PLC based controls 
System. 

6th of October for Light sections 
Giza, Egypt 

Electrical Engineer 

Design and maintenance of electrical and controls System 

Education: 
1997 B.Sc. Electrical Engineering 

Skill Base: 

More than 7 years of experience in Industrial Controls and SCADA systems. Experience 
included systems design/Integration, programming, configuring, Testing and Customer 
training. Very solid knowledge and experience of Industrial protocols and TCP/IP suite of 
protocols. Experience in several SCADA, DCS and PLC systems and their programming 
languages (FBI IEC1131). Very good communication and presentation skills. Very 
attentive to Customer's requirements and needs. Technical support for Customers and 
internal. 





Survalent 
Technology 

RESUME 

Stuart Nord 
slzorl@urvalelzf.com 

Res~onsi bilities: Responsible for development and maintenance of 
SCADA systems on Intel and Alpha platforms 

Experience: 
1993 - Present Sut-valent Technology Corporation 

Ivlississauga, Ontario - Canada 
VP Software Engineering 

1986 - 1993 Quindar Products Ltd. 
Senior Analyst 

Responsible for development and maintenance of SCADA 
systems on Alpha platforms 

1977 - 1986 Multiple Access Computer Group 
(later Canada Systems Group) 

Don Mills, Ontario 
Programmer/Analyst 
Participated in design and development of SCADA systems on 
PDP-11 and VAX 

(position) 

(responsibilities) 

Education: 
1973 BA Psychology University of Saskatchewan 

Skill Base: 

IYr lVord has spent more than 25 years in the design, implementation and testing of 
SCADA master station systems. His experience covers user interface, communications and 
operating systems. 



Survalent 
Technology RESUME 

Mike Roth 
rrrrotl~@ur.valer~t.cott~ 

r 

Res~onsi bilities: 

Experience: 

2005 - Present 

1 I I I Responsible for developing new markets for SCADAJAGCJEMS I 

VP Sales, Western US Region 
Sales and marketing of STC SCADA/AGC systems and 
Substation Controllers in the designated territory 

Survalent Technology Corporation 
Mississauga, ON, Canada 

VP of Sales, US Western Region 

2003 - 2005 

-- 

I 

Open Systems International 
Minneapolis, MN, USA 

Director, Strategic Business Development 

Responsible for sales of SCADAJEMS systems in USA and 
selected international markets 

DEC Digital Equipment Corporation 
(later Compaq Computer Inc., later acquired by HP) 
Marlboro, MA, USA 

1 Sales Director for Global Accounts 

1998 - 2003 

1 I I 1 Responsible for business in Global Accounts market segment 

Siemens Power T&D Inc. (former Telegyr Systems) 
San Jose, CA, USA 

1 Business Development Manager 

1 I I Regional General Manager, SCADAJEMS Division Asia Pacific I 
1986 - 1993 

Developed SCADAJEMS business in Asian Pacific countries 
I I 

Landis & Gyr Energy Management Corporation 
Switzerland and Republic of Singapore 

1 Education: 
I 1 1979 1 BS Eng., Solid State Physics, Switzerland 1 
I Skill Base: 

I Mike Roth has 20 years of experience in SCADA/EMS systems. His experience includes 
marketing, sales and project management of control systems, PLC and SCADA/EMS 
systems. Mike has worked as a Project Manager for a large number of SCADAIEMS 
projects amorrg others the national dispatching control centers of Ireland, Netherlands, 
Philippines and Israel. He has extensive experience in complex systems integration, 
enterprise applications, control strategy development, control systems implementation 
and maintenance. He has extensive experience with complex EMS functionality including 
generation control, network security and analysis, optimization software. 



Surva/en t 
Technology 



Survalent 
Technology 

ATTACHMENT 3 LIST OF PROJECT REFERENCES 



Technology 

CUSTOMER LOCATION 

Alameda Power & Telecom Alameda, CA 

Alaska Electric Light and Power Juneau, AK 

Benton County PUD 

CONTACT 

SURVALENT TECHNOLOGY 
US CUSTOMER LIST 

Kalpana Dulip Singh 
51 0-748-3989 

Eric Erikson 
907-708-4833 

Kennewick, WA Duane Sams 
509-582-1 281 

Braintree Electric Light Dept. Braintree, MA Joe Morley 
78 1 -348-1 070 

Butler REC 

Cannoochee EMC 

Oxford, OH Tom Wolfenbarger 
51 3-867-4436 

Reidsville, GA Johnny Welch 
91 2-557-4391 

SYSTEM 

Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, Load Management, Switch Order Preparation, Short Term 
Load Forecasting, System Configuration Status, Operator Training 
Simulator, Operations and Outage Accounting, ODBC, Worldview. L&G 
8979 protocol. 
Dual redundant Windows masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, Load Management, Operations and Outage Accounting, 
Worldview, QUlCS and RTCS protocols. QEI conversion. Upgraded 
from VMS. 
Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, Operator's Log Report, Load 
Management, Remote Alarm Annunciation, Operations and Outage 
Accounting, System Guarantees (Clearances), ODBC, Transcription, 
Worldview. QUlCS protocol. QEI conversion. 
Dual redundant Windows masters. Command Sequencing, SCS, 
MasterISlave Alarms, Remote Alarm Annunciation, SCADA Add-in, 
Virtual RTU, GPS Clock, IED Wizard, Control Panel, Video 
Surveillance, Database Transcription. DNP 3.0 and L&G 8979 
protocols. ILEX replacement. 
Single Windows master. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, Load Management, Short Term Load Forecasting, 
Worldview, QUICS, DNP 3.0 serial, and DNP 3.0 TCPIIP protocols. 
Satellite comrn. Scout Station Controllers. QEI replacement. 
Single Alpha master. Command Sequencing, Event Data Recording, 
Load Management, Qnet, ODBC, ICCP, DDE Server, Worldview, Tejas 
V protocol. QEI conversion. 

This document is the property of Survalent Technology. Copying and distribution is restricted to Survalent Technology affiliates, employees, representatives, or agents 
Copyright (c) 1999-2005 Survalent Technology Corporation 



CUSTOMER LOCATION 

Cap Rock Electric Stanton, TX 

SURVALENT TECHNOLOGY 
US CUSTOMER LIST 

CONTACT SYSTEM 

Gary Reid 
91 5-756-3381 

Central Georgia EMC Jackson, GA Kevin H. Reeves 
770-504-7869 

Central Valley Electric Coop Artesia, NM Philip McKee 
505-746-3571 

Citizens Electric Ste. Genevieve, Tony Campbell 
MO 573-883-5339 

Clallarn County, PUD #I of Port Angeles, WA Quimby Moon 
360-452-9771 

Clark Public Utilities Vancouver, WA Curt McNeal 
360-992-8547 

Clinton Utilities Board Clinton, TN Ron Swanner 
865-220-6270 

Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, Operator's Log Report, Load 
Management, Operator Training Simulator, Network Database Access 
Programming, ODBC, Transcription, Worldview. 21 79, DNP, QUlCS 
and TransData protocols. 9OOMHz radio, communicating direct to SEL 
2030. Scout Station Controllers. QEI conversion. 
Dual redundant Windows masters. Worldview, Command Sequencing, 
SCADA Add-in, Load Management, IED Wizard, IED Control Panel. 
DNP 3.0, RTCS, and Tejas Series 5 protocols. QEI replacement. 
Single W~ndows master. SCADA Add-in, Remote Alarm Annunciation, 
Event Data Recording. DNP 3.0 protocol. 

Dual redundant Windows masters. Worldview, Command Sequencing, 
Event Data Recording, SCADA Add-in, SCS, Transcription, IED 
Wizard, IED Control Panel, Virtual RTU. DNP 3.0 protocol. Scout 
RTUs. 
Dual redundant Windows masters. Worldview, Command Sequencing, 
NDA API, MasterlSlave Alarm Suppression, SCS, Transcription, 
SCADA Add-in, SQL Server, DNP 3.0 protocol. 
Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, Operator's Log Report, External Clock, Projection Display 
Control, System Configuration Status, Operator Training Simulator, 
ODBC, Worldview. L&G 8979 and SCOM 11.1 protocols. Scout 
Station Controller. 
Dual redundant Windows masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, System Configuration Status, 
Remove Alarm Annunciation, Operations and Outage Accounting, 
System Guarantees, SCADA Add-in for Excel and Access, 
Transcription, DDE Server, Worldview. DNP 3.0 TCPIIP protocol. 
Scout Station Controllers. 

This document is the property of Survalent Technology. Copying and distribution is restricted to Survalent Technology affiliates, employees, representatives, or agents. 
Copyright (c) 1999-2005 Survalent Technology Corporation 



SURVALENT TECHNOLOGY 
US CUSTOMER LIST 

CUSTOMER LOCATION CONTACT SYSTEM 

Coastal EMC Midway, GA Robert Moore 
91 2-880-2239 

Columbia Power &Water Columbia, TN Doug Burgess 
931 -388-4833 

Deep East Texas Electric Coop. San Augustine, TX Ken Dickerson 
936-275-231 4 

Electricities of North Carolina Raleigh, NC Jim Poole 
91 9-760-6207 

Elizabethtown Water Company Elizabethtown, NJ Bhupesh Patel 
908-301 -3479 

Eugene Water & Electric Board Eugene, OR March Rocha 
541 -341 -8540 

Excelsior EMC 

FEC Electric 

Metter, GA Bill Walden 
91 2-685-21 15 

Greenville, TX Sam Warren 
903-455-1 71 5 

Single Alpha master. Command Sequencing, Event Data Recording, 
MasterlSlave Alarms, Load Management, Worldview. DNP 3.0, Tejas 
V, and QUICS protocols. 
Dual redundant Windows masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, Remote Alarm Annunciation, SCADA Add-in for Excel and 
Access, Operations and Outage Accounting, Worldview. DNP 3.0 
serial, DNP 3.0 TCPIIP, Tejas V serial, Tejas V TCPIIP protocols. 
TELVENT replacement. 
Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, ODBC, Worldview Site License, Transcription. DNP 3.0 
and QUICS protocols. QEI conversion. 
Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, ICCP, 
Transcription, Worldview. DNP 3.0 protocol. Scout Station Controller. 
QEI conversion. 
Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, Operators Log Report, Qnet, 
Transcription. QUICS, Modbus, and Modbus TCPIIP protocols. Over 
100 RTU's connected over several wire line communication circuits. 
QEI conversion. 
Dual redundant Alpha master. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, Operator's Log Reports, Qnet, 
Remove Alarm Annunciation, Transcription, Worldview. Tejas V and 
Modbus protocols. 
Single Windows master. SCADA Add-in, Worldview. Tejas Ill and V 
protocols. 

Single Alpha master. Command Sequencing, Event Data Recording, 
Operations and Outage Accounting, ODBC, Transcription, Worldview. 
QUICS, Modbus, and DNP protocols. QEI conversion. 

This document is the property of Survalent Technology. Copying and distribution is restricted to Survalent Technology affiliates, employees, representatives, or agents 
Copyright (c) 1999-2005 Survalent Technology Corporation 



- 
m 
C C 

g $ g  z ez '= a  $ 2  ."' 
W . S O  $ 6  
GgVi CI -  

m 
'3 r 3 a  r z  c 0  m 
52" gn 
2 o n  
V) 1 .P 

C a L  

E a  - 0 
O r Y O  "-i& o "a z o  % a  @ Eo "i m g  
S S  iB E L  
m a  0 0 
m Z s g E  
E $ 5  2 0 3  
m m  E n u  
r p,~)a y) .- E $  
a a ~ z b a  +z . s  z s  
C ~ . E U  m 
22 eu ~3 5 6l- 6 3 3- 
a 5 5  5 3.g 
2 b en u z  m0Q)u m 
3 Q ) n o  3 0  
ncror a3 



CUSTOMER LOCATION 

Joe Wheeler EMC Trinity, AL 

Laclede Electric Coop. Lebanon, MO 

Lake Pontchartrain Causeway Metairie, LA 

Lebanon Utilities Lebanon, IN 

Logan City Light & Power Logan, UT 

Longmont Power and Longmont, CO 
Communications 

Loveland, City of Loveland, CO 

M & A Electric Power Coop. Poplar Bluff, MO 

Marshall, City of Marshall, MI 

SURVALENT TECHNOLOGY 
US CUSTOMER LIST 

CONTACT SYSTEM 

Dewanna Jones Dual redundant Windows masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
256-351-651 7 Recording, Masterislave Alarms, SCADA Add-in, Transcription, 

Operations Outage Accounting, IED Wizard, Control Panel, Load 
Management, Worldview. DNP and QUlCS protocols. Scout Station 
Controller. QEI conversion. Upgraded from VMS. 

Terry Rosenthal Dual redundant Windows masters. Worldview, Command Sequencing, 
41 7-588-1 334 Event Data Recording, SCADA Add-in, Transcription, DNP Server, 

DNP 3.0 protocol. QEI replacement. 
Ed Champage Dual redundant Alphas. Fault detection, isolation, and restoration 
Gulf Engineers scheme for Lake Pontchartrain bridge. 

225-61 2-3000 
David VanWye Single Windows master. Worldview, Remote Alarm Annunciation, 
765-482-51 00 Command Sequencing, and SCS. Scout Station Controllers. DNP 3.0 

protocol. ILEX conversionlreplacement. 
Garth Turley Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Engineering Manager Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, Load Management, Short Term Load 
435-750-9944 Forecasting, Operations and Outage Accounting, ODBC, Transcription, 

Worldview. QUlCS protocol. QEI conversion. QEI conversion. 
Chuck Saylor Single Windows master. Event Data Recording, Worldview. DNP 3.0 
303-651 -8362 protocol. L&G replacement. 
Rocky Ray Single Windows master. Worldview, SCADA Add-in, Event Data 
970-962-3558 Recording, DNP 3.0 protocol. 
John Settle Dual redundant Windows masters. Operations and Outage 
573-785-9651 Accounting, External Clock Interface (GPS), Worldview, Master Slave 

Alarm Suppression, Database Transcription, SCADA Add-in, IED 
Wizard, and IED Control Panel. Telegyr 8979 and DNP 3.0 protocols. 
QEI replacement. 

Keith Zienert Single Windows master. IED Wizard, Worldview. DNP 3.0 and MDO- 
269-781 -8631 11 protocols. REPAS replacement. 

This document is the property of Survalent Technology. Copying and distribution is restricted to Survalent Technology affiliates, employees, representatives, or agents. 
Copyright (c) 1999-2005 Survalent Technology Corporation 



SURVALENT TECHNOLOGY 
US CUSTOMER LIST 

CUSTOMER LOCATION CONTACT SYSTEM 

Miami Dept. of Public Utilities 

Minnesota Valley Co-op L&P 

Mishawaka Utilities 

Moon Lake Electric Cooperative 

Newton, City of 

North Plains Electric Coop 

Northern California Power 
Agency 

Oberlin Municipal Light & Power 

Ocmulgee EMC 

Miami, OK 

Montevideo, MN 

Mishawaka, IN 

Roosevelt, UT 

Newton, NC 

Perryton, TX 

Roseville, CA 

Oberlin, OH 

Eastman, GA 

Rex Garrett 
91 8-542-6685 

Kory Johnson 
320-269-21 63 

Gordon Allen 
574-258-1 647 

Kenneth Winder 
435-722-5406 
Doug Wesson 
704-523-6045 
(SE Consulting 
Engrs.) 

Lewis Crain 
806-435-5482 
Tom Breckon 
91 6-781 -3636 

Victor Oeftering 
440-775-1 531 
James Rogers 
91 2-347-7001 

Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, Operations and Outage Accounting, 
ODBC, Transcription, Worldview. QUlCS protocol. 
Single Windows master. Command Sequencing, MasterlSlave Alarms, 
Remote Alarm Annunciation, SCADA Add-in, IED Wizard, Worldview. 
DNP 3.0 protocol. 
Single Windows master. Command Sequencing, System Configuration 
Status, Remote Alarm Annunciation, Transcription, Worldview. DNP 
3.0 protocol. Scout Station Controllers. ILEX replacement. 
Single Windows master. DNP protocol. Trapper Station Controllers. 

Single Alpha master. Command Sequencing, Event Data Recording, 
MasterlSlave Alarms, Load Management, Short Term Load 
Forecasting, Operations and Outage Accounting, ICCP, Worldview. 
DNP 3.0 serial, DNP 3.0 TCPIIP. Trapper Station Controllers. QEI 
conversion. 
Single Windows master. Virtual RTU, IED Wizard, Worldview. DNP 
3.0 protocol. 

Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, ICCP, 
Network Database Access Programming, ODBC, Transcription, DDE 
Server, Modbus Server, AGC, Worldview. Modbus serial, Modbus 
TCPIIP, L&G 8979 and Tano protocols. 
Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, ODBC, 
Worldview. DNP 3.0 and QUlCS protocols. 

Single Windows master. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, Load Management, SCADA Add-in, 
Worldview. DNP 3.0, Tejas V, and RTC 1032 protocols. QEI 
conversion. STC VMS to Windows upgrade. 

This document is the property of Survalent Technology. Copying and distribution is restricted to Survalent Technology affiliates, employees, representatives, or agents 
Copyright (c) 1999-2005 Survalent Technology Corporation 



CUSTOMER 

Oconee EMC 

LOCATION 

Dudley, GA 

Ouachita Electric Coop Camden, AR 

Platte River Power Authority Fort Collins, CO 

Perennial Public Power Dist. York, NE 

Plumas-Sierra REC Portola, CA 

Rayle EMC Washington, GA 

Reading Municipal Light Dept. Reading, MA 

Roosevelt Electric Coop. Portales, NM 

SURVALENT TECHNOLOGY 
US CUSTOMER LIST 

CONTACT SYSTEM 

Edwin Edwards Single Alpha master. Command Sequencing, Event Data Recording, 
478-676-31 91 MasterlSlave Alarms, Load Management, ICCP, Qnet, ODBC, 

Worldview. QUlCS and Tejas V protocols. QEI conversion. 
Single Windows master. Worldview, SCADA Explorer, Event Data 
Recording, SCADA Add-in, DNP 3.0 protocol. 

Terry Baker Quad redundant Windows masters. PI Interface, ICCP, Mapboard 
970-229-5341 driver with CIS protocol, GPS Clock Support, Event Data Recording, 

Command Sequencing, System Configuration Status, MasterlSlave 
Alarm, SCADA Add-in for Excel and Access, Operator Training 
Simulator, Worldview Site License. DNP 3.0 serial, DNP 3.0 TCPIIP, 
L&G 8979 serial, L&G 8979 TCPllP protocols. Siemens replacement. 

Mike Jones Single Windows master. Worldview, Event Data Recording, Remote 
402-362-3355 Alarm Annunciation, Transcription, DNP 3.0 protocol. 

Bob Marshall 
530-832-426 1 

Phil Brown 
706-678-21 16 

Paul Carson 
781 -944-1 340 

Antonio Sanchez 
505-356-4491 

Dual redundant Windows masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, External Clock Interface (GPS), Worldview, SCADA Add-in, 
IED Wizard, and IED Control Panel. DNP 3.0 protocols. SEL project. 
Single Alpha master. Command Sequencing, Event Data Recording, 
MasterlSlave Alarms, Load Management, Worldview. Tejas V protocol. 
QEI conversion. 
Dual redundant Windows masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, Load Forecasting, Switch Order 
Preparation, Remote Alarm Annunciation, System Guarantees, SCADA 
Add-in, Control Panel, Transcription, Worldview. DNP 3.0 and L&G 
8979 protocols. Siemens replacement. 
Single W~ndows master. Event Data Recording, Remote Alarm 
Annunciation, SCADA Add-in, IED Wizard, Worldview. DNP 3.0 
protocol. Scout Station Controllers. 

This document is the property of Survalent Technology. Copying and distribution is restricted to Survalent Technology affiliates, employees, representatives, or agents 
Copyright (c) 1999-2005 Survalent Technology Corporation 



Technology 

CUSTOMER 

Roseville, City of 

LOCATION 

Roseville, CA 

Rusk County Electric Coop Henderson, TX 

San Bernard Electric Coop. Bellville, TX 

Satilla Rural EMC Alma, GA 

Scottsboro EPB Scottsboro, AL 

Sequachee Valley Electric South Pittsburg, 
Coop. TN 

Shelby Electric Cooperative Shelbyville, IL 

Sho-Me Power Marshfield, MO 

SURVALENT TECHNOLOGY 
US CUSTOMER LIST 

CONTACT SYSTEM 

Man Fok Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
91 6-774-561 3 Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, Operator's Log Report, Load 

Management, Short Term Load Forecasting, Operations and Outage 
Accounting, System Guarantees (Clearances), ODBC, NDA API, 
Operator Training Simulator, Worldview. DNP 3.0, Tejas V, and L&G 
8979 protocols. 

Keith Holmes Dual Redundant Windows masters. Worldview, SCADA Explorer, 
(903) 657-4571 SCADA Add-in, Remote Alarm Annunciation, DNP 3.0 protocol. 

Don Roberts 
(979) 865-31 71 
Lonny Whitley 
91 2-632-7222 

Brad Rhodes 
256-259-5052 

Danny Kirkendoll 
423-837-8605 

Dual redundant Windows masters. DNP 3.0 serial, DNP 3.0 TCPIIP 
and Tejas V protocols. ILEX replacement. 

Single Alpha master. Command Sequencing, Event Data Recording, 
Load Management, Qnet, DDE Server, Worldview. QUlCS protocol. 
QEI conversion. 
Dual redundant Windows. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, SCADA Add-in, Remote Alarm Annunciation, SCS, and 
Load Management. QUlCS and DNP 3.0 protocols. QEI replacement. 
Single Windows master. Worldview, Event Data Recording, and 
SCADA Add-in. Scout Station Controllers. DNP 3.0 protocol. 

James Coleman Single Windows master. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
21 7-774-3986 Recording, Worldview Site License, Remote Alarm Annunciation, 

SCADA Add-in for Excel and Access, Transcription, DNP Server. DNP 
3.0 serial, DNP 3.0 TCPIIP protocols. Scout Station Controllers. ILEX 
replacement. 

Jim Bagley Dual redundant Windows masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 

41 7-468 261 5 Recording, MasterISlave Alarms, Switch Order Preparation, System 
Configuration Status, Remote Alarm Annunciation, System 
Guarantees, ICCP, Transcription, Worldview. Simple Network 
Management Protocol (SNMP), DNP Server. Worldview with control at 
8 member cooperatives. DNP 3.0 over TCPIIP and Tejas Series V 
protocols. Scout Station Controllers. QEI replacement. 

This document is the property of Survalent Technology. Copying and distribution is restricted to Survalent Technology affiliates, employees, representatives, or agents. 
Copyright (c) 1999-2005 Survalent Technology Corporation 



CUSTOMER LOCATION CONTACT 

SURVALENT TECHNOLOGY 
US CUSTOMER LIST 

Springfield Utilities Board Springfield, OR Tom Weller 
541 -744-37 1 1 

Tampa Bay Water Clearwater, FL Dave Detwiler 
727-791-2331 

Tri-County Electric Coop Gray, GA Cliff Holms 
478-986-81 54 

Tri-County Electric Coop Hooker, OK David Tivis 
580-652-241 8 

Trinity Valley 

Truckee-Donner PUD 

Tullahoma Utilities Board 

United Power 

Kaufman, TX 

Truckee, CA 

Tim Craig 
972-932-221 4 

Stephen Hollabaugh 
91 6-582-3934 

Tullahoma, TN Wayne Daniel 
931-455-451 5 

Brighton, CO Don McDaniel 
303-659-0551 

SYSTEM 

Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, ICCP, ODBC, Short Term Load Forecasting, Operations 
and Outage Accounting. DNP 3.0 serial, DNP 3.0 TCPIIP, L&G 8979, 
and QUlCS protocols. 
Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, System Configuration Status, Qnet, 
ODBC, Transcription, Video SCADA, Worldview. QUlCS and Modbus 
protocols. QEI replacement. 
Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, Load Management, ODBC, 
Worldview. QUICS, DNP 3.0, and Tejas V protocols. QEI conversion. 
Dual redundant Windows masters. Worldview, SCADA Explorer, 
Command Sequencing, Event Data Recording, SCS, Load 
Forecasting, SCADA Add-in. QUlCS IV and L&G 8979 protocols. QEI 
replacement. 
Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, Operations and Outage Accounting, ODBC, Transcription, 
Worldview. QUICS, Modbus, and DNP 3.0 TCPllP protocols. QEI 
conversion. 
Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, External clock Interface, System 
Configuration Status, Qnet, Remote Alarm Annunciation, Operator 
Training Simulator, ODBC, Worldview. QUlCS protocol. 
Dual redundant Windows masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterlSlave Alarms, Remote Alarm Annunciation, 
Worldview. DNP 3.0 TCPllP protocol. 
Dual redundant Windows masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, Load Management, Switch Order Preparation, System 
Configuration Status, Worldview. DNP 3.0 and QUlCS protocols. QEI 
replacement. 

This document is the property of Survalent Technology. Copying and distribution is restricted to Survalent Technology affiliates, employees, representatives, or agents 
Copyright (c) 1999-2005 Survalent Technology Corporation 



f 
Technology 

SURVALENT TECHNOLOGY 
US CUSTOMER LIST 

CUSTOMER LOCATION CONTACT SYSTEM 

University of North Carolina 
Chapel Hill 

University of North Carolina 
Greensboro 

Vernon, City of 

Warren RECC 

Washington, City of 

Washington EMC 

Western Area Power 
Administration 

Chapel Hill, NC 

Greensboro, NC 

Vernon, CA 

Bowling Green, 
KY 

Washington, NC 

Sandersville, GA 

Sacramento, CA 

Curtis Helfrich 
91 9-966-41 00 

Lee Erickson 
336-334-3337 

Ali Nour 
21 3-583-881 1 ~ 3 1 6  

Gary Dunagan 
270-842-6541 

Edmund J. Pruden, I l l  
252-975-9372 

Mark Riner 
478-552-2577 

Sonja Anderson 
91 6-353-451 4 

Dual redundant Windows masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, Master Slave Alarm Suppression, Database Transcription, 
Remote Alarm Annunciation, SCADA Add-in, SCS, IED Wizard, IED 
Control Panel, NDA API, Video Surveillance, and SNMP protocol. 
Modbus and DNP 3.0 protocols. ABB replacement. 
Single Windows master. Event Data Recording, NDA API, 
MasterlSlave Alarm, SCADA Add-in, Remote Alarm Annunciation, GPS 
Clock, Transcription, Worldview. DNP 3.0 
Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterlSlave Alarm, Switch Order Preparation, System 
Configuration Status, Operator Training Simulator, Operations and 
Outage Accounting, ODBC, Worldview. DNP 3.0 protocol. 
Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, Remote Alarm Annunciation, Transcription, Worldview. 
DNP 3.0, QUICS, Tejas V, and Modbus protocols. Scout Station 
Controllers. QEI conversion. 
dual redundant Windows masters. Command Sequence, SCADA Add- 
in, Event Data Reporting, Load Management, Power Factor Correction, 
Worldview, SCADA Explorer. QUlCS IV, DNP 3.0, and Modbus 
protocols. 
Single Alpha master. Command Sequencing, Event Data Recording, 
Load Management, Qnet, Operations and Outage Accounting, DDE 

Server, ODBC, Worldview. Tejas V protocols. QEI conversion. 
Dual redundant Alpha masters. Command Sequencing, Event Data 
Recording, MasterISlave Alarms, Operator's Log Reports, Switch Order 
Preparation, External Clock Interface, Short Term Load Forecasting, 
System Configuration Status, Qnet, Network Database Access 
Programming, System Guarantees, AGC, ICCP, ODBC, PI Interface. 
DNP 3.0 and QUlCS protocols. 

This document is the property of Survalent Technology. Copying and disbibution is resbicted to Survalent Technology affiliates, employees, representatives, or agents 
Copyright (c) 1999-2005 Survalent Technology Corporation 



SURVALENT TECHNOLOGY 
US CUSTOMER LIST 

CUSTOMER LOCATION 

White River Electric Cooperative Branson, MO 

CONTACT SYSTEM 

Zeeland, City of 

Robert Johnston Dual redundant Windows masters. Worldview, Remote Alarm 
41 7-335-9261 Annunciation, Event Data Recording, System Configuration Status, 

SCADA Add-in for Excel and Access, DNP Server, Transcription. DNP 
3.0 serial, DNP 3.0 TCPIIP protocol. Trapper Station Controllers. ILEX 
replacement. 

Zeeland, MI Don Muller Dual redundant Windows masters. Worldview, SCADA Explorer, 
61 6-772-621 2 Command Sequencing, Event Data Recording, MasterlSlave Alarm, 

SCADA Add-in, GPS Clock, IED Wizard, External Alarm Bell. DNP 3.0 
and L&G 8979 protocols. 

This document is the property of Survalent Technology. Copying and distribution is restricted to Survalent Technology afiliates, employees, representatives, or agents 
Copyright (c) 1999-2005 Survalent Technology Corporation 



Survalent 
Technology October 2005 

ATTACHMENT 4 SPECIFIC HARDWARE DOCUMENTATION 

This document is the property of Survalent Technology. Copying and distribution is restricted to Survalent Technology affiliates, employees, 

representatives, or agents. 
Copyright (c) 1999-200s Survalent Technology Corporation 



Survalent Technology Corp. PCM 

PCM - Port Combiner Module 

1.0 Contents 
2.0 General Description 
3.0 Signal Description 

3.1 TXD from computer 
3.2 DTR from computer 
3.3 RXD from the communication device 
3.4 DCD from the communication device 

4.0 Operational Mode 
4.1 Programmed Mode 
4.2 Configuration Mode, hard settings 
4.3 Direct Path Mode 
4.4 Jumper Settings Mode 
4.5 Configuration Mode, soft settings 
4.6 LED indication 

User's Guide 

Rev. 2 Page 1 



Survalent Technology Corp. PCM User's Guide 

2.0 General Description 

The purpose of the PCM is to combine two RS232 signals from two computers and connect to one communication 
device. It will also generate control signals to the communication device. The PCM contains RS232 ports, micro 
controller and voltage regulator. 

Two RS232 ports are connected externally to a dual redundant master station with 2 communication channels. Each 
of these ports handles RxD, TxD, DTR and DCD. The 3rd RS232 port is connected externally to a modem or other 
communication device. The port handles RxD, TxD, RTS, CTS and DCD. 

It is expected that only one computer will be transmitting at a time. The transmit data from the active computer will 
be passed to the micro controller. The micro controller will retransmit this data on the 3rd port after the appropriate 
RTSICTS sequence as described below. 

Data received on the 31d port will be passed on to both computer ports in parallel without any processing. The same 
applies for DCD. 

The PCM accepts +I- 12V dc from dual redundant power supplies. 

3.0 Signal Description 

3.1 TxD from computer 

'The microcontroller will detect data from the computer. When the first character has been received it 
will assert RTS and then wait for either CTS or a selected delay time before starting its own 
transmission. The controller will buffer data from the computer until it is ready to transmit. It is 
expected that the buffer will holds up to 192 characters. I f  the buffer overflows the data will be 
erased and the controller will wait for a new message. 

The controller will accept characters for the same message until it detects a gap of two or more characters in the 
stream. It will then finish transmitting the remaining characters in the buffer. After the last character and a selected 
time delay, RTS is deactivated. A new message from the computer can be started after a gap of 3 or more characters 
from previous message. 

The baud rate is selectable, but will be the same for data from the computer and data going to the communication 
device. The character format is fixed at 8 data bits, and 1 stop bit. The parity can be set to none, odd or even. 

3.2 DTR from computer 

DTR is not acted on at this time. 

3.3 RxD from the communications device 

The RxD signal from the communication device is passed on to both computer ports without processing other than 
regenerating the RS232 signals. Micro controller monitors the signal when PCM runs in Programmed Mode and the 
Collision Avoidance Algorithm is enabled. 

i 
Rev. 2 Page 2 70917 - UM 



Survalent Technology Corp. PCM User's Guide 

3.4 DCD from the communications device 

The DCD signal from the communication device is passed on to both computer ports without processing other than 
regenerating the RS232 signals. Micro controller monitors the signal when PCM runs in Programmed Mode and the 
Collision Avoidance Algorithm is enabled. 

Operational Mode 

The PCM offers specific functionality in each of the five operational modes available: 1) Direct Path Mode, 2) 
Jumper Settings Mode, 3) Programmed Mode, 4) Configuration Mode - hard setting and 5) Configuration Mode - 
soft setting. Table 4a shows the operational mode, the functionality and the source for parameters. 

In Direct Path Mode the PCM will pass all the data to the Modem Port without any processing. No data or control 
signal is monitor or generated. The Master Station RS232 port and the equipment connected to the Modem Port 
must have the same communication parameters (e.g. data format, speed). The PCM has no parameters to set in this 
mode. 

Jumpers Settings Mode offers the functionality of a port combiner with controlled transmission. Using the jumper 
header the following parameters can be set: baud rate, RTS Preamble, RTS OFF Delay. The PCM can buffer up to 
192 bytes in maximum 16 messageslframes. 

The Configuration Mode is a console interface to setup parameters used in Programmed Mode. The new set of 
parameters are stored in the by the microcontroller in the internal EEPROM. 

Programmed Mode offers the functionality of the Jumpers Settings Mode plus parity selection and DNP 3.0 
Collision Avoidance Algorithm emulation. The parameters are set using the Configuration Mode. The PCM can 
buffer up to 192 bytes in maximum 16 messageslframes. 

Table 4a 

The operational mode is set by jumper selection on an 8-position header. Valid selections are shown in Tables 4c, 
4d, 4e and 4f. The PCM will operate in the highest priority operational mode. The highest priority is 1 and the 
lowest is 5. Table 4b shows available parameters, definition, and valid range. 

Operational mode 
Programmed Mode 
Configuration Mode, hard settings 
Direct Path 
Jumpers Settings 
Configuration Mode, soft settings 

Rev. 2 Page 3 70917 - UM 

Functionality 
Port Combiner 

Setup 
Port Combiner 
Port Combiner 

Setup 

Parameters source 
Parameters retrieved from the EEPROM. 
Default: 9600bps, parity none. 
No parameters required. 
Parameters retrieved from the jumper header. 
Parameters retrieved from the EEPROM. 

Range/ Selection 
Default 
1200,2400,4800,9600, 
19200,38400bps 
None, Odd, Even 

Parameter 
Data format 
Baud rate 

Parity 

RTS Preamble 

Mode 
All operational modes 
Programmed Mode and 
Jumpers Settings Mode 
Programmed Mode 

Programmed Mode and The PCM asserts RTS and starts the 
Jumpers Settings Mode 

Definition 
8 bits data, 1 bit stop 
RS232 serial communication speed. 

9-th bit, calculated parity for each byte 
transmitted. 

ppp 

RTS Off Delay 

CDC Source 

Programmed Mode and 
Jumpers Settings Mode 
Programmed Mode Selects the CDC source for monitoring. CDC, Rx 



Survalent Technology Corp. PCM User's Guide 

Max Random 
Time 
Min Link Idle 
Time 

Table 4d 

Parameter 
Jumper position 
Bit position 

Table 4b 

Table 4c 

Programmed Mode 

Programmed Mode 

I 

See 4.1.1 Collision Avoidance Algorithm. 

See 4.1.1 Collision Avoidance Algorithm. 

Baud rate 

Baud rate 
(3 positions) 

0 to 65000ms 

0 to 65000ms 

RTS Preamble 
4 1 5  1 6  
1 1 2 1 3  

1 

Jumper position 

Table 4e 

Baud rate / Operational Mode 1 
1 
0 
1 
0 
1 
0 
1 
0 
1 

Jumper position 

RTS Preamble 
(3 positions) 

Table 4f 

2 
RTS Off Delay 

Time Delay/ Operational Mode 

1 
0 
1 
0 
1 

3 7 
1 

2 
0 
0 
1 
1 
0 
0 
1 
1 

4 
0 
1 
0 

8 

1 
0 
0 
1 
1 

1 

Rev. 2 

2 

3 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 
1 
1 
1 

5 
0 
0 
1 

RTS Off Delay 
(2 positions) 

Legend: '0' -jumper out (open) 
' 1 ' -jumper in (close) 

2 1 

Programmed Mode 
12OObps 
24OObps 
48OObps 
96OObps 
19200bps 
384OObps 

Configuration Mode 

- 

0 
1 
1 
1 

1 

Jumper position 

Page 4 

2 

6 
0 
0 
0 

50 ms 
100 ms 
200 ms 
500 ms 

Direct Path (by-pass PCM) 

Delay I 

1 1 (1 char) + 100 ms 

7 
0 
1 
0 

CTS control 
10 ms. 
20 ms 

8 
0 
0 
1 

(1 char) + Oms 
(1 char) + 20 ms 
(1 char) + 50ms 



Survalent Technology Corp. PCM User's Guide 

4.1 Programmed Mode 

If jumper positions 1, 2, and 3 are open the PCM operates in Programmed Mode. In this mode the parameters are 
retrieved from the EEPROM. To operate properly in this mode the PCM must be set using the Configuration Mode 
described in 4.2. 
If the EEPROM is empty, the default parameters are stored in EEPROM and the micro controller restarts. 

When the PCM is running in Programmed Mode is it possible to activate the Configuration Mode by sending the 
following message (without quotes): "QUINDAR PRODUCTS LTD.". The characters must be typed or a delay of 
50 milliseconds must be inserted after each character. After the successful detection of the password the normal 
PCM operation stops. A loop back path is set and all the messages are sent back to the Master. This feature permits 
a quick remote setup without changing the jumpers (see 4.5 Configuration Mode, soft settings). 

4.1.1 Collision Avoidance Algorithm 

Another special feature available only in Programmed Mode is the Collision Avoidance Algorithm for DNP v3.00. 
This function is disabled if Min Link Idle Time and Max Random Time are set to zero. When enabled the PCM 
performs a collision avoidance algorithm before transmitting each frame. 

Because the collision avoidance algorithm is based on seeing Data Camer Detect (DCD). asserted when any other 
device is transmitting a frame, it limits communication to half-duplex. Also, it cannot be enabled in a dial-up 
environment because when using a dial-up modem the Data Link uses DCD to know whether or not it has a 
connection. Both RTS and DCD must be enable in order to use collision avoidance. 

4.1.2 Inputs 

When collision avoidance is enabled, the PCM monitors the DCD signal to determine when it is safe to transmit. In 
a multi-point configuration, the DCD input signal is typically connected to the Request To Send (RTS) output 
signals of the other devices sharing the serial link. 

The PCM uses the configuration parameters RTS Preamble, Min Link Idle Time and Max Random Delay to 
implement this algorithm. Refer to the DNP v3.00 Data Link Configuration Guide for more details. 

4.1.3 Processing Algorithm 

The PCM performs the following algorithm each time it attempts to transmit a frame when collision 
avoidance is enabled: 
1. Wait until DCD is not asserted. 
2. Wait the length of time specified by the Min Link Idle Time configuration parameter. 
3. If DCD is asserted or DCD was asserted at any time during the wait, return to step 1. 
4. Wait a random length of time no longer than that specified by the Max Random Delay configuration parameter. 
5. If DCD is asserted or DCD was asserted at any time during the wait, return to step 1. 
6. Assert Request To Send (RTS) and wait for the length of time required by the RTS Preamble configuration 

parameter. 
7. Transmit the frame. 

Rev. 2 

The pause for the Min Link Idle Time creates a "window" of time allowing a designated master device to claim the 
line before any other device. On a master device, the length of this pause is typically configured to zero, while on 
each slave, it is typically configured to a time long enough for the master to detect that the link is idle and assert 

Page 5 



Survalent Technology Corp. PCM User's Guide 

RTS. The random delay limits the probability that two or more devices will attempt to claim the serial link at the 
same time. 

4.1.4 Output 

The PCM uses the Request To Send (RTS) signal to indicate it has claimed the serial link. In a multi-point 
configuration, this signal is typically connected to the Data Carrier Detect (DCD) line of all other devices on the 
serial link. 

4.2 Configuration Mode, hard settings 

Ifjumper positions 1, 2, and 3 are closed the PCM operates in Configuration Mode. In this mode the PCM accepts 
parameters from the Master port and stores these parameters in EEPROM. The PCM will reject and report any out 
of range selection. Maximum five characters and ENTER are accepted at the prompt. All characters are rejected 
except digits and ENTER. Typing ENTER without a selection validates the current selection. Table 4.2 shows the 
configuration interface: 

Table 4.2 
The EEPROM is empty. New settings must be stored! 

Quindar Products LTD. 
PCM - Port Combiner Module 
70917-05 v. 2.00 / April 15, 2002 

Default Data bits: 8 
Default Stop bits: 1 

Baud rate: 4 
9600 1200 2400 4800 9600 19200 38400 
[OI [ll [21 [31 [41 [51 [61 

New selection: 

Parity: 0 
None Odd Even 
[OI [I1 [21 

New select ion : 

CD source: 1 
CD Rx-line 
101 ill 

New selection: 

(RTS ON Preamble: The PCM asserts RTS and starts the transmission at the 
end of timed delay. If 'CTS controlled' is selected, there is no delay.) 

RTS ON Preamble: 7 
CTS controlled lOms 20ms 50ms looms 200ms 5OOms Oms 

[Ol [ll [21 [31 [41 [51 [61[71 
New selection: 

(RTS OFF Delay: At the end of the transmission the PCM deactivates 
RTS after timing the selected delay. Select '0' for no delay.) 

1 RTS OFF Delay: 0 
Oms 20ms 50ms looms 
[Ol Ell [21 [31 

New selection: 

Max Random Delay: 0050 
[Enter time in msec. Range 0 - 650001 
New selection: 

Rev. 2 Page 6 70917 -UM 



Survalent Technology Corp. PCM User's Guide 

Min Link Idle Time: 0100 
[Enter time in msec. Range 0 - 650001 
New selection: 

Save settings: NO 
NO YES 
[Ol [11 

New selection: 
Parameters successfully stored. / No parameters stored. 
The PCM is ready to start. Remove jumpers now! 

At the end of the configuration process jumpers 1,2, and 3 must be removed and the PCM will restart and run using 
the settings stored in the EEPROM. The PCM communicates using the following parameters: 9600bps, no parity, 
RTS Preamble1 OFF Delay are zero, Max Random Delay I Min Link Idle Time are zero. "The EEPROM is empty. " 
message is displayed if there are no parameters previously stored. 

4.3 Direct Path Mode 

In this operational mode the microcontroller enables a direct path from the Master ports to the Modem port. There is 
no processing involved and no parameters are necessary. To operate in this mode jumpers 4,5, and 6 must be in. 

4.4 Jumper Settings Mode 

The Jumper Settings Mode is activated if the PCM does not detect Programmed Mode, Console Mode or Direct 
Path. In this operational mode only jumpers set the parameters. Tables 4d, 4e, and 4f show the valid selections for 
each available parameter. 

4.5 Configuration Mode, soft settings 

The configuration interface is used to set the PCM parameters, see 4.2 Configuration Mode. The new parameters are 
stored in the EEPROM and are used as current after the micro controller restarts. This mode is activated if the 
message (without quotes): "QUINDAR PRODUCTS LTD." is received by the PCM while running in Programmed 
Mode. The characters must be typed or a delay of 50 milliseconds must be inserted between characters. After the 
successful detection of the password the normal PCM operation stops. A loop back path is set and all the messages 
are sent back to the Master port. This feature permits a quick remote setup without changing the jumpers (see 4.5 
Configuration Mode, soft settings). 

Parameters successfully stored. / NO parameters stored. 
The PCM restarts now! 

The communication parameters are the same as for the Programmed Mode. At the end of the setup procedure the 
PCM restarts without any external intervention. The PCM will restart if no data input is received in a three-minute 
period. 

4.6 LED indication 

Monitoring LEDs are available for TxD, RTS, CDC and RxD. A Status LED will indicate proper operation of the 
controller by flashing on for 250milliseconds every 3 seconds. 

Rev. 2 Page 7 



Survalent Technology Corp. PCM User's Guide 

Error detection an handling 
- The PCM buffer can store up to 192 bytes in maximum 16 messages/frames. If the number of received 

messages minus number of sent messages is equal to 16 an Buffer Overflow error will be signaled and the PCM 
will restart. 

- Baud rate mismatch or parity can cause a Frame Error. 

Status LED codes: 

Rev. 2 

State / Error 
Normal Operation 
Frame Error 

Rx FIFO Overrun 

Buffer Overflow 

Program error 

Page 8 

i s  

Description 
Normal operation 
The receiver detected a frame error. 

The internal FIFO of the receiver 
overrun 
Received more than 192 bytes or more 
than 16 messageslframes. 
Internal software error. 

Signal code 
1 short flash - 0.25sec. every 2 sec. 
Repeat 2 times, 3 short consecutive 
flashes I 2 sec. Pause 
Repeat 2 times, 4 short consecutive 
flashes / 2 sec. Pause 
Repeat 2 times, 5 short consecutive 
flashes / 2 sec. Pause 
Repeat 2 times, 8 short consecutive 
flashes / 2 sec. pause' 

Comments/ notes 
This is normal operation. 
The characters received are 
sent out. 
The processor will be reset. 

The processor will be reset. 

The processor will be reset. 



The Dell'" PowerEdge" 2850 server ollers the 

perfect balance 01 perlor~nance, storage 

capacity, conliguration flexibility and rack 

density making i t  ideal lor  network 

infrastructure applications that also 

demand uncompromised availability 

and expandability. 

-' 
I I I I I  
I I I Y  
1  1 n 
1 - 1 1  

Best 
December 28, 2004 

Dell PowerEdge 2850 

October 5 ,  2004 
Dell PowerEdge 2850 

Dell PowerEdge 2850 

Expandable Performance 

With up to six hard drive bays, up to two  Intel"XeonN processors (single-core or dual-core) supporting 

an 800MHz Front Side Bus and up to 16GB2 of DDR-2 memory, the PowerEdge 2850 server is designed 

for top-notch performance today and the ability to expand in the future. And it packs all of this into 

a space-conscious 2U chassis. Additionally, the system includes support for PC1 Express", the latest 

development in I10 throughput that helps your server keep pace with advances in I10 technologies. 

Plus, the PowerEdge 2850 server is designed to support expansion with Intel Extended Memory64Technology 

that supports both 32-bit and 64-bit applications enabling you to easily expand into 64-bit technology. 

Uncompromising Availability 

The PowerEdge 2850 server addresses the need for high availability in intense network applications. 

I t  features optional hot-plug redundant power supplies and standard hot-plug hard drives, RAID 0, 1, 5, 

10 or 50 support for data redundancy, an optional internal tape drive for local data backup, Memory 

Mirroring and redundant Network lnterface Controllers to keep your systems running while protecting 

your data. Additionally, support for high availability SCSl or fibre channel clustering provides flexible, 

scalable availability. 

Manageability and Serviceability 

Simple yet powerful management features, both local and remote, are key benefits of the PowerEdge 

2850 server. PowerEdge 2850 includes a standard Baseboard Management Controller that is compliant 

with Intelligent Platform Management ln ter face (IPIVII) 1.5 so tha t  you can manage your systems 

f rom anywhere, anytime w i th  any management program that supports IPMI. The optional DRAC 411 

remote management card with continuous video monitoring, virtual floppyICD access and Active 

Directory integration provides an additional level of manageability. Additionally, it shares common BlOS 

and drivers with PowerEdge 1850 and 2800 servers making it easy to perform software upgrades and 

maintenance while helping to reduce Total Cost of Ownership. 

What's more, the PowerEdge 2850 system is built for ease-of-use and serviceability. The 2U chassis 

easily slides in and out of the rack for rapid service, and the chassis does not require tools for servicing 

or replacing components. The LCD panel details the status of your system and the bezel display includes 

Active ID indicators that immediately alert you in the event of system failures. 

The PowerEdge 2850 is designed to deliver n e w  levels of performance while offering a balance of 

storage capacity and rack density making it a perfect solution for growing network infrastructure 

environments. 

/ 

GET MORE PERFORMANCE A N D  VALUE. GET MORE OUT OF NOW. 1 



DELL ENTERPRISE SERVICES 
Oell Services can deliver the services you need to realize 
the full value of your IT investment. Complementing our 

award-winning products, these IT infrastructure services 
incorporate operational excellence, accountability and value. 

By utilizing our best practices, proven processes and 
expertise in implementing standards-based technologies. 
we can help strengthen your IT infrastructure and enable 

you to adopt evolving technologies. Whether you need 

support, deployment, asset management, training, 
certification, planning or professional services - individually 
or bundled as a total solution -you can count on Dell. 

Strengthening Your IT  Infrastructure 
Our planning services help integrate your new enterprise 
hardware into your existing or evolving IT infrastructure. 

We can provide guidance whether you're adding a single or 
multiple servers, storage area network or high-performance 

computing cluster. 

We can also help you enhance the overall performance of 
your IT infrastructure and data center by consolidating 

software and hardware, developing a business continuity 
plan and migrating to standards-based technologies. 

Simplifying Deployment 
Oell simplifies implementation with comprehensive services 
that accelerate deployment of new hardware and IT 

solutions. During the initial system-build of your server, we 
can customize software and hardware to match your 

specific requirements. By helping you rapidly deploy new 
capabilities while minimizing disruptions, we can contribute 
to improved efficiencies and lower costs. 

Our training services provide education and certification 
courses to  help you better manage and use your new 

hardware so you can reap the full benefits of standards- 
based technologies. 

Providing Award-Winning Service & Support 
Your server and storage infrastructure is central to  your 

business, which is why you need a partner who can help 
minimize downtime and keep your business-critical systems 
running efficiently. Our enterprise support services are 
designed to protect your entire enterprise or to focus on 

specific systems. These customizable services include 
hardware and software support with varied response levels, 

account management and remote resolution. 

We can also help you enhance the performance of your 

data center and provide managed IT solutions and asset 
management services for your enterprise, desktop and 
notebook environments. 

The Oell Enterprise Command Centers IECC) -which utilize 
industry-leading technologies and tools that speed up 
problem resolution - efficiently route spare parts and direct 

expert technicians to  your site. 

Services vary by region. For more information, please visit 
www.dell.com. 

FEATURES Dell"' PowerEdge'" 2850 Server 

Form factor 2U rack height 

Processors Up to two single-core 64-bit Intel"XeonT" processors at up to  3.8GHz 
or up to two dual-core 64-bit lntel Xeon processors at 2.8GHz 

Front side bus 800MHz 

Cache Up to 2MB L2 per processor core 

Chipset lntel E7520 

Memory 256MBl12GB DDR-2 400 SDRAM; 16GB with availability 
of dual rank4GB DIMMsz 

I10 channels Three total: three PCI-X@ slots (64-biVl33MHz) or two PC1 Express" 
slots (1 x 4 lane and 1 x 8  lane) and one PCI-X slot (64-biVlOOMHz) 

Drive controller Embedded dual channel Ultra320 SCSI; internal and external routing 

RAlD controller Optional dual channel RDMB (PERC m i ) ,  PERC BlOC and PERC4eDc adapters 

Drive bays Six 1" Ultra320 hot-plug SCSl drives or five drive bays and one tape drive bay 

Maximum internal storage Up to 1.8TB with 300GB HDD 

Hard drives3 36GB, 73GB,146GB and 300GB(10,000 rpm) Ultra320 SCSl 
18GB, 36GB.73GB and 146GB (15,000 rpm) Ultra320 SCSl 

Internal storage 10K115K RPM SCSl drives 

External storage Dell PowerVault" SCSl and DellIEMC fibre channel storage 

Tape backup options Internal: PowerVault 1 lOT 
External: PowerVault 114T, 1241 132T and 136T 

Network interface card Dual embedded lntel Gigabit' NICs; single and dual port lntel PRO11000 
MT  Gigabit adapters, lntel PRO11000 MF (optical) 

Power supply 700W, optional hot-plug redundant power 

Availability ECC memory; Single Device Data Correction (SDDC); Spare Bank; 
Memory Mirroring; hot-plug SCSl hard drives; optional hot-plug 
redundant power; hot-plug redundant cooling; tool-less chassis; 
high availability fibre channel and SCSl cluster support; optional 
ROMB with battery-backed cache; optional Split Backplane; 
optional PERC RAlD controller 

Video Embedded AT1 Radeon 7000-M with 16MB SDRAM 

Remote management Baseboard Management Controller with lPMl 1.5 compliance, accessible 
via network or serial port; optional slot-free DRAC 4/1 

Systems management Dell OpenManage" 

Rack support 4.post (Dell rack), 2-post and 3rd party; Cable Management Arm 

Operating systems MicrosofP Windows Server" 2003, Standard x64 Edition; Microsoft 
Windows Server 2003, Enterprise x64 Edition; Microsoft Windows 
Server 2003, Standard Edition; Microsoft Windows Server 2003, 
Enterprise Edition; Red Ha$ L inu f l  Enterprise v2.1; Red Hat Linux 
Enterprise v3; Red Hat Linux Enterprise v3 Advanced Server EM64T; 
Novella NetWare' 5.1 and 6.5 

'PC Magazine Editors' Choice Award Logo is a ragistered trademark and PC Magazine Bast of 2W4 Award Logo is a tradamark of Z i i  Davis Publishing Holdings 
Inc. Used under license. 

'Wilh availability of the dual rankad4GB D l M M s  schadulad for 2nd half of 2005 
'For hard drives, GB means 1 billion bytes; actual capacity varias with praloadad material and oparating environmsnt and will ba lass 
'This tarm doas not connola an actual ooaratina seead of IGBIsac. For hiah soaed lransmission, connaction to e Giaabit Ethernet server and network infrastructure . - .  - .  
is required 

Dall is not responsible for errors in typography or photography. Oall. PowarEdge. Powarveult and OpenManage ara trademerks of Dell Inc. lntal is a registarad 
tradarnark and Xaon is a tradamark of lntal Corporation. Linux is a registered trademark of Linus Torvalds. Microsofl and Windows are ragistared trademarks of 
Microsoft Corporation. Novell and NetWare ara ragislered l radamarkiof  Novall. Inc. PC1 Express is a tradamark and PCI-X is a ragistared trademark of PCI-SIG. 
Rao hat  IS a reg steredtrademarr of Rod hat nc Otnartradomarks an0 traoanamas may be "sad n t h  sdoc.mantt0 rater tonnnar In0  entn as cla m ngtna marks 
and names or thou procucts Dell o sr la~ms propr atan/ mtarast n Ins marks and namss 51 others O Copyrlgnt ZW5 Dell lnc All rlghts reserve0 Raproo~Ct on n 
any mannar wnatsoevar w,mout tne Express w r ~ n a n  parmlsslon of Da Inc s str~ctly 'orb doen For mare nlormat on contact Do September 2005 KO ar 

GET MORE PERFORMANCE AND VALUE. GET MORE OUT OF NOW. 



The D e l l  Precis ion ' "  380 W o r k s t a t i o n  i s  Redefining Customer Productivity in the Entry Workstation Space 

a robust, scalable entry level The Dell Precision 380marks the f irst generation of a powerful new Intelmcore architecture that provides support 
for dual-core InteImPentiumm D processors in addition to the fastest Intel Pentium 4 processors available today. 

w o r k s t a t i o n  d e s i g n e d  f o r  c o m p u t i n g  
Optimized for performance, an ISV-certified Dell Precision workstation can help improve user productivity and 

env i ronments  tha t  r e q u i r e  op t im ized  quality of work, 
per fo rmance,  e x p a n d a b i l i t y  a n d  

r e l i a b i l i t y  i n  a un i -p rocessor  Del iver ing Productivity Gains with 64-Bit Technology 
Unleash the power of 64-bit processing and larger memory addressabilityl to  design bigger, animate with more 

a rch i tec tu re .  realism and help improve accuracy for  critical applications. Up to 8GB1 of high speed DDR2 memory is supported, 
enabling high performance by reducing the need to  swap large amounts of data to disk. Optional ECC memory 
can provide a more robust operating environment. For storage intensive applications such as digital content 
creation, Dell delivers great performance and expanded disk configuration flexibility w i th  supportfor 10,000 RPM 
SATA drives and RAID 0,1,5, and 10. Legacy support is also presentfor customers who need access to 32-bit PC1 
expansion slots. Users can appreciate increased performance today while IT managers can be assured of a 
smooth transition path to 64-bit operating systems and applications. 

Workstation-Class PC1 Express x16 Graphics 
Dell Precision offers an intelligent selection of ISV certified workstation-class graphics cards that can satisfy a 
range of customer needs from unprecedented OpenGL 3D performance to dependable 2D performance wi th 
optional dual monitor capability. 

Peace of M i n d  with ISV Application Certifications 
Dell partners with leading Independent Software Vendors (ISVs) to certify system and application compatibility 
so that your applications wi l l  run powerfully and efficiently on Dell Precision workstations. Through rigorous 
testing, Dell  helps ensure f lawless compatibi l i ty and optimized performance i n  demanding workstation 
environments. And, to assure access to the latest productivity enhancing technology solutions, Dell invests in  the 
workstation ISV community by providing the hardware platforms needed to further multi-threaded application 
development. In turn, Dell hardware can deliver continuous performance gains as applications become optimized. 
Plus, Dell provides specialized ISV-knowledgeable service and support to keep your system running smoothly 
with your applications. 

A Flexible N e w  Del l  Precision 380 Chassis 
Dell Precision 380 comes in a scalable chassis that can al low you the flexibilityto configure a system matched to 
your unique requirements. The innovative chassis helps provide investment protection by supporting both mini- 
tower and desktop orientations wi th rotating optical storage to match. The chassis has been designed to  enable 
easy access to its interiorwithoutthe requirementfor additional desk space to  open the system. With a full range 
of performance options such as high-performance PC1 Express, PC1 expansion slots, an optional U320 SCSl RAID 
(0,l) controller and a choice of ISV-certified graphics cards, the Dell Precision 380 is designed with your future 
needs in mind. 

Rich and Reliable Manageabi l i ty  Features 
The DellTM OpenManageTM suite of products delivers software and hardware management features designed to 
lower your TCO and keep your workforce productive and current by enabling mass system updates, providing 
system alerts and allowing for after hours software updates/imaging. In addition, you receive the benefits of Dell 
service and supportwith three year Next Business Day On-Site servicelo. Providing uncompromised performance, 
exceptional scalability and flexibility and the latest processor technology, the Dell Precision 380is wel l  suited for 
your challenging entry workstation applications. 

[\ 

GET MORE PERFORMANCE A N D  VALUE. GET M O R E  OUT OF N O W .  



FEATURES Dell  PrecisionTM 380 

SYSTEM 

Processors 64-bit Intel@ Pentiurn@ dual-core or single-core processors wi th 800MHz front side bus and 2MB L2 cache per processor; Hyper-Threading 
Technology and 1066MHz FSB available wi th select processors. All lntel Pentium processors support 64-bit computing wi th lntel Extended 
Memory 64Technology 

Operating systems Dell recommends M i c r o s o m  WindowsBXP Professional for Business 
Genuine Windows XP Professional; Genuine WindowsXP Professional x64 Edition; 
Red Hat@ Enterprise Linux WS v.4 (IA32); Red Hat Enterprise Linux WS v.4 (Intel EM64Tl 

Chipset lntel 955X chipset 
Memory Up to 8GB1 dual-channel2 ODRZ 533MHz ECC registered memory; Four D l M M  slots; 667MHz and non-ECC memory also available 

Graphics Support for ISV-certified PC1 Express graphics cards up to 150 watts and wi th up to 512MB graphics memory including: nVIDIAB (luadro@ FX 
4500; nVIDlA (luadro FX 3450; (luadro FX 1400; ATlTM FireGLmV3100; nVIDIA (luadro NVS 285; All graphics cards support dual monitor 
configurations 

Hard dr ives Serial ATA/l5O 7,200 RPM drives up to 500GB3 and Serial ATA/l5O 10,000 RPM drives at 80GB3; Chassis supports up to three SATA drives in 

desktop orientation or four SATA in tower orientation (up to 2 terabytes3 storage maximum); Also available, Ultra 320 SCSl 10.000RPM drives up to 
300GB3 and 15,000RPM drives up to 146GB3; Chassis supports up to three SCSl drives in either desktop or tower orientation (U320 SCSl controller 
card required) 

Hard d r i ve  contro l ler  Integrated Serial ATA wi th RAlD 0,1,5,10; Optional Ultra 320 SCSl controller wi th RAlD 0.1 
N e t w o r k  contro l ler  Integrated PC1 Express Broadcorn@ BCM5751 10/100/1000 GigabiP Ethernet 

Aud io  contro l ler  Integrated AC'97 audio; Optional Sound Blaster@Audigy@ 2 (D$ 
Standard I10 ports Eight USB 2.0:two on front panel,five on back panel, one internal; One serial (second serial optional); One parallel; Two PS/2; One RJ-45; Line-in, 

line-out, and microphone connectorson back panel; Speaker and headphone connectors on front panel 
Opt ional  110 IEEE 1394a connector available wi th add-in card; PCMCIA reader 

CHASSIS 

M u l t i p l e  or ientat ion desktop Desktop orientation wi th feet: (WxHxD) 17.61" x 6.7" x 18.44";44.73 cm x 17.2 cm x 46.84 cm 
Mini-Tower orientation wi th feet: (WxHxD) 6 . 7 " ~  17.61" x 18.44; 17.2 cm x 44.73 cm x 46.84 cm 
Two internal 3 .5  x 1" disk drive bays; Two external 5.25 drive bays; One external 3.5"flex bay for  optional floppy drive or optional internal USB 
media card reader (desktop orientation); Mini-Tower orientation includes two  external f lex bays for optional floppy drive or optional internal USB 

I media card reader and 4th SATA drive; One PC1 Express x16 graphics slot; One PCle x8 slot (wired as x4); Three PC1 slots (32-bit 5V); 375 watts 
Power Factor Correcting (PFC) power supply 

PERIPHERALS 

Mon i to rs  Performance Flat Panel Displays: Dell UltraSharpmwidescreen and standard f lat panel displaysfrom 17'viewable to 24'viewable 
Value Flat Panel Displays and CRT Monitors also available 

Keyboard Dell Smart Card and Enhanced Multimedia keyboards; Dell CluietkeyTM keyboard standard 
M o u s e  Dell optical mouse wi th scroll; Dell mechanical mouse wi th scroll standard 

Opt ional  Speakers Internal chassis speaker; Dell two  piece stereo system; Dell sound bar available for  all f lat panel displays 
STORAGE DEVICES 

Opt ional  Removable Storage Including OVDtRWB, CD-RW/DVD-ROM combo drive and Dell USB Memory Key up to 512MB7 
Opt ional  M o d e m  Dell 56KB v.92 Data/Fax PC1 modem 

ENVIRONMENTAL & REGULATORY 

Standards TC099; Blue Angel; Green PC; Energy Star; BSMI; C-TICK; CE; FCC; IRAM; EMKO; NFPA99; SABBS; SASO; TCO; TUV; UL; VCCI; USB 2.0; Lead 
Free1! and RoHS CompliantIz chassis and motherboard 

SERVICE & SUPPORT 

Base  3-Year Limited Warranty9 wi th 3 years standard Next Business Day On-site Servicelo (US Only) 
Recommended 3-Year Same Business Day 4 hour On-site Servicelo-5 days a week, M-F 10 hours a day 

3-Year Same Business Day 4 hour On-site SewicelO-7 days a week, 24 hours a day 
3 & 4-year Gold Technical Support under local hours of operation 

NOTE: Some applications and peripherals are notcompatible wi th a 64-bitoperating system environment. Be sure tover i fywi th all of your current application vendors that  your full applicetion suiteis compatible before purchasing a Dell 
Precision workstetion wi th a 64-bit operatino svstem. 
Dell PCs use genuine Microsoff ~ i n ' d o w s .  ~&.microsoft.com/pirecv/howtorell. Dell's Terms and Conditions of Sales and Service apply and are available upon request. Deli cannot be held responsible for errors i n  typography or 
ohotoaraohv. 1 The total smountof  usable memorv aveiiable wi l l  be less. deoendina on the actual svstem confiouration. To util izemore than 4 6 8  of memorvreouires a 84-bit operetine system. 2 Dual-channel memory requires 2eech . . ~-~ 

of the same capecity memory DIMMs. 3   or hard drives, one GB means i bihon b G s  a &  one TB e4"als one t i l i o n  bytes; actual capecity varies wi th preioaded material endoperat~ng environment and wi l l  be less. 4This term does 
not connote an actual operating speed of 1 GB/sec. For high speed transmission, connection to a Gigabit Ethernetsewer and network infrastructure i s  required. 5 Certain system components may differ from the retailversion. 6 Discs 
burned with this drive mey not be compatible with soma existing drives end pleyers; using DVD+R media provides maximum compatibility. 7 For writeable storage devices. M B  means 1 million bytes; total accessible capecity varies 
depending on operating environment. 8 Download speeds ere limited to 53Kbps. Upload speeds are less (about 3OKbps). Speeds can vary by line condition and modem manufacturer. Analog phone line and sawice required. 9For a 
complete copy of our guarantees end limited warranties, please wr i te Dell U.S.A. L.P.. Anention: Warranties, Dne Dell Way, Round Rock, TX 78682. For more information, visit hnp://www.dell.com/us/en/gen/misc/policy~OlO~olicy.htm. 
10 Sewlce may be prov,deo by tnlrc-party T e c l i n ~ c ~ a n w  II be dlspetcnea fnecessary fo l low~ng pnone-based lroublesnoot~ng S-olectto parts aval a011 ty, geogrephlca roslrlc1,ons and terms of sew ce conlract ServlCe tlm r g  aepenoent 
upon t ma o laayce l  placed to Del U S only 11 ?er tne El l  Restr ctlon on certa n rla2aroo.s Substances dlrectve, tnts proauctor con1 g.ratlon contalns ess Inan0 1% end b y w e  gnt 12Meets the req.lrementsof t l e  EU Restr~ct  on 
on certain ~ a z a r d o u s ~ u b s t a n c e s  directivedated ~enuary27.2003. Deli, the Dell logo. Dell Precision, Dpen~anags ,  and UltraSharp areirademarks of  ell inc. Intel, lnte l  Inside, the lntel Inside logo, lntel PRO andXeon aretradamarks 
or registered trademarks of lntel Corporetion. Microsoft. Windows and the Windows logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of Microsofl Corporetion in the U.S. and other countries. Dell Inc. disclaims any p r o p r i e t a ~  intersst in 
trademarks and trade names oU~er than its own. @Copyright 2005 Dell inc. Ail rights reserved. Ad#59961966 



The Dell" PowerVault" 1241 secure tape Expandable Automated Backup Delivers True Value 

autoloader brings high density, expandable The Dell PowerVault 124T tape autoloader is designed to provide organizations with maximum secure 

and remote management backl~p capabilities storage capacity in  a space and resource-saving 2U rack mount chassis. The affordable PowerVault 
to small and medium businesses in a  compact^ 124T offers expandability and delivers features found previously only in high-end libraries. 

affordable 2U form factor. 

Its magazine style architecture enables you to double your storage capacity by upgrading from eight 

to 16 cartridges. Plus, you have a choice of equipping the autoloader with ILTO-3, LTO-2-L or VS160 tape 

drives. This forward compatibility can mean further cost savings by helping to ensure investment protection. 

Administrative Ease Can Save Time and Money 

The PowerVault 124T is designed to automate administrative backup tasks so that administrators can 

focus on other efforts. Remote management through any web-based browser provides the ability to 

oversee backup operations from any PC. Plus, automatic cartridge swapping helps reduce the risk for 

human error sometimes caused by manually switching cartridges. The PowerVault 124T's automated 

capabilities also simplify large or frequent backup scenarios. 

Crafted for easy installation and use, the PowerVault 124T can quickly be implemented into 

existing networks. The removable eight-slot magazines enable fast bulk tape loading while the 

standard bar-code reader helps save time, allowing administrators to randomly or sequentially 

access their cartridges. 

A validated backup solution designed to ensure peace of mind 

The PowerVault 124T offers seamless integration with customer networks. It works with different 

network operating systems such as Windows', Linuxaand Netware'. Additionally, it supports leading 

backup applications including VERITAS' Backup Exec", Yosemite" Backup", CommVault@' Galaxym and 

LEGATO Networker? 

To help ensure compatibility and easy implementation, the PowerVault 124T is Dell certified, tested and 

validated for use on Dell hardware including PowerEdgem servers and select storage devices. I t  is also 

V ,  . backed by Dell technical support for the length of your limited warranty.' 

_ ' . . . . 

The PowerVault 124T is a premier tape autoloader for busy administrators, delivering dense storage 

Dell Powervault 124T capacity in a 2U form factor at an affordable price. 

[ -  ', 

I 

GET MORE PERFORMANCE A N D  VALUE. GET MORE OUT OF NOW. ( 



DELL ENTERPRISE SERVICES 
Oell Services can deliver the services you need to 
realize the ful l  value of your IT investment. 
Complementing our award-winning products, these IT 
in f rastructure serv ices incorporate operational 
excellence, accountability and value. 

By utilizing our best practices, proven processes 
and expertise in  implementing standards-based 
technologies, we  can  help strengthen your IT  
infrastructure and enable you to adopt evolving 
technologies. Whether you need support, deployment 
asset management, training, certification, planning 
or professional services - individually or bundled as a 
total solution -you can count on Dell. 

Strengthening Your I T  Inf rastructure 
Our planning services help integrate your new 
enterprise hardware into your existing or evolving 
IT infrastructure. We can provide guidance whether 
you're adding a single or multiple servers, storage area 
network or high-performance computing cluster. 

We can also help you enhance the overall performance 
of your IT infrastructure and data center by 
consolidating software and hardware, developing 
a business continuity plan and migrating to 
standards-based technologies. 

Simpl i fy ing Deployment  
Oell simplifies implementation with comprehensive 
services that accelerate deployment of new hardware 
and IT solutions. During the initial system-build of your , server, we can customize software and hardware to 
match your specific requirements. By helping you 
rapidly deploy new capabilities while minimizing 
disruptions, we can contribute to improved efficiencies 
and lower costs. 

Ourtraining services provide education and certification 
courses to help you better manage and use your new 
hardware so you can reap the full benefits of 
standards-based technologies. 

Provid ing Award -Winn ing  Serv ice & Support  
Your server and storage infrastructure is central to your 
business, which is why you need a partner who can 
help minimize downtime and keep your business-critical 
systems running efficiently. Our enterprise support 
services are designed to protect your entire enterprise 
or to focus on specific systems. These customizable 
services include hardware and software support with 
varied response levels, account management and 
remote resolution. 

We can also help you enhance the performance of 
your data center and provide managed ITsolutions 
and asset management services for your enterprise, 
desktop and notebook environments. 

The Dell Enterprise Command Centers IECC)- which 
utilize industry-leading technologies and tools that 
speed up problem resolution - efficiently route spare 
parts and direct expert technicians to your site. 

Get the most from your new systems. Turn to Oell for 
the services you need to better plan, implement and 
maintain your IT infrastructure. 

Servicesvary by region. For more information, please 
visit w . d e l l . c o m .  

FEATURES OESCRIPTION 

RELIABILITY 

M e a n  cyc les  be tween  fa i l u re  >400,000 cycles (excluding drive) 
(MCBF) 

M e a n  t ime  t o  repa i r  ( M l T R )  Less than 30 minutes 

Typical  c y c l e  t ime  t 2 0  seconds 

In i t ia l ize e lement  s tatus 90 seconds (typical) 

M e a n  car t r idge load  t i m e  30 seconds 

PHYSICAL 

Dimensions (H x W x D)  3 .4  x 16.77" x 27.52" (8.64crn x 42.59crn x 69.90crn) 

Number o f  s lots  8 or  16 

Dr i ve  types LTO-3, LTO-2-L, VS160 

Interconnect  t ype  SCSl 

Rack  height  2U 

W e i g h t  31.11bs. (14.10kg) 

Inter face Ultra 160 LVD SCSl 

Barcode  reader Standard o n  PV124T 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

Temperature 

Operating 10" t o  35OC 

Non-operat ing -40' to 65°C 

Humidi ty  

Operating 20% to 80% RH; noncondensing 

Nan-operating 10% t o  90% RH; noncondensing 

POWER 

Requirements 90-256 VAC auto-ranging; 47-63 Hz 

Inrush current  4.0 A (RMS) fo r  115 VAC 

4.0 A (RMS) fo r  230 VAC 

P o w e r  consumpt ion 60Hz = 75W; 50Hz = 8 0 W  

DRIVES AND PERFORMANCE 

M e d i a  DLT V S l  (VS160), LTO-2 (LTO-2-L), LTO-3 (LTO-3) and LTO-3 W O R M  

M e d i a  b a c k w a r d  read compat ib le DLT IV, OLTl (VS160), LTO-1 (LTO-2-L) and LTO-2, LTO-1 (LTO-3) 

M a x i m u m  capac i t y  (native) 1.2TB (VS160),3.2TB (LTO-2-L) and  6.4TB (LTO-3) 

M a x i m u m  nat ive backup  rate 8MBIsecond  (VS160) 24MBIsecond (LTO-2-L) a n d  8OMBIsec (LTO-3) 

GET MORE PERFORMANCE AND VALUE. GETMORE OUT OF NOW. i 



Network Enable and Remotely Manage Serial Devices 

The ETSI~PR and ETS32PR Terminal Servers provide The ETS16PR and 32PR can also be used to add network 

remote management of networking equipment and connectivity to  serial devices. These terminal servers 

offer 16 or 32 RS-232 serial ports to connect a variety 
(: 1 servers. Used as multiport device servers, these versatile 

of serial devices including medical devices, retail and 
products can also be used to network enable up to 32 

point-of-sale terminals, and industrial or business 

serial devices in a convenient racl<mount form factor. automation equipment. The serial ports use standard 

RJ45 connectors for convenient cabling and optional 

The ETS16PR and ETS32PR terminal servers offer up to adapters are available as well. 

32 serial ports which can be connected to the console or 

emergency management ports of most servers and ActiveLinx terminal servers provide easy setup through a 

networking equipment. With familiar tools like Telnet, command line interface or using the included EZWebCon 

system administrators can use the Ethernet port for management software GUI, or via a web interface. 

In-band management of these devices over the network. 

A modem can be connected for Out-of-band remote 

dial-up access even when the network is down. 

IT professionals can reduce costly downtime any save 

money by remotely accessing and troubleshooting 

equipment from anywhere. 



Features 
Accessibility 

In-Band (Ethernet) 
Out-of-Band (local device port or modem) 
Modem Controls - DSRIDTR and RTSICTS 

Console (Port )  A c c e s s  
Telnet to console server command line 
Direct to port using IP address and 'TCP port 
Multiple logical connections (TCPIIP and LAT) -up to 

8 sessions per port 
Modem dial-back 

M a n a g e m e n t  
Command Line Interface (Telnet or direct serial connection) 
EZWebConW Management Software 
Web-based configuration interface 
SNMP Compatible 
Firmware upgradeable via TFIP. DECnet host (MOP 

download), NetWare fileserver or EZWebConTM 
Event and error logging 

Additional P r o t o c o l s  supported . . 

LAT (!AT license required) 
Print Server:TCP/IP, IPX, AppleTalk, NetBIOSINetBEUI, LAT 

(optional !AT license required) 
DHCP 
TelnetlReverse Telnet (RTEL) 
Novell compatibility: binary emulation and NDS (Netware 

Directory Services) 

I n t e r f a c e s  
Network: ioBase-T/iooBase-TX (RJ45) or AUI Ethernet interface 
Serial: RJ45 RS-423, RS-232 (RJ45). 300 to 230 Kbps 

Power  R e q u i r e m e n t s  
AC input: 95-250 VAC, 12 W 
ETS16PR: 3oW 
ETSyPR: 4oW 

E n v i r o n m e n t a l  
Operating: 5 to 50°C (41 to 122OF) 
Storage: -40 to 66OC (-40 to i5i°F) 

P h y s i c a l  
Dimensions (HxWxD) 

ETS16PR: 1.75 in x 17.0 in x 12.0 in (4.45 cm x 43.18 cm x 30.48 cm) 
ETS32PR: 3.5 in x 17.0 in x 12.0 in (8.9 cm x 43.18 cm x 30.38 cm) 

Weight 
ETS16PR: 5.2 Ibs (2.60 kg) 
ETS32PR: 8.0 Ibs (3.54 kg) 

Shipping Dimensions (HxWxD) and Weight 
ETS16PR: 5.25 in x 20.25 in x 17.25 in (13.34 cm x 51.43 cm x 43.81 cm), 8.20 Ibs (3.72 kg) 
ETS32PR: 8.0 in x 21.0 in x 17.25 in (20.32 cm x 53.35 cm x 43.81 cm), 12 Ibs (5.45 @ 

A g e n c y  A p p r o v a l s  
FCC, UL, CSA, TUV, CE 

W a r r a n t y  
I-year limited warranty 

O r d e r i n g  I n f o r m a t i o n  
Part #: Description 

ETS16PR 16 Port Terminal Sewer/Multi-port Device Sewer 

ETS32PR 32 Port Terminal S e ~ e r / M ~ l t i - p ~ r t  Device Sewer 
LAT-ETS16 LAT License for ETS16PR (per unit) 

LAT-ETS32 LAT License for ETS32PR (per unit) 

Optional Cables/Adapters: 

500-101 6' RJ45 to DBg Male cable to DCE Device 

500-102 6' RJ45 to DB25 Male cable to DCE Device 

500-103 6' RJ45 to DB9 Female cable to DTE Device 

500-104 6' RJ45 to DB25 Female cable to DTE Device 

15353 Barranca Parkway I lwine I CAgz618 I USA 
O 2003 Lantronix is a registered trademark of Lantronix. Inc. ActiveLinx is a t 
without notice. All rights reserved. 
910-422 9/03 M G ~ O O O  

I Tel: 949.453.3990 I Fax: 949.453.3995 I www.lantronix.com 
rademark 01 Lantronix, Inc. All other trademarks are the properly o f  their respective owners. Specifications subject to change 



Dell'" PowerConnect" 2708/2716/2724 are Easy, Powerful Management 

web-managed. Gigabit Ethernet switches The PowerConnect 2700 series offers amazing value by delivering web-management capabilities for the price of 

designed by Dell  to provide a powerful an unmanaged switch from other vendors. Dell's web-managed switches allow users to manage the switch 

swi tch at an unmanaged swi tch price. through an intuitive web interface. The web-interface allows the user to easily manage the switch without 

learning CLI commands or integrating the switch into an SNMP-based application. While some vendors refer to 

their web-managed switches as "smart switches", we like to think of our switches as "powerful" ...p owerful 

performance coupled with powerful management capabilities. Each switch is delivered in standard, unmanaged 

mode. Convert the switch to web-managed mode with the push-of-a-button on the front panel, and then easily 

configure Quality of Service (QoS), port-based virtual LANs (VLANs) and remote switch monitoring. The firmware 

allows you to upgrade the switch sottware as needed. On top of all these capabilities, these new Gigabit Ethernet 

PowerConnect switches include features not typically found on other web-managed switches, such as integrated 

front panel LEDs and cable diagnostics. 

Secure, Wire-Speed Performance 

The PowerConnect 2700 series is a switch family of secure, fixed-port Gigabit Ethernet switches delivering full 

wire-speed switching performance. 'These switches offer three port densities, including 8, 16 and 24 Gigabit 

Ethernet ports. In addition the 2724 has two SFP slots in a combo port arrangement with ports 23 and 24 that 

deliver fiber capabilities (SFP transceivers optional). Auto h/lDl/VIDlX and auto-negotiation of speed, duplex mode 

and flow help deliver improved control over your network traffic. The PowerConnect 2716 and 2724 also support 

jumbo frames for networks that need to move large files across the network. 

Industry-Standard Manageabil i ty 

Because these switches adhere to industry standards, you should expect that these switches will interoperate 

with other industry-standard networking equipment devices. Easy web access to the managed features provides 

a secure environment by offering password restricted access. These switches also allow the user to specify which 

IP addresses have access to the switch thereby furthering their security. Up to 64 industry-standard VLANs are 

supported and four priority queues help optimize network traffic using IEEE 8 0 2 . 1 ~  quality-of-service. Port 

mirroring allows users to monitor network traffic for intrusion detection and troubleshooting. To provide additional 

bandwidth when connecting to other switches, the 2700 series switches support up to six link aggregation groups 

consisting of up to four ports per group. Advanced cable diagnostics help improve network troubleshooting while 

the DHCP client feature allows the switch to have an IP address assigned to i t  dynamically by a DHCP server. The 

Dell PowerConnect 2708,2716,2724 PowerConnect 2700 series offers you more power so you can get more out of your network! 

I 

GET MORE PERFORMANCE A N D  VALLIE. GET MORE OUT OF NOW. ( 



DELL ENTERPRISE SERVICES 
By utilizing the proven advantages of our direct model. 
including tailored service and support, low cost and a s in~ le  
point of contact, Dell Services can provide you with fast, 
effective, affordable service offerings at any point in your IT 
process. By doing so, we offer a combination of bundled 
best practices and tailored solutions that work together to 
provide maximum value to you. Whether you need support. 
deployment, training and certification programs, or professional 
consulting services, individually or bundled as a total package, 
Dell promises to be your single point of contact at all times. 

Professional  Serv ices 
Dell Professional Services enables Dell customers to 
optimize ROI by utilizing complex technology through the 
design, development and deployment of innovative, robust 
and scalable business-critical soiutions. With each 
engagement, we utilize our proven methodology and 
project management expertise to understand your business 
objectives, design plans that are flexible to adapt to your 
current environment and then deliver. 

Deployment  Serv ices 
We bring you deployment assistance that delivers true value 
from beginning to end. Dell can tailor systems to our 
customers' specifications by customizing the hardware and 
software configuration during the initial system-build to help 
reduce redundancy and time. We can manage the delivery. 
installation and disposal of your assets with the same eye 
for efficiency. 

Training and  Cert i f icat ion 
Our approach to Training and Certification allows you to 
outsmart your competitors - not outspend them -with 
industry-standard learning across Dell hardware and 
industry-standard software. Dell can assist you wherever 
you need us, whether on-site, on-line or in a classroom 
setting, to help your organization take full advantage of 
information technology. 

Enterprise Support Serv ices 
Technology is a ;iinificant investment and Dell can help you 
minimize costly downtime. Through our Premier Enterprise 
Support Services (PESS] offerings, Dell provides tiered 
support service packages with the flexibility to customize the 
offering to meet your specific needs. Registered File Watch 
users receive email notification for software updates. Users 
can define the "criticality" rating to help you determine which 
updates are most important for you. Signing up for File 
Watch is quick and easy. Simply visit your Premier Support 
site at http://premiersupport.dell.com and click on the "File 
Watch" link in the "Communication" section of the main 
menu. Once registered, you will receive email notification of 
product announcements or newly posted system downloads. 

Standard Warranty and  Serv ice P lan  
One-year limited warranty' supplemented with one year 
of Next 8usiness Day Advance Exchange Service7 
7-day/24-hour Lifetime Telephone Tschnical Support for 
troubleshooting and diagnosis of Dell hardware 
7-dayf24-hour Online Support Services 
Lifetime firmware upgrades (available for download via 
support.dell.com) 

Optional Support  
You can upgrade to three or five years of Advance Exchange 
Selvice2, with either Same Day or Next Business Day 
response. You may also choose three or five years of On-Site2 
Service, with either Same Day or Next Business Day response. 

FEATURES 

Port  conf igurat ion 

Pedormance 

Management 

Class of  serv ice 

Secur i ty  

VLAN 

Swi tch ing  
features 

Dell '" PowerConnect'" 2708 Del l  PowerConnect2716 Del l  PowerCo~ lnec t  2724 

B 10/100/1 OODBASE-T ports 16 l 011 DO/lOODBASE-T ports 24 1011 OD11 ODOBASE-T ports 

Auto-negotiation for speed. Auto-negotiation for speed, Auto-negotiation for speed. 
duplex mode and f low control duplex mode and f low control duplex mode and f low control 

Auto MDI/MDIX mode Auto MDIIMDIX mode Auto MDlNDlX  mode 
and f low control and f low control and f low control 

Integrated Port LEDs Integrated Port LEDs Integrated Port LEDs 

2 SFP slots (combo) for 
fiber support 

Switching capacity 16.0 Gbps Switching capacity 32.0 Gbps Switching capacity 48.0 Gbps 

Forwarding rate 11.9 Mpps Forwarding rate 23.7 Mpps Forwarding rate 35.6 Mpps 

Web-based management interface 

BootP/DHCP IP address management or Static IP address assignment 

RMON statistics 

Four priority queues per port 

Adjustable WRR and strict priority 

Layer 2 IEEE 802.1 p tagging and port-based priority 

Layer 3 -aware prioritization using DSCP values 

Switch access password protection (read-only and read-write access) 

Restricted IP address 

IEEE 802.10 port-based tagging up to 64 VLANs 

Honors all 4096 VLAN tags 

Link Aggregation, up to  six groups and up to four aggregated links per group (IEEE 802.3ad) 

Port mirroring 

Jumbo frame support up to 9000 Bytes (2716 & 2724 only) 

Avai labi l i ty  Firmware uploads to the switch 

Broadcast storm control 

Virtual cable tester by Marvell'" 

Optical transceiver analysis 

Chassis H x W x L (1.70 x 1 0 . 4 ~  6.37 in.) H x W x L 11.70 x 12.99 x 9.07 in.) H x W x L (1.70 x 12.99 x 9.07 in.) 

lU, rack-mounting kit included lU, rack-mounting kit included lU ,  rack-mounting kit included 

Unit weight: 5 Lbs. Unit weight: 6.16 Lbs. Unit weight: 6.698 Lbs. 

Per ipheral  Dell SFPTransceivers (1000-SX and 1000-LX for Powerconnect 2724 only) 
products 

'Tor ;I copy o l  nu: !jlli!r;~r~lc:(:s or 11111118~1 w ;~ r r i l l ~ l~~ ! ' i  l,lrnasu I - V ~ ~ I O  [IcII USA I..P, A l t l ~ :  War i i~~! l i ( !s .  0111: Dell Way, rIOlllltl l i o ~ k ,  TX 7DGX2. rl!i 111011! 
~nlnrmntinll, visit w w w ~ l c l l . ~ : n ~ ~ i / u s / e ~ ~ ! g n ~ ~ / s ~ ? r v i ~ . ~ s ~ s ~ i ~ ~ c ~  seivici: plans htm. 

'Tecllnician, rt?placc,i~~r!nt l lalt or tunll I r lepc~ld inq on s e ~ v i c e  c o ~ ~ t r a c l i  wil l  he d~ rpn l c l i od  t i  nccossnry l o l l o w i ~ ~ g  pllnnc-hasp11 I ~ n ~ r l ! l r ? r l ~ n o t ~ ~ l g  in 
advac!cc u l  ~ c ~ ~ i p l  01 rc11~rni:~l ~IOIUCIIVC LIIII~. SI:IYIL.C IIIC\Y be provitlcrl lby tI11rIl-l1dly ~pruvldcr SUIIII:I:I In  parts i l ~~a~ l i l l l i l l i y ,  ~IUO~II~IIIIIC~I ~CSIIII:IIIIII:~ 
;,nrl ir:~nls u l  sr:rvicc colltracl. Su~vicm tiul~,~!l 1 1 ~ ~ ~ 0 ~ 1 r l ~ ~ o l  11p011 tiinc 01 (l i ly call 11liic1:tl 111 0,!11 DCICC!I~,C 111111 r~ lost  be IC~IIII~CI~. ~ IC I I~~~CCOIC I~~S  III~IY 111: 

r r ! l ~ ~ r l ~ i s ~ i c i i .  US .  o~rly. 

Dell ~:nll~,nl l ie respnl,siI~le lor  erlnrs lypnglr,lpl~y or p l ~ o l o g m ~ ~ l r y .  Dcll, I h r  Dr l l  Logo a ~ i d  PnwerCollnect or(! lrndenlarks of Dell Cnnl l i l l r~r  Cn,l>o'nliol~. 

Ol l l~ . r  I I B ~ C I ~ I ~ I ~ ~ L  im111 t r i ~dc  i iaoics I1IJY IIC I ISI :~ it, 1111s clncurncni lo ~ l : l o :  l u  c i t l lc r  Ihc I:II~III:S c:l,i~~lltn!l l l ic  mai.Ls a o ~ l  o n l n c  or ~III!II j?,nducIs Dr!11 
~ l i s c l a i n~s  proplietary Inlleli!si III l l ic  t l ~ a ~ k s  al~ci II~IIIII:~ of  01I1cis .') C~~IVIIIJIII 2005 Dell Culilplilcr C~ i~po ra l i o l i .  All riglilts rcsorverl rIcjIwollllctnll 111 aily 
lrlanner wl ia tsueve~ I.!II!I~I~I 1111: exllress WI~IIPII p e r ~ ~ ~ ~ s s i o l i  UI Dcll Cnn i l ~ l~ te r  C n l ~ n r a t l ~ > ~ i  is SI:ICII~ forbidcl~11. Fnr n in lc  1111n011allnn cntitiIct Dell 
Apli l  2005, Knlnr. 



Presented by: Super Warehouse http://www.supet 

FAST, COMPACT, RELIABLE, AND ALWAYS 
USER FRIENDLY. 

In demanding work environments, speed, 
reliability and ease of use are critical to your high- 
volume, multipart printing. That's why we designed the 
EPSON LX-300+, the perfect value for your business, 
delivering exceptional print speed and legendary 
Epson reliability. 

The EPSON LX-300+ prints up to 337 characters 
per second (1 2 characters per inch) in high-speed 
draft mode and handles up to Epart forms with ease. 
With its narrow format and powerful 9-pin technology, 
this printer handles your inventory reports, 
spreadsheets, receipts, invoices, packing slips, check 
runs and customer shipping labels. Plus, its compact 
size makes it optimal for that busy workroom with 
limited counter space. At 49 ~B(A), this compact, user- 
friendly unit is also quieter than most impact printers. 

Because it's from Epson, you know the 
EPSON LX-300+ is reliable. Boasting a mean-time- 
between-failure (MTBF) rating of 6,000 power-on- 
hours, it offers consistent durability. And, its print head 
produces up to 400-million strokes/wire, offering the 
long life you require from a high-performance impact 
printer. It includes built-in Parallel and Serial ports and 
is backed by a two-year limited warranty. 

The EPSON LX-300+ features multiple paper paths 
for application versatility. Use its eight built-in bar 
codes and optional color upgrade kit to customize 
your documents as needed. For speed, reliability and 
service you can depend on, choose the compact, easy- 
to-use EPSON LX-300+, from the world 
leader in impact printing. 

Presented by: Super Warehouse 



Presented by: Super Warehouse Toll Free 1-800-814-5410 

Printing Method 
9-pin, impact dot matrix 

Print Direction 
Bidirectional with logic seeking in draft mode 
Unidirectional for graphics, NLQ text, bit image and color printing 

Print Speed 
Bitmapped fonts 

High speed draft 300 cps (10 cpi) 
Draft 225 cps (10 cpi) 
Near Letter Quality 56 cps (10 cpi) 

Character Sets 
I 3  standard versions 
38 NLSP versions 
13 international character sets 

Resident Bitmapped Fonts (cpi) 
EPSON Draft 10.cpi. 12 cpi 1-5.cpi 
EPSON Roman 10 cpi, 12 lpi, 15 cpi, proportional 
EPSON Sans Serif 10 c ~ i .  12 c ~ i .  15 c ~ i .  ~ro~or t iona l  
EPSON OCR-B 10 cpi ' ' ' ' ' . ' ' 

Bar Code Fonts 
€AN-13, EAN-8, Interleaved 2 of 5, UPC-A, UPC-E, Code 39, 
Code 128, Postnet 

Physical Dimensions 
6.26"H x 14.42"W x 10.84"D 
Weight 9.7 Ib 

Interface 
Bidirectional 8-bit parallel interface 
(supports IEEE-1284 Nibble Mode) 
Ser~al interface 

Software Drivers 
Windows" 2000, Windows 98, Windows 95, Wtndows NT, 
Windows 3 . 1 ~  

Paper Feed Methods 
Friction feed (rear) 
Push tractor feed (rear) 
Push & pull tractor feed (rear) 
Pull tractor feed (rear, bottom) 

Paper Paths 
Manual insertion (rear in top out 
Cut sheet feeder (rear in' top out] 
Push tractor (rear in, top out) 
Pull tractor (rear or bottom in, top out) 

Formatting 
Line spacing 1 / 6  or programmable in increments of 1/216" 

Paper Feed Speed 
88 milliseconds per 1/6" 
3"/sec continuous feed 

Paper Handling 
Cut Sheets 

Width 
Length 
Maxlmum thickness 
Maximum thickness 

Continuous Paper 
Width 
Length 
Maxtmum thickness 

Envelopes 
NO. 6, NO. 10 
Maximum thickness 

Labels 
Width 
Length 
Max~mum sheet thickness 

Roll Paper 
Width 
Maximum thickness 

Copies 

Sound Level 

3.9" 3.9" to to 10.1" 14.3" 

sin le sheets .0055" 
muftipart forms ,015" 

4" to 10" 
22" maximum one page 
.015" 

8.5" 
,0035:' 
1 ortglnal + 4 copies 

49 dB(A) 

Input Buffer 
8 KB 

Printer Language 
EPSON ESC/P2' 
IBM' 2380 Plus emulation 

Power Requirements 
120V AC f 10%; 49.5 to 60.5 Hz 
120 VA maximum 

Hardware Features 
Control anel selection of font, pause, tear off, paper feeding, 
micro aiustment, self test buffer clear 

Reliability/Life Expectancy 
Total print volume 12 million lines (except print head) 
MTBF 6000 POH @25% duty 
Prtnt head life 400 mlll~on mokes/w~re black) 

loo million mokes/wire [color) j 
Ribbon ltfe 3 million characters (draft 10 cp~, 

14 dots/character) 

Product/Accessory Part Numbers 
EPSON LX-300+ impact printer C294001 
Black ribbon cartridge 8750 
Black rjbbon pack, 8758 
Color r~bbon cartr~dge SO15073 
Cut sheet feeder C806371 
Pull tractor unit C800301 
Roll paper holder 8310 
Color klt C83208 1 

Warranty 
Two year limited warranty in the U.S. and Canada 

Support-The Epson C~nnect ion '~  
Pre-sales Support U.S. and Canada 800-463-7766 
Automated Technical Support 800-922-891 1 
Internet Website http://www.epson.com 

Epson America, lnc 
3840 Kilroy Airport Way, Long Beach, CA 90806 
Epson Canada, ~ t d .  THE WORLD LEADER 
550 McNicoll, Willowdale, Ontario M2H 2El IN IMPACT PRINTING:' 
Epson Latin America, Inc 
6303 Blue Lagoon Drive, Miami, FL 33126 305-265-0092 

Specilicalions are subject to change without notice. EPSON and ESCIP2 are registered trademark ol Seiko Epson Cor oration. T h e  World Leader in Impact Printing. is a 
trademak and Epson Connection is a service mark of Epson Americd Inc All other product and brand names are t r a L m a r k  and/or registered trademark Of their respect~e 
companies. E son disclaims any and all rights in these mark. Ar an intmr 5raa Partner, Epson America, Inc has determined that this product meeU the ENERn SPn guidelines 
lor energy edciencl. The ENERGY S m  emblem does not represent EPA endorsement of any product or service. D Copyright UXX) Epson America, InC CPD-10062 35K 6/00 Printed on reryded paper @ 

Presented by: Super Warehouse http://www.superwarehouse.com Toll Free 1-800-814-5410 



 

December 14, 2006  
Consent Agenda  

Tejas Medical Waste Hauling Franchise First Reading 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the second reading of 
an ordinance granting a non-exclusive medical waste hauling franchise agreement to Tejas 
Medical Waste. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the ordinance granting a non-
exclusive medical waste hauling franchise to Tejas Medical Waste. 
 
 
Summary:   The proposed franchise agreement allows Tejas Medical Waste to engage in 
the business of collecting, hauling and disposing of treated and untreated medical waste 
from various health care facilities within the city limits.  The disposal of medical waste, a 
State mandated service, was privatized because untreated medical waste cannot be 
deposited in the BVSWMA landfill and staff has determined that privatizing this service is the 
most cost-effective way to offer this service to our community. 
 
Tejas Medical Waste had a franchise with the City for a term of two years beginning August 
2004 and has paid all franchise fees and provided all reports to the City as required.  
 
Other companies having similar non-exclusive medial waste hauling franchise agreements 
with the City are Enviromed, Stericycle, Inc. and American Medical Waste Management, Inc. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   The franchise agreement requires Tejas Medical Waste to 
pay five percent (5%) of the company's gross delivery and hauling revenues generated from 
the company's business of collecting and disposing of treated and untreated medical waste 
within the City. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Franchise Ordinance 
 
 















































 

 

December 14, 2006  
Consent Agenda  

Northgate Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #16  Participation Agreement  
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Terry L. Childers, Deputy City Manager                          
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding Northgate Tax 
Increment Reinvestment Zone #16 Participation Agreement with Brazos County.  
 
Recommendation(s):   Council approval of Northgate Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone 
#16  Participation Agreement with Brazos County.  
 
Summary:   The City Council created the Northgate Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #16 
on June 22, 2006. The Council subsequently approved the Northgate TIF Financing Plan on 
September 14, 2006. The final Council approval required is the Participation Agreement with 
Brazos County. The proposed Agreement has been submitted to Brazos County pending 
approval by the City Council.  
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: None.  
 
 
Attachments: Northgate TIF Participation Agreement.  
 
 
 



02-3017 TIF Participation Agreement  

Page 1 of 8 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is between the City of College Station, Texas, a home-rule city created 
under the laws of the State of Texas (hereinafter “the City”) and Brazos County, Texas,  a county 
existing under the laws of the State of Texas (hereinafter “the County”). 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
 
 The City has created the College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16 to spur economic 
growth in the Northgate area of College Station, Brazos County, Texas, and to construct a 
convention center and related improvements to be owned by the City.  The College Station 
Reinvestment Zone No. 16 was established by Ordinance No. 2907, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A”, excluding exhibits.  Ordinance No. 2907 in its entirety is maintained in the 
City of College Station’s City Secretary’s Office and is incorporated herein by reference for all 
purposes. 
 
 

ARTICLE II 
 
 As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set out below: 
 
 “Agreement” means this agreement between the City and the County. 
 
 “Brazos County” is defined in the preamble of this Agreement and includes its successors 
and assigns. 
 
 “Brazos County Ad Valorem Tax Rate” means the then current ad valorem tax rate of 
Brazos County, Texas. 
 
 “Brazos County Tax Increment Participation” means the amount of the County ad 
valorem tax levy on the Captured Appraised Value, which the County agrees to contribute to the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16 pursuant to Article III of this Agreement. 
 
 “Captured Appraised Value” means the captured appraised value of the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone No. 16, as defined by Chapter 311, Texas Tax Code. 
 
 “City” is defined in the preamble of this Agreement and includes its successors and 
assigns. 
 
 “City’s Tax Increment Participation” means an amount equal to one hundred percent 
(100%) of the ad valorem taxes collected by the City each year during the duration of College 
Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16 on the Captured Appraised Value of real property within the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16. 
 
 “College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16” means the College Station Tax Increment 
Finance Reinvestment Zone No. 16, City of College Station, Texas, created by the City over the 
College Station Tax Increment Finance Reinvestment Zone No. 16 area. 
 
 “College Station Tax Increment Finance Reinvestment Zone No. 16 Area”  means the area 
of the City to be included in College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16, being described in 
Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference for all purposes. 
 



02-3017 TIF Participation Agreement  

Page 2 of 8 
 

 “Plan” means the final project plan and final reinvestment zone finance plan for the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16, adopted by the board of directors of the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16 and approved by the City Council of the City. 
 
 “Tax Increment Fund” means the tax increment fund created by the City in the City 
Treasury for the College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16. 
 
 Terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to them in 
Chapter 311, Texas Tax Code. 
 
 

ARTICLE III 
 
 The County, pursuant to Texas Tax Code §311.01 et seq., may participate in and 
contribute a portion of its tax rate to College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16.  The County 
hereby agrees to participate in College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16, by contributing one 
hundred percent (100%) of the ad valorem taxes collected by the County each year during the 
term of this Agreement on the Captured Appraised Value of real property within the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16, less that portion of the ad valorem taxes pledged directly to 
debt service. Currently the tax rate upon which the County’s participation would be determined is 
forty-five and 50/100 cents ($0.4550) per one hundred and no/100 dollars ($100.00) valuation, 
less its debt service of six and 20/100 cents ($0.0620) per one hundred and no/100 dollars 
($100.00) valuation, for a current participation rate of thirty-nine and 30/100 cents ($0.3930) 
per one hundred and no/100 dollars ($100.00) valuation. However, both the County and the City 
agree that the tax rate and the portion of the tax rate pledged directly to debt service are subject 
to change and the contribution herein pledged by the County to the Tax Increment Fund shall 
change as both its tax rate and tax rate pledged to debt service changes. 
 
 Brazos County’s Tax Increment Participation and obligation to participate in the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16 shall be restricted to its tax increment collected on the 
Captured Appraised Value in the College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16. The County shall 
not be obligated to pay its Brazos County Tax Increment Participation from other Brazos County 
taxes or revenues or until the Brazos County Tax Increment Participation in the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone No. 16 is actually collected. The obligation to pay the Brazos County Tax 
Increment Participation shall commence as taxes representing the Brazos County tax increment 
are collected by the County and payment shall be due thirty (30) days after collection. 
 
 The first payment of the Brazos County Tax Increment Participation shall be for those 
taxes as levied by the County in the year 2008 and, subject to Article IV (e), the last payment by 
the County under this Agreement shall be the earlier of those taxes levied by the County in the 
year 2023 or when all bonds and interest accruing thereon have been paid in full. 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 
 The contribution of the County referenced in Article III is subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

(a) The City shall pledge one hundred percent (100%) of its 
hotel/motel tax generated by the hotel property connected to the 
convention center located in the College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 
16 to the Tax Increment Fund.  The City further agrees to pledge 100% of 
the ad valorem taxes collected by the City each year during the duration of 
the College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16 on the Captured Appraised 



02-3017 TIF Participation Agreement  

Page 3 of 8 
 

Value of real property in the College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16. 
The City agrees to pledge resources adequate to pay annual debt service 
for any bonds (Certificates of Obligation) issued with respect to this 
Agreement.   

(b) The Tax Increment Fund may be used by the City to fund public 
improvements in the College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16, including 
a convention center. The Plan is attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and 
incorporated herein by reference for all purposes.   

(c) The City shall not request that the County participate in any 
additional tax increment finance reinvestment zones in either the Northgate 
area or its surrounding area during the term of the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone No. 16; provided, however, that the City may change 
the boundaries of College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 16 as permitted 
by Chapter 311, Texas Tax Code. 

(d) The City shall not request the County in the future to consider the 
granting of tax abatement to any property owner within the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone No. 16 for the duration of the Agreement. 

(e) The County’s obligation to participate in the College Station Reinvestment 
Zone No. 16 shall terminate on the earlier to occur of: (i) December 31, 
2023, or (ii) on the date all bonds and interest accruing thereon have been 
paid in full. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the County shall contribute the 
taxes levied and collected for the College Station Reinvestment Zone No. 
16 for the tax years 2008 through 2023. 

 
ARTICLE V 

 
 No waiver or deferral by either party of any term or condition of this Agreement shall be 
deemed or construed to be a waiver or deferral of any other term or condition or subsequent 
waiver or deferral of the same term or condition. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 
 This Agreement may only be amended by written instrument approved and executed by 
the parties. 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
 
 This Agreement and the rights and obligations contained herein may not be assigned by 
the assigning party without the prior written approval of the non-assigning party. 

 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
 
 Any terms or provisions of this Agreement which shall prove to be invalid, void or illegal 
shall in no way effect, impair or invalidate any other term or provision herein and such remaining 
terms and provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 



02-3017 TIF Participation Agreement  

Page 4 of 8 
 

 
 

ARTICLE IX 
 
 The parties hereby state that they have read the terms of this Agreement and hereby agree 
to the conditions contained herein. 
 
 

ARTICLE X 
 
 This Agreement merges the prior negotiations and understandings of the parties hereto 
and embodies the entire agreement of the parties, and there are no other agreements, assurances, 
conditions, covenants (express or implied) or other terms with respect to the covenants, whether 
written or verbal, antecedent or contemporaneous, with the execution hereof. 
 
 

ARTICLE XI 
 
 All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed 
delivered when actually received or, if earlier, on the third (3rd) day following deposit in a United 
States Postal Service post office or receptacle with proper postage affixed (certified mail, return 
receipt requested) addressed to the respective other party at the address prescribed below, or at 
such other address as the receiving party may have theretofore prescribed by notice to the sending 
party.  
 
 The initial address of the parties, which one party may change by giving written notice of 
its changed address to the other party, are as follows: 
 
 City       Brazos County  
 
 Glenn Brown      Judge Randy Sims 
 City Manager      Brazos County Judge 
 City of College Station    Brazos County Courthouse 
 1101 Texas Avenue     300 E. 26th Street 
 College Station, TX 77840    Bryan, TX 77803 
 
 
 

ARTICLE XII 
 
 No party hereto waives or relinquishes any immunity or defense on behalf of itself, its 
trustees, officers, employees, and agents as a result of its execution of this Agreement and 
performance of the covenants contained herein. 
 
 

ARTICLE XIII 
 
 The County hereby acknowledges and represents that it waived the notice requirements 
with respect to the June 22, 2006 public hearing held by the City in accordance with the provision 
of Section 311.003(e) of the Texas Tax Code. 
  
 
 
 



02-3017 TIF Participation Agreement  

Page 5 of 8 
 

BRAZOS COUNTY 
 
 
By:           
      Randy Sims, County Judge    Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:              
       Karen McQueen, County Clerk     Date 
 
 
CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
 
 
By:           
 Ron Silvia, Mayor      Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:           
 Connie Hooks, City Secretary    Date 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
           
Glenn Brown, City Manager     Date 
 
 
           
Harvey Cargill, Jr. City Attorney    Date 
 
 
           
Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer    Date 
 



02-3017 TIF Participation Agreement  

Page 6 of 8 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance No. 2907 



02-3017 TIF Participation Agreement  

Page 7 of 8 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 

College Station Tax Increment Finance 
Reinvestment Zone No. 16 Area 



02-3017 TIF Participation Agreement  

Page 8 of 8 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 
 
 
 

Project Plan and Financing Plan 



ORDINANCE NO. 2907 

AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE NORTHGATE DISTRICT IN COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, AS REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 16, CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, 
ENUMERATING THE QUALIFYING CRITERIA, ADOPTING A PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT AND FINANCING PLAN, ESTABLISHING A BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR 
SUCH ZONE, AND OTHER MAITERS RELATING THERETO; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

WHEREAS, on November 4, 1997, the voters of the City of College Station passed a referendum 
authorizing the City of College Station to proceed with the construction of a conference center; 

WHEREAS, on January 12, 2006, the College Station City Council directed staff to meet with 
designated representatives from Brazos County and the College Station Independent School District and 
this meeting took place to discuss the implementation of Reinvestment Zone No. 16; 

WHEREAS, on January 13, 2006 the City of College Station sent notice to the governing bodies of the 
Brazos County taxing unit and of the College Station Independent School District of its intent to 
consider the implementation of a tax increment financing district and a reinvestment zone in the area of 
the Northgate District; and requested that the sixty (60) days notice requirement be waived; 

WHEREAS, on January 24, 2006 the County Commissioners approved the request to waive the sixty 
(60) days notice requirement; 

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2006 the College Station Independent School District Board of Trustees 
approved the request to waive the sixty (60) days notice requirement; 

WHEREAS, on May 25,2006, the City of College Station City Council requested the public hearing be 
held on June 22,2006 to establish Reinvestment Zone No. 16; 

WHEREAS, on June 6, 2006, City staff made a formal presentation to the Brazos County 
Commissioners Court and on January 17, 2006 City staff made a formal presentation to the College 
Station Independent School District concerning the reinvestment zone. The presentation included a 
description of the proposed boundaries of the zone, the tentative plans for the development or 
redevelopment of the zone, and an estimate of the general impact of the proposed zone on property 
values and tax revenues; 

WHEREAS, on June 12th, 2006, notice of a public hearing to be held on June 22, 2006 was published 
in the Bryan-College Station Eagle, a copy of the notice is attached hereto as Exhibit "A"; 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the College Station City Council on the 22nd day of June, 
2006, at 7:00 p.m. at the regular meeting of the Council; 

WHEREAS, upon such public hearing being convened, there was presented proof and evidence that 
notice of such hearing had been published and had been mailed as described above; 

WHEREAS, the City Council at such hearing invited any interested person to appear and contend for or 
against the creation of the reinvestment zone, the boundaries of the proposed reinvestment zone, 
whether all or part of the territory, which is described by boundary survey attached hereto as Exhibit 



Ordinance No. 2907 Page 2 

"B" and depicted in the diagram attached hereto as Exhibit "C", should be included in such proposed 
reinvestment zone, the concept of tax increment financing; 

WHEREAS, all owners of property located within the proposed reinvestment zone and all other taxing 
units and other interested persons were given the opportunity at such public hearing to protest the 
creation of the proposed reinvestment zone or the inclusion of their property in such reinvestment zone; 

WHEREAS, the City staff presented the preliminary financing and development plans for the proposed 
reinvestment zone attached hereto as Exhibit "Dlf; and 

WHEREAS, the proponents of the reinvestment zone offered evidence, both oral and documentary, in 
favor of the foregoing matters related to the creation of the reinvestment zone; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, 
that: 

The facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this ordinance are hereby found and declared to 
be true and correct. 

The City, after conducting such hearing and having heard such evidence and testimony and considering 
the preliminary project and financing plan, has made the following findings and determination based 
upon the evidence and testimony presented to it: 

A. That the public hearing on adoption of the reinvestment zone has been properly called, held and 
conducted, and that notice of such hearing has been published as required by law and mailed to 
all taxing units overlapping the territory inside the proposed reinvestment zone. 

B. That the City has jurisdiction to hold and conduct this public hearing on the creation of the 
proposed reinvestment zone pursuant to the TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ACT. 

C. That creation of the proposed zone with boundaries as described in Exhibits "B" and "C" will 
result in benefits to the City, its residents and property owners, and to the property, residents 
and property owners in the reinvestment zone. 

D. That the reinvestment zone as described in Exhibit "B" and "C" meets the criteria for the 
creation of a reinvestment zone as set forth in the TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ACT (V.T.C.A. 
TAX CODE $3 11.005 [VERNON 2002 AND VERNON SUPP. 20051) in that: 

(1) It is a contiguous geographic area located wholly within the corporate limits of the City. 

(2) That the area is predominantly underproductive and underdeveloped and substantially 
impairs or arrests the sound growth of the municipality. 

(3) That development of the area would not occur in the foreseeable future solely through 
private investment. 

(4) The total appraised value of all taxable real property in the zone according to the most 
recent appraisal rolls of the City, together with the total appraised value of the taxable 
real property and all other taxing existing reinvestment zones within the City, according 



Ordinance No. 2907 Page 3 

to the most recent appraisal rolls of the City, does not exceed fifteen percent (1 5%) of the 
current total appraised value of the taxable real property in the City. 

(5) Improvements in the reinvestment zone will enhance significantly the value of all taxable 
real property in the reinvestment zone. 

(6) That a preliminary project plan and a financing plan have been developed and are 
attached hereto as Exhibit "D". Such preliminary project and financing plans will be the 
basis for the master plan for the final financing and development plans for the 
reinvestment zone and shall assist the staff and board of directors in implementing a 
successful reinvestment zone. 

(7) In October through December, 2005 various property owners petitioned the City Council 
of College Station that the area described in Exhibits "B" and "C" be designated as a 
reinvestment zone. A copy of the petitions are attached hereto as Exhibit "E" and 
incorporated herein for all purposes. Such property owners represent more than fifty 
percent (50%) of the appraised value of the property in the proposed reinvestment zone. 
Therefore, Reinvestment Zone No. 16 is hereby established by owner petition pursuant to 
SECTION 3 1 1.005 (A) (5) OF THE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ACT. 

(8) That the following Council Members were present and considered the ordinance 
on June 22,2006. 

Ron Silvia 
John Happ 
Ben White 
Ron Gay 
Lynn McIlhaney 
Chris Scotti 
David Ruesink 

That the City hereby creates a reinvestment zone over the area described by the boundary survey in 
Exhibit "B" attached hereto and such reinvestment zone shall be based on the preliminary project and 
financing plans. This zone shall hereafter be identified as Reinvestment Zone No. 16, City of College 
Station, Texas (the "Zone"). 

Iv. 

The Board of Directors for the Zone shall consist of nine (9) member directors. The City Council of the 
City of College Station shall appoint six (6) members who shall meet the eligibility requirements as set 
forth in the Act to serve on the Board of Directors. The Brazos County Commissioners Court shall each 
appoint one (I) member who shall meet the eligibility requirements as set forth in the Act to serve as a 
member of the Board of Directors. The member of the state Senate in whose district the zone is located 
or his designee is also a member of the board. The member of the state House of representatives in 
whose district the zone is located or his designee is also a member of the board. The Brazos County 
Commissioners Court member, the member of the state senate or his designee, the member of the state 
house of representatives or his designee, and three (3) members appointed by the City of College 
Station, shall serve an initial two (2) year term while the other three (3) appointed by the City of College 
Station shall serve initial one (1) year terms. All subsequent appointments will be made for two (2) 
staggered terms or until a successor director may be appointed thereafter. The City Council shall 



Ordinance No. 2907 Page 4 

designate one (1) member to serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors for the year ending December 
3 1, 2007, and each year thereafter, and authorizes the Board to elect from its members a Vice-Chairman 
and other officers as it sees fit. The Board shall retain all powers provided it in the Act. 

The Board of Directors shall make recommendations to the City Council concerning the administration 
of the Zone and shall prepare and cause to be prepared and adopt a Project Plan based upon the 
preliminary Financing and Project Plans for the Zone and must submit such plans to the City Council 
for its review and approval. The City hereby delegates to the Board of Directors all powers necessary to 
prepare and implement such Project Plan, subject to approval by the City Council, including the power 
to direct the staff and employ consultants to assist in the preparation of the Project Plan and in the 
issuance of certificates of obligations. 

That operation of the Zone shall commence immediately following the passage of this ordinance, and 
that termination of the operation of the Zone shall occur upon the collection of the levies of September, 
2037 (due in FY 2037-2038), or at a time designated by subsequent ordinance or at such time 
subsequent to the issuance of certificates of obligation as all project costs and certificates of obligation, 
and the interest thereon, have been paid in full. 

VI. 

That the tax increment base for the Zone is the total appraised value of all taxable real property in the 
reinvestment zone as of January 1,2006. 

VII. 

That there is hereby created and established a Tax Increment Fund for the Zone which may be divided 
into such sub-accounts as may be authorized by subsequent ordinances into which all tax increments are 
to be deposited. The Tax Increment Fund and any sub-accounts are to be maintained at the depository 
bank of the City and shall be secured in the manner prescribed by law for Texas cities. The tax 
increments shall equal the amount of property taxes levied for a year on the captured and appraised 
value, that is, the amount by which the current appraised value of all taxable real property located in the 
Zone exceeds its tax increment base less any other funds which are to be allocated from the tax 
increments pursuant to the Act. All revenues from the sale of any tax increment finance bonds and 
notes hereafter issued by the City may be deposited into such fund or sub-account from which money 
will be disbursed to pay project costs for the Zone or to satisfy the claims of holders of tax increment 
bonds or notes issued for the Zone. 



Ordinance No. 2907 

VIII. 

That if any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this ordinance shall for any reason be held to be 
invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or 
provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this ordinance. 

That it is hereby found, determined and declared that a sufficient written notice of the date, hour, place 
and subject of the meeting of the City Council of the City of College Station at which this ordinance 
was adopted was posted at a place convenient and readily accessible at all times to the general public at 
the City Hall of the City of College Station for the time required by law preceding this meeting, as 
required by the Open Meetings Act, and that this meeting has been open to the public as required by 
law, at all times during which this ordinance and the subject matter hereon has been presented, 
discussed, considered and finally acted upon. The City Council of the City of College Station further 
ratifies, approves and confirms such written notice and the contents and posting thereof. 

That the contents of the notice of public hearing, which hearing was held before the City Council of the 
City of College Station on June 22, 2006, and the publication of said notice, is hereby ratified, approved 
and confirmed. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED on this the 22"d day of June, 2006. 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 

APPROVED: 

City Attorney 



EXHIBIT "A" 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 



LEGAL NOTICE 

DATE TO BE PUBLISHED: June 12,2006 ONLY 

BILL TO: ATTN: MR. JEFF KERSTEN 
P.O. BOX 9960 
COLLEGE STATION, TX 77842 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

The College Station City Council will hold a public hearing to consider an ordinance 
designating approximately 141 acres respectively in the J.E. Scott League, College 
Station, Brazos County, Texas; and generally known as the Northgate District bounded 
by Wellborn Road, University Drive, South College Avenue, and the northern city limits 
of College Station, as Reinvestment Zone Number Sixteen (16), City of College Station, 
Texas, for a Tax Increment Financing District as provided in the Tax Increment 
Financing Act. The purpose of this Zone is to promote redevelopment and to fund a 
publicly owned convention center and associated improvements. This public hearing will 
discuss the creation and purpose of the zone, its benefits to the municipality and other 
taxing entities, the boundaries of the zone, and other matters related thereto. At the 
hearing any interested person may speak for or against the creation of the zone, the 
inclusion of their property in the zone, its boundaries, purpose, or the concept of tax 
increment financing. 

The hearing will be held in the City Council Chamber at College Station City Hall, 
located at 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas at 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, June 22, 
2006. 

Any request for sign interpretative services must be made 48 hours before the meeting. 
To make arrangements call (979) 764-3547 or (TDD) 1-800-735-2989. 

For additional information, please call Jeff Kersten, Director of Budget and Finance, City 
of College Station Department of Economic Development, at (979) 764-3745. 



EXHIBIT "B" 
METES AND BOUNDS 



EXHIBIT "B" 

3000&,In~; 
surVsr0nd:BnOlMnS 

2167 Post oak Circle . 
Cobgo Station, Texae 7'7845 

(409) 690-3338 

North Gate ~k Increintnt Finance District 
J.E.SWLcague " 

CoUego ~btion, Texas 
Auguet 26; 2005 

~\othat&ttact & p ~ l o f i m d l ~  m d b e h g d ~ u t o d b t ~ o l ~  ~ ~ L e a p i n ~ ~ t l a ~  
Station, B w s  Counly, Texas, being dl of the W.C. BoyM SubdkSan ~~ .to pht of racord 
in Volume 100, Page 440 of the Deed Records of,BPeaoa County, Toxq dl of th.e ~a~1bcr.&tiion . 

h r d i h g  to plat of in Volurne.133, P a 6  182 of the Dsed RtWM of B m a .  C%unty,'l'hae, 
ell of the Smnd ReviPion of Oak T& Addition aocarding to plat of rkid ii V O ~ O  15% Pago 
237 of the Oead Rewrde of Brims Ccmnty, Term, of Tho Rropparta addition acoordirrg to plat of 
ward in Volume 477, Page 145 of 0 e  Decd.Racotds of Braiae Cow, TBXBB, dl of @at trcrct 
' .d~in~'b'rtBn,UEnbMte'andrPthibitDWindbbd to J o h ~ C e c i l ~ T J I ~  
in Volume 1190, Page 466 of &c Official Rmx& ofBrazos County, T-'W tmt.convq& ti, 
Pranchirra Realty Intmhb Cap. by dbsd recow in Volume 318, P&.'53l.of ihr: Dae(i Rec@a of 
Brazos bmty, Texas, fbat traat k a y a d  to Don D.. Dabbs by deed rwoidpl'in ~oh&'464, Page 
395 of tho Daad Recob of Brazes C o q ,  TQLW W tmA -?eyed to h4B Developmaat Chipany . 

by deed d' in V O W  1302, Page 4 of .the O f f i d  Rmmb of B e 8  Couqty* Texas, Chat tract 
cony& tp Cgnm~:Sav ingr i  md fPim Asuociation'bjl d d  mded $Voluino 198, Pa%;: 54.1 of 
the Ddod RBcords of Bmds County, Texas, that txWcon~eyed to Colkge S t a t o n . 9 ~  Babk.by deed 
d& in ~klinrie 189, Page 403 of the Dead Rccorde of B r w  ~ o ~ t y ;  Texas, that 
mvayed to M.L. Cashion by dqd recorded in Volume:202, Pa& 323 of the aaed &w& of Brazos 
Caaaty,Texs, endbeing mare partlcuhrlydmaibed 88 kfolloqvs: . 

, Beginning at the most w e k l y  caner of the said W.C. BoYM SuMivision in the northtag of 
Wcllborp Ibad (PM 2134)' wbich point ie an th8 ~oabwest 'city limits line of& City of allege 
S t a f i o ~  TeOCaS, 

. 'hemkt N 43" 13' 29" B - 137336 W b g  tho pchhwest be of tbe W.C. Bbyett ~&diykoh and 
&&west city limits b e  of-tho City of College Station, e l  248.70 faet pass a .1" imn bso in 

oonaats found at the north ad df First Stmet, to d q  most &ly oornw of the aid W.C. . B o w  
Subdiyifion; 

Th- N 4 0 O  47' 35" $1 546.89 &t ~ndmhg.al& tho northwest city Mu& lib d the City of 
College St&tion to a Y; iroh rod found at the most nafi(x1y comer of the said Tmbw Addition in the 
soufb..wt be ofNgle Stmet; 



a North Oate Boundsry 
Prgt 2 of 2 

Thence $ 4 6 O  05' 21" E - 59.79 bat along tho southwest line of Nagle Strabt which is the line 
between the City of College Station and the City of Bxyan, to an extansion of the centerline of Inlow 
Bodever& 

Thence along thb centealjne of hlow Boulevard, which is the line betweein the C i  of College Station 
and the City of Bryan, as follows: 

N 36" 59' 20" E - 185.51 feet; . a. 

N 28' 06' 20" B - 672.34' feet; 
N 20° 30' 05" E - 374.89 feet to the northeast line of the said Oak Tenice Addition which is 

the southwest Wt-of-way line of College Avenue (Highway 308); 

TZlmoe S 48O 01' 45" E - 2053.18'faet dong tha s o ~ t h w ~  line of College Averme, at 1154.94' pus 
a 518" iron rod found at the most eastesly coma of Oak Tenam Addition wbich is the most newly 
Coma of the said Culpepper 4.96 acre traot, to the northweat r@hf-way lizlb of Wereity DrSve 
w 60); 
 hence dong tht northwest rightsf-way line of~nivkity ~civb as f 0 b ~ 6 :  

S 
S 5' 05' 42'' W - 100.00 feet; 
S 17' 19' 29" E - 47.38 
S 42" 13' 35" W - 1051.99 feet. to the !no& southerly Cbrner of Block 7 of the said Taubea 

Addition in the tlosthcast line ofNagle.$fm% .' ' 
S 24" 22' 0s' W - 5253 faet uxoss N@t StrW, 
S 41° 25' 18" W - 544.59 feet to tke most easterly comer of the &id W.C. Boyett Subdivision; 
S 41° 45' 21" W - 801.8Q feet; 
N 43O 54' 14" W - 11.00 f&t; 
S 41' 45' 21" W - 381.06 feet; 
S 51°23' 21" W -7132 feet; 
S 67' 29' 04" W - 37.68 feet to a r@t~f-w8y apnnumept fouad; 
N 8 8 O  59' 15" W - 189.54 fe&W a co-.ri&-of-waymonument fbMd; 
N 400 33' 29' w - 18.92 fw to a &u+e xightsf-way moprunent found; 
S 77O 01' 00" W - 50.36 ht to a oonomte $~~f-waymonumentk,und.l 
N 88' 34' 24'' W - 178.31 feet to a 'A" iroamd E;nrad Mda a ammb ri@-of-way ms&r at 

the intmsecdon of the University Drive' north Wt-of-way and ths northtptrigzlt-of-way he of 
. WeNnmRoatt . . 

Thence N 40° 21' 34" W - 1587.92 f&t dmg tho* x&ht-of-way line of ~eU$orn Road to' t@ 
Point of Bag.lnning and containing 14.1.94 auw of land more or leas 

Bearings are Texas State Phe,  Central Zone, NO83 datum, 
as detamined .by GPS obsmalioas Using Citry of CoUege 
Station GPS monment no. 110 and USCBcGS monument 
Texas A&M 1935 from a ground survey made hi 1996. 

I 





EXHIBIT "C" 
TIF BOUNDARY MAP 





EXHIBIT "D" 
PROJECT AND FINANCIAL PLAN 



Attachment 2 

TAX INCREMENT 
REINVESTMENT 

ZONE # I 6  

Northgate District 

PRELIMINARY PROJECT PLAN 

PRELIMINARY FINANCE PLAN 

January 13,2006 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 1 



Contents 

Page 

Section 1: Objectives: A Convention Center and Redevelopment of 
Northgate 

Section 1: Project Description 

Section 2: What Is Tax Increment Financing? 

Section 3: Reinvestment Zone Description 

Section 4: Development with Tax Increment Financing 

Section 5: Paying for Public Improvements in the Zone 

Section 6: Revenue Benefits for Taxing Units 

Exhibits 

Exhibit A: Real Property Tax Flow with Tax Increment Financing 

Exhibit B: Northgate TIF Zone 

Exhibit C: Existing Uses and Conditions 

Exhibit D: Proposed Improvements/ Anticipated Key Development Site Map 

Exhibit E: Convention Center Development Concept 

Exhibit F: Aerial of TIF Zone and Existing Conditions 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 2 



Schedules 

Schedule 1: 

Schedule 2: 

Schedule 3: 

Schedule 4-City: 

Schedule 4-County: 

Schedule 4-ISD: 

Schedule 5: 

Schedule 6: 

Schedule 7: 

Schedule 8: 

Schedule 9-City: 

Schedule 9-County: 

Schedule 9-ISD: 

Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property 
Appraisals in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone 

Estimated Annual Expenditures of TIF Project Cost 
Principal 

Anticipated Development in Northgate TIF Zone, 20 
Years 

Estimated Annual Appraisals and City Real Property 
Tax from the TIF Zone 

Estimated Annual Appraisals and Brazos County Real Property 
Tax from the TIF Zone 

Estimated Annual Appraisals and College Station ISD 
Real Property Tax from the TIF Zone 

TIF Fund Sources and Uses of Cash (Debt Service Schedule) 

Estimated City Hotel Occupancy Tax 

Estimated Business Personal Property Tax from New 
Development in the TIF Zone 

Estimated Sales Tax from New Development in the TIF Zone 

Summary of Estimated City Taxes from Northgate TIF Zone, 30 
Years 

Summary of Estimated County Taxes from Northgate 
TIF Zone, 30 Years 

Summary of Estimated School Taxes from Northgate 
TIF Zone, 30 Years 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 3 



Disclaimer 

Neither this report nor its conclusion may be referred to or included in any product or 
part of any offering made in connection with private syndication of equity, sales of 
bonds, sales of securities or sale of participation interests to the public without express 
written consent of Stein Planning and Management. 

This Preliminary Finance and Project Plan is subject to revision until final adoption by 
Ordinance by the City Council of the City of College Station. 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 4 



Section 1: 
Objectives: A Convention Center and 

Redevelopment of Northgate 

The proposed Northgate tax increment financing reinvestment zone is a tool to 
facilitate development of a convention center in the Northgate area of College 
Station. The convention center is a stimulus to development of hotels, retail 
stores and services, offices, condominiums and apartments in its vicinity. These 
new developments will add value and tax revenue to College Station, Brazos 
County and the College Station ISD. Northgate will become a more desirable 
neighborhood. 

To accomplish these objectives, the City of College Station proposes designation 
of a tax increment reinvestment zone, subject to the Tax Increment Financing 
Act, Chapter 311 of the Texas Property Tax Code. The zone will be formed 
pursuant to a voluntary petition by property owners in accord with Tax Code 
Section 31 1.005(a)(5). The legal name of the zone is to be "Reinvestment Zone 
Number Sixteen (#16), City of College Station." In this plan document, the zone 
is referred to as the "Northgate TIF zone" or simply the "TIF zone." 

Project Description 

The public improvements will include a convention center with the following: 

Approximately 43,000 s.f. of gross leasable area including a 12,750 s.f. 
grand ballroom, a 20,000 s.f. exhibit hall, a 5,500 s.f. junior ballroom, and 
5,000 s.f. of divisible meeting space. 

Shared space and back of ,the house space including kitchen, employee 
areas, administrative offices, laundry room, housekeeping, mechanical 
room, lobby, outdoor reception area, employee area, restrooms, parking 
garage, site hardscape, site landscape, signage, and utilities. 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 5 



Section 2: 
What is Tax lncrement Financing? 

College Station and Brazos County are not strangers to tax increment financing. 
Tax increment financing ("TIF") is a tool local governments of Texas have used 
since 1986 to finance public improvements within defined areas that have unique 
challenges and opportunities for economic development. Municipal authority to 
designate a -1-IF zone conies from Chapter 31 1 of the Texas Property Tax Code. 

A municipality makes public improvements in an area eligible for TIF by 
designating a reinvestment zone. Tax dollars generated by increased redl 
property appraisals, new development and/or sales tax within the zone flow to a 
tax increment fund ("1-IF fund") for all or part of a term specified by the municipal 
governing body. Cash .flow to the TIF fund is then disbursed according to a TIF 
project and financing plan approved by a TIF Board and the City Council, as 
prescribed by statute and the ordinance designating the TIF zone. With few 
exceptions, the TIF fund may be used only for public improvements within the 
TIF zone. 

Exhibit A shows how tax from designated sources in a TIF zone flows to a taxing 
jurisdiction and to a TIF fund. Exhibit A assumes that tax generation in the zone 
increases soon after the TIF zone has been designated. 

Exhibit A: 
Real Property Tax Flow with Tax lncrement Financing 

Tax $ 

Taxes to tax increment fund 

Taxes retained by taxing jurisdictions 

I 

Base year Fund dissolves 

Inclusion of property in a TIF zone does not change any tax rate for the property. 
Tax rates in the zone are the same as tax rates outside the zone, given a 
common set of taxing jurisdictions. 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 6 



Section 3: 
Reinvestment Zone Description 

Exhibit B is a map of the Northgate TIF zone. The zone is immediately north of 
Texas A & M University's main campus in College Station. Boundaries are 
University Drive, Wellborn Road, the Bryan city limit and South College Avenue. 
Zone boundaries that follow public streets or highways shall be construed to 
include all such PI-lblic rights-of-way. 

There are 83.12 taxable acres in the proposed zone, excluding right-of-way. 
Including fully-exempt accounts, but not rights-of way, the zone contains 11 5.55 
acres. The total acreage in the Zone 141.94 acres. 

Schedule 1 is an attempt to identify real property accounts within the proposed 
zone boundaries, according to current Brazos Appraisal District records isolated 
by Stein Planning and Management. Inclusion of property within the zone 
boundaries, not inclusion in Schedule I ,  shall determine properties in the zone. 
The 2005 appraised value of taxable acco1.1nts in Schedule I is $70,815,864. 
After allowances for various exemptions or abatements, values of the real 
property accounts in the zone liable for taxation in 2005 are, according to the 
Brazos Appraisal District: 

City of College Station: $70,701,743 
Brazos County: $70,672,233 
College Station ISD: $70,551,743 

These values differ slightly because different taxing units may have different 
exemption policies and different tax abatements. These amounts liable for 
taxation are the bases for estimating 2006 "base values" of real property in the 
zone. Actual base values will be the values of real property on the certified tax 
roll for 2006 and liable for taxation by respective taxing units. 

Exhibit C maps existing uses and conditions in the zone. The zone contains a 
mix of apartment, condominium, institutional, retail and residential uses and 
vacant land. Exhibit F provides an aerial map of the zone. 

Much of the area is substantially deteriorated. The site of the planned hotel and 
convention center is currently a vacant lot and a deteriorated shopping center 
that contains significant vacant space. Most properties in the zone are also in 
deteriorated condition. Terrain in this area is generally flat. One regulatory 
floodplain exists in the area. Conditions in the zone substantially impair the 
sound growth of the city and retard the provision of housing and other 
development. The proposed zone thus meets this statutory test for designation 
of a reinvestment zone. 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 7 



Section 4: 
Development with Tax Increment Financing 

Exhibit D is a map locating key development sites anticipated in the zone within 
immediate years, given the stimulus of a tax increment financing program. 
Identity of these sites is not intended to preclude or discourage redevelopment at 
additional sites in the zone. 

The public improvement to be accomplished with tax increment financing is the 
convention center on part of site 3, Exhibit D. This will be a facility with 
approximately 43,000 gross leasable square feet of ,floor area, conveniently 
accessible to a full-service hotel also to be built on site 3 and a second hotel to 
be built on site 4. A conceptual Site is shown in Exhibit E. The convention 
center is not expected to be a taxable property, but the adjacent hotels and other 
anticipated developments will be fully taxable. 

Schedule 2 is a cost estimate for the convention center. It allocates 
expenditures to years in which dollars are likely to be spent. The TIF fund is 
created to pay these project costs for convention center construction. Cost 
components will be detailed and adjusted after designation of the TIF zone, but 
total project costs before finance charges are expected to remain at 
approximately $25,000,000. 

The key development sites are quantified as to site size, estimated floor area, 
estimated appraised value and estimated completion year by Schedule 3. 
Schedule 3 includes redevelopment in the Northgate zone at other sites not 
specifically identified on Exhibit D. Over a twenty-year period, Schedule 3 
anticipates 1,513,000 gross square feet of new floor area construction, an 
average of 75,650 square feet annually. If constructed and absorbed today, the 
new development would have an estimated appraisal value for tax purposes of 
$141 million, including land. Net new appraisal value would be roughly $130 
million. Actual construction costs and sale prices will probably exceed 
appraisals. 

The Schedule 4 series (4-City, 4-County and 4-ISD) adds a time dimension to 
the appraisal assumptions of Schedule 3. These schedules estimate annual 
taxable real property values for the Northgate TIF zone through 2035. Each 
schedule also estimates annual "captured appraised values" (taxable appraised 
value growth since base year 2006) in the Northgate zone. Annual taxable 
appraisals and captured appraised values will be slightly different for each taxing 
unit because each taxing unit may have different policies for exemptions and tax 
abatements. 

Each Schedule 4 also estimates annual real property tax increments from the 
Northgate zone and annual reinvestments in the TIF fund. Note that the City of 
College Station reinvests tax increments generated by the Northgate zone for 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 8 



twenty-one years (fiscal year 2008 through fiscal year 2028). Brazos County is 
asked to reinvest the O&M (Operations and Maintenance) portion of its tax 
increments generated by the Northgate zone for twenty years (fiscal year 2009 
through fiscal year 2028). The College Station ISD is not asked to participate in 
the TIF fund because the Texas formula for funding education treats 
reinvestments in TIF funds as local funds available for education, thereby 
reducing State aid for education, even though the investments in the TIF fund 
would not remain available to the ISD. 

The improvements recommended in this plan are compatible with the uses 
reflected in the Comprehensive Plan for the City of College Station. The 
Comprehensive Plan was originally adopted in 1997. A subsequent area study, 
the "Northgate Redevelopment Implementation Plan," called for an "east-end 
anchor" for Northgate near the site identified for the full-service hotel and 
convention center. The plan also called for dense mixed-use development. The 
plan was reviewed and approved by the College Station City Council in 2003. 

No zoning changes are necessary for implementation of Schedule 3 
developnient. Existing zoning calls for dense mixed-use development. The 
planning and zoning concept for Northgate includes office, commercial, retail, 
restaurant and multi-family uses, both condominium and rental. 

No residents will be displaced by the convention center or related hotels in 
Northgate. If and when any residents are required to relocate due to private 
development in Northgate, the landowner or developer will be responsible for due 
respect of the rights of tenants. 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 9 



Section 5: 
Paying for Public Improvements in the Zone 

College Station proposes four streams of revenue to ultimately pay for the 
convention center at Northgate: 

(1) Real property tax increments from the City; 
(2) Real property tax increments from the County; 
(3) Cash contributions from the City; 
(4) Hotel occupancy tax from hotels in the Northgate zone and parts of the 

hotel occupancy tax from outside the zone. 

Each of these cash sources is represented by a separate line on Schedule 5, 
"TIF Fund Sources and Uses of Cash (Debt Service Schedule)." 

No City or County property taxes on the value of the Northgate zone for 2006 are 
ever directed to the TIF fund. Real property taxes related to added value pay for 
the convention center. 

The Schedule 5 City tax increments are imported from Schedule 4-City, which 
assumes City participation with 100% of real property tax increments from 
Northgate for twenty-one specified years. Brazos County tax increments are 
imported from Schedule 4-County. County participation is assumed with 100% 
of onlv the O&M (operations and maintenance) part of the Countv tax rate for a 
term of twenty specified years. Tax rates for the City and County are subject to 
change and the contributions pledged by the City and County to the Fund shall 
change as the tax rates change; however, the City shall always commit 100% of 
its tax rate and the County shall always commit 100% of its O&M tax rate. 

Cash contributions from the City are identified in Schedule 5. These 
contributions are separate from the real property tax increments. The principal 
amount of these contributions may be recovered by the City after all other 
financial obligations of the 1-IF fund have been satisfied. Recovery sliall be 
subordinate to all other debt service payments. 

Hotel occupancy tax for convention center construction is primarily the 
incremental hotel tax generated by new hotels in the Northgate TIF zone. These 
amounts are estimated in Schedule 6. Hotel occupancy tax for convention 
center construction shall also include hotel occupancy tax from outside the zone 
that is due to increased room sales stimulated by the convention center. These 
figures shall be the fixed annual dollar amounts from Schedule 6, estimated for 
College Station by a previous and independent study. A third stream of hotel 
occupancy tax for convention center construction shall be the payments from 
Schedule 5 in FY 2008-2009 and FY 2009-2010 from the balance of hotel 
occupancy tax revenue. 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 10 



If cash contributions from the City or hotel occupancy tax revenue may not be 
blended with cash in the 1-IF fund for any reason, cash from these sources may 
be held in separate funds until applied to payments for ,the convention center. 
For simplicity, this plan treats all cash to pay for the convention center as flowing 
to and from the Northgate TIF fund. 

The convention center may experience annual operating cost deficits. In 1997, 
Coopers and Lybrand conducted a feasibility analysis for the marketability of a 
convention center in this area. The conclusion indicated a market for a multi- 
purpose meeting facility. This original analysis estimated that the facility would 
carry an operating deficit of approximately $57,000 in year one decreasing to 
$37,000 by year five. In March 2000, Pricewaterhousecoopers updated the 
feasibility analysis. The PWC review and findings indicated, "We have no reason 
to believe that the estimates of financial operations would vary materially from 
the estimates presented in the 1997 report." The City retained C. H. Johnson 
and Associates to perform an additional feasibility and operational evaluation. 
Johnson concluded that the initial year's operating deficit would be $413,000, 
year 2 deficit would be $352,000, and subsequent annual deficits w o ~ ~ l d  level out 
at around $220,000. Any potential annual operating deficits of the convention 
center should be covered by existing revenue from hotel occupancy tax in 
College Station, currently expected to be $1,000,000 to $1,300,000 annually. 
Total hotel occupancy tax revenue is likely to be sufficient to cover potential 
operating deficits and the Schedule 5 anticipated payments for convention 
center construction in FY 2008-2009 and FY 2009-201 0. 

Cash flow to the TIF fund depends on early construction of the convention center 
itself to stimulate development and tax generation. Consequently, the City will 
issue certificates of obligation, borrowing money at a municipal interest rate in 
exchange for a debt to be repaid by the -rIF fund, including all identified sources 
from Schedule 5. 

In the event cash flow to the TIF fund is insufficient to make timely debt service 
payments, hotel occupancy tax and the City general fund will serve as back-up 
cash sources for certificate debt service, in that order. Unscheduled payments 
by the City general fund and hotel occupancy tax fund shall be reimbursed by the 
1-IF fund as early as possible and shall be senior to all other obligations of the 
-1-IF fund except scheduled payments for debt service on certificates of obligation. 

Schedule 5 shows proceeds of $25,000,000 from the issue of municipal 
certificates in FY 2006-2007. Proceeds will be invested until drawn for hard and 
soft costs of convention center site acquisition and construction or to pay debt 
service on related certificates of obligation. 

This plan anticipates that the reinvestment zone will be designated by the City 
Council in calendar year 2006, thus making appraised values as of January 1, 
2006 the base values for the zone. (Base values may differ slightly for each 
taxing unit.) The term of the TIF zone and TIF fund will end with collection of the 
levies of September, 2036 (due in FY 2036-2037). That term may be ended at 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 11 



an earlier date, at the discretion of the City Council, if all TIF fund obligations 
have been satisfied by such earlier date. Note that although the term of the zone 
is thirty years, commitments of City tax increments are for only twenty-one 
specified years; County tax increments for twenty specified years. 

The tax increment fund may have a residual balance of cash after all its financial 
obligations have been met. A residual cash balance is indicated in FY 2027- 
2028 in Schedule 5. Any residual balance after all TIF fund financial obligations 
have been fully satisfied will be refunded to participating taxing jurisdictions on a 
pro rata basis. 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 12 



Section 6: 
Revenue Benefits for Taxing Units 

All real property tax revenue on the 2006 base value of the Northgate zone, all 
business personal property tax (including growth increments) and all local sales 
tax (including growth increments) will be earned and retained for normal uses by 
the City and Brazos County. Real property taxes on value added since 2006 will 
flow to general funds after FY 2026-2027. Schedule 7 estimates annual 
business personal property taxes from Northgate. Schedule 8 estimates City 
and County sales taxes from Northgate. Although 2005 legislation permits sales 
tax increments to flow to a 1-IF zone, this plan does not propose any sales tax for 
the TIF zone. Municipal hotel tax generated by hotels in the zone and other hotel 
occupancy tax will become available for purposes other than convention center 
construction after FY 2026-2027. 

The final schedules in this plan (Schedules 9-City, 9-County and 9-ISD) 
summarize and compare estimated annual taxes from the Northgate 1-IF zone 
that respective taxing units will reinvest in the TIF fund and retain for other uses 
over the analysis period of thirty years. Tax revenues from Northgate and taxes 
retained from Northgate for general purposes will never drop below 2006 levels 
unless appraised values and sales drop below 2006 levels. The estimated taxes 
retained for general uses exceed the reinvestments of estimated new taxes in the 
convention center in every year. 

Redevelopment of Northgate will bring qualitative benefits of a new, revitalized 
mixed-use neighborhood according to the City's comprehensive plan. It will also 
bring jobs during and after the construction phases. 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 13 



Exhibit A 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 14 



Exhibit B 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 15 



ExhC bit 6: 

Northgate I F  Zone 



Exhibit C 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 16 



Exhi bit C: 

Ejdsting Uses and Conditions 

Tax-exempt institutional 
Comnercial 
Utilities 

N T I F  zone boundary 



Exhibit D 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 17 



Exhibit D: 
Anticipated Development Map 



Exhibit E: 
Convention Center Development Concept 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 18 





Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 19 



Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 20 



Exhibit F: 
Site Plan for Early Development Project in Northgate 

Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 21 



Exhibit F 



Preliminary Financing Plan for Northgate TIF Zone, January 13, 2006 Page 22 



Schedule 1: 
Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 

in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone 
~ccounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sites flrst.. Some sites are grouped according to possible redevelopment sites. 

Properly ID Record Owner Land lmprovemenls Total Land SF LandILSF Impr. SF Impr.llSF 
R18594 COLLEGE STATION, CITY OF $464,400 $110,080 $574,480 54,000 $8.60 5,062 $22 

R85400 
Site 1 

SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H 
SZABUNIEWICZ, MICHAEL 
SZABUNIEWICZ, IZABELLA M 
DP UNLIMITED INC 
GOSS, JAY B & CATHY E 
SOBHANI, DAVID & MlTRA 
SOBHANI, DAVID & MlTRA 
SOBHANI, DAVID & MlTRA 
BIG DOG TRUST 
GALLEGOS, ADALBERTO M 
City of College Station 

$52,500 
$54,000 $150 
$54,000 $190 
$54,000 
$54,000 $630 
$54,000 $4,480 
$54,000 $4,480 
$54,000 
954,000 
$54,000 $3,450 

exempt for 2005 
$1,002,900 $123,460 

R38611 CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. $1,328,140 $1,328,140 132,814 $10.00 
Site 3 $1,328,140 $0 $1,328,140 132,814 

R18622 
Site 5 

BENNING, RICHARD B 
THOMAS, GLENN D 
BENNING, RICHARD B 
BENNING, RICHARD B 
SZABUNIEWICZ, IZABELLA M 
SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H 
SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H 
VESSALI, PARVIZ & CHANTAL 
VESSALI. PARVIZ & CHANTAL 
VESSALI, PARVIZ & CHANTAL 
VIGILANT ENTERPRISES LLC 
SAHARA REALTY GROUP LTD 
SAHARA REALTY GROUP LTD 
NELSON RENTALS INC 
BIG DOG TRUST 
MITCHELL, NORMA SUE BOYETT 
DIXIE CHICKEN INC 

R13576 CULPEPPER, JOHN C, I l l  $132,420 $59,200 $191,620 13,939 $9.50 6,390 $9 
R13578 CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. $53,870 $21,530 $75,400 5,670 $9.50 425 $51 
R13579 CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. $873,150 $102.260 $975,410 91,911 $9.50 22,500 $5 
R13580 CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. $1,121,450 $1 13,030 $1,234,480 11 9,047 $9.42 26,548 $4 
R13581 CULPEPPER, JOHN C, Ill $1,972,390 $134,560 $2,106.950 207,620 $9.50 49,032 $3 
R13588 CULPEPPER. JOHN C, Ill $138,160 $69,970 $208,130 14,543 $9.50 2,785 $25 
R13589 CULPEPPER, JOHN C, Ill $138,160 $21,530 $159,690 14,543 $9.50 2,900 $7 
R13591 CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. $32,120 $43,750 $75.870 3.388 $9.49 264 $166 
Site 6 $4,461,720 $565,830 $5,027,550 470,659 

ClTlCDRP NORTH AMERICA INC 
FIRST AMERICAN BANK SSB 
FIRST AMERICAN BANK SSB 
GUARANTY FEDERAL BANK FSB 
AUSTACO II REAL ESTATE 
MCDONALD'S CORP (420109) 
KALLISON RANCH OF VIRGINIA LIMIT1 
LOUPOT'S TOO L.P. 
CJB PROPERTIES INC 
MITCHELL, WILLIAM TURNER & RALPl 
MITCHELL, WILLIAM T & R HOWARD 
MITCHELL, WILLIAM TURNER & RALPl 
RANEY, JOHN N & ELIZABETH H 
VANCE, LOUISE B 
VANCE, LOUISE B 
MITCHELL, NORMA SUE BOYETT 
BOYETT, DEBRA L 

$899,730 
$330.570 
$300,580 
$570,130 
$276,575 
$246,650 
$155.830 

$55,700 
$63.780 
$59,550 
$96,590 

$324,080 
$57.560 
$75,760 

$1 10.790 

Page 1 of 7 



Schedule 1: 

Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 
in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone 

Accounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sites first.. Some sites are grouped according to possible redevelopment sites. 

Property ID 
R18491 

Record Owner 
BOYETT, WILLIAM C, Sr. 
BOYETT, WILLIAM C, Sr. 
DP UNLIMITED INC 
LINDLEY, DORIS JEAN 
BOYETT, BANKSTON PARTNERSHIP 
RIG RUNNER'S INC 
RIG RUNNER'S INC 
BWB2 LP 
SHELTON FAMILY PARTNERSHIP LTC 
HORNAK, BRUCE DOUGLAS 
HOLICK, JOHNNIE 
NICHOLS, JOE W MARITAL TRUST 
400 UNIVERSITY DRIVE, LLC 
CROSS STREET I L.P. 
WESTERHEIM, DANIEL 
BIG DOG TRUST 
PARULIAN, OSCAR & SWANY W 
NELSON, HOWARD C 
MIZE, DALE E & KAREN H 
COOLEY, BILL J &FRANCES 
PITNER, H M 
PITNER, H M 
PITNER, H M 
ROMAIN, PIERRE-WES & KATE 
ROMAIN, PIERRE-WES & KATE 
ROMAIN, PIERRE-WES & KATE 
NELSON RENTALS INC 
NELSON RENTALS INC 
RADAKOR LLC 
OPERSTENY, MICHAEL J 
PITNER. MARJORIE N 
301 CHURCH AVENUE L.P. 
BENNING, RICHARD B & ENERGY ALC 
FORREST, ROBERT J 
FORREST, ROBERT 
DDBV LTD 
SCHWAB, JOHN 
HARPER. MOREY MITCHELL 
HARPER, MOREY MITCHELL 
DIXIE CHICKEN INC 
BOYETT, WILLIAM C, Sr. 
BOYETT, GEORGE H 
BOYETT, GEORGE H 
M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 
BIG DOG TRUST 
BOYETT, GEORGE H 
DIXIE CHICKEN INC 
MITCHELL, NORMA SUE BOYETT 
DP UNLIMITED INC 

M.CF  
JUAN-HIJO INVESTMENTS LTD 
WORTHAM, C E 
DP UNLIMITED INC 
DP UNLIMITED INC 
DULANEY, CHRISTINE J 
DULANEY, CHRISTINE J 
DULANEY, CHRISTINE J 
DULANEY, CHRISTINE J 
DULANEY, CHRISTINE J 
MOORE, WILLIAM TYLER JR TTEE 
M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 
M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 
M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 

Land Improvements Total 
$54,600 $97,460 $152,060 
$59,150 $101,570 $160,720 
$17,440 $17,440 
$17,490 $36.1 00 $53,590 

$227.500 $357,930 $585,430 
$156,610 $226,260 $382,870 
$176,180 $176,180 
$67,080 $303,580 $370,660 

$101.810 $383,490 $485,300 
$30,600 $120,170 $150,770 
$19.200 $95,860 $1 15,060 
$52,200 $131,590 $183,790 

$268,500 $410,050 $678.550 
$447,000 $2,811,130 $3,258,130 
$49,000 $5,510 $54,510 
$47,000 $47,000 
$49.200 $2,540 $51,740 

$101,200 $3,040 $104,240 
$46,000 $1,670 $47,670 
$92,000 $76,890 $168.890 
$39,600 $2,720 $42,320 
$39,600 $2,720 $42,320 
$37,600 $2,720 $40.320 
$60,000 $2,270 $62,270 
$60,400 $3,880 $64,280 
$61.280 $3,880 $65,160 
$61,280 $5,480 $66.760 
$60,400 $6,660 $67,060 
$60,000 $5,450 $65,450 
$59,200 $59,200 
$59,000 $1,900 $50,900 

$1,681,070 $14,248,090 $15,929,160 
$173,030 $268,640 $441,670 

$75,540 $117,640 $193,180 
$97,500 $514,290 $61 1.790 

$1 14,560 $202,800 $317,360 
$26,220 $69,210 $95.430 
$23,080 $7,500 $30,580 
$13,780 $18,030 $31,810 
$84,000 $279,020 $363,020 
$45,920 $1 10,700 $156,620 
$73,210 $326.260 $399,470 
$24,540 $24,540 

$275,240 $1 78,800 $454,040 
$3,180 $3,180 
$1.430 $1,430 

$263,520 $263,520 
$58,400 $100,820 $159,220 
$31,500 $31,500 

n $lol.*ifl s.c7qgg(L 
$37,630 $29,490 $67,120 
$54,000 $36,810 $90,810 
$54.000 $54,000 
$54,000 $1,400 $55,400 
$54,000 $54,000 
$54,000 $4,650 $58,650 
$54,000 $5,860 $59,860 
$54.000 $4,930 $58,930 
$54,000 $4,930 $58,930 
$54,000 $54,000 
$54,000 $12,150 $66,150 
$54.000 $4,340 $58,340 
$54.000 $3,990 $57,990 

Page 2 of 7 

Land SF LandlLSF Impr. SF lmpr 
4.200 $13.00 3,264 



Schedule 1 : 
Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 

in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone 
Accounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sltes flrst.. Some sites are grouped according to posslble redevelopment sites. 

Properly ID Record Owner 
R18633 M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 

M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 
M MOORE PROPERTIES LTD 
BOYElT, GEORGE H 
BOYElT, GEORGE H 
BRADFORD, JAMES C & JUDITH 
BRADFORD, JAMES C &JUDITH 
BOYElT. GEORGE H 
BOYElT, GEORGE H 
BOYElT, GEORGE H 
BOYElT, GEORGE H 
OLSHEWSKY, STEVEN J 
BOYElT, WILLIAM C, Sr. 
BOYElT, WILLIAM C, Sr. 
MASUD, SHARIF M & SHAHNAZ 
KAKWAN, IMRAN J 
MASUD, SHARIF M & SHAHNAZ 
MITCHELL, NORMA SUE BOYElT 
DP UNLIMITED INC 
SPRUCE STREET PROPERTIES LTD 
MITCHELL, NORMA SUE BOYElT 
SPRUCE STREET PROPERTIES LTD 
ISLAM-FARIDI, M NURUL & AFSANA 
POSTON. GLADYS BOYElT 
BOYElT, ORAN 
MOlT, KAREN RENE 
BOYElT, WILLIAM C, Sr. 
BOYElT, WILLIAM C, Sr. 
BOYElT, ORAN PARKER 
BOYElT. ORAN PARKER 
NELSON, HOWARD C 
HENDERSON LUCY 
HENDERSON LUCY 
HENDERSON LUCY 
MOORE, SANDRA L 
O'NEILL, PAUL &JENNIFER 
VALENTA, SUE ANN HODGSON 
DP UNLIMITED INC 
S I R DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION INC 
NELSON, HOWARD C ETAL 
SZABUNIEWICZ, C H INDV & ASTRUS 
SZABUNIEWICZ. C H INDV &AS TRUS 
HENDERSON LUCY 
HENDERSON LUCY 
HENDERSON LUCY 
MITCHELL, NORMA SUE BOYElT 
ABDULLAH, JAHANGIR & HlROMl NAG 
SPRUCE STREET PROPERTIES LTD 
SPRUCE STREET PROPERTIES LTD 

S F S  LTD 
R18683 SPRUCE STREET PROPERTIES LTD 

HARPER, WILLIAM P & PEGGY 
POSTON, GLADYS BOYElT 
TAMPLEN, BRIAN & ADDlE SPICER 
MCCASLIN, PATRICK D &JEANETTE 
FOSS 1984 TRUST 
FERRELL, STUART DOUGLAS 
CHONG, MONG-HWA C 
FU, HONG & ZHEN TAO FENG 
BOYElT, DEBRA L 
MASUD, SHARIF M & SHAHNAZ 
HE, LINGYU & QlANG "JOHN" FU 
FU, JOHN QlANG & LINGYU HE 

Land 
$54,000 
$54,000 

Improvements 
$3,990 
$4,340 
$4,340 
$3,160 
$3,160 
$15,140 
$14,930 
$36,810 
$38,080 
$37,620 
$37,620 
$43,030 
$37,620 
$37,620 
$36,910 
$37,620 
$3,720 
$37,620 
$32,950 
$36,410 
$31,670 
$36,410 
$40,510 
$37,620 
$37,620 
$3.670 
$37,620 
$37,620 
$83,410 
$78,610 
$59,520 

$ 176,500 
$1 76.500 
$176,500 
84,930 
$30,810 
$48.303 
$65,000 

Total Land SF LandRSF Impr. SF Impr./lSF 
$57.990 6.750 $8.00 

Page 3 of 7 



Schedule 1: 

Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 
in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone 

Accounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sites first.. Some sites are grouped according to posslble redevelopment sites. 

Property ID Record Owner 
R18697 JOHNSON, CLARENCE B, 111 
R18699 CARGILL, JANIE 

CARGILL, JANIE A 8 THOMAS H 
CARGILL, JANIE A 8 THOMAS H 
NEELLEY, A G ESTATE 
BOND, MRS R J ESTATE 
PITNER. MARJORIE N 
LEE, HELEN 
LEE, HELEN 
NELSON RENTALS INC 
FU, JOHN QlANG 8 LINGYU HE 
HARRIS, CHARLES E, Jr. 
RICHARDSON, ROBERT M 
SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H 
SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H 
RASMUSSEN, GLEN L 
FRATILA, NICOLAE 
WILCOX, ROBERT H 
NELSON RENTALS INC 
NELSON RENTALS INC 
PARULIAN, OSCAR & SWANY W 
PARULIAN, OSCAR 8 SWANY W 
PARULIAN, OSCAR 8 SWANY W 
MASUD, SHARIF M 8 SHAHNAZ 
MICHIE, DOUGLAS CHARLES 
VESSALI, PARVIZ 8 CHANTAL 
MARTIN, ALFRED A 
OKONSKI, CHARLENE 
MIZE, DALE E 8 KAREN H 
HE, LINGYU 8 QlANG "JOHN FU 
PIERING, DAVID A. Jr. 
OSBORNE, JENNY L 
OSBORNE, JENNY L 
PIERING, DAVID A, Jr. 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGIE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 

S I Tn 
PUBLIC ENTERPRISE 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
AGGlE INNS LTD 
MOORE, CANDICE DOLLISON 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN 8 FATMA AL 

Land 
$158,200 

$39.150 

Improvements 
$6,360 

$29,540 
$29,540 
$29.540 
$29.540 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$4.130 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$4.130 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$4,130 - 
$4,130 
$4.130 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$4,130 
$5,490 
$5,490 
$5,490 
$5,400 

$1 2,720 

Page 4 of 7 

Total Land SF LandiLSF Impr. SF Impr.llSF 
$164,560 32,500 $4.87 



Schedule 1: 
Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 

in the Proposed Northgate 'l'lF Zone 
Accounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sites first.. Some sites are grouped according to possible redevelopment sites. 

Property ID Record Owner 
R34107 KALKAN. FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
R34108 KALKAN. FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 

KALKAN~ FERCAN ENGIN B FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA A1 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA A1 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
URSO, STEVEN P & OLGA E 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMAAL 

KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
KALKAN, FERCAN ENGlN & FATMA AL 
HARRIS, JUNE B 
BRAVO ClNCO L.L.C. 
M S S ,  SUE BURSEY 
GREGG, LEILA MOEHLMAN 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
LELAND, WILLIAM P & TWYLA R 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
DUYKA, ANN A 
VITULLI, JAMES SR &BARBARA 

Land Improvements 
$12,720 $1 2.720 

$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9.800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9.800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9.800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$1 2,720 
$12,720 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$9,800 
$12,720 
$12,720 
$12,720 
$12,720 
$12,720 
$12,720 
$12,720 
$12,720 
$1 2,720 
$1 2,720 
(t i9 79n 

$12,720 
$12,720 
$12,720 
$2,770 
$3,810 
$3,720 
$4,860 
$2,560 
$5,650 
$3,020 
$2,740 
$4,420 
$4,760 

Page 5 of 7 

Total Land SF LandlLSF Impr. SF Impr./lSF 
$25,440 1,060 $12.00 952 $13 



Schedule 1: 

Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 
in the Proposed Northgate TIF Zone 

Accounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sites fint.. Some sites are grouped according to possible redevelopment sites. 

Property ID Record Owner Land Improvements Total Land SF LandlLSF Impr. SF Impr.llSF 
R35665 STERLE, MARK EDWARD $50,940 $4,080 $55,020 8.490 $6.00 
R35666 ERTAS, ATILA $49.180 $4.120 $53,300 8.190 $6.00 

PRAYTOR, LINDA 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
ALTENHOF, JEANETTE 
SIMPSON, RUSSELL B 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CULPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
CUCPEPPER FAMILY L.P. 
HEIMAN, MARK 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
MCHARGUE, MELISSA K & JEFF R 
ANDERSON, THOMAS L 
SCHLOSSER, ERIK KAVANAUGH 
HEIMAN, MARK S &JANET 
STEVENS, GEORGE ROBERT 
ENAX, MICHAEL W & MARSHA C 
FOGLE, JOHNNIE 8 DEBORAH 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
DENSON, AL H & BARBARA B 
PEDROTTl FAMILY PROPERTIES LTD 
BOYETT. GEORGE H & THE GEORGE 
HEIMAN, MARKS & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET 
HEIMAN. MARK S 8 JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARKS & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S &JANET 
HEIMAN, MARKS & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S &JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S &JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S &JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S &JANET 
MCHARGUE. MELISSA K & JEFF R 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
BOYETT. WILLIAM C, Jr. 

N GI n n u w r r  
DALE, LUClA K 
HEIMAN, MARKS & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN. MARK S & JANET 
HEIMAN, MARK S & JANET 
MCHARGUE, MELISSA K & JEFF R 
TONNER, BARRY &BECKY 
MCHARGUE, MELISSA K & JEFF R 
JUMP, WILLIAM JAMES & MARGARET 
FOGCE, JOHNNIE & DEBORAH 
ROSE, ROBERT ANDREW 
MUNSON. RICHARD EARL & DIANE St 
STEWART, ROBERT & STEPHANIE 

$41700 
$2,550 
$2,810 
$2,770 
$4,190 
$0,300 
$2.450 
$2,110 
$2.750 
$2,710 
$2,110 
$2,380 
$2,450 
$1,300 

$55,026 
$16,313 
$22,683 
$44,556 
$44,556 
$16,313 
$27,683 
$44,556 
$44,556 
$16,313 
$16,313 
$44,556 
$44,556 
$55,026 
$55,026 
$16,313 
$16,313 
$31.346 
$31,346 
$16,313 
$16,313 
$31,346 
$31,346 
$55,026 
$29,576 
$29,576 
$30,208 
$30,208 
$30,208 
$30,206 
$30.640 
$22,080 
$30,640 
C i?E- 
$22,080 
$22,080 
$22,080 
$22,080 
$30,640 
$30,640 
$30.640 
$45,320 
$45,320 
$45,675 
$45,675 
$45,675 

Page 6 of 7 



Schedule 1: 

Certified 2005 Brazos Appraisal District Real Property Appraisals 
in the Proposed Northgate 'TIF Zone 

Accounts are arranged by ID number, taxable sites first.. Some sites are grouped according to possible redevelopment sites. 

Property ID Record Owner Land Improvements Total Land SF LandILSF Impr. SF Impr./lSF 
R38661 HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET $18,120 $32,985 $51,105 2,265 $8.00 1,202 $27 

HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET $10,030 
HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET $10,030 
HEIMAN, MARKS 8 JANET $10.030 
HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET $10,030 
HEIMAN, MARK S 8 JANET $10,030 
HEIMAN, MARK S B JANET $10,030 
K O B  LLC $82,200 
COOLEY, BILL J 8 FRANCES $52,800 
AGGlE INNS II LTD $705,000 
AYMOND, GREGORY M REV $248.930 
AGGlE INNS II LTD $907,200 
SZABUNIEWICZ, MICHAEL 8 IZABELLl $60,000 
SZABUNIEWICZ. CHARLES H 958,800 
SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H $72,100 
SZABUNIEWICZ, CHARLES H $72,420 
NORTH AMERICAN ISLAMIC TRUST $60,960 
RIVERA, HECTOR $30,480 
WHITT, DAVID 8 PAUL $60.960 
AGGlE INNS LTD $1,085,950 
FRENCH QUARTER APARTMENTS LLI $913,720 
WHITT. DAVID 8 PAUL $396,000 
NELSON, HOWARD C ETAL $146,280 
NELSON FAMILY TRUST BARDIN H L 1 $228,980 
WYATT, TED N $31,680 
WYATT, TED N $6,250 
GREATER TEXAS FEDERAL $55,980 
COOLN, BILL J 8 FRANCES $324,000 
SKIBELL PROPERTIES, LC. $210,600 
BICS PROPERTIES INC $1 80,000 
POSTON, GLADYS ETAL $145,200 
VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS, INC $1 92,500 
WALSTON, JlMMlE $30,290 

R93959 BOYETT SR, W C 
All laxable accounts 

$148,500 $148,500 $297,000 9,900 $15.00 3,240 $46 
$34,026,300 $38,789,564 $70,815,884 3,820,851 $9.40 1,000.274 $37 

or 83.12 acres 
Fully-exepmpt accounts: 
R18498 COLLEGE STATION, ClTY OF 
R18504 BAPTIST GENERAL CONVENTIOmEXAS 
R18520 ABM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R18521 ABM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R18522 ALM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R18523 ABM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R18524 ALM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R18525 ALM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R18530 TEXAS ALM ASSOCIATION OF 
R18551 UNIVERSITY LUTHERAN CHURCH 
R18558 COLLEGE STATION. ClTY OF 
R18587 CHRISTIAN SCIENCE SOCIETY 
R35614 TF-, THF 
R35891 ST MARY'S CATHOLIC CHURCH 
R38812 ST MARY'S CATHOLIC CHURCH 
R44942 ALM UNITED METHODIST CHURCH 
R44952 NORTH AMERICAN ISLAMIC TRUST 
R44958 ST MARYS CATHOLIC CHURCH 
R44968 TEXAS ANNUAL CONFERENCE OF THE UNITED 
R44969 TEXAS ANNUAL CONFERENCE OF THE UNITED 
R44971 ST MARY'S CATHOLIC CHURCH 
R85400 COLLEGE STATION, ClTY OF 
R107885 COLLEGE STATION, ClTY OF 

or 32.43 aaes 

Page 7 of 7 



r Schedule 2: 

stimated Annual Expenditures for TIF Project Cost Principal 

Assumptions: 
Project cost principal and related financial and administrative fees are paid or reimbursed by the TIF fund. 
Line items. amounts and timing are subject to change in future project and financin lans 

Cost estimates after 2006 are adjusted for inflation at an annual rate of.[* 

I Fiscal Years Ended Seotember 30. 1 
L I . . - - - . - -. - - - - - - - . - - - - -. 

Total 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 1 2012 Sum 

Project cost principal 
Environmental te ting I $500,000 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500,000 

Site acquisition a d preparation $2,000,000 t $0 $2.000.000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2.000.000 

Infrastructure $2,500,000 $0 $2,000,000 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500,000 

$10.000.000 $0 $6,000,000 $4.000.000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10.000,000 

Parking $3,000,000 $0 $3,000.000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,000,000 

Landscaping $1,000,000 $0 $200,000 $800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment $2,500,000 $0 $500,000 $2,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,500,000 

Contingencies 

Total for principal 

$1 ,000,000 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000.000 

$25,000,000 $l.OOO,OOO $16,200,000 $7,800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25,000,000 



Schedule 3: 

Anticipated Development in Northgate TIF Zone, 20 Years 

I Construction costs, values and appraised values are not necessarily the same. 

Site Concept and Components 

1 Gameday Centers 
condos 
ground floor retail 

2 Mixed use project 
residential 
retail 

Less Net Addition 

4 First and Boyetl joint venture 
residential 
office 
ground floor retail 

Assumed 
Complete Estimated Floor 

5 General retail, College @ Univer ity 2010 120.000 470,659 0.25 $12 $5,647.908 $70 $8,400.000 $1 4,047,908 $5,027,550 $9,020.358 $1 0.457.067 I 

Estimated Appraisals at Completion (2005 Dollars) I Taxable Net to Roll, 
Land I Improvements I 2005 Appraisal Pre-completion 

6 ChurchlNagle site 
Residential 
Retail 

Before Floor Area Area per ~e 1 Total Appraisal Increase Inflation @ 
Jan. 1, (SF) Land SF Ratio SF Total SF Total Real of Site (2005 Dollars)] 3.00% 1 

A Hotel 1 2010 38,000 87,120 0.44 $12 $1,045,440 $80 $3,040,000 $4.085.440 $522.720 $3,562,720 $4,130.169 

B General development 

C General development 

D General development 80,000 60,000 1.33 $12 $720,000 $70 $5,600.000 $6,320,000 $360,000 $5,960.000 $9,285,486 

E General development 80,000 60,000 1.33 $12 $720,000 $70 $5,600,000 $6,320.000 $360,000 $5,960,000 $10,146,501 

All projects 1,511 3.000 1,354,669 1.12 $12 $16,256.026 $82 $123,928,000 $140,184,026 $1 1,145,240 $129,038,786 $153,452,626 

'Appraisal estimate is from City of college Station 



Schedule 4-City: 

Estimated Annual Appraisals and 
City Real Property Tax from the TIF Zone 

Assumpticns: 

(a) 

\lalue taxable by City for 2005 is from Brazos Appraisal District. This figure makes allowance for partial exemptions and abatements. 
--ax rate is for 2005. Actual rate will vary annually. 
istimated tax adjushent rate is an annual average. Appraisals may remain static one or two years. then rise in a third year. 

--axes are shown with the year levied. Receipts will lag appraisal dates by approximately 13 months. 

6) (c) ( 4  (e) (0 (9) (h) 0) (i) 
Estimated 

BAD Appraisal 
of Taxable Anticipated 

Real Property Net Addition 
in Zone for New 

Carried Forward Development Total Percentage 
From Past Year; Added to Roll Estimated Real Property of Real 

,4ppraised Annual This Year Taxable Captured Tax Property Tax Real Pmperty Real 

29 
Total 

2035 $375,116,915 $0 $375.116.915 $303,001,137 81,331,387 0% $0 $1,648,264 
$153,452,626 $24,997.770 $15,216.972 $19,287,100 



0S9'PLE'LS 
UL'LPE'L8 
vsz'soa' 18 
om 'g~z '  1s 
LEP'PPZ' LO 
PSP'E LZ' LS 

ZBP'E~O'SLES 
LLZ'60L'LSS 
L6Z'66P'09E$ 
LL9'OEP'E%$ 
P99'00S'9PE$ 
EES'9OL'6SS 
LZ9'SW'EEES 
sreasrs'9zs$ 
ESO'C L L'OZE$ 
LZC'9E8'ELFS 
EL9'Z89'LOE$ 
089'6P9'Lor$ 
6LP'88S'S8Z$ 
S0La886'6LZ$ 
OEL'86VPLZS 
L L6'0C8'6SZ8 
€6 1'9EL'%Z$ 
SSE'CPL'GPZ$ 
LP6'9PE'9EZ$ 
LBS'Z LL' m$ 
LOE'69L'Ln$ 
ESS'BE6'PLZS 
ZLO'PZL'O LZS 
Ln'Z6S'WJZ$ 
66s' LPS'ZOZ8 
EL8'6P8'LLL$ 
6PL'SPZ'SZ 19 

- 
SOZ 
PEOZ 
EEOZ 
ZEOZ 
LEOZ 
OEOZ 
6ZOZ 
8ZOZ - 
LZOZ 
9ZOZ 
SZOZ 
PZOZ 
UOZ 
n o z  
LZOZ 
OZOZ 
6LOZ 
8102 
LLOZ 
9102 
SLOZ 
P LOZ 
ELOZ 
ZLOZ 
L 102 
OLOZ 
6002 

auoz ay3 woy x e l  hyado~d leaa h~uno3 sozeJg 
pue sles!e~ddv lenuuv pa$ew!$sg 

:Ajuno3-~ appatps 



Schedule 4-ISD: 

Estimated Annual Appraisals and 
College Station ISD Real Property Tax from the TIF Zone 

Program 
Year 
-5 

Base 
1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 

Total 

(b) (c) 
Estimated 

(d) 

BAD Appraisal 
of Taxable Anticipated 

Real Property Net Addltion 
in Zone for 

Carried Forward Development 
Fmm Past Year. Added to Roll 

Total Percentage 
Estimated Real Pmperty of Real 
Taxable Caotured Tax Pro~ertv Tax Real P r o m  Real 

Property Tax 
Retained 
$1.181.742 



Fiscal year beginn 
and ended 

SOURCES 

Schedule 5: 

TIF Fund Sources and Uses of Cash (Debt Service Schedule) 
Assumptions. 
Annual TIF fund rece~pts from taxes and expend~tures for TIF project cost prinapal are from separate schedules. 
Tax receipts are entered for the year recerved, not the year of appraisal. 
Rece~pts and expenditures, except debt service on certificates, occur at mid-year. 

payments each September and March 

Recovery of City cash contributions for the convention center (except tax increments) is subordinate to all other project msts. 

ng October 1, 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 201 0 2011 201 2 2013 
September 30. 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 1 2012 201 3 2014 

From C~ty fax increments &J. $0 $6.338 $222,800 $423,566 $555,783 $573.236 $591,038 $609,197 
From County :ax increments, -':*:;. , $0 $0 $193,893 $368,613 $483,676 $498.863 $514.353 $530,153 

$0 $6,338 $416,693 $792,179 $1,039,459 $1,072.099 $1,105,392 $1,139,350 
$0 $2,500,000 $0 $800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 
$0 $0 $416,408 $557,701 $620.586 $690,549 $746.982 $766.070 
$0 $0 $650,000 $650,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Annual receipts b~ fore borrowing $1,100.000 $0 $2,506,338 $1.483.101 $2,799,880 $1,660,045 $1,762,648 $1,852,374 $1,905,420 
Plus City certifiptes proceeds $0 $25,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total 
Plus cash carried from end or 

Total cash available 

USES 
Project costs, except 

City TIF mi 
Public improvemer 

Total fees and 
Net cash available befos 

Debt service on certificates; 

CASH BALANCE AFTER DEBT 
Cash before earned 

Earned interest on cash 
Balance after 

Debt coverage ratio from listed so 

Reimbursement of cash contributons 

rdceipts for year , r .  . $1.100,000 - -. .. - $25,000,000 $2,506,338 $1,483,101 $2,799,880 $1,660,045 $1,762,648 $1,852,374 $1,905.420 
previous $100,000 $7,885.016 $715,045 $175,325 $944,520 $589,421 $329,513 $154.280 

from all sources $1,100,000 $25,100,000 $1 0,391.353 $2,198,146 $2.975.205 $2,604,565 $2,352,069 $2,181,886 $2.059.699 

debt service 
nagement fee $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
t expenditures $1,000,000 $16,200,000 $7,800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
improvements $1,000,000 $1 6,200,000 $7,800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

debt service $100.000 $8,900,000 $2,591,353 $2,198,146 $2,975,205 $2,604,565 $2,352,069 $2,181,886 $2,059,699 

of obligation 
Interest &=;;.; $656,250 $1.283.844 $1,243,945 $1.201.925 $1,157,669 $1.1 11.059 $1.061.971 $1.01 0.271 

Principal '" :. t $360.734 $750,125 $790,023 $832,044 $876,300 $922.909 $971,998 $1,023,698 
Total' *?%$. . +, $1,016,984 $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $2,033.969 $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $2.033.969 

SERVICE 
in~erest this year $100,000 $7,883,016 $557,385 $164,177 $941.237 $570,597 $318.101 $147,918 $25.731 
balance this year $0 $2,000 $157.660 $11.148 $3,284 $18,825 $11,412 $6,362 $2,958 

earned interest $100,000 57,885,016 $715,045 $175.325 $944,520 $589,421 $329,513 $154,280 $28.689 

Jrces &.&&@$-&$ -, r 8.75 1.27 1.08 1.46 1.28 1.16 1.07 1.01 

from City $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Page 1 of 3 



Fiscal year beginn 
and ended S 

SOURCES 
From City 

From County 
Annual real properly tax incr 

Cash contribb 
Hotel occupancy tax from T 

Other hotel 
Annual receipts bt 

Plus City certifir 
Total rt 

Plus cash carried from end o 
Total cash available fr 

USES 
Project costs, excep 

City TIF mi 
Public impiovemer 

Total fees and 
Net cash available befor 

Debt service on certificates 

CASH BALANCE AFTER DEBT SEI 
Cash before eamed in1 

Eamed interest on cash ba 
Balance after t 

Debt coverage ratio from listed sol 

Reimbursement of cash contributi' 

Schedule 5: 

F Fund Sources and Uses of Cash (Debt Service Schedule) 

~g October I, 2014 2015 201 6 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 
ptember 30, 2015 2016 201 7 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

IX increments $661.888 $681.463 $701.430 $759.1 34 $780.655 $802.605 $865.795 $889,449 $913.575 
IX increments $576:007 $5931040 $610]414 $6601630 $679,355 $6981456 $753.445 $7741028 $7951021 
ment recei~ts $1.237.894 $1.274.503 $1 -31 1.844 $1.419.764 $1,460,010 $1.501.061 $1,619,241 $1,663.476 $1.708.596 
ons from City $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
: zone impact $780,291 $796.777 $81 1,532 $825,563 $839.874 $854.472 $869,361 $884,549 $900,040 
ccupancy tax $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
)reborrowing $2.018.186 $2.071.280 $2,123,376 $2.245.327 $2.299.884 $2,355,533 $2,488,602 $2,548.025 $2,608,636 
~tes proceeds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
eiptsforyear $2,018.186 $2,071,280 $2,123,376 $2,245,327 $2,299,884 $2,355,533 $2,488,602 $2,548,025 $2,608,636 
jrevious year $28,689 $13,421 $50,990 $141,412 $355,579 $628,550 $962,544 $1,436,180 $1,978,579 
rn all sources $2,046,875 $2,084,701 $2,174,366 $2,386,740 $2,655,463 $2,984.083 $3,451,146 $3,984,204 $4,587.21 5 

debt service 
~agernent fee $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
nprovernents $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
debtservice $2,046,875 $2,084.701 $2,174.366 $2,386,740 $2,655,463 $2.984.083 $3,451.146 $3.984.204 $4,587,215 

)f obligation 
Interest $955,821 $898,476 $838,080 $774,472 $707,480 $636.926 $562,618 $484,359 $401,936 

Principal $1,078.147 $1,135,493 $1,195,889 $1,259,497 $1,326,488 $1,397,043 $1,471,350 $1.549.610 $1,632,032 
Total $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $2,033.969 $2,033,969 $2,033.969 $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $2,033,969 

VICE 
restthisyear $12.906 $50,732 $140,398 $352.771 $621,495 $950.114 $1.417.177 $1.950.236 $2,553.247 
nce this year $51 5 $258 $1.015 $2,808 $7,055 $12,430 $19.002 $28.344 $39.005 
~med interest $13,421 $50,990 $141.412 $355,579 $628.550 $962.544 $1,436,180 $1,978,579 $2,592,251 

ns from City $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Page 2 of 3 



T 

SOURCES 

Schedule 5: 

F Fund Sources and Uses of Cash (Debt Service Schedule) 

Fiscal year begir 
and ended 

USES 

ning October 1, 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 
September 30. 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 Cumulative 

City TIF banagernent fee $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Debt service on certifica s of obligation t Interest $315.130 $223.707 $127.421 $26.013 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1 5.679.372 

Public improverrent 
Total fees and 

Net cash available 

Principal $1,718,839 $1,810,262 $1,9061548 $9901971 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25~000~000 
Total $2,033.969 $2,033,969 $2,033,969 $1,016,984 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,679,372 

expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25.000.000 
improvements $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 so $.*~,LO!O~O,O_O~ 

before debt service $5,346.095 $6.181.762 $7,098,628 $8,099,551 $4,822,217 $0 $0 $ok;x-*-,. A. : 

$3,312,126 $4,147,793 $5,064,660 $7,082,567 $4,822,217 $0 $0 
$51,065 $66,243 $82,956 $101,293 $0 $0 $0 

$3,363,191 $4,214,036 $5,147,616 $7.1 83,860 $4,822,217 $0 $0 
Residual balance prorated 

7.96 &$;.$iir ;;. !,; . . . .  
Debt coverage ratio from listed 2.63 3.04 3.49 . \.. ... . ...-. .. ..,,, " A  ..-- ,. - .&w.?k?~ &-,.. , , .,, A* , xL-.?x~~: :L:?:.+%?; . ~:~j$;..:i~:;;.,$i~;;;;,$,~ <,$;;2';$; +;<+\A::.:'<< .'a 

Reimbursement of cash contrib tions from City t $0 $0 $0 $4,400,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,400,000 

I Page 3 of 3 



Schedule 6: 

Estimated City Hotel Occupancy Tax 
Assumptions: 

Average daily rate annual b r  4 ears, then. ~ l a n n u a l l y .  
Occupancy increases annually until reaching 

I I Room Sales, I Room Sales, 1 Tax irom. ~e ia ted 

(b) (c) (a) 

23 2029 
24 2030 
25 2031 
26 2032 
27 2033 
28 2034 
29 2035 

Total 

(d) (e) (r) (9) (h) (i) (j ) (k) (I) (m) (n) 

Fiscal Year 
Program Ended 

Year Sept. 30, 

City Hotel 
Occupancy 

Tax 
From Zone 
for Other 
purposes 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

Total 
Irn~act- 

FullSewice Hotel In TIF Zone Second Hotel in TlF Zone 
Annual 1 Annual 

Cumulative A 
New 

Hotel Keys 

Plus 
Occu~ancv 

Base 2006 0 $0 0% $0 $0 0% $0 $0 $0 SO 0 $0 

Less 
] 15% ( City Hotel 

terage Exempt from Occupancy 
3aily Annual Occupancy Tax 
Rate Occupancy Tax I 7.00% 

Less 
1 1 5 %  City Hotel 

Cumulative Average Exempt from Occupancy 
New Daily Annual Occupancy Tax 

Hotel Keys Rate Occupancy Tax 1 7.00% 

Outside 
Zone 

Attributed to 
Convention 

Center 

Hotel 
Occupancy 

Tax 
to Convention 

Center 



Schedule 7: 

Estimated Business Personal Property Tax 
From New Development in the TIF Zone 

in this schedule are shown with the year levied. Receipts will lag appraisal dates by approximately 13 months. 
from "general development" identified in separate schedule of anticipated de4velopment is credited in this schedule. 

29 2035 200.000 30.600 263,000 0 493.000 $8,087,093 $404,355 $3,544,843 $0 $12,036,291 $52,887 $55,969 $201,608 
Total $1.248.41 9 $1,321,153 $4,758,992 



Schedule 8: 

Estimated Sales Tax 
From New Development in the TIF Zone 

Assumptions: 
Sales include beverages. City receives 1.5% tax on beverages (10.7143% of 1446 State tax.) 
Sales tax rates are constant. 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (9 
( Retail and Restaurants, Except Hotel I 

Averaae Annual Plus Taxable Hotel 
~ a x a b L  Sales @ Food and Beverage Sales Tax 

Cumulative SFI $1 75 Revenue @ from New Development @ 
Fiscal Year in New per SF, Plus I 40% Total 1 $0.0150 1 $0.0050 1 

of Full-Service 

1 2007 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
2 2008 60,000 $1 1,473,634 $0 $1 1,473,634 $172,105 $57,368 
3 2009 80,000 $15,757,123 $1,962,331 $1 7,719,455 $265,792 $88,597 
4 201 0 200,000 $40,574,593 $2,183,682 $42,758,275 $641,374 $21 3,791 
5 201 1 200,000 $41,791,830 $2,430,002 $44,221,832 $663,327 $221,109 
6 201 2 200,000 $43,045,585 $2,704,106 $45,749,691 $686,245 $228,748 
7 2013 200,000 $44,336,953 $2,921,736 $47,258,689 $708,880 $236,293 
8 2014 200,000 $45,667,061 $2,980,171 $48,647,233 $729,708 $243,236 
9 201 5 200,000 $47,037,073 $3,039,775 $ 50,076,848 $751,153 $250,384 
10 201 6 200,000 $48,448,185 $3,100,570 $51,548,755 $773,231 $257,744 
11 201 7 200,000 $49,901.631 $3,162,581 $53,064,212 $795.963 $265,321 
12 201 8 200,000 $51,398,680 $3,225,833 $54,624,513 $819.368 $273,123 
13 201 9 200,000 $52,940,640 $3,290,350 $56,230,990 $843,465 $281,155 
14 2020 200,000 $54,528,860 $3,356,157 $57,885,016 $868.275 $289,425 
15 202 1 200,000 $56,164,725 $3,423,280 $59,588,005 $893,820 $297,940 
16 2022 200.000 $57,849,667 $3,491,745 $61,341,413 $920,121 $306.707 
17 2023 200,000 $59,585,157 $3,561,580 $63,146,737 $947,201 $31 5,734 
18 2024 200,000 $61,372,712 $3,632,812 $65,005,524 $975,083 $325,028 
19 2025 200,000 $63,213,893 $3,705,468 $66,919,361 $1,003,790 $334,597 
20 2026 200,000 $65,110,310 $3,779.578 $68,889,888 $1,033,348 $344,449 
21 2027 200,000 $67,063,619 $3,855,169 $70,918,788 $1,063,782 $354,594 
22 2028 200,000 $69,075,528 $3,932.272 $73,007,800 $1,095,117 $365,039 
23 2029 200,000 $71,147,794 $4,010,918 $75,158.71 2 $1,127,381 $375,794 
24 2030 200,000 $73,282.228 $4,091,136 $77,373,364 $1,160,600 $386,867 
25 2031 200,000 $75,480,694 $4,172,959 $79,653,653 $1,194,805 $398,268 
26 2032 200,000 $77,745,115 $4,25641 8 $82,001,533 $1,230,023 $410,008 
27 2033 200,000 $80,077,469 $4,341,547 $84,419,015 $1,266,285 $422,095 
28 2034 200,000 $82,479,793 $4,428,377 $86,908,170 $1,303,623 $434,541 

In?  2!3 L""5 ,A c .r m -,n a" 7 m-,. 

Total 5,340,000 $:i:;%i $1 ,=% $ ; k : z Z 8 % ; 7  



Year - 
Base 

29 
Total 

Schedule 9-City: 

Summary of Estimated City Taxes 
From Northgate TlF Zone 

for 30 Years 

Propem tax receipts are shown with calendar year of appraisal and levy. Most property tax receipts lag appraisal by a year. 
Actual cash flow may be more or less than this pro forrna. 

Pm forrna is not adjusted for potential refunds to City and County of any balance in the TIF fund at dissolution. 
Revenue to TIF fund or n center excludes 84,400,000 from City (to be repaid) and approximately $3,275,000 from municipal hotel occupancy tax from outside the zone 

- . - - . - - 
Year Real s i i i i s j  New Hotel 

Ended Prooertv Persona Sales Ocarpancy 

(b) (c) (d) 

~ppraisal) 
nr Saks New 

Sept. 30. 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
201 2 
2013 
2014 
2015 
201 6 
201 7 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031 
2032 
2033 
2034 

(e )  (0 (9) (h) (0 U) (k) (1) (m) (n) (0) (P) (4) 

Totals 1 To TIF Fund or Convention Center Fund I Retained for General Use 1 
New 

. . 
Tax Property T ~ X  

$316.877 $0 
Tax 

$0 

Real New New Hotel 
Property BPP Sales Occupancy 

Real Business New Hotel 
Properly Personal Sales Occupancy 

All Tax 
$316.877 $0 
$323.21 4 $6.338 
$719.930 $222.800 

$1.372.276 $423.566 
$2,032,975 $555,783 
82,126,679 $573.236 
82,227,778 $591.030 
$2.320.425 $609.197 
$2,412,457 $681.888 
$2.467.127 $681.463 
$2,523,092 $701.430 
$2.61 7,722 $759,134 
$2,677.1 19 $780,655 
$2,737.925 $802,605 
52,840,974 $865.795 
$2,905.51 7 $889,449 
$2.971 592 $913.575 
$3.083.820 $982.768 
$3.153.965 $1.008.761 
$3,225,776 $1,035,274 
$3,299,295 $1.062.317 
83,374,584 $1.089.900 
83,451,626 $0 
$3,530,527 $0 
$3.61 1.31 1 $0 
$3,694.027 $0 
$3.778.721 $0 
$3.865.444 $0 
$3.054.246 $0 

Tax - 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

$0 
$0 

. ~ 

Tax Tax All Tax Property Tax 
$0 $0 $0 $316.877 $a 
$0 $0 $6,338 $316.877 $0 
$0 $0 $222.800 $316.877 $8.149 
$0 $343,408 $766.974 $316,877 $2.633 
$0 $477,701 $1,033,484 $316,877 $41.240 
$0 $531,586 $1.104.822 $316.877 $41.652 
$0 $591,549 $1.182.587 $316.877 $42.069 
$0 $642.982 $1.252.179 $316.877 $42.490 
$0 $661,070 $1,322,958 $316.877 $42,914 
$0 $674,291 $1,355.754 $316.877 $43.344 
$0 $687,777 $1,389.207 $316,877 $43,777 
$0 $701,532 $1,460,667 $316.877 $44.215 
$0 $715.563 $1,496,218 $316,877 $44.657 
$0 $729,874 $1,532,480 $316.877 $45.104 
$0 $744.472 $1,610,267 $316.877 $45.555 
$0 $759,361 $1.648.810 $316.877 $46.010 
$0 $774.549 $1,688,124 $316.877 $46.470 
$0 $7900.040 51,772,807 $316.877 $46.935 
$0 $805,840 $1,814,601 $316,877 $47.404 
$0 821.957 $1.857.231 $316.877 $47,878 
$0 $838.396 $1,900,713 $316.877 $48.357 
$0 $855.164 $1.945.065 $316.877 $48.841 
$0 $0 $0 $1.434.913 $49.329 
$0 $0 $0 $1.463.611 $49.822 
$0 $0 $0 81,492,883 $50.321 
$0 $0 $0 $1.522.741 $50.824 
$0 $0 $0 $1.553.196 $51.332 
$0 $0 $0 $1.584.260 $51.845 
$0 $0 $0 $1.615.945 $52,364 
$0 $0 $0 $1,648,264 $52.887 
$0 $13.147.1 13 $28.364.085 $19,287,100 $1,246,419 

Tax Tax 
$0 $0 

All 
$316.877 



Schedule 9-County: 

Summary of Estimated Brazos County Taxes 
From Northgate TIF Zone 

for 30 Years 

Actual cash flow may be more or less than this pro forma. 
Pro f o n a  is not adjusted for potential refunds to City and County of any balance in the TIF fund at dissolution. 

(9) (h) 0 )  (i) (k) (1) (m) (n) 



Year 
Base 

Schedule 9-ISD: 

Summary of Estimated College Station ISD Taxes 
From Northgate TIF Zone 

for 30 Years 
tax receipts are shown with calendar year of appraisal and levy. Most property tax receipts lag appraisal by a year. 

Actual cash flow may be more or less than this pro forma. 

Appraisal 
or Sales 

Totals 1 To TIF Fund or Convention Center ~ u n d l  Retained for General Use I 
New New New 

Business Business Business 
Real Personal Real Personal Real Personal 

Year 
2006 
2007 

Property Tax Property Tax All Property Tax Property Tax All Property Tax Property Tax All 
$1.205.377 $0 $1,205,377 $0 $0 $0 $1.205.377 $0 $1.205.377 
$1 229.484 $0 $1.229.484 $0 $0 $0 $1.229.484 $0 $1.229.484 

29 2035 
Total 

$6,278,657 $201.608 $6,480.265 $0 $0 $0 $6.278.657 $201,608 $6,480,265 
$131,426,121 $4,758.992 $136,185,113 $0 $0 $0 $131,426.121 $4,758,992 $136,185,113 



Corn 

Development Name 

Hotels 
Hilton College Station 

Super 8 Motel 

Building floor area measuremt 

Schedule for Client Only: 

~rable Real Property Appraisals by Brazos Appraisal District, 2005 

St No Street Name Improvements Land -- Total Value Bldg. SF lV per BSF Land SF Land per LSF Total per BSF FAR 

801 University Dr. E. $13,956,990 $2,888,900 $16,845,890 222,829 $63 305.704 $9 $76 0.73 

301 Texas Ave. S. $1,341,740 $627.660 $1,969,400 32,682 $41 69,696 $9 $60 0.47 

$3,455,330 $635.010 $4,090,340 43,083 84,668 
$1,663,680 $318.530 $1,982,210 20.790 42,470 

607 Texas Ave. S. $5.1 19.01 0 $953,540 $6,072,550 63.873 $80 127,138 $8 $95 0.50 

exdude parking garages. Improvement appraisals indude garages. 



EXHIBIT " E  
VOLUNTARY PETITION 



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended (the 
"Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of College 
Stzition, Texas (the "City"), to cstablish within the City a reir~vestmeili zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the owners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most recent certified appraisal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the corporate 
limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in its present 
condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially-impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded because 
the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 31 1 of the Code. 



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority granted 
by Chapter 3 1 1 for administration, management, and operation of the Zone 
and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respecthlly submitted to the City Council of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this day of Ou/, 2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS : 

John N. & Elizabeth H. Raney 

By: EC;,Gc;t(; #. 
~ligabeth H. Raney 

(I) Address of property: 1 1 3- 1 15 College Main 
Boyett, Block 1, Lot 6 

App Dist Prop ID# R18486 
Total Assessed Value $121,630 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly authorized to 
execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

g=-- 
Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11, of the Texas Tax ode damended (the 

"Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the owners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most recent certified appraisal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the corporate 
limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in its present 
condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded because 
the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas. " 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the Code. 



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority granted 
by Chapter 3 1 1 for administration, management, and operation of the Zone 
and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to th City Council of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this 2 A ay of j---&('2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS : 

Charles H. Szabuniewicz 

(1) Address of property: 321 First St.. 
Boyett, Block 1 1, Lot 12 

App Dist Prop ID# R18595 
Total Assessed Value $52,000 

(2) Address of property: 3 10 First St. 
Boyett, Block 12, Lot 6 

App Dist Prop ID# R18611 
Total Assessed Value $55,290 

(3) Address of property: 3 12 First St. 
Boyett, Block 12, Lot 7 

App Dist Prop ID# R18612 
Total Assessed Value $54,570 

(4) Address of property: 403 Second 
Boyett, Block 20, Lot 7 

App Dist Prop ID# R18716 
Total Assessed Value $42,320 

(5) Address of property: 401 Second 
Boyett, Block 20, Lot 8 

App Dist Prop ID# R18717 
Total Assessed Value $42,190 



(6) Address of property: 

App Dist Prop ID# 
Total Assessed Value 

(7) Address of property: 

App Dist Prop ID# 
Total Assessed Value 

(8) Address of property: 

App Dist Prop ID# 
Total Assessed Value 

4 16-4 18 Tauber 
Tauber, Block 2, Lot 7 
R44949 
$59,030 

420-424 Tauber 
Tauber, Block 2, Lot 8 & Pt. of 9 
R44950 
$72,450 

500 Cherry St. 
Tauber, Block 2, Lot 10 &Pt.of 9 
R4495 1 
$72,720 

PETITIONERS: 

C. H. Szabuniewicz Individual & as 
Trustee of M. A Szabuniewicz 

By: 
C. H. ~aadbdewicz 

(1) Address of property: 509 First St. 
Boyett, Block 15, Lot 16 

App Dist Prop ID# R18673 
Total Assessed Value $49,230 

(2) Address of property: 507 First St. 
Boyett, Block 15, Lot 17 

App Dist Prop ID# R18674 
Total Assessed Value $50,630 

PETITIONERS: 

Izabella M. Szabuniewicz 

By: 
C. ~d&ddniewicz 

(1) Address of property: 308 First St. 
Boyett, Block 12, Lot 05 

App Dist Prop ID# R18610 
Total Assessed Value $56,120 



(2) Address of property: 3 17 First St. 
Boyett, Block 1 1, Lot 14 

App Dist Prop ID# R18597 
Total Assessed Value $54,190 

PETITIONERS: 

Michael Szabuniewicz 

By: 
C. H. d u i e w i c z  

(1) Address of property: 3 19 First St. 
Boyett, Block 1 1, Lot 13 

App Dist Prop ID# R18596 
Total Assessed Value $54,150 

PETITIONERS : 

Michael and Izabella M. Szabuniewicz 

By: 

(1) Address of property: 4 14 Tauber 
Tauber, Block 2, Lot 6 

App Dist Prop ID# R44948 
Total Assessed Value $60,110 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly authorized to 
execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 



Exhibit A 

$be Orf, Hnc: 
Smeyors & Engineers 

21 67 Post Oak .Circle 
College Station, Texas 77845 

(409) 690-3338 

North Gate  ax Increment Finance District 
J.E. Scott League ' 

College station, Texas 
August 26,2005 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the J.E.. Scott League in College 
Station, Brazos County, Texas, being all of the W.C. Boyett Subdivision according .to plat of record 
in Volume 100, Page 440 of the Deed Records of.Br&os County, Texas, all of the Tauber .~ddition 
accordiilg to plat of record in Volume 133, 'Page 182 o f  the Deed ~ e c ~ d s  of Bsaaos county,' Texas, 
all of the Second Revision of Oak ~ e r r i e  Addition accoiding to plat of record in Vol.ke 152, Page 
237 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, all of The Ramparts addition according to plat of 
record in Volume 477, Page 145 of the Deed. Records of B rMs  Comty, Texas, all of &at tract 
 described in "Exhibit B", "Exhibit C" and ''Exhibit D" in deed to John Cecil Culpepper IU recorded 
in Volume 1190, Page 466 of the Official ~ecords  of'Brazos County, Texas, that tract..conveyed t6 
Franchise Realty Interstate Corp. by deed recorded in Volume 318, Page'531 .of the Deed.Recoi-ds of 
Brazos County, Texas, that tract conveyed to Doh D. Dabbs by deed reco@d.in Vdlume'W, Page 
395 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, that tract conveyed to MB ~evelo~rnent  Company 
by deed recorded in Volume 1302, Page 4 of .the Official ~ecords  of Brazos Coyty, Texas, that tract 
conyeyed to Community:Savings and Loan Association bjl deed recorded in Voluine 198, Pagk 54.1 'of 
the Deed Records of Brazds Couhty, Texas, that tract conveyed to College 'staton. state Brulk.by deed 
recorded in ~o lun i e  189, Page 403 of the Deed Records of Brazos County, Texas, 'and that tract 
conveyed to M.L. Cashion by de,d recorded ia Volume~202, Page 323 of the Deed Records ofRrazos 
County, Texas, and being more particularly described as follows: . 

Beginning at the most westerly corner of the said W.C. Boyett Subdivision in the northeast line of 
Wellborn ~ o a d  (FM 21$4), which point is on the northwest city lilllits line of,the City of Cql.lege 
Statiofi, Texas, 

, Thenie N 43" 13' 29" E - 1373.36 feet. along the northwest line of the W.C. Boyetl: ~ u b d i ~ s i o n  and 
the northwest city limits line of.the City of CoUege Station, at 248.70 feet pass a 3" iron bar in 
concrete found at the north end df Arst Street, to the most northerly comer of the said W.C. -Boyett 
Subdivision; 

. . 

Thence N 40" 47' 35" E - 546.89 feet continuing along the northwest city limits l& of the City of 
College Station to a '/z" imh rod found at the most northerly comer of the said Tauber Addition in the 
southwest line of Nagle Street; 

. . 



'sity 

Northy ate 
PI-oposed T IF Reinvestment Zone 



Exhibit  A 



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CJTY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended (the 
"Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the owners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most recent certified appraisal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the corporate 
limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in its present 
condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the wne is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded because 
the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the Code. 



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 31 1, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended 
(the "Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the 
"Zone") over an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as 
Exhibit "B" (the "College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are 
the owners of property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the 
property in the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most 
recent certified appraisal roll for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the 
corporate limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone 
in its present condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3, Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of 
the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded 
because the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, 
and other factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of 
the Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds 
in "Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3.  To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone 
created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the Code. 



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority 
granted by Chapter 3 11 for administration, management, and operation of 
the Zone and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing 
plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the ColIege 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to the City Council of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this day of w, 2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS : 

(1) Address of property: 301 College Main 
Boyett, Block 6,7 Lot 27 

App Dist Prop ID# R18568 
Total Assessed Value $61 1,790 

(2) Address of property: 303 College Main 
Boyett, Block 6,7 Lot 26 

App Dist Prop ID# R18567 
Total Assessed Value $193,180 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly 
authorized to execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COCTNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended (the 
"Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the owners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most recent certified appraisal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the corporate 
limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in its present 
condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded because 
the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas.'' 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the Code. 



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority granted 
by Chapter 3 1 1 for administration, management, and operation of the Zone 
and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing plan. 

5 .  To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to the City Council of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this ' a h a y  of a. 2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS: 

Culpepper Family LP. 

By: 

R38611 

R13580 

R13579 

R13591 

R1 3578 

R35680 

R35680 

R35678 

R35675 

R35679 

R35659 

R35673 

R35676 

R35661 

R35669 

R35670 

R35662 

R35668 

R35677 

R35674 

RAMPARTS, LOT 1 R, ACRES 3.049 
A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL), TRACT 100.4, 

ACRES 2.71, "PT OF UNIVERSITY SQUARE 
(AGGIELAND TO LAZER AREA)" 

A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL), TRACT 100.3, 
ACRES 2.1 1, "PT OF UNIVERSITY SQUARE 

(ROTHER'S 8, HANCOCK'S SECTION)" 
A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL). TRACT 900, "PT OF 

UNIVERSITY SQUARE (ATM BLDG)" 
A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL), TRACT 100.2, "PT 
OF UNIVERSITY SQUARE(ALIC1A'S BLDG)" 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 26 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 26 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 24 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 1 1, LOT 21 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 1 1, LOT 25 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 5 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 1 1, LOT 19 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 22 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 7 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 1 1, LOT 15 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 1 1, LOT 8 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 1 1, LOT 14 
OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 23 

OAK TERRACE (CS), BLOCK 11, LOT 20 

711 Church 

31 1-315 S. Colleg Ave 

303-309 S. College Ave 

817 University Dr. 

31 S' College 

701 Cherry 

701 Cherry 

705 Cherry 

704 Cherry 

703 Cherry 

708 lnlow Blvd 

700 Cherry 

706 Cherry 

507 Dogwood 

707 Cross -- 
705 Cross 

505 Dogwood 

709 Cross 

707 Cherry 

702 Cherry 

$1,328,140 

$1,234,480 

$975,410 

575,920 

1675,400 

$73,140 

$73,140 

$63,620 

$62,750 

$60,770 

$59,680 

$59,570 

$55,210 

$54,100 

$51,950 - 
$51,910 

$51,880 

$51,690 

$51,310 

$51,070 



PETITIONERS: 

John C. Culpepper I11 

By: &- 
John C. Culpepper 111 

A005001 ,I E SCOTT (ICL), TRACT 100.5, 
301 S. College Ave ACRES 4.7663, "PT OF UNIVERSITY 1 $2,106,950 - . . 

SQUARE (GROCERY STORE SECTION)" I 
A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL). TRACT 700. "PT 1 

107 S. College Ave OF UNIVERSITY SQUARE (SCHLOTZSKY 
BLDG)" 

A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL), TRACT 100, "PT 
725 University Dr. OF UNIVERSITY SQUARE (SMALL STRIP 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly authorized to 
execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 

3 

$208,130 

$1 91,620 

R13589 

BLDG)" 
A005001 J E SCOTT (ICL), TRACT 700.1, 

103 S. College Ave "PT OF UNIVERSITY SQUARE (IHOP 
BLDG)" 

$1 59,690 



' U c t  26 Ub U4:b4p lhomas KirKland 
.v 

A PETITION TO T I E  CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SlXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE: CITY COUNCIl, OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended (the 
"Code"), the undemigncd Petitioners hereby reguest the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the odners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area ~candhg to most recent certified appraisal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City C o u ~ i l  that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the corporate 
Limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in its present 
condition substautially impairs tbe city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded because 
the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfblly request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the Code. 



I nomas n i r n  L ana 

4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority granted 
by Chapter 3 11 for administration, management, and operation of the Zone 
and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing plan. 

5 .  To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area 

Respectfully submitted to the City of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this fray by the undersigned Petitioners. 

30 1 Church Avenue, LP 

(1) Address of property: 301 Church Ave. 
Boyett, Block 6,7 Lot 1 Replat 

App Dist Prop ID# R18555 
Total Assessed Value $15,929,160 

Vigilant Enterprises, LLC 

(2) Address of property: 3 1 5 Boyett 
Boyett, Block 12, Lot 12 thru 15 

App Dist Prop ID# R18616 
Total Assessed Value $220,760 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing pexsops wresent and w m t  that they are duly a u ~ o ~  m 
execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity n d  above. 



U c t  Eti  U3 U4:34p lhomas Klrkland 



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended 
(the "Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the 
"Zone") over an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as 
Exhibit "B" (the "College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are 
the owners of property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the 
property in the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most 
recent certified appraisal roll for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the 
corporate limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone 
in its present condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of 
the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded 
because the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, 
and other factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions.of Chapter 3 11 of 
the Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds 
in "Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone 
created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the Code. 



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority 
granted by Chapter 31 1 for administration, management, and operation of 
the Zone and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing 
plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to the City of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this day by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS : 

AGGIE INNS LTD 

By: 

(1) Address of property: 501 Nagle Street, Ste. #1 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg A, Unit 1 

App Dist Prop ID# R33923 

(2) Address of property: 501 Nagle Street, Ste. #2 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg A, Unit 2 

App Dist Prop ID# R33924 

(3) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg A, Unit 3 

App Dist Prop ID# R33925 

(4)Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg A, Unit 4 

App Dist Prop ID# R33926 



(5) Address of property: 

App Dist Prop ID# 

(6) Address of property: 

App Dist Prop ID# 

(7) Address of property: 

App Dist Prop ID# 

(8) Address of property: 

App Dist Prop ID# 

(9) Address of property: 

App Dist Prop ID# 

(1 0) Address of property: 

App Dist Prop ID# 

(1 1) Address of property: 

App Dist Prop ID# 

(1 2) Address of property: 

App Dist Prop ID# 

n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit 5 
R3 3927 

n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit 6 
R33928 

n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit 7 
R33929 

503 Nagle Street, Ste. #3 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit 8 
R33930 

n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 9 
R33931 

n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 10 
R33932 

n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 11 
R33933 

n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 12 
R33934 



(13) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg D, Unit 13 

App Dist Prop ID# R33935 

(14) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg D, Unit 14 

App Dist Prop ID# R33936 

(1 5) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg D, Unit 15 

App Dist Prop ID# R33937 

(1 6) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg D, Unit 16 

App Dist Prop ID# R33938 

(1 7) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg E, Unit 18. 

App Dist Prop ID# R33940 

(1 8) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg E, Unit 19 

App Dist Prop ID# R33941 

(1 9) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg E, Unit 20 

App Dist Prop ID# R33942 

(20) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg F, Unit 21 

App Dist Prop ID# R33943 



(2 1) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg F, Unit 22 

App Dist Prop ID# R33944 

(22) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg F, Unit 23 

App Dist Prop ID# R33945 

(23) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg F, Unit 24 

App Dist Prop ID# R33946 

(24) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg G, Unit 25 

App Dist Prop ID# R33947 

(25) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg G, Unit 26 

App Dist Prop ID# R33948 

(26) Address of property: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg G, Unit 27 

App Dist Prop ID# R33949 

(27) Address of property: 503 Cherry Street 
Tauber, Block C & D, Acres 
2.493 

App Dist Prop ID# R44957 



AGGIE INNS I1 LTD 

By: 
Aggie Inns I1 LTD 

uJirn McCullough 

(1) Address of property: 3 1 1 Stasney Street 
Tauber, Block 1, Lot 4 Thru 
9, Pt. of Casa Del Sol Apts. 
(Ph#2) 

App Dist Prop ID# R44945 

(2) Address of property: 401 Stasney Street 
Tauber, Block 2, Lot 1 Thru 
5 & 16 Thru 20, Pt. of Casa 
Del Sol Apts. (Ph#l) 

App Dist Prop ID## R44947 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly 
authorized to execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended (the 
"Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the owners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in thqcollege 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most recent certified appi.8isal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the corporate 
limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in 'lts present 
condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded because 
the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zon,e N.umber 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the Code. 



' NOV-03-2005 THU 11: 40 AM 78383 
I 

FAX NO, 7857763805 

A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL, OB TJ3E CITY OF COLLEGE.STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REW'ESTIMENT ZONE: NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGIE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTI %R 31 1, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

. . . ..: .. 
FUxuant to the pravisiom of Chapter 31 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended : :. .'.. 

(he  "Code"), the undenigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of . .,tT;:zc' Ay*,?~it::: 

College Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (thk. ..,. .. ;.!?:s'~., . .. ,. .. . 
"Zone") over an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit f l ~ i l  and shown as'' :".. 
Exhibit "B" (the "CalIege Station Reinvestmat Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners ark :?.:".'> 

' . . . .  ' 

the owners of property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the :. 1:. : 
property in the College Station Reinvestma~t Zone Number 16 Area according to most '. , i  !'. ': ''.. 

., 0 ,: , , 

recent certified appraisal roll for the County of Brazos, Texas. . . . . ,  .. . . , , 

, . 

Petitioners represent to the City Caaacil that: . - 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the 
corporate limits of the City. 'The area proposed to be included in the Zone . 
in its present condition substiintially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because ofa substantial 
number of substandard or delienorating structures. 

3, Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of 
the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded .' 

because the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, . . 
and other faotors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of 
the Code and nilme it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College . 

Station, Texas," 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds 
in "Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone hiwe all the powm of a reinvestment zone 
created pursuant to the provk~ions of Chapter 31 1 of the Code. 



, ' NOV-03-2005 THU 11 : 4 1 AM 78383 FAX NO, 7057763805 

4. To appoint a Board of Direck)b for the Zone to exercise the authority 
granted by Chapter 3 1 1 for ariministration, management, and operation of 

' 

the Zone and implementation. of the Zone project plan and Zone financing * 

plan. 

5.  To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development o f  the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Plumber 16 Area. 

.:... . , '. 

Respectfully submitted to the City Caun il of the City of College S,tation by d,s$~:.::.::~ .: 
through its City Secretary this a day .- ofd&005, by the u n d e ~ i ~  Petltio~&'~~.~~:!':~$~' . .:'.:. , I :. ..,'. 

.. . 

AGGIE TNNSl LTD . , . .  . 

(1) Addnxs of property: 501 Nagle Street, Ste. #1 . 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg A, Unit 1 

App Dist Fkq? IMC R33923 

(2) Address of propem. 501 Nagle Street, Ste. #2 
. Normandy Square Condos, 

Bldg A, Unit 2 
App Dist Prop ID# R.33924 

(3) Address of property: nla 
Normandy S q m  Condos, . 
Bldg A, Unit 3 

App Dist Prap ID# , R33925 

(4)Address of property: n .  
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg A, Unit 4 

App Dist Prcrp ID# R33926 



NOV-03-2005 THU 11 : 41 AM 78383 FAX NO, 7857763805 

(5) Address of property: nfa 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit 5 

App Pist Prop ID# R33927 

(6) Address of property: d a  
Normandy Square Condas, 
Bldg B, Unit 6 

: ....... , :, ?... 
App Pist Prop TD# R.33928 . , ... . _ .  !' .:.. ., . . 
. - 

. ,  . ..\. .:,:;.:+> . . . . . , ,. .&:>,!;:;;, ,;:$; ' , 
... .' . . ,  , : .  ' .'; .,. ., ,., r.y 

', .8.'.;;;..,. ,<:;.: . ."'.. : . . . . . . . . . . I .  . . . . . .  (7) Address of p&&. d a  ..I, . . 
. . . . . . . . .  

Normandy Square Condos, . . . .  . . . . . .  ::.. . . . .  
Bldg B, Unit 7 . . .  " . . I . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  . . .  ::.. _ . . .  . . . . . . .  App Dist Pm:p ID# ' R33929 ... ...... .i : .  ' I  

(8) Address of property: 503 Nagle Street, Ste. #3 - ".' '. ' ' ' ' : ' 

Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit 8 
R.33930 App Dist Ro:p 1D# . , 

(9) Address of property: . nfa 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 9 

App Pist Prop ID# I333931 

(10) Address of property: n/a ' " ' ' 
. . 

Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 10 

App Dist Prop ID# R33932 

(1 1) Address of property: n/a , 

Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg C, Unit 11 

App Dist Prop m# R33933 

(12) Address of property: n/a ' 
Nonnandy Square Condos, , 

Bldg C, Unit 12 
App Dist Pmp ID# R33934 



FAX NO, 7857783805 

(13) Addreas  ID^ ~ro~erty: n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 

. BldgD,Unit13 
App Dist Prgr ID# R33935 

(14) Address of property: da 
Nomaudy Square Condos, 
Bldg D, Unit 14 . . . . 

App Dist Prop ID# ' R.33936 : . .  . . _  . 
. . . . .  . . a . . . . . 

, , / .. .. ' . . , . . . , .!. 
' . ,,: ., .. - .  . . . I : \ . '  . ; .  

(1 5) Address  of property: n/a . . 

Normandy Square ~omdos, , 

Bldg D, Unit 15 
. . : _ ..... . : :. . .  . .  . : . 

R.33937 App Dist Pq) ID# 

. . 
(10 Address  ID^ property: n/a 

Normandy Sqilare Condos, . 
Bldg D, Unit 16 

App Dist Pro13 ID# R33938 

(1 7) Address of property: n/a 
Nmandy S q w e  Condos, 
Bldg E, Unit 18. 

App Dist Prop ZD# R33 940 

. . .. 
(1 8) Address of property: ' da' , .. . 

Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg E, Unit 19 

App Dist Pmp ID# R33941 

(1 9) Address of property: d a  
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg B, Unit 20 

App Dist Pro]? ID# R33942 

(20) Address of property: da 
Noxmmdy Square Condos, 
Sldg F, unit 21 

App Dist Prolp ID# R33943 



, NOV-03-2005 . . THU 11 :42 AM 78383 

. 

FAX NO, 7857763805 P, 07 

(2 1 )  Address of n/a 
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg F, Unit 22 

Am, Dist Prop ID# 1133944 

(22) Addmss of property: da 
Normandy Squnre Condos, 

. . Bldg F, Unit 23 ' 

, . .  

R.33945 . . .  App Dist Ptop ID# , ' 

. , , . . . . . . .  .. . . . . . . . . .  . . : .:: ..":.I.. . . ,, . 
. , . . -  . . . . 

: :. .' : ' , , ,. . :.:; t .  ',., . . . . . . . .  . . . a  . . :  , .. . . . . . . :  ; . . ,  
(23) Address of &$kty: nla . . . . , . . . 

. . . . . .  b a n d y  Square Condos, 
, i: 

. ... Bldg F, TJnit 24 . . . ... .. . . . . . . . .  . . .  
App Diht Prop ID# R33 946 

. , 

. , . . .  

(24) Address of property: d a  
Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg G, Unit 25 

App Dist Prop ID# R33947 

(25) Address of propetty: nla 
Normandy S q m  Condos, 
Bldg G, Unit 26 

App Dist Prop R33948 

(26) Address of property: d a  ' 

Normandy Square Condos, 
Bldg G, Unit 27 

App Dist Prqr ID# R33949 

(27) Address of property: 503 Cherry Sheet 
Tauber, Block C & D, Acres 
2,493 

* App Dist Prop ID# R44957 



. .  
NOV-03-2005 . - ,  THU 1 1 : 43 AM 78383 FAX NO, 7857763805 

AGOE INNS II LTD 

B y e ,  
Aggie Inns Il' LTD 
Jim NJcCullough . 

(1) Address of property: 3 1 1 Stasney Street 
Tauber, Block 1, Lot 4 Thru 
9, Pt.' of Casa Del Sol Apts, 
(Ph#2) I 

~ p p  ~ i s t  ~ o l p  ID# R44945 

4 .  

(2) Addrera of  property; 401' Btasney street ' 

~auber, BIook 2, ~ o t  i m 
5 & 16 Thru 20, Pt, of Casa , 

Del Sol 'Apt$. '(Ph#l) 
App Dist Rolp ID# R44947 

By executing this Petition, the fomgoing persons represmt,and w a m t  that they are duly . 

authorized to executc this Petition on behalf of the respective d t y  named above. 



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended 
(the "Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the 
"Zone") over an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as 
Exhibit "B" (the "College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are 
the owners of property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the 
property in the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most 
recent certified appraisal roll for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the 
corporate limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone 
in its present condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of 
the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded 
because the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, 
and other factors. 

. . 

The Petitioners would respectrlly request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of 
the Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds 
in "Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone 
created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the Code. 



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority 
granted by Chapter 3 1 1 for administration, management, and operation of 
the Zone and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing 
plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to the City Council of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this d0&9 day of 2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS: 

CROSS ST& I, LP 

4 

By: A 

cross streetl, LP 
Randy Klein 

Address of property: 405 Cross Street. 
Boyett, Block 4, Lot 1-3 & 
14-16 

App Dist Prop ID# R18526 

Radakor, PC 
Randy Klein 

Address of property: 405 College Main 
Boyett, Block 5, Lot 8 

App Dist Prop ID# R18547 

By executing thls Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly 
authorized to execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended 
(the "Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the 
"Zone") over an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as 
Exhibit "B" (the "College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are 
the owners of property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the 
property in the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most 
recent certified appraisal roll for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the 
corporate limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone 
in its present condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of 
the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded 
because the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, 
and other factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of 
the Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds 
in "Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B ", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone 
created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the Code. 



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority 
granted by Chapter 3 1 1 for administration, management, and operation of 
the Zone and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing 
plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respecthlly submitted tg the City Council of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this &flay o w ,  2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONER: 

(1) Address of property: 107- 1 13 Boyett St. 
Boyett, Block 8, Lot 9,10,1 I 

App Dist Prop ID# R18577 

(2) Address of property: Behind Campus Theater 
Boyett, Block 8, Lot 12,13,14 

App Dist Prop ID# R18578 

(3) Address of property: 401 First St. 
Boyett, Block 13, Lot 13, 14 
(East Half of Both) 

App Dist Prop ID# R18636 

(4) Address of property: 105 Louise Ave. 
Boyett, Block 13, Lot 13, 14 
(West Half of Both) 

App Dist Prop ID# R18637 

(5) Address of property: 404 First St. 
Boyett, Block 14, Lot 3 



App Dist Prop ID# R18640 
(6) Address of property: 406 First St. 

Boyett, Block 14, Lot 4 
App Dist Prop ID# R1864 1 

(7) Address of property: 408 First St. 
Boyett, Block 14, Lot 5 

App Dist Prop ID# R18642 

(8) Address of property: 410 First St. 
Boyett, Block 14, Lot 6 

App Dist Prop ID# R18643 

(9) Address of property: 400 Nagle St. Unit #I13 
North Ramparts Condos, 
Bldg. A, Unit 1 13 

App Dist Prop ID# R38627 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly 
authorized to execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended 
(the "Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the 
"Zone") over an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as 
Exhibit "B" (the "College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are 
the owners of property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the 
property in the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most 
recent certified appraisal roll for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the 
corporate limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone 
in its present condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of 
the College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded 

' 

because the area is predominantly underdeveloped, unproductive, open, 
and other factors. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the City Council as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of 
the Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds 
in "Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone 
created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the Code. 



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority 
granted by Chapter 3 1 1 for administration, management, and operation of 
the Zone and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing 
plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfidly submitted of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS : 

BILL J. AND FRANCES \. COOLEY 

(1) Address of property: 409 Tauber St. 
Boyett, Block 4, Lot 12 & 13 

App Dist Prop ID# R18535 

(2) Address of property: 304 Tauber St. 
Tauber, Block 1, Lot 3 

App Dist Prop ID# R44944 

(3)Address of property: 509 University Dr. 
Tauber, Block 5, Lot 2 

App Dist Prop ID# R44967 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly 
authorized to execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 



A PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
FOR THE DESIGNATION OF REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER SIXTEEN, 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 
UNDER CHAPTER 311, TAX CODE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1, of the Texas Tax Code as amended (the 
"Code"), the undersigned Petitioners hereby request the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas (the "City"), to establish within the City a reinvestment zone (the "Zone") over 
an area of land described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" and shown as Exhibit "B" (the 
"College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area"). Petitioners are the owners of 
property constituting at least 50 percent of the appraised value of the property in the College 
Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area according to most recent certified appraisal roll 
for the County of Brazos, Texas. 

Petitioners represent to the City Council that: 

1. The area proposed to be included in the Zone is entirely within the corporate 
limits of the City. The area proposed to be included in the Zone in its present 
condition substantially impairs the city's growth. 

2. The Area substantially impairs the city's growth because of a substantial 
number of substandard or deteriorating structures. 

3. Unless the zone is created as requested by Petitioners, the development of the 
College Station Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area will be impeded because 
the area is predominantly upderdeveloped, unproductive, open, and other 
factors. . .. 

The Petitioners would respectfully request the ~ i t y ' c o u n ~ i l  as follows: 

1. To create the proposed Zone pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 1 1 of the 
Code and name it the "Reinvestment Zone Number 16, City of College 
Station, Texas." 

2. To provide that the Zone contain the area described by metes and bounds in 
"Exhibit A" and as shown hereto as "Exhibit B", both of which are 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

3. To provide that the Zone have all the powers of a reinvestment zone created 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 11 of the Code. 



4. To appoint a Board of Directors for the Zone to exercise the authority granted 
by Chapter 3 11 for administration, management, and operation of the Zone 
and implementation of the Zone project plan and Zone financing plan. 

5. To provide such other action and assistance as the City Council may deem 
necessary and appropriate to assist in the development of the College Station 
Reinvestment Zone Number 16 Area. 

Respectfully submitted to the City Co cil of the City of College Station by and 
through its City Secretary this @day of&, 2005, by the undersigned Petitioners. 

PETITIONERS : 

301 Church Avenue, LP 

(1) Address of property: 301 Church Ave. 
Boyett, Block 6,7 Lot 1 Replat 

App Dist Prop ID# R18555 
Total Assessed Value $15,929,160 

PETITIONERS: 

Vigilant Enterprises, LLC d 

(2) Address of property: 3 15 Boyett 
Boyett, Block 12, Lot 12 thru 15 

App Dist Prop ID# R18616 
Total Assessed Value $220,760 

By executing this Petition, the foregoing persons represent and warrant that they are duly authorized to 
execute this Petition on behalf of the respective entity named above. 





 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tax Increment 
Reinvestment Zone #16 

 
Northgate District 

Approved Project and Finance Plan  

Approved by Board of Directors 
August 28, 2006 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 2 

Disclaimer 
 
Neither this report nor its conclusion may be referred to or included in 
any product or part of any offering made in connection with private 
syndication of equity, sales of bonds, sales of securities or sale of 
participation interests to the public without express written consent of 
Stein Planning and Management.   
 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 3 

Table of Contents 
 
 
Disclaimer ................................................................................................................... 2 
List of Exhibits ........................................................................................................... 4 
List of Exhibits ........................................................................................................... 4 
List of Finance Plan Schedules ............................................................................. 5 
List of Finance Plan Schedules ............................................................................. 5 
Section 1 – Project Objectives ............................................................................. 6 
Section 2 – What is Tax Increment Financing? .............................................. 7 
Section 3 – Reinvestment Zone Description.................................................... 9 
Section 4 – Development with Tax Increment Financing.......................... 10 
Section 5 – Paying for Public Improvements in the Zone ......................... 12 
Section 6 – Revenue Benefits for Taxing Units............................................. 15 
Exhibits Section....................................................................................................... 16 
Finance Schedules.................................................................................................. 21 
 
 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 4 

List of Exhibits 
 
Exhibit A   Real Property Tax Flow with Tax Increment Financing....... 7 
Exhibit B   Map of Northgate TIF Zone...........................................17 
Exhibit C   Existing Uses in Northgate TIF ......................................18 
Exhibit D   Proposed Redevelopment Project Sites ..........................19 
Exhibit E   Aerial Map Northgate TIF Zone......................................20 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 5 

List of Finance Plan Schedules 
  
Schedule 1 2006 Captured Values  22 
Schedule 2 Estimated Annual Expenditures  23 
Schedule 3  Anticipated Development  24 
Schedule 4 – City  Estimated Annual Appraisals  25 
Schedule 4 – County  Estimated Annual Appraisals  26 
Schedule 4 – CSISD  Estimated Annual Appraisals  27 
Schedule 5  TIF Funding Sources and Uses  28 
Schedule 6 Estimated City Hotel Tax   31 
Schedule 7  Estimated Business Personal Property Tax  32 
Schedule 8  Estimated Sales Tax  33 
Schedule 9 – City  Summary of Estimated Tax from TIF 34 
Schedule 9 – County  Summary of Estimated Tax from TIF 35 
Schedule 9 - CSISD Summary of Estimated Tax from TIF 36 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 6 

Section 1 – Project Objectives  
A Convention Center and Redevelopment of Northgate 
 
The Northgate tax increment financing reinvestment zone is a tool to 
facilitate development of a convention center in the Northgate area of 
College Station.  The convention center is a stimulus to development 
of hotels, retail stores and services, offices, condominiums and 
apartments in its vicinity.  These new developments will add value and 
tax revenue to College Station, Brazos County and the College Station 
ISD.  Northgate will become a more desirable neighborhood.   
 
To accomplish these objectives, the City Council of College Station has 
established the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #16, subject to the 
Tax Increment Financing Act, Chapter 311 of the Texas Property Tax 
Code.  The zone was formed pursuant to a voluntary petition by 
property owners in accordance with Tax Code Section 311.005(a)(5). 
In this plan document, the zone is referred to as the “Northgate TIF 
zone” or simply the “TIF zone.”   
 
Project Description 
 
The public improvements will include a convention center with the 
following: 
 
n Approximately 43,000 s.f. of gross leasable area including a 

12,750 s.f. grand ballroom, a 20,000 s.f. exhibit hall, a 5,500 
s.f. junior ballroom, and 5,000 s.f. of divisible meeting space. 

 
n Back of the house space including kitchen, employee areas, 

administrative offices, laundry room, housekeeping, mechanical 
room, lobby, outdoor reception area, employee area, restrooms, 
parking garage, site hardscape, site landscape, signage, and 
utilities. 

 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 7 

Section 2 – What is Tax Increment Financing? 
 
College Station and Brazos County are not strangers to tax increment 
financing. Tax increment financing (“TIF”) is a tool local governments 
of Texas have used since 1986 to finance public improvements within 
defined areas that have unique challenges and opportunities for 
economic development.  Municipal authority to designate a TIF zone 
comes from Chapter 311 of the Texas Property Tax Code.   
 
A municipality makes public improvements in an area eligible for TIF 
by designating a reinvestment zone.  Tax dollars generated by 
increased real property appraisals, new development and/or sales tax 
within the zone flow to a tax increment fund (“TIF fund”) for all or part 
of a term specified by the municipal governing body.  Cash flow to the 
TIF fund is then disbursed according to a TIF project and financing 
plan approved by a TIF Board and the City Council, as prescribed by 
statute and the ordinance designating the TIF zone.  With few 
exceptions, the TIF fund may be used only for public improvements 
within the TIF zone.   
 
Exhibit A shows how tax from designated sources in a TIF zone flows 
to a taxing jurisdiction and to a TIF fund.  Exhibit A assumes that tax 
generation in the zone increases soon after the TIF zone has been 
designated.     
 
 

Exhibit A   Real Property Tax Flow with Tax Increment Financing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Taxes to tax increment fund 

Taxes retained by taxing jurisdictions 

Base year 
Fund dissolves 

Tax $ 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 8 

Inclusion of property in a TIF zone does not change any tax rate for 
the property.  Tax rates in the zone are the same as tax rates outside 
the zone, given a common set of taxing jurisdictions.     
 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 9 

Section 3 – Reinvestment Zone Description 
 
Exhibit B is a map of the Northgate TIF zone.  The zone is 
immediately north of Texas A & M University’s main campus in College 
Station.  Boundaries are University Drive, Wellborn Road, the Bryan 
city limit and South College Avenue.  Zone boundaries that follow 
public streets or highways shall be construed to include all such public 
rights-of-way.   
 
There are 83.12 taxable acres in the proposed zone, excluding right-
of-way.  Including fully-exempt accounts, but not rights-of way, the 
zone contains 115.55 acres.  The total acreage in the Zone 141.94 
acres. 
 
Schedule 1 (Finance Plan Schedules) identifies the Captured Values for 
the TIF as determined by the Brazos County Appraisal District.  The 
2006 appraised value of taxable accounts is $71,519,668.  After 
allowances for various exemptions or abatements, values of the real 
property accounts in the zone liable for taxation in 2006 are, according 
to the Brazos Appraisal District: 
 
 City of College Station   $71,519,668 
 Brazos County  $71,489,438 
 College Station ISD  $71,369,668 
 
These values differ slightly because different taxing units may have 
different exemption policies and different tax abatements.  These 
amounts liable for taxation are the bases for 2006 “base values” of 
real property in the zone.   
 
Exhibit C maps existing uses and conditions in the zone.  The zone 
contains a mix of apartment, condominium, institutional, retail and 
residential uses and vacant land.    Exhibit E provides an aerial map 
of the zone. 
 
Much of the area is substantially deteriorated.  Terrain in this area is 
generally flat.  One regulatory floodplain exists in the area.   
Conditions in the zone substantially impair the sound growth of the 
city and retard the provision of housing and other development.  The 
proposed zone thus meets this statutory test for designation of a 
reinvestment zone.   



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 10 

Section 4 – Development with Tax Increment 
Financing 
 
Exhibit D is a map locating key development sites anticipated in the zone within 
immediate years, given the stimulus of a tax increment financing program.  
Identity of these sites is not intended to preclude or discourage redevelopment at 
additional sites in the zone.   
 
The public improvement to be accomplished with tax increment financing is the 
convention center.  This will be a facility with approximately 43,000 gross 
leasable square feet of floor area, conveniently accessible to a full-service hotel.  
The convention center is not expected to be a taxable property, but the adjacent 
hotel and other anticipated developments will be fully taxable. 
 
Schedule 2 is a cost estimate for the convention center.  It allocates 
expenditures to years in which dollars are likely to be spent.  The TIF fund is 
created to pay these project costs for convention center construction.  Total 
project costs before finance charges are expected to be approximately 
$25,000,000.   
 
The key development sites are quantified as to site size, estimated floor area, 
estimated appraised value and estimated completion year by Schedule 3.  
Schedule 3 includes redevelopment in the Northgate zone.  Over a twenty-year 
period, Schedule 3 anticipates 1,513,000 gross square feet of new floor area 
construction, an average of 75,650 square feet annually.  If constructed and 
absorbed today, the new development would have an estimated appraisal value 
for tax purposes of $141 million, including land.  Net new appraisal value would 
be roughly $130 million.  Actual construction costs and sale prices will probably 
exceed appraisals.   
 
The Schedule 4 series (4-City, 4-County and 4-ISD) adds a time dimension to 
the appraisal assumptions of Schedule 3.  These schedules estimate annual 
taxable real property values for the Northgate TIF zone through 2035.  Each 
schedule also estimates annual “captured appraised values” (taxable appraised 
value growth since base year 2006) in the Northgate zone.  Annual taxable 
appraisals and captured appraised values will be slightly different for each taxing 
unit because each taxing unit may have different policies for exemptions and tax 
abatements.   
 
Each Schedule 4 also estimates annual real property tax increments from the 
Northgate zone and annual reinvestments in the TIF fund.  Note that the City of 
College Station reinvests tax increments generated by the Northgate zone for 
twenty-one years (fiscal year 2008 through fiscal year 2028).  Brazos County is 
asked to reinvest the O&M (Operations and Maintenance) portion of its tax 
increments generated by the Northgate zone for twenty years (fiscal year 2009 
through fiscal year 2028).  The College Station ISD is not asked to participate in 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 11 

the TIF fund because the Texas formula for funding education treats 
reinvestments in TIF funds as local funds available for education, thereby 
reducing State aid for education, even though the investments in the TIF fund 
would not remain available to the ISD.     
 
The improvements recommended in this plan are compatible with the uses 
reflected in the Comprehensive Plan for the City of College Station.  The 
Comprehensive Plan was originally adopted in 1997.  A subsequent area study, 
the “Northgate Redevelopment Implementation Plan,” called for an "east-end 
anchor" for Northgate near the site identified for the full-service hotel and 
convention center.  The plan also called for dense mixed-use development.  The 
plan was reviewed and approved by the College Station City Council in 2003. 
 
No zoning changes are necessary for implementation of Schedule 3 
development.  Existing zoning calls for dense mixed-use development.  The 
planning and zoning concept for Northgate includes office, commercial, retail, 
restaurant and multi-family uses, both condominium and rental.   
 
No residents will be displaced by the convention center or related hotels in 
Northgate.  If and when any residents are required to relocate due to private 
development in Northgate, the landowner or developer will be responsible for due 
respect of the rights of tenants.   
  
  
 
 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 12 

Section 5 – Paying for Public Improvements in the 
Zone 
 
College Station proposes four streams of revenue to ultimately pay for 
the convention center at Northgate: 
 

(1) Real property tax increments from the City; 
(2) Real property tax increments from the County; 
(3) Cash contributions from the City; 
(4) Hotel occupancy tax from hotels in the Northgate zone and 

parts of the hotel occupancy tax from outside the zone. 
 
Each of these cash sources is represented by a separate line on 
Schedule 5, “TIF Fund Sources and Uses of Cash (Debt Service 
Schedule).”   
 
No City or County property taxes on the value of the Northgate zone 
for 2006 are ever directed to the TIF fund.  Real property taxes related 
to added value pay for the convention center.   
 
The Schedule 5 City tax increments are imported from Schedule 4-
City, which assumes City participation with 100% of real property tax 
increments from Northgate for twenty-one specified years.  Brazos 
County tax increments are imported from Schedule 4-County.  
County participation is assumed with 100% of only the O&M 
(operations and maintenance) part of the County tax rate for a term of 
twenty specified years.  Tax rates for the City and County are subject 
to change and the contributions pledged by the City and County to the 
Fund shall change as the tax rates change; however, the City shall 
always commit 100% of its tax rate and the County shall always 
commit 100% of its O&M tax rate.   
 
Cash contributions from the City are identified in Schedule 5.  These 
contributions are separate from the real property tax increments.  The 
principal amount of these contributions may be recovered by the City 
after all other financial obligations of the TIF fund have been satisfied.  
Recovery shall be subordinate to all other debt service payments.   
 
Hotel occupancy tax for convention center construction is primarily the 
incremental hotel tax generated by new hotels in the Northgate TIF 
zone.  These amounts are estimated in Schedule 6.  Hotel occupancy 
tax for convention center construction shall also include hotel 
occupancy tax from outside the zone that is due to increased room 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 13 

sales stimulated by the convention center.  These figures shall be the 
fixed annual dollar amounts from Schedule 6, estimated for College 
Station by a previous and independent study.  A third stream of hotel 
occupancy tax for convention center construction shall be the 
payments from Schedule 5 in FY 2008-2009 and FY 2009-2010 from 
the balance of hotel occupancy tax revenue.   
 
If cash contributions from the City or hotel occupancy tax revenue 
may not be blended with cash in the TIF fund for any reason, cash 
from these sources may be held in separate funds until applied to 
payments for the convention center.  For simplicity, this plan treats all 
cash to pay for the convention center as flowing to and from the 
Northgate TIF fund.   
 
The convention center may experience annual operating cost deficits.  
In 1997, Coopers and Lybrand conducted a feasibility analysis for the 
marketability of a convention center in this area. The conclusion 
indicated a market for a multi-purpose meeting facility.  This original 
analysis estimated that the facility would carry an operating deficit of 
approximately $57,000 in year one decreasing to $37,000 by year 
five. In March 2000, Price Waterhouse Coopers updated the feasibility 
analysis.  The PWC review and findings indicated, "We have no reason 
to believe that the estimates of financial operations would vary 
materially from the estimates presented in the 1997 report.”  The City 
retained C. H. Johnson and Associates to perform an additional 
feasibility and operational evaluation.  Johnson concluded that the 
initial year’s operating deficit would be $413,000, year 2 deficit would 
be $352,000, and subsequent annual deficits would level out at around 
$220,000.  Any potential annual operating deficits of the convention 
center should be covered by existing revenue from hotel occupancy 
tax in College Station, currently expected to be $1,000,000 to 
$1,300,000 annually.  Total hotel occupancy tax revenue is likely to be 
sufficient to cover potential operating deficits and the Schedule 5 
anticipated payments for convention center construction in FY 2008-
2009 and FY 2009-2010.   
 
Cash flow to the TIF fund depends on early construction of the 
convention center itself to stimulate development and tax generation. 
Consequently, the City will issue certificates of obligation, borrowing 
money at a municipal interest rate in exchange for a debt to be repaid 
by the TIF fund, including all identified sources from Schedule 5.   
 
In the event cash flow to the TIF fund is insufficient to make timely 
debt service payments, hotel occupancy tax and the City general fund 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 14 

will serve as back-up cash sources for certificate debt service, in that 
order.  Unscheduled payments by the City general fund and hotel 
occupancy tax fund shall be reimbursed by the TIF fund as early as 
possible and shall be senior to all other obligations of the TIF fund 
except scheduled payments for debt service on certificates of 
obligation.    
 
Schedule 5 shows proceeds of $25,000,000 from the issue of 
municipal certificates in FY 2006-2007.  Proceeds will be invested until 
drawn for hard and soft costs of convention center site acquisition and 
construction or to pay debt service on related certificates of obligation.   
 
This plan anticipates that the reinvestment zone will be designated by 
the City Council in calendar year 2006, thus making appraised values 
as of January 1, 2006 the base values for the zone.  (Base values may 
differ slightly for each taxing unit.)  The term of the TIF zone and TIF 
fund will end with collection of the levies of September, 2036 (due in 
FY 2036-2037).   That term may be ended at an earlier date, at the 
discretion of the City Council, if all TIF fund obligations have been 
satisfied by such earlier date.  Note that although the term of the zone 
is thirty years, commitments of City tax increments are for only 
twenty-one specified years; County tax increments for twenty 
specified years.   
 
The tax increment fund may have a residual balance of cash after all 
its financial obligations have been met.  A residual cash balance is 
indicated in FY 2027-2028 in Schedule 5.  Any residual balance after 
all TIF fund financial obligations have been fully satisfied will be 
refunded to participating taxing jurisdictions on a pro rata basis.   
 
 
 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 15 

Section 6 – Revenue Benefits for Taxing Units 
 
All real property tax revenue on the 2006 base value of the Northgate 
zone, all business personal property tax (including growth increments) 
and all local sales tax (including growth increments) will be earned and 
retained for normal uses by the City and Brazos County.  Real property 
taxes on value added since 2006 will flow to general funds after FY 
2026-2027.  Schedule 7 estimates annual business personal property 
taxes from Northgate.  Schedule 8 estimates City and County sales 
taxes from Northgate.  Although 2005 legislation permits sales tax 
increments to flow to a TIF zone, this plan does not propose any sales 
tax for the TIF zone.  Municipal hotel tax generated by hotels in the 
zone and other hotel occupancy tax will become available for purposes 
other than convention center construction after FY 2026-2027.   
 
The final schedules in this plan (Schedules 9-City, 9-County and 9-
ISD)  summarize and compare estimated annual taxes from the 
Northgate TIF zone that respective taxing units will reinvest in the TIF 
fund and retain for other uses over the analysis period of thirty years.  
Tax revenues from Northgate and taxes retained from Northgate for 
general purposes will never drop below 2006 levels unless appraised 
values and sales drop below 2006 levels. The estimated taxes retained 
for general uses exceed the reinvestments of estimated new taxes in 
the convention center in every year.   
 
Redevelopment of Northgate will bring qualitative benefits of a new, 
revitalized mixed-use neighborhood according to the City’s 
comprehensive plan.  It will also bring jobs during and after the 
construction phases.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 16 

Exhibits Section 
 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 17 

 

Exhibit B   Map of Northgate TIF Zone 

 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 18 

Exhibit C   Existing Uses in Northgate TIF 

 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 19 

Exhibit D   Proposed Redevelopment Project Sites 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 20 

Exhibit E   Aerial Map Northgate TIF Zone 

 
 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 21 

Finance Schedules  
 



 

Approved Project and Finance Plan Northgate TIF August 28, 2006 Page 22 

Schedule 1 2006 Captured Values 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
COLLEGE STATION TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ZONE 16 

2006 ANALYSIS - CAPTURED VALUE  
(426 PROPERTIES) 

 
 

 Net Taxable 2006 
Captured Values 

Net Taxable 2006 
Captured Values 

Net Taxable 2006 
Captured Values 

Tax Year  Brazos County CSISD COCS 
2006 $71,489,438 $71,369,668 $71,519,668 
Less 2006 Base  $71,489,438 Non Participating $71,519,668 
 
2006 Captured Values 

 
$                0 

 
N/A 

 
$                0 

 

Chief Appraiser 

 

Brazos County Appraisal District 
1673 Briarcrest Dr., Suite A-101 

Bryan, Texas 77802 
            Telephone: (979) 774-4100 
            Facsimile:  (979) 774-4196 



 

 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

 Engineering Design Contract for Parallel Collection Line  
 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: John Woody, Director of Water Services                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution to 
award engineering design contract 07-086 with Malcolm-Pirnie in the amount of $224,335 
to provide the design package and construction management services for the Parallel 
Collection Line. 
 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve this resolution.   
 
 
Summary:  As the City of College Station grows, additional water wells are required to 
meet the increasing water consumption demand.  The existing water production 
infrastructure is adequate to meet present demand, but would not be sufficient during a dry 
summer next year, and will not be sufficient to meet average demands in several years.  
This engineering design contract will provide the bid documents and construction 
management services for a parallel water collection line that we expect will add enough 
collection line capacity to meet growing water demand for approximately the next 25 years. 
 
College Station water wells are located west of Lake Bryan, and the well field collection lines 
carry the water to the pump station on Sandy Point Road, where it is transmitted to the 
City.  Presently, we have a bottle-neck in the collection system where two branches join and 
flow to the pump station.  A new collection line, parallel to the existing collection line, is 
required along Sandy Point Road, starting at the intersection of Rye School Road, going all 
the way to the pump station.   This will significantly reduce pressure in the collection pipe 
line, doubling the water capacity in that section, and will also make water production more 
efficient.  This project is essential to meet the future water demands of our City. 
 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are budgeted and available in the Water Capital 
Improvements Fund.     
 
 
Attachments: 

Resolution 
  
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.      
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, SELECTING A PROFESSIONAL CONTRACTOR, APPROVING A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE 
OF FUNDS FOR THE DESIGN, BIDDING, AND CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR 
THE PARALLEL WELLFIELD COLLECTION LINE PROJECT. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, solicited proposals for the design, bidding, and 
construction services for the Parallel Wellfield Collection Line; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of Malcolm Pirnie, Inc., is being recommended as the most highly 
qualified provider of the design, bidding, and construction services for the Parallel Wellfield  
Collection Line; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that Malcolm Pirnie, Inc., is the most highly 

qualified provider of the services for design, bidding, and construction services for 
the Parallel Wellfield Collection Line Project on the basis of demonstrated 
competence and qualifications. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with Malcolm Pirnie, Inc., for an 

amount not to exceed $224,335.00 for the design, bidding, and construction services 
related to the Parallel Wellfield Collection Line Project. 

 
PART 3: That the funding for this Contract shall be as budgeted from the Water Capital 

Improvements Fund in the amount of $224,335.00. 
 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this    day of      , A.D. 2006. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

       
City Attorney 



 

 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

 Engineering Design Contract for Well 7  
 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: John Woody, Director of Water Services                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution to 
award engineering design contract 07-068 with Malcolm-Pirnie in the amount of $168,000 
to provide the design package and construction management services for Well 7. 
 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve this resolution.   
 
 
Summary:  As the City of College Station grows, additional water wells are required to 
meet the increasing water consumption demand.  The existing water production 
infrastructure is adequate to meet present demand, but would not be sufficient during a dry 
summer next year, and will not be sufficient to meet average demands in several years.  
This engineering design contract will provide the bid documents and construction 
management services for Simsboro Well number 7, which is a deep well that we expect will 
add enough capacity to meet growing water demand for approximately the next 5 years. 
 
This proposed well would be placed on property already owned by the City, located on Old 
San Antonio Road.  Plans call for this well to be drilled into the Simsboro Sand, which is the 
highest quality and most prolific aquifer in this area.  Under a newly established precedent, 
the Brazos Valley Groundwater District has allowed public water suppliers to be exempt 
from the regulation that requires control of 650 acres for a 3,000 gallon per minute well, 
when the property was owned and a well planned to be drilled before the enactment of the 
regulations.  College Station currently has a permit application pending with the 
Groundwater District for this exemption, which will allow College Station to drill Simsboro 
Well 7 on this property, which was purchased over ten years ago, and be exempt from the 
rule requiring ownership of 650 acres around the well site.  If approved, we plan for Well 7 
to be constructed and in service by early summer 2007.   
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are budgeted and available in the Water Capital 
Improvements Fund.    CIP funds designated for Shallow Water Wells in the FY 06-07 
budget will be re-allocated to this Deep Well, since it is a better value for the Citizens.  
 
 
Attachments: 

Resolution 
  
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.      
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, SELECTING A PROFESSIONAL CONTRACTOR, APPROVING A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE 
OF FUNDS FOR THE DESIGN, BIDDING, AND CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR 
THE WATER WELL SIMSBORO 7  PROJECT. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, solicited proposals for the design, bidding, and 
construction services for the Water Well Simsboro 7; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of Malcolm Pirnie Inc. is being recommended as the most highly 
qualified provider of the design, bidding, and construction services for Water Well Simsboro 7; 
now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that Malcolm Pirnie Inc is the most highly 

qualified provider of the services for design, bidding, and construction services for 
the Water Well Simsboro 7 Project on the basis of demonstrated competence and 
qualifications. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with Malcolm Pirnie Inc for an 

amount not to exceed $168,000.00 for the design, bidding, and construction services 
related to the Water Well Simsboro 7 Project. 

 
PART 3: That the funding for this Contract shall be as budgeted from the Water Capital 

Improvements Fund in the amount of $168,000.00. 
 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this    day of      , A.D. 2006. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

      
City Attorney 



 

 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

 Engineering Design Contract for Well 7 Collection Line  
 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: John Woody, Director of Water Services                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution to 
award engineering design contract 07-085 with Malcolm-Pirnie in the amount of $177,598 
to provide the design package and construction management services for the Well 7 
Collection Line. 
 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends Council approve this resolution.   
 
 
Summary:  As the City of College Station grows, additional water wells are required to 
meet the increasing water consumption demand.  The existing water production 
infrastructure is adequate to meet present demand, but would not be sufficient during a dry 
summer next year, and will not be sufficient to meet average demands in several years.  
This engineering design contract will provide the bid documents and construction 
management services for the water collection line to service the proposed Simsboro Well 
number 7, which is a deep well that we expect will add enough capacity to meet growing 
water demand for approximately the next 5 years. 
 
Staff has requested City Council approve a resolution for the design contact for Well 7.  If 
approved, this design contract will also be required, to provide the design package and 
construction management services for the collection line that will get the water from the 
new well and into the existing well field collection system.  This collection system moves the 
water from the wells to the pump station on Sandy Point Road, where it then flows through 
a transmission line to the pump station on Dowling Road. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are budgeted and available in the Water Capital 
Improvements Fund.    Funds designated for Shallow Water Wells in the FY 06-07 budget 
will be re-allocated to this Deep Well number 7, since it is a better value for the Citizens.  
 
 
Attachments: 

Resolution 
  
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.      
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, SELECTING A PROFESSIONAL CONTRACTOR, APPROVING A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE 
OF FUNDS FOR THE DESIGN, BIDDING, AND CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR 
THE  WATER WELL SIMSBORO 7 COLLECTION LINE  PROJECT. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, solicited proposals for the design, bidding, and 
construction services for the Water Well Simsboro 7 Collection Line; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of Malcolm Pirnie Inc. is being recommended as the most highly 
qualified provider of the design, bidding, and construction services for the Water Well Simsboro 
7 Collection Line; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that Malcolm Pirnie Inc. is the most highly 

qualified provider of the services for design, bidding, and construction services for 
the Water Well Simsboro 7 Collection Line Project on the basis of demonstrated 
competence and qualifications. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with Malcolm Pirnie Inc. for an 

amount not to exceed $177,598.00 for the design, bidding, and construction services 
related to the Water Well Simsboro 7 Collection Line Project. 

 
PART 3: That the funding for this Contract shall be as budgeted from the Water Capital 

Improvements Fund in the amount of $177,598.00. 
 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this    day of      , A.D. 2006. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

      
City Attorney 



December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda 

Renewal of Annual Price Agreement for Gasoline and Diesel Fuel  
 
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer                         
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approving a renewal of an 
annual agreement for gasoline and diesel fuel, contract #05-056, with Brenco Marketing Corp. 
totaling $1,267,340.00. 

 
Recommendation(s): Recommend renewal of the original contract to the lowest, responsible 
bidder meeting specifications, (Brenco Marketing Corp.) with annual estimated expenditures 
totaling $1,267,340.00.  The original contract amount was for $569,830.00.  The renewal amount 
we are now requesting for our 2007 purchase order is $1,267,340.00 (same as last year).  The 
additional $697,510.00 expenditures needed are based on last years usage and the current 
estimates of gallons used per year and the current cost per gallon.  The current contract has firm 
fixed prices for profit and delivery, allowing us to pay cost (which fluctuates) plus markup.  
These additional expenditures are not a result of any change in the contract or increase in 
quantities.   
   
Summary: In December of 2004, the City of Bryan solicited bids for gasoline and diesel fuel 
on behalf of several local agencies including City of College Station, City of Hearne, Brazos 
County, Bryan ISD, College Station ISD and Texas A&M University.  The renewal agreement is 
for a term of one year, December 20, 2006 through December 19, 2007 renewable annually upon 
mutual consent. This is renewal number two (the last renewal).  Fuel is placed in inventory and 
charged to multiple departments/divisions as used.  Fuel is available at three locations: Public 
Works Fleet Operations, BVSWMA and Public Utilities Warehouse. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are available and budgeted in each fund.  Expenses 
are charged to the appropriate fund/department as fuel is used.   
 
Attachments:  
Renewal Letter 



******************************************************************************

RENEWAL ACCEPTANCE

By signing herewith, I acknowledge and agree to renew contract #05-056, for annual diesel and
gasoline purchases for the total amount of $1,267,340.00 in accordance with all terms and
conditions previously agreed to and accepted.

I understand this renewal term will be for a one year period beginning December 20, 2006
through December 19, 2007.

BRENCO MARKETING CORP.

~
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

//-1 ?f-ob
DATE

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION

Ron Silvia, Mayor DATE

ATTEST:

Connie Hooks, City Secretary DATE

APPROVED:

Glenn D. Brown, City Manager DATE

G",A /J ~~91A
City Attorney DATE

Chief Financial Officer DATE



STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF J3r2.A~S

CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

This instrument was acknowledged on the / ~ dayof/l.JOtIfa1,1~77- , 2006,

byTr>v~t.:j) fJ I .~C j.J inhis/l1efcapacityas P(Le:>1Vt.~, of

BQ.frJCO ~(!l:e+7r'\,,\ 6:>r{2-. a TEXAS Corporation, on behalf of said corporation.
/,"'I

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF BRAZOS

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

This instrument was acknowledged on the day of , 2006,

by Ron Silvia, in his capacity as Mayor of the City of College Station, a Texas

home-rule municipality, on behalf of said municipality.

Notary Public in and for the
State of Texas

******************************************************************************



December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda 

Various Automotive and Truck Replacement Parts 

To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 

From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 

Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on an annual purchase 
agreement for various Automotive and Truck Parts, Bid #07-23. Recommend award to 
the lowest, responsible bidder meeting specifications with estimated annual expenditures 
to NAPA Auto Parts for $53,500, and to Truckmotive, Inc. for $48,500, total award 
request $102,000.00.  

Recommendation(s): Recommend award to the lowest, responsible bidder meeting 
specifications for select sampling of common parts: NAPA Auto Parts-Category (A) 
Automotive Parts for $12,787.09, and Truckmotive, Inc. -Category (B) Truck Parts for 
$12,587.96. Request purchase approval for total estimated annual expenditures to NAPA 
Auto Parts for $53,500, and to Truckmotive, Inc. for $48,500, total $102,000.00.  

Summary: Bids are solicited for the purchase of various automotive and truck parts and 
accessories necessary to maintain its vehicle and equipment fleet. The City owns and 
maintains approximately 450 pieces of rolling vehicles and equipment.  The purchase of 
various automotive and truck parts for City Departments will be made from each of these 
annual blanket orders on an as needed basis throughout the year. The select sampling of 
common parts for bid evaluation purposes were used to determine lowest bidder. Upon 
mutual consent of all parties, agreement may be renewed for up to two (2) successive one 
(1) year periods. 

Budget & Financial Summary: Purchases of parts are made through an inventory 
account as budgeted and available in the Fleet Maintenance Funds. Charges are made to 
the various departments for vehicle maintenance based on the average annual cost for 
each piece of equipment.  Nine (9) sealed competitive bids were solicited and three (3) 
bids were received on November 10, 2006.  

Attachments: 1) Bid #7-23 Tabulation 

 



City of College Station
Bid Tabulation

ANNUAL BID FOR AUTO & TRUCK PARTS
BID:  #07-23

Truckmotive O'Reilly Auto Parts Napa Auto Parts
Waco, TX College Station, TX College Station, TX
Nathan Holecek Jeff Daniels Tom Parlow

Item Est. Unit Unit Item Unit Item Unit Item
No. Quan. Meas. Description Price Total Price Total Price Total

Category A--Automotive Parts
I-1 10 sets Spark plug wire sets--'05 Ford Crown Vic No Bid $0.00 $22.80 $228.00 $19.76 $197.60
2 40 sets Spark plug sets--'05 Ford Crown Vic  No Bid $0.00 $18.32 $732.80 $9.44 $377.60
3 10 ea Starter for '05 Ford F-150, V-6 Pickup No Bid $0.00 $158.72 $1,587.20 $119.42 $1,194.20
4 3 ea Starter for '05 Ford Crown Vic  No Bid $0.00 $144.40 $433.20 $104.10 $312.30

Sub - Total $0.00 $2,981.20 $2,081.70
II-1 10 ea Fan belt for '05 Ford Super Duty No Bid $0.00 $35.63 $356.30 $42.87 $428.70
2 10 ea New water pump '05 Ford Vic No Bid $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $56.59 $565.90
3 10 ea Fan belt for '05 Ford Vic No Bid $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15.55 $155.50
4 5 ea New water pump for '05 Ford Super Duty No Bid $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $158.00 $790.00

Sub - Total $0.00 $356.30 $1,940.10
III-1 250 ea Oil filter--Napa 1372 No Bid $0.00 $3.31 $827.50 $2.13 $532.50

2 50 ea Oil filter--Napa 1762 No Bid $0.00 $4.31 $215.50 $3.75 $187.50
3 175 ea Air filter--Napa 6134 No Bid $0.00 $4.63 $810.25 $4.25 $743.75
4 50 ea Fuel filter--Napa 3595 No Bid $0.00 $5.86 $293.00 $5.37 $268.50
5 100 ea Air filter--Napa 6648 No Bid $0.00 $9.12 $912.00 $7.36 $736.00

Sub - Total $0.00 $3,058.25 $2,468.25
IV-1 100 ea Light bulb--G.E. 1157 No Bid $0.00 $0.19 $19.00 $0.17 $17.00

2 100 ea Light bulb--G.E. 1156 No Bid $0.00 $0.38 $38.00 $0.41 $41.00
3 16 ea Sealed halogen beam--#H6054 No Bid $0.00 $6.83 $109.28 $6.24 $99.84
4 10 ea Sealed beam, low--#4652 No Bid $0.00 $3.12 $31.20 $3.17 $31.70
5 10 ea Headlight, high/low--#9007 No Bid $0.00 $4.28 $42.80 $5.49 $54.90
6 20 ea Flasher, 2 prong #552 No Bid $0.00 $1.59 $31.80 $2.64 $52.80
7 100 ea Mini bulb--#194 No Bid $0.00 $0.19 $19.00 $0.20 $20.00

Sub - Total $0.00 $291.08 $317.24

Nov. 10, 2006

 Page 1 of 6 



City of College Station
Bid Tabulation

ANNUAL BID FOR AUTO & TRUCK PARTS
BID:  #07-23

Truckmotive O'Reilly Auto Parts Napa Auto Parts
Waco, TX College Station, TX College Station, TX
Nathan Holecek Jeff Daniels Tom Parlow

Item Est. Unit Unit Item Unit Item Unit Item
No. Quan. Meas. Description Price Total Price Total Price Total

Nov. 10, 2006

VI-1 50 sets Rear brake pads--'05 Ford Crown Vic No Bid $0.00 $40.09 $2,004.50 $21.99 $1,099.50
2 20 sets Front pads--058 Crown Vic No Bid $0.00 $39.22 $784.40 $22.49 $449.80
3 10 ea Front rotor--'05 Ford Crown Vic No Bid $0.00 $42.54 $425.40 $39.17 $391.70
4 10 ea Rear rotor--'05 Ford Crown Vic No Bid $0.00 $28.88 $288.80 $33.53 $335.30

Sub - Total $0.00 $3,503.10 $2,276.30
VII-1 5 ea AC compressor--'05 Ford Crown Vic No Bid $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $363.06 $1,815.30

2 5 ea AC compressor--'05 Ford Super Duty No Bid $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $188.82 $944.10
3 5 ea AC compressor--'05 Ford F-150, V-6 No Bid $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $188.82 $944.10

Sub - Total $0.00 $0.00 $3,703.50

Category A (Automotive)--Grand Total $ 0.00 10,189.93 12,787.09

Incomplete
Lowest Responsive Bidder

Category B--Truck Parts
I-1 20 ea Work Light, Grote 64931 $5.95 $119.00 $10.38 $207.60 $8.36 $167.20
2 15 ea License Plate Light Signal, Stat 430W $1.99 $29.85 $2.12 $31.80 $2.24 $33.60
3 10 ea License Plate Light Signal, Stat 431W $2.28 $22.80 $3.01 $30.10 $3.19 $31.90
4 50 ea Tail light, Trucklite 40282R $2.39 $119.50 $4.46 $223.00 $3.14 $157.00
5 30 ea Clearance Light ,Signal Stat 1010A $1.15 $34.50 $1.73 $51.90 $2.48 $74.40
6 20 ea Back-up Light, Signal Stat 4043W $8.99 $179.80 $6.56 $131.20 $8.71 $174.20
7 10 ea Back-up Alarm, Star 60-107-12 $26.32 $263.20 $38.00 $380.00 $22.83 $228.30

Sub - Total $768.65 $1,055.60 $866.60

 Page 2 of 6 



City of College Station
Bid Tabulation

ANNUAL BID FOR AUTO & TRUCK PARTS
BID:  #07-23

Truckmotive O'Reilly Auto Parts Napa Auto Parts
Waco, TX College Station, TX College Station, TX
Nathan Holecek Jeff Daniels Tom Parlow

Item Est. Unit Unit Item Unit Item Unit Item
No. Quan. Meas. Description Price Total Price Total Price Total

Nov. 10, 2006

II-1 35 ea Air filter, Baldwin PA 2326 $58.76 $2,056.60 $67.42 $2,359.70 $61.80 $2,163.00
2 30 ea Oil filter, Baldwin BD 7309 $22.51 $675.30 $27.64 $829.20 $20.39 $611.70
3 28 ea Oil filter, Baldwin B 7577 $10.43 $292.04 $12.78 $357.84 $11.72 $328.16
4 22 ea Air filter, Baldwin PA 2358 $23.39 $514.58 $27.59 $606.98 $25.29 $556.38
5 35 ea Oil filter, Baldwin BD 7153 $32.22 $1,127.70 $37.51 $1,312.85 $34.38 $1,203.30
6 50 ea Oil filter, Baldwin 7600 $4.80 $240.00 $5.84 $292.00 $5.36 $268.00
7 24 ea Fuel filter, Baldwin BF 1272SP $12.71 $305.04 $14.73 $353.52 $13.50 $324.00
8 36 ea Oil filter, Baldwin BT 259 $3.11 $111.96 $3.44 $123.84 $3.16 $113.76
9 45 ea Oil filter, Baldwin BF 1259 $8.57 $385.65 $10.68 $480.60 $9.79 $440.55

Sub - Total $5,708.87 $6,716.53 $6,008.85
III-1 48 ea Rear brake shoes, Kit #4704QP $32.95 $1,581.60 $0.00 $0.00 $45.67 $2,192.16

2 12 ea Front drum, Webb #65162 $134.09 $1,609.08 $0.00 $0.00 $103.59 $1,243.08
3 12 ea Brake chamber, Type #3030 $39.95 $479.40 $41.34 $496.08 $38.99 $467.88
4 4 ea Governor air brake, Bendix #275491 $10.49 $41.96 $26.33 $105.32 $13.21 $52.84
5 32 ea Rear drum, Webb #66884 $74.95 $2,398.40 $87.82 $2,810.24 $83.95 $2,686.40

Sub - Total $6,110.44 $3,411.64 $6,642.36

Category B (Truck)--Grand Total $ 12,587.96 11,183.77 13,517.81

Incomplete
Lowest Responsive Bidder

Bid Certification Yes Yes Yes
Delivery Date N/A Same Day Per Bid
Net Payment 30 Days 30 Days 30 Days
Procurement Card Program Yes Yes Yes
Procurement Card Discount 0% 1% 0%
Promt Payment Discount 2% 0% 2%

 Page 3 of 6 



 

 

December 14, 2006  
Consent Agenda  

Amended Funding Agreement with Research Valley Partnership  
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Terry L. Childers, Deputy City Manager                          
 
 
Agenda Caption:   Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding amendment of 
funding agreement with Research Valley Partnership  
 
 
Recommendation(s):   Staff recommends approval of the amendment to the Research 
Valley Partnership Funding Agreement.  
 
 
Summary:   The City Council was previously briefed on a request from Research Valley 
Partnership to establish an Economic Development Fund to support their Strategic Plan. The 
Fund is being created with $500,000 contributions from each of RVP’s Funding Partners 
(Brazos County, City of Bryan, and City of College Station). Both Brazos County and City of 
Bryan have contributed to the creation of the fund. The City of College Station is being 
asked to contribute $500,000 to create an Economic Development Fund in the amount of 
$1.5 million.  
 
The amended Agreement being presented for Council consideration has the following 
provisions:  
 

1) Establishes key performance measures for RVP based on their adopted Strategic 
Plan;  

2) Authorizes the contribution of $500,000 to the Research Valley Partnership Economic 
Development Fund to be paid in four (4) equal payments beginning January 1, 2007;  

3) Requires the approval of College Station City Council for any disbursements from the 
RVP Economic Development Fund; and  

4) Authorizes the first disbursement from the RVP Economic Development Fund in the 
amount of $500,000 to be used by RVP to support their Strategic Plan 
implementation.    

 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   The $500,000 contribution is available in the Economic 
Development Fund.  
 
 
Attachments:   Amended Funding Agreement  
 
 
 



AMENDED FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 
 
 This Amended Funding Agreement is by and between the CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, a Home Rule Municipal Corporation incorporated under the laws of the State 
of Texas (hereinafter referred to as the "City") and the Research Valley Partnership, a 
Texas Non – Profit Corporation  (hereinafter referred to as “Agency”). 
 

WHEREAS, the City has the objective of promoting and facilitating activities that 
enhance the economic base of College Station through attraction, creation, expansion and 
retention of business and industry, focusing on value added to local resources and 
manufacturing, and 
 
 WHEREAS, Agency through it’s purpose shares this common goal with the City; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to assist Agency in promoting economic 
development; and 
 
 WHERAS, the City desires to assist Agency by providing funding for economic 

development incentives; 
 
WHERAS, the College Station City Council approved a Funding Agreement with 

Research Valley Partners on September 28, 2006;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the performance of the mutual 
covenants and promises contained herein, City and Agency agree to amend the contract 
as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
STATEMENT OF WORK 

 
1.1 Agency is responsible for promoting and facilitating activities that enhance the 

economic base of Brazos County through attraction, creation, expansion and 
retention of business and industry, focusing on value added to local resources 
and manufacturing.  Funding shall be used to substantially implement The 
Research Valley Partnership’s Strategic Plan and to establish a dedicated 
Research Valley Partnership Economic Development Fund in which all three 
public funding partners shall be equally vested.  The Research Valley intends to 
substantially implement its Strategic Plan as a requirement for additional 
funding. The Research Valley intends to accomplish the following priorities:  

    
§ Implement a Research Valley Innovation Center  
§ Develop and implement the Health Sciences / Life Sciences Masterplan 
§ Facilitate development of “vertical” space including laboratories  
§ Facilitate development of Research & Development space in Research Valley 
§ Plan and develop “next generation” industrial parks in Research Valley 



ARTICLE II 
PAYMENT 

 
2.1 For and in consideration of the activities to be satisfactorily performed by the 

Agency under this Agreement, the City shall provide funding in the amount of 
FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 ($500,000.00). Payment will be 
made in four (4) equal quarterly installments of $125,000.00 beginning January 1, 
2007.  

    
 

ARTICLE III 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND 

 
3.1 The funding provided in Article II shall be used to fund the Research Valley 

Economic Development Fund. This fund will be used to facilitate economic 
development opportunities in the Research Valley. The Research Valley 
Economic Development Fund shall be jointly funded in equal amounts by the 
public funding partners who shall be equally vested in the Research Valley 
Partnership Economic Development Fund.  

     
3.2 Any expenditures proposed to be disbursed from the Research Valley Partnership 

Economic Development Fund shall first be approved by the College Station City 
Council.  

 
3.3 With the approval of this Amended Funding Agreement, the College Station City 

Council authorizes the dispersal of $500,000 from the Research Valley Economic 
Development Fund to the Research Valley Operations Account to fund the 
implementation of the Strategic Plan in accordance with the Strategic Plan – 
Financial Plan pro-forma.  

 
ARTICLE IV 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
4.1 All other conditions and requirements in the Funding Agreement approved by the 

City Council on September 28, 2006 shall remain in full force and effect.  
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 Executed this the   day of     , 2006. 
 
    
RESEARCH VALLEY PARTNERSHIP    CITY OF COLLEGE STATION  
     
By:             By:____________________________ 
Printed Name:             Ron Silvia, Mayor 
Title:       

Date:          
  
 ATTEST: 
 
 

          
                             __________________________________ 

       Connie Hooks, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
           
Glenn Brown, City Manager Date 
 
       
           
City Attorney Date 
 
        
           
Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer Date 
 
 
 
 
 



STATE OF TEXAS  ) 
    )  ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
COUNTY OF BRAZOS ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the   day of   
         , 2006, by        in his/her 
capacity as      of the Research Valley Partnership. 
 
             
       Notary Public in and for 
       the State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  ) 
    )  ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
COUNTY OF BRAZOS ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the   day of   
          , 2006, by Ron Silvia, in his capacity as Mayor of the City of 
College Station, a Texas home-rule municipality, on behalf of said municipality. 
 
 
             
       Notary Public in and for 
       the State of Texas 
 
 
 
 



 

 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Support of Incentive for Texas Institute for Preclinical Studies (TIPS) 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Gwin, Director of Economic and Community Development                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on a resolution supporting 
a community investment incentive for the Texas Institute for Preclinical Studies (TIPS).  
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval.  Similar resolutions of support are 
to be considered and acted upon by the City of Bryan and Brazos County. 
 
It is important to note that this is not the actual community incentive agreement. Instead 
this is a resolution of support for the establishment of TIPS within the TAMU system and for 
it to be located in The Research Valley.  
 
Summary:  The Texas Institute for Preclinical Studies (TIPS) represents a proposed new 
addition to the TAMU system. As such, it is part of an ever expanding life sciences and 
biotechnology industry focus that is being targeted for further development in the 
community and region. 
 
A major expectation for the creation of this institute is the long-term support and 
development of emerging life sciences and biotechnology firms to serve as an industry and 
economic catalyst in The Research Valley and to provide potential new employers for young 
professionals of the area. 
   
Initially, the TIPS facility would comprise over 100,000 square feet, of which 12,000 square 
foot of that space will be dedicated for a life sciences business accelerator.  TIPS operations 
are expected to begin by no later than July 1, 2007. 
 
Current funding estimates call for $54.2 million in community investment for the 
development of this project. It is also anticipated that the majority of this funding will come 
from TAMU ($40 million) and the State of Texas ($10 million). 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: The cost of the city’s share of the proposed incentive is 
$1.25 million over the life (5 years) of the anticipated agreement. However, the total value 
of the incentive, which includes shares for the City of Bryan ($84,000/year) and Brazos 
County ($166,000/year), is $2.5 million.  
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Resolution 
 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, AFFIRMING THE CITY’S COMMITMENT TO SUPPORT A COMMUNITY 
INVESTMENT INCENTIVE FOR THE TEXAS INSTITUTE FOR PRECLINICAL 
STUDIES (TIPS) AT TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY IN PARTNERSHIP WITH THE 
CITY OF BRYAN AND BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS. 
 
WHEREAS, the College Station City Council recognizes the unique and significant 
economic development opportunity that the formation and operation of TIPS will have on 
The Research Valley; and 
 
WHEREAS, the College Station City Council recognizes the substantial financial 
commitment that Texas A&M University and the State of Texas have made to establish 
this important life science biotechnology infrastructure in The Research Valley; and 
 
WHEREAS, the College Station City Council recognizes that TIPS will require financial 
support to assist with initial start-up costs such as capital investment loans, equipment, 
and other operational expenditures; and  
 
WHEREAS, the College Station City Council supports the use of a Community 
Investment Incentive to fund The Texas Institute For Preclinical Studies in an amount of 
Five-Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) annually for five years and supports a 
funding formula that requires the City of College Station to pay an amount of Two-
Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000) annually, the City of Bryan to pay an 
amount of Eighty-Four Thousand Dollars ($84,000) annually, and Brazos County to pay 
an amount of One-Hundred Sixty-Six Thousand Dollars ($166,000) annually; and 
 
WHEREAS, the College Station City Council supports this Community Investment 
Incentive contingent upon the following consideration: 
 

- the formation of The Texas Institute For Preclinical Studies (TIPS) by the Texas 
A&M University System; 

- the start of operations of TIPS in The Research Valley by no later than July 1, 
2007; 

- new job creation in The Research Valley; 
- an investment of at least $40,000,000 in real and personal property; 
- The Research Valley Partnership membership on TIPS’s Board of Directors 

during, at a minimum, the five year funding term; 
- a commitment to construct and maintain 12,000 gross square feet of life science 

business accelerator offices to include wet laboratory space within the main 
building of TIPS; and 

- a commitment by TIPS to work with The Research Valley Partnership, on behalf 
of the community, to secure health science/life science relating emerging 
technology company tenants in said space. 



 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby affirms its commitment to partner with the City of 
Bryan, and Brazos County to fund the Community Investment Incentive as detailed 
herein. 
 
PART 2: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this _______ day of ________________________, A.D. 2006. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

     
City Attorney 
 



 

 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda Item 

 
Resolution of Support for the Texas Recreation and Park Account Local Grant 

Program and Texas State Park System 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Steve Beachy, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution 
requesting that the Governor and members of the 80th Texas Legislative session support 
increased funding for the Texas Recreation and Park Account Local Park Grant Program and 
Texas State Park Funding. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends  approval of this resolution.  In addition, the 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommend that the City Council support this 
resolution. 
 
 
Summary: State appropriations for the Texas Recreation & Parks Account (TRPA) Local 
Park Grant Program have been drastically reduced during the last two legislative sessions.  
TRPA is a grant program administered by the Texas Parks & Wildlife Department that 
provides matching grants to local governments for parkland acquisition and development.  
The annual appropriation of funds for the TRPA prior to the 78th Legislature was $15.5 
million.  TRPA was reduced to $13 million annually during the 78th Legislative Session and to 
$5.6 million for the current biennium.   
 
These funds have a direct impact on the local community by providing financial assistance in 
developing essential park facilities for our citizens and for visitors to this area. In addition, 
this program may provide funds for the acquisition and development of the proposed 
10,000 acre regional park in Grimes County 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: The funds for this grant program are generated from a 
portion of the existing sales tax on sporting goods products. If increased funding is 
approved, the City of College Station will have the opportunity to compete for future grants 
to develop new parks and facilities that will be required to meet the needs of the expected 
population increase. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Resolution 
2. Background Information 

 
 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, CITY COUNCIL 
REQUESTING THAT THE GOVERNOR AND MEMBERS OF THE 80TH 
LEGISLATIVE SESSION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS SUPPORT INCREASED 
FUNDING FOR THE TEXAS RECREATION & PARKS ACCOUNT LOCAL PARK 
GRANT PROGRAM AND TEXAS STATE PARK SYSTEM. 
 
WHEREAS, the Texas Parks & Wildlife Department (“TPWD”) administers the Texas 
Recreation & Parks Account Local Park Grant Program (“TRPA”) and manages 114 State parks 
and historical sites in Texas; and 
 
WHEREAS, TPWD has a separate account in their general revenue fund referred to as the 
TRPA for the purpose of providing matching grants to political subdivisions for parks and 
recreation projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the matching grants provided by the TPWD are utilized for the planning, 
acquisition, and development of local park, recreation and open space areas to be owned and 
maintained by political subdivisions; and 
 
WHEREAS, funds granted to political subdivisions under the TRPA guidelines have funded 
1,029 projects of the 2,851 submitted over 25 years delivering over $623 million dollars to the 
local Texas economy; and   
 
WHEREAS, political subdivisions throughout the State of Texas depend on grants from TPWD 
through the TRPA to stimulate the acquisition and development of parks and recreational areas 
for the benefit and enjoyment of their citizenry; and 
 
WHEREAS, the TRPA and State parks are funded from sales tax on sporting goods and the 
development of new parks stimulates the purchase of sporting goods; and 
 
WHEREAS, continued cutbacks in appropriations for State park and historic sites have resulted 
in a backlog of deferred maintenance issues, park closures, reduced hours and days of operation, 
staff layoffs, the conversion of some parks to day use only and elimination of important visitor 
services, regardless of the growing need for new parks due to the State’s expanding population 
and extensive tourism industry; and  
 
WHEREAS, the potential use of these grant funds are essential to the success of the acquisition 
and development of the proposed 10,000 acre regional park in Grimes County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the development of parks encourages and promotes public health, economic 
development, job creation, education; corporate relocations, an improved quality of life, and 
juvenile crime prevention; and 
 



RESOLUTION NO. ___________________       Page 2 
 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of this City Council that a copy of this resolution with appropriate 
names affixed be presented to the Governor of Texas and the leadership of the 80th Texas 
Legislature; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 

 
PART 1: That the Council supports the Governor and members of the 80th Legislature of 

Texas in seeking passage of legislation maximizing the use of revenue from the 
sporting goods sales tax to increase funding for parks and recreation programs 
fairly for both Local and State parks and that all TRPA funded park projects be 
subject to the established TPWD competitive scoring system. 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by this the ________ day of _________________________, 2006. 
 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              

RON SILVIA, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

_______________________________ 
City Attorney 



 

TEXAS PARKS & WILDLIFE DEPARTMENT 
TEXAS RECREATION & PARKS ACCOUNT 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
State appropriations for the Texas Recreation & Parks Account (TRPA) Local Park Grant Program 
have been drastically reduced during the last two legislative sessions.  TRPA is a grant program 
administered by the Texas Parks & Wildlife Department that provides matching grants to local 
governments for parkland acquisition and development.  The annual appropriation of funds for the 
TRPA prior to the 78th Legislature was $15.5 million.  TRPA was reduced to $13 million annually 
during the 78th Legislative Session and to $5.6 million for the current biennium.   
 
Appropriations for the maintenance and operation of the State Parks and historical sites in Texas has 
also been reduced over the past two Legislative Sessions resulting in park closures, reduced hours and 
days of operation, and staff layoffs.  State Park System reductions have come at a time when the 
population of the state is growing and the need for open space is greater that it has ever been. 
 
The attached resolution asks members of the upcoming 80th Legislature to increase funding for the 
TRPA to the level the grant program was at prior to the 78th Legislative Session, and State Parks.  It 
also asks that the Legislature respect the publicly endorsed competitive scoring system award process 
and discontinue the attaching “legislative riders” to the budget for special interest projects that drain 
the fund.   



 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda Item # 

Parks and Recreation Department Fees for CY 2007 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Steve Beachy, Director of Parks and Recreation                         
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding a resolution of 
the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, approving and setting fees for Parks 
and Recreation activities and facilities. 
 
 
Recommendation(s):   Staff recommends approval of the resolution, and fees schedule as 
submitted. The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board also recommends approval of the fees 
as proposed. 
 
Summary:  The Parks and Recreation Department conducts annual reviews of all user fees 
to determine direct costs, as well as local “market” rates for individual programs and 
facilities.  Further the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board established a departmental fee 
policy statement to provide guidance in the establishment of fees.  This policy is consistent 
with the City’s fiscal and budgetary policy.  The Board reviewed the proposed fees on 
November 14, 2006 and voted unanimously to recommend approval of the fees as 
submitted for CY 2007.   
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The proposed user fees for CY 2007 include changes that 
are detailed in Attachment 1. If approved, the new fees would become effective after 
January 1, 2007. All other fees are recommended to remain at the Current 2006 rates.   
Overall the Department forecasts the new fees to raise approximately $31,360 in additional 
revenue.  This figure includes $12,140 in Athletic League fees, $11,250 in facility rental 
fees, $6,000 in membership fees and $1,970 in Aquatic fees. 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Proposed Changes to Parks and Recreation Department Fees for CY 2007. 
2. Resolution. 
3. Exhibit A, Proposed Fee Schedule 
 



City Of College Station 
Parks and Recreation Department 

Proposed Fee Changes and Additions 
CY 2007 

 
1. Adult Flag Football – Increase by $20 due to increase in Officiating Costs. 
 
2. Adult Volleyball/ Softball – Increase by $10 due to increase in Officiating Costs. 
 
3. Youth Basketball/ Flag Football/ Youth Volleyball – Increase by $5 due to increase in 
Officiating Costs. 
 
4. USTA Tennis – Increased by $15 due to USTA reconfiguring program to include 
longer sessions 
 
5. Pavilion Rental – Increased Deposit to cover increased cost of maintenance. 
 
6. Pavilion Rentals – Added fees for new American Pavilion at Veterans Park and 
Athletic Complex. 
 
7. EXIT Teen Center – Membership fees will mirror Lincoln Center fee due to the 
combined access pass that we use for both locations. 
 
8. Lincoln Center Fees – Youth school year membership fees will double in price from 
$10/year to $20/school year.  Youth summer fees will increase for residents from $30 to 
$50, and a new non-resident youth summer fees of $100.  The annual adult fees are 
increasing from $15 to $25.  Some room and equipment rental fees, as well as, deposits 
were increased to come in line with similar items in the rest of the Parks system. 
 
9. Athletic Fields – Changed fee name to Athletic Field Rental and deleted Soccer Field 
rental.  All fields being charged the same amount.  Name change only no fee change. 
 
 
10. Bee Creek Batting Cage Rental – New fee, $10 per hour for exclusive use of Batting 
Cage at Bee Creek. 
 
11. Swimming Pools – Private party fees were increased by $0.25 per person.  Life Guard 
for a Day program now has a fee of $2 per participant.  And, two new entries (but 
existing fees) added to the form are: Summer day camp per child fee of $2, and 
Natatorium Team user Fee of $10.  The team user fee with pass through to the CSISD for 
maintenance of the natatorium. 
 
12. Wolf Pen Creek Amphitheater – Deleted Weekday rental rate for all categories.  
Increased Non-Commercial Rental rate by $75 per day and Commercial rate by 100 per 
day. 



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO._____________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING AND SETTING FEES FOR PARKS AND RECREATION 
FACILITIES AND ACTIVITIES. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station conducted a cost of service study to identify the 
full cost of service for all Parks and Recreation related facilities and services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted a Fiscal and Budgetary Policy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the schedule of fees in the attached Exhibit A provides for Parks and 
Recreation related fees that are consistent with the adopted Fiscal and Budgetary Policy; 
now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNSEL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS:  
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby approves and adopts the Parks and 

Recreation fee schedule attached as Exhibit A. 
 
PART 2: That the fees provided for in the attached Exhibit A shall take effect for 

programs beginning after January 1, 2007. 
 
 
ADOPTED this __________ day of ____________________________, A.D. 2006 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED: 
 
 
 
____________________________  ____________________________________ 
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary  RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

_____________________________ 
City Attorney 



  Page 1 of 6 

PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT USER FEES 
 

Proposed FY 2007 
  
 

ACTIVITY/FACILITY 2004 2005 2006 2007 
ADULT SPORTS PER TEAM     
1.   Flag Football $355 $355 $355 $375 * 
2.   Volleyball $175 $175 $175 $185 * 
3. Softball      
  Play-Off League: Spring and Summer / Fall $390 / $345 $340 $340 $350 * 
        Fast Pitch: Spring and Summer / Fall $400 / $340 $380 $380 $390 * 
4. Outside League Field Redevelopment Fee Per Team $75 $75 $75 $75 
5. Adult Sports Transfer/Cancellation Fee N/A N/A $10 $10 
* Per SLA Request for Athletic League Improvements 
 and Labor Increases  

    

YOUTH SPORTS PER CHILD 
    

1. Basketball / Flag Football / Youth Volleyball $45 / 40 $45 / 40 $50 / $45 $55 / $50 * 
2. Girl's Softball $50 / 45 $50 / 45 $55 / $50 $55 / $50 
3.  Challenger Sports $15 $15 $15 $15 
4. Outside League Field Redevelopment Fee Per Child $5 $5 $10 $10 
5. Youth  Sports Transfer/Cancellation Fee N/A N/A $10 $10 
* Per SLA Request for Athletic League Improvements      

INSTRUCTION FEES PER PERSON 
    

1. Swim Lessons $35 $35 $40 $40 
2.   Stroke Clinic Advanced Swim Lessons $40 $40 $45 $45 
3. TAAF  Swim Team $85 / 75 $85 / 75 $100 / $90 $100 / $90 
4. USTA Tennis League    National Junior $85 $85 $90 $90 
5. Tennis Lessons  $45 $45 $50 $65 * 
6. Water Fitness Pass ~ Fall, Spring, Summer Passes   $80 / $60 $80 / $60 $80 / $60 
  Winter Pass (Morning & Evening / Evening Only)    $60 / $45 
7.  Instruction Transfer/Cancellation Fee $10 $10 $10 $10 
* USTA has reconfigured lessons to longer sessions     

PAVILION RENTALS PER DAY     

~ Deposits are refundable if the facility is left clean and damage-free, and keys are returned. 
~ Deposits are refundable if reservation is cancelled seven (7) days prior to rental date. 

 

1. Bee Creek / Oaks / W.A. Tarrow Park Pavilions     
  Monday – Thursday $75 / $75 / NA $75 / $75 / $75 $75 $75 
  Friday – Sunday & Holidays $100 / NA / NA $100 / NA / NA $100 $100 
  Deposit  $0 / $50 / NA $0 / $50/ $0 $100 $150 
2. Central / Southwood Pavilions     
  Monday - Thursday $100 $100 $125 $125 
  Friday – Sunday, and Holidays $175 $175 $200 $200 
  Deposit $100 $100 $100 $150 
3. John Crompton Park Pavilion     
  Monday - Thursday N/A N/A $100 $100 
  Friday – Sunday, and Holidays N/A N/A $150 $150 
  Deposit N/A N/A $100 $150 
4. American Pavilion in Veterans Park     
  Monday - Thursday N/A N/A N/A $200 
  Friday – Sunday, and Holidays N/A N/A N/A $300 
  Deposit N/A N/A N/A $300 
5. Pavilion Transfer/Cancellation Fee N/A N/A $10 $10 



  Page 2 of 6 

CONFERENCE CENTER     

~  The room deposit is $100 on Room 127 and $50 each on all other rooms including the kitchen. 
~  Deposits are refundable upon compliance with all rules, regulations, and clean-up requirements by client and caterer.  
~ Deposits are refunded less the cancellation fee of $10, if the reservation is cancelled sixty (60) days prior to the event. 
~ An additional fee of $25 is charged if additional time is needed between the hour of 5 p.m. and 6 p.m., and is based upon availability. 
1.   Commercial Rental Rates (Companies or Businesses)     

        Room 101:     

                    Monday - Thursday:    4 Hours or Less $45 $45 $55 $55 
                                                    8 am - 5 pm $52 $52 $65 $65 
                                                    6 pm - Close $65 $65 $70 $70 
                Friday Rate:   8 am - Close                 $150 $150 $75 $75 
   Saturday Rate:   8 am - Close $150 $150 $150 $150 
  Room  102*, 103, 104, 106*, 107*:         
                    Monday - Sunday:      4 Hours or Less $29 / *$34 $29 / *$34 $45 $45 
                                                      8 am - 5 pm $39 / *$46  $39 / *$46 $55 $55 
                                                      6 pm - Close $42 / *$48 $42 / *$48 $60 $60 
  Room 105:     
                    Monday - Sunday:    4 Hours or Less $45 $45 $55 $55 
                                                    8 am - 5 pm $52 $52 $65 $65 
                                                    6 pm - Close $65 $65 $70 $70 
  Room 127:                      
                   Monday - Thursday:    4 Hours or Less                   $105 $105 $125 $125 
                                                     8 am - 5 pm $145 $145 $165 $165 
                                                     6 pm - Close $155 $155 $175 $175 
                Friday Rate:   8 am - Close                 $450 $450 $225 $225 
   Saturday Rate:   8 am - Close $450 $450 $450 $450 
2.   Non-Commercial Rental Rates  
 (Individuals or groups / not companies or businesses.) 

    

          Room 101:     
                    Monday - Thursday:    4 Hours or Less $22 $22 $25 $25 
                                                    8 am - 5 pm $38 $38 $40 $40 
                                                    6 pm - Close $25 $25 $35 $35 
                Friday Rate:   8 am - Close                 $150 $150 $75 $75 
   Saturday Rate:   8 am - Close $150 $150 $150 $150 
  Room  102*, 103, 104, 106*, 107*:         
                    Monday - Sunday:      4 Hours or Less $16 / *$18 $16 / *$18 $20 $20 
                                                      8 am - 5 pm $27 / *$32  $27 / *$32 $35 $35 
                                                      6 pm - Close $18 / *$22 $18 / *$22 $30 $30 
  Room 105:     
                    Monday - Sunday:    4 Hours or Less $22 $22 $25 $25 
                                                    8 am - 5 pm $38 $38 $40 $40 
                                                    6 pm - Close $25 $25 $35 $35 
  Room 127:                      
                   Monday - Thursday:    4 Hours or Less                   $55 $55 $60 $60 
                                                     8 am - 5 pm $105 $105 $110 $110 
                                                     6 pm - Close $72 $72 $80 $80 
                Friday Rate:   8 am - Close                 $450 $450 $225 $225 
   Saturday Rate:   8 am - Close $450 $450 $450 $450 
3.   Kitchen Rental   $20 $20 
4.   Sunday Surcharge     
              1-5 Consecutive Hours $60 $60 $60 $60 
              1-5 Hours Split, or over 5 Consecutive Hours $85 $85 $85 $85 
5.   Transfer/Cancellation, Set-up Change Fee $20 $20 $10 $10 
6. Alcohol Deposit (If alcohol is served) N/A N/A $50 $50 
7. Catering Deposit $50 $50 $50 $50 
8. Multi-media Projector Deposit $50 $50 $50 $50 



  Page 3 of 6 

9.   Vendor or Exhibitors Tables $10 $10 $10 $10 
10. Miscellaneous Charges     
   Copies (Per Copy)    $.10* 

  Faxes  ~ Local (Per Page) $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $1.00 
   ~ Long Distance (Per Page)    $2 First pg / $1 Addt’l pgs 
*Per Section 111.61 of the Texas Administrative Code     

LINCOLN CENTER     

~  All rooms are subject to an after-hour charge of $20 per hour.  The after-hour charge is based on any request to use    facilities 
beyond the Center’s normal operating hours.  

~ Special Event fee includes the rental of the gym, Community Room, sound system, and 450 chairs. 
1. School Year Membership Pass Per Year:        
  Youth (17 & Under) $10 $10 $10 $20 
  Low Income Eligible $5 $5 $5 $10 
2. Summer Non-Member Membership Pass     
  Resident Youth  $30 $30 $30 $50 
   Non-Resident    $100 
3. Adult (18 & Over)  Annual (12 Month) Membership Pass  $15 $15 $15 $25 
   (19 – 54 Years of Age)     Remove Line 
4. Non-Member Guest Pass Per Day (Youth or Adult) $1 $1 $1 $2 
5. Fitness Pass  $25 $25 $40 
6. Senior Pass (Included above)  $20 $20 Remove Line 
7. Gym Deposit Per Day (8 hour block)  $250 $250 $250 $250 
  Half Court Rental Per Hour (4 hour maximum) $20 $20 $20 $20 
  Full Court Rental Per Hour (4 hour maximum) $25 $25 $25 $30 
  Gym Event $.30/Chair $.30/Chair $.30/Chair $.35/chair 
  All Day Usage (More than 4 hours) $175 $175 $175 $200 
  Concession Usage $20 $20 $20 $20 
8.  Game Room / Multi-purpose Room Rental Per Hour  
 (4 hour minimum) 

 
$20 

 
$20 

 
$10/hour 

  
 $15/hour 

  Deposit $50 $50 $50 $75 
9. Community Room Rental Per Hour  (3 hour maximum) $50 $50 $20/hour $25/hour 
  Deposit $75 $75 $75 $100 
  Kitchen Fee $20 $20 $20 $20 

10. Special Event Fee (Funerals, weddings, parties) $150 $150 $150 $150 
11. Miscellaneous Charges     

  Copies (Per Copy) $.10 $.10 $.10 $.10*  
  Faxes  ~ Local (Per Page) $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $1.00 
   ~ Long Distance (Per Page)    $2 First pg / $1 Addt’l pgs 
*Per Section 111.61 of the Texas Administrative Code     

ATHLETIC FIELDS 
    

~  In addition to the rental fees, a deposit will be charged and paid by the renter in advance of any tournament.  The deposit will vary 
 depending on the type and size of the tournament.   
~  In addition to the rental and deposit fees, additional fees may be assessed to the renter depending on the length and type of 

tournament in order to cover expenses incurred by the City for personnel and supplies needed to facilitate the tournament. 
~ Game field prep and light fees are included in the daily rental fee, but not in hourly rental fees. 
1. Athletic Field Rentals     
  One (1) Field:   Per Day / Per Weekend $60 / $100 $60 / $100 $100 per day $100 per day 
  One (1) Field: Per Hour up to 10 Hours $10 / $15 / $20 $10 / $15 / $20 $10 per hour $10 per hour 
2. Soccer Field Rentals    Remove this line. 
  One (1) Field:   Per Day $60 $60 $100 Remove this line. 
2. Athletic Field Rental Deposit Varies Varies Varies Varies 
3. Lights for Field Rentals (Per hour/Per field) $5 $5 $10 per hour $10 per hour 
4. Game Field Prep Fee per Field N/A N/A $45 per field $45 per field 
5. Bee Creek Batting Cage Rental:   Per Hour N/A N/A N/A $10 per hour 
*All fields now designated as “Athletic” fields.     

RACE EQUIPMENT RENTALS 
    



  Page 4 of 6 

1. Printing Stop Watch / Non-printing Stop Watch $10 / $5 $10 / $5 $10 / $5 $10 / $5 
2. Cones (10) $10 $10 $10 $10 
3. Bases, Poles, and Flagging (10) $10 $10 $10 $10 
4. Big Time Clock $50 $50 $50 $50 
5. Water Cooler / Ice Chest $5 / $5 $5 / $5 $5 / $5 $5 / $5 
6. Tables $10 $10 $10 $10 
7. Traffic Flags and Vests (10) $5 $5 $5 $5 
8.  Rental Package #1: Big time clock, 1 printing 

stopwatch, 10 cones, 10 bases/poles and flagging, 2 
water coolers, 2 tables,10 traffic flags and vests. $75 

 
 

$75 

 
 

$75 

 
 

$75 
9. Rental Package #2: Big time clock, 2 printing 

stopwatches, 30 cones, 20 bases/poles and flagging, 6 
water coolers, 4 tables, 15 traffic flags and vests. $100 

 
 

$100 

 
 

$100 

 
 

$100 
10. Rental Package #3: Big time clock, 4 printing 

stopwatches, 60 cones, 30 bases/poles and flagging, 
12 water coolers, 6 tables, 20 traffic flags and vests. $125 

 
 

$125 

 
 

$125 

 
 

$125 

SWIMMING POOLS  
   

*Adamson passes are also valid at Southwood Hallaran and Thomas pools, excluding the CSISD Natatorium.  All discount passes are 
priced for 25 swims.  
1. General Admission Per Person (Ages 3 and up)     
  Hallaran/Thomas $2.50 $2.50 $2.50 $2.50 
  Natatorium $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 
  Adamson $4.00  $4.00  $5.00 $5.00 
2. Discount Pass – 25 Swims     
  Hallaran/Thomas  $50 $50 $50 $50 
  Natatorium $40 $40 $40 $40 
  *Adamson  $85 $85 $85 $85 
3. Family Season Pass     
  Hallaran/Thomas Pass  or  Natatorium Pass $125 / $125 $125 / $125 $125 / $125 $125 / $125 
  *Adamson  $200 $200 $200 $200 
4. Individual Season Pass     
  Hallaran/Thomas $60 $60 $60 $60 
  *Adamson  $80 $80 $80 $80 
5. Babysitter Season Pass     
  Hallaran/Thomas $30 $30 $30 $30 
  *Adamson  $40 $40 $40 $40 
6. Special Day Care Fee @ Adamson Lagoon Per Child        NA $2.75 $2.75 $2.75 
7. Pool Rentals (2 Hour Maximum.   Limited weekend 
 availability.) 

    

  Thomas/Hallaran: 25 people or fewer $90 / $100 $90 / $100 $100 $100 
    50 people or fewer $100 / $125 $100 / $125 $125 $125 
    51-76 people $125 / $175 $125 / $175 $175 $175 
    77-102 people $150 / $225 $150 / $225 $225 $225 
    Each hour after initial 2 hours $75 $75 $75 $75 
  Natatorium:  25 people or fewer $90 $90 $90 $90 
    50 people or fewer $100 $100 $100 $100 
    51-76 people $125 $125 $125 $125 
    77-102 people $150 $150 $150 $150 
    Each hour after initial 2 hours $75 $75 $75 $75 
  Adamson:  99 people or fewer $275 $275 $275 $275 
                          199 or fewer $325 $325 $325 $325 
                          299 or fewer $425 $425 $425 $425 
                          300+ $525 $525 $525 $525 
   Each hour after the initial 2 hours $125 $125 $125 $125 
8. Pool Parties Per Person - (2 Hour Maximum.)  A 
 minimum of eight (8) people required.  Party favors are 
 included.)*  

    

  Theme Party: Southwood and Thomas $5.75 $5.75 $6.00 $6.00 



  Page 5 of 6 

   Adamson Lagoon $7.50 $7.50 $7.75 $8.00 
  General Party:   Southwood and Thomas $4.75 $4.75 $5.00 $5.00 
   Adamson Lagoon $6.50 $6.50 $6.75 $7.00 
  Catered Theme Party: Southwood and Thomas $7.00 $7.00 $7.25 $7.25 
    Adamson Lagoon $9.25 $9.25 $9.50 $9.50 
  General Catered Party:  Southwood and Thomas $6.25 $6.25 $6.50 $6.50 
    Adamson Lagoon $8.50 $8.50 $8.75 $8.75 
  Pavilion Party (Four-table limit):  First table  $15 $15 $15 $15 
   Additional tables $5 $5 $5 $5 
9. Junior Lifeguard Program Per Person Per Session  $65 $65 $70 $70 

10. Guard 2-B Per Person, Per Session $65 $65 $70 $70 
11. Lifeguard for a Day, Per Person for 1.5 Hours    $2 
12. Other Pool Fees     

  Texas SuperGuard Competition Per Person $20 $20 $20 $20 
  Swim Diaper Fee Per Diaper $1 $1 $1 $1 
  Tube Rental Fee  $1 $1 $1 $1 
   Deposit $2 $2 $2 $2 
  Locker Rental Fee $1 $1 $1 $1 
   Deposit $2 $2 $2 $2 
  Duck Derby (Sponsor a duck July 4th)  Per Person $3 $3 $2 $2 
  Itzy Bitzy Tiny Cutie Bathing Beauty & Handsome 
  Boy Contest on July 4th, Per Person $3 

 
$3 

 
$3 

 
$3 

  “Schools Out Blow Out" at Adamson Lagoon  $200 $200 $200 $200 
  Pool Trout Fish-out Per Person (Ages 3 and up) $2.50 $2.50 $3 $3 
   Over the 5-fish limit (Per fish) $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 

13.  Educational Class Rental (1 Hour/Non Exclusive) $25 $25 $25 $25 
14.  Adamson Lagoon Summer Day Camp Use, Per Child NA NA NA $2 
15. Natatorium Team Use Fee, Per Person Per Season NA NA NA $10 

TEEN CENTER (THE EXIT)     
~ All rental rates are based on a party of 1-25 people.  Additional fees are added per hour for over 25 attendees.  Any rental expecting 

more than 100 attendees must have prior Supervisor approval.   
~ Deposits are refundable if the facility is left clean and damage-free. 
~ Fees are assessed for special events and field trips. 
1. Annual Membership Pass Per Year  $10 $10 $10 $20 
2. Non-Member Fee Per Day $1 $1 $1 $2 
3. Meeting Room Rental, Per Hour $15 $15 $15 $15 
  Deposit $50 $50 $50 $50 
4. Dance/Game Room Rental. Per Hour $25 $25 $25 $25 
  Deposit $50 $50 $50 $50 
5. Whole Facility Rental Per Hour (Excludes Computer 
 Lab) 

$50 $50 $50 $50 

  Deposit $75 $75 $75 $75 
6. Additional Attendance Fee Per Hour     
  26 - 50 Attendees $10 $10 $10 $10 
  51- 100 Attendees $15 $15 $15 $15 
  100 - 200 Attendees $20 $20 $20 $20 

VENDOR PERMITS     

1.  Standard Vendor Permit $50 $50 $50  

WOLF PEN CREEK AMPHITHEATER     

~ Service Personnel charges will be added accordingly. 
~ A percentage of the gate will be negotiated for commercial events.    

   

     
1. Private Rental Per Day  Weekdays /  Weekends $200 / $250 $200 / $250 $200 / $250 $250 * 
2. Non Commercial Rental Per Day  
 Weekdays /  Weekends 

$425 / $525 $425 / $525 $425 / $525 $600 * 

3. Professional/Commercial Rentals Per Day      



  Page 6 of 6 

 Weekdays /  Weekends $800 / $900 $800 / $900 $800 / $900 $1,000 * 
* Market Adjustment     

XTRA EDUCATION CLASSES     
~ All Xtra Education class fees will be set according to the individual needs of each class.  
 



 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda Item  

Change Order Number 2 to the 
Veterans Park and Athletic Complex, Phase II (VPAC) Design Contract  

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Eric Ploeger, Assistant Director, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding Change Order 
Number Three in the amount of $54,356.00 to the professional services contract (Contract 
Number 04-221) with O’Malley Engineers, L.L.P., for additional design services for the Veterans 
Park & Athletic Complex Phase II project. 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval of Change Order Number Two in the amount 
of $54,356.00 to proceed with design services for additional work at Veterans Park and Athletic 
Complex. The Parks & Recreation Advisory Board reviewed this recommendation at their 
November 14, 2006 Board meeting and voted unanimously (Ireland absent) in support. 
 
Summary:  The design of the Veterans Park and Athletic Complex, Phase II improvements began 
in December 2004.  Elements include three additional lighted adult softball fields, three lighted 
soccer fields, additional parking and roadways, a soccer restroom building, concession-restroom 
building for the softball facility, a large group pavilion, landscaping, expansion to the maintenance 
building space and a one-mile concrete history walk.   
 
Construction of Phase II began in February of 2006 with completion expected in March 2007. Use 
of the new athletic facilities is expected to begin in late summer or early fall of 2007 after the turf 
is fully established. Staff estimates that approximately $800,000 will remain in the project fund 
following the completion of the Phase II construction. 
 
A list of suggested items to be added to the park was developed by staff.  This list was reviewed 
by the Veterans Park subcommittee of the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board on November 9, 
2006 and priorities were determined.  The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board reviewed the 
subcommittee’s priority recommendations during the regular meeting on November 14, 2006.  
The Board accepted the subcommittee’s recommendations with a unanimous vote. 
 
The primary recommendation is to complete the extension of Veterans Parkway to University 
Drive (Highway 60).  This additional 800 feet of roadway will provide a second entrance into the 
park, improve safety, and ease traffic congestion within the park.  The Parks & Recreation 
Advisory Board further recommends that the remaining funds be spent on additional landscaping 
and a small outdoor grill area for the concession stand at the softball complex.  The addition of 
these elements at this time will improve the service level for our customers and will reduce the 
cost of completing the remainder of the park in the future. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   Funds for this project are budgeted in the Parks Capital 
Projects Fund.  Staff estimates that approximately $800,000 will remain in the project fund at the 
completion of Phase II.  The design change order is $54,356.00. The engineer's estimate for the 
completion of Veterans Parkway is $629,712.  This estimate includes a 15% contingency fee. 
 
Attachments: 
 
1.  Change Order #2 
2.  VPAC Master Plan 
3.  Phase I and Phase II Site Plan 
4.  Extension of Veterans Parkway 











 

 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda Item  

Lincoln Center Entry Sidewalk Cover 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Eric Ploeger, Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a 
resolution awarding contract number 07-052, a Construction Contract with CLM 
Construction, in the amount of $56,840.00 for the construction of a sidewalk cover at the 
north entrance of Lincoln Center.  The Project Number is PK 0602.  
 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends award of the contract to the lowest responsible 
bidder meeting specifications, CLM Construction.  
 
 
Summary:  This contract is for the installation of an architectural roof structure extending 
from the Lincoln Center building to the edge of the parking lot at the north entry.  This 
1,200 square foot cover will provide all weather protection to Lincoln Center patrons and is 
large enough to also serve as a gathering area for the Center.  Alternate Number Two is 
recommended for approval.  This alternate will provide lighting under the new walk cover. 
 
Sealed competitive bids for Bid Number 07-22 were received from three (3) contracting 
firms.  The bid summary is attached. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  This project is included in FY2007 Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds.  Funds are budgeted and available for this project 
in the Parks Capital Projects Fund in the amount of $45,000.  Design and miscellaneous 
charges are $3,290.00.  The remaining funds needed for the project ($15,130.00) will come 
from the Lions Park Improvement Projects that are now complete and under budget.  The 
Lions Park projects are also budgeted with CDBG Funds. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
1)  Resolution 
2)  07-22 Bid Tabulation 
3)  Project Location Map 
4)  Site Plan 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO._______________ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE LINCOLN 
CENTER ENTRY SIDEWALK COVER PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXPENDITURES OF FUNDS.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, solicited bids for the construction phase of the 
Lincoln Center Entry Sidewalk Cover Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of CLM Construction, is being recommended as the lowest 
responsible bidder for the construction services related to the Lincoln Center Entry Sidewalk 
Cover Project; now, therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that CLM Construction is the lowest 

responsible bidder. 
 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with CLM Construction 

for $56,840.00 for the labor, materials, and equipment required for the 
improvements related to the Lincoln Center Entry Sidewalk Cover Project.  
This includes Alternate Number Two for lighting under the structure. 

  
PART 3: That the funding for this project shall be as budgeted from the Parks Capital 

Improvements Projects Fund in the amount of $56,840.00. 
 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
 
ADOPTED this    day of      , A.D. 2006. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

 
E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson

VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  
       
City Attorney 



 



 

Lincoln Center Entry Addition
BID #07-22

PARKS

CLM Construction Dudley Construction Central Texas Construction
Description Item Total Item Total Item Total

1 Base Bid $54,990.00 $58,700.00 $80,400.00

1.1

Alternate No. 1 - This alternate shall establish the 
amount to be added to the Base Bid if concrete flatwork 
is provided underneath new canopy as indicated on the 
drawings. This shall also include demolition required of 
all existing concrete walk in the area of the new 
concrete.                                                                        
1."Concrete" $7,300.00 $12,250.00 $11,250.00

1.2

Alternate No. 2 - This alternate shall establish the 
amount to the Base bid if light fixtures are provided and 
installed underneath canopy as indicated on the 
Drawings and described in the specifications. This 
includes all writing associated items to supply power to 
canopy from location of panelbox. The canopy structure 
will have concealed raceway for wiring and no conduit 
or electrical items other than fixtures shall be provided 
at canopy. All materials and labor for conduit, 
assocories and connections inside exsisting building shall 
be furnished as part of this alterante.                     2. 
"Lighting" $1,850.00 $2,200.00 $6,500.00

 Grand Total $64,140.00 $73,150.00 $98,150.00

Calendar Days for Completion            105 120 120
Certification of Bid                                 Y Y N
Addendum Acknowledged                  0 0 0
Bid Bond Y Y Y
Deviations/Conditions                          N/A N/A N/A

 Page 1 of 1 







 

December 14, 2006 
Consent Agenda Item  

Adamson Lagoon Replacement Bathhouse Design Services and a Resolution 
declaring intention to reimburse certain expenditures with proceeds from debt. 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Eric Ploeger, Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution 
awarding a Professional Services Contract (Contract Number 07-082) to  
Arkitex Studio, Inc., for design services related to a replacement bathhouse for Adamson 
Lagoon in the amount of $90,000.00  
 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval of the resolution awarding a 
professional services contract to Arkitex Studio, Inc. of College Station, Texas.  
 
 
Summary:  This project calls for the complete replacement of the Adamson Lagoon 
Bathhouse.  Design for the new bathhouse will be completed in FY 2007, with the 
construction tentatively scheduled for FY 2008.  Scheduling of design, bid, and construction 
activities are critical to mitigate the impact upon Adamson Lagoon’s operations during the 
summer of 2008. 
 
The Adamson Lagoon Bathhouse was originally constructed in 1976.  The structure is in 
poor condition, with cracking walls and a flat roof that has leaked on numerous occasions.  
The current building is too small for the increased patronage that has occurred during 
recent years.   
 
In 1993, several water slides and other amenities were added to the pool increasing its 
popularity. In 2000, the pool and its mechanical systems were completely renovated.  
Adamson Lagoon is also heavily used by the swim instruction program.  A new bathhouse 
will comply with current Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Standards, increase the 
effectiveness of the staff, lower repair costs, and improve services to pool patrons with 
adequate restrooms, dressing facilities, concession area, and larger public spaces.  Pool 
patronage has increased from 19,644 in 1991 to 45,750 in 2006. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   Funds for the Professional Services Contract are available 
and budgeted in the Parks Capital Improvement Projects Fund. 
 
The "Resolution Declaring Intention to Reimburse Certain Expenditures With Proceeds from 
Debt" is necessary for this item because the long term debt has not been issued for this 
project.  This debt is scheduled to be issued later this fiscal year. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
1)  Resolution  
2)  Resolution Declaring Intention To Reimburse 
2)  Adamson Site Plan 
 



 

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO._______________ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, SELECTING A PROFESSIONAL CONTRACTOR, APPROVING 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT NUMBER 07-082, AND AUTHORIZING 
THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS FOR THE DESIGN OF THE ADAMSON LAGOON 
BATHHOUSE REPLACEMENT.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, requested a proposal for the professional design 
services for the Adamson Lagoon Bathhouse Replacement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of Arkitex Studio, Inc., is being recommended as the most highly 
qualified provider of the design services; now, therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that Arkitex Studio, Inc., is the most 

highly qualified provider of services for the design of the Adamson 
Lagoon Bathhouse Replacement on the basis of demonstrated competence 
and qualifications. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with Arkitex Studio, 

Inc., for $90,000.00 for the professional design services related to the 
design of the Adamson Lagoon Bathhouse Replacement. 

  
PART 3: That the funding for this project shall be as budgeted from the Parks 

Capital Improvements Project Fund in the amount of $90,000.00. 
 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
 
ADOPTED this    day of      , A.D. 2006. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

      
City Attorney 











 

 

December 14, 2006 
Regular Agenda  

Approval of a Development Agreement with Lonestar –  
College Station Golf Academy, Ltd 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Gwin, Director of Economic and Community Development                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding a Development 
Agreement with Lonestar – College Station Golf Academy, Ltd.  
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of Version 1 of the Development 
Agreement as presented.   
 
Summary:  Quality non-residential development in the SH 6 – Earl Rudder Freeway 
Corridor is a priority of the City Council. The recommended Development Agreement with 
Lonestar- College Station Golf Academy, Ltd prepares the way for the development of 8.64 
acres of the current 25.07-acre, Lot 2 of Horse Haven Estates, which is located just east of 
the Earl Rudder Freeway and North of Horse Haven Lane.  
 
The 25.07-acre, Lot 2 of Horse Haven Estates is currently subject to an existing  
Development Agreement, dated March 12, 1998, that requires the dedication of right-of-
way and construction of Appomattox Drive and other infrastructure through the back half of 
the property when any part of the subject parcel is developed.  
 
The owner originally approached the city with the development proposal as outlined in 
Version 1 of the Development Agreement. However, he has requested that the City Council 
consider Version 2 instead.   
 
Version 1 - Under the recommended Development Agreement, the owner seeks to divide 
the property into three lots, i.e. 2A, AB and 2C, and requests to defer the dedication of 
right-of-way and construction of Appomattox Drive and the other infrastructure until such 
time as lots 2B and 2C are developed. The new agreement would thus release Lot 2A to be 
developed at this time and defer the dedication of right-of-way and construction of 
Appomattox Drive and the other infrastructure until such time as the balance of the 
property is developed.   
 
Version 2 - Under the recently-received, second version of the Development Agreement, 
the owner seeks to divide the property into the same three lots, i.e. 2A, AB and 2C, but 
requests to defer the dedication of right-of-way and construction of Appomattox Drive and 
the other infrastructure until such time as only lot 2C is developed. The new agreement 
would thus release both Lots 2A and 2B to be developed at this time and defer the 
dedication of right-of-way and construction of Appomattox Drive and the other 
infrastructure until such time as the back portion of the property is developed.   
 
Both versions of the proposed Development Agreement require the owner to provide a 
financial guarantee to insure that Appomattox Drive and the other infrastructure is paid for 
if the owner fails to construct them per the provisions of the new agreement.   
 
Currently, Lot 2 of Horse Haven Estates is zoned Agriculture-Open (A-O). However, the 
owner is also pursuing a zoning change on Lots 2A and 2B of the newly divided property to 



 

 

General Commercial (C-1) at the December 14, 2006 Meeting of the City Council. Lot 2C 
would remain zoned Agriculture-Open (A-O) at this time.  
 
The purported use of Lot 2A is for the development of a 65,000+ square foot outdoor and 
sporting goods retailer.  The retailer is nationally known and currently operates 103 stores 
in 21 states. Of these, nine are in Texas and the closest one to this market is in Houston.  
 
Budget & Financial Summary: There are no direct costs to the city by entering into this 
Development Agreement. Instead, the anticipated retail development at this site is valued 
at $9 million and estimated to generate in excess of $15 million per year in taxable sales.   
 
Attachments: 
 
Version 1 - Lonestar – College Station Golf Academy Development Agreement 
 
Version 2 - Lonestar – College Station Golf Academy Development Agreement 





























































 

 

December 14, 2006 
Regular Agenda  

Approval of an Economic Development Agreement with  
Reynolds and Reynolds Company 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Gwin, Director of Economic and Community Development                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding an Economic 
Development Agreement with Reynolds and Reynolds Company, which was formerly known 
as Universal Computer Systems, Inc.  
 
Recommendation(s): Staff is the process of developing the Economic Development 
Agreement and plans to bring it to the City Council at the December 14, 2006 meeting.   
 
Summary: In a recent major acquisition, Universal Computer Systems, Inc., located at 
200 Quality Circle, merged with Reynolds and Reynolds Company, a long-time market 
competitor. Reynolds and Reynolds Company is currently based in Kettering, Ohio. The 
newly-merged company is now facing major operations and management decisions on how 
to best position the corporation as they move forward with the integration.  
 
As part of the city’s on-going efforts in the retention and expansion of local businesses, staff 
is developing a draft economic development agreement for the City Council and Brazos 
County Commissioner’s Court to consider. It is believed that a quick and proactive position 
from the City and Brazos County would have positive long-term benefits for the city’s 
economic environment.  
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  TBD 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Staff will make the agreement available before if possible, or at the December 14, 2006 City 
Council meeting 
 



December 14, 2006 
Regular Agenda 

Horse Haven Estates Rezoning 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an 
ordinance rezoning 13.57 acres  located at 2301 Earl Rudder Freeway South, in the general 
vicinity of the northeast corner of the intersection of Horse Haven Lane and Earl Rudder 
Freeway South, from A-O (Agricultural Open) to C-1 (General Commercial). 
 
Recommendation(s): The Planning and Zoning Commission will hear this item on 
December 7, 2006. The recommendation of the Commission will be presented to the Council 
at the meeting. Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
Summary: The applicant is requesting a C-1 (General Commercial) rezoning on the portion 
of the property that has frontage on Earl Rudder Freeway South in anticipation of 
commercial development on the site. The rezoning area is approximately 13 of the entire 25 
acres of the lot. The remainder is to remain A-O (Agricultural Open). 
 
This redevelopment of the property has also triggered the provisions of a 1998 
Development Agreement between the original owner and the City requiring the dedication 
and construction of Appomattox Drive. The applicant is seeking a continuation of this 
Development Agreement with the City Council on December 14th to provide the dedication 
and construction of Appomattox and related infrastructure at the time of development on 
proposed Lots 2B or 2C. 
 
The Land Use Plan designates this area as Retail Regional. The rear of the property not 
affected by this rezoning is identified as Single Family Residential – Medium Density. The 
property has over 700 feet of frontage on Earl Rudder Freeway South, a designated highway 
on the Thoroughfare plan. The property is bound by Horse Haven Lane on the south and 
Switch Station Road on the north. 
 
The subject property was annexed in 1971 and 1977, and subsequently zoned A-O  
(Agricultural Open). The property was platted in 1998 as Lot 2 of Horse Haven Estates and 
has been operating as a driving range. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
Attachments: 
1. Small Area Map (SAM) & Aerial 
2. C-1 Zoning District Fact Sheet 
3. Ordinance 
4. Planning and Zoning Commission Draft Minutes, December 7, 2006 (available at 

meeting) 
 
 





 



UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE FACT SHEET  

C-1 General Commercial 
 
This district is designed to provide locations for general commercial purposes, that is, 
retail sales and service uses that function to serve the entire community and its visitors.  

Permitted:  
• Extended Care Facility / Convalescent / Nursing Home  
• Educational Facility, Indoor Instruction  
• Educational Facility, Outdoor Instruction  
• Educational Facility, Primary & Secondary  
• Educational Facility, Tutoring  
• Educational Facility, Vocational / Trade  
• Government Facilities  
• Health Care, Hospital  
• Health Care, Medical Clinic  
• Parks  
• Places of Worship  
• Animal Care Facility -Indoor  
• Art Studio / Gallery  
• Conference / Convention Center  
• Country Club  
• Day Care, Commercial  
• Drive-in / thru Window  
• Dry Cleaners and Laundry  
• Fraternal Lodge  
• Funeral Homes  
• Health Club / Sports Facility, Indoor  
• Health Club / Sports Facility, Outdoor  
• Hotels  
• Offices  
• Parking as a Primary Use  
• Personal Service Shop  
• Printing / Copy Shop  
• Radio / TV station / studios  
• Restaurants  
• Retail Sales -Single Tenant over 50,000 SF  
• Shooting Range, Indoor  
• Theater  
• Storage, Self Service  
• Wireless Telecommunication Facilities -Unregulated  
 
Permitted with Specific Use Standards:  
• Fuel Sales 
• Golf Course or Driving Range  
• Car Wash 
• Commercial Garden/Greenhouse/Landscape Maintenance  
• Commercial Amusements 
• Retail Sales and Service 
• Sexually Oriented Business 
• Vehicular Sales, Rental, Repair and Service  



• Wholesales / Services 
• Utilities 
• Wireless Telecommunication Facilities -Intermediate 

 
Permitted with a Conditional Use Permit:  
• Night Club, Bar or Tavern  
• Wireless Telecommunication Facilities - Major  
 
 



ORDMANCE NO. 

AN ORDWANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, "UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE," 
SECTION 4.2, "OFFICIAL ZONING MAP," OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY CHANGING THE ZONING DISTRICT 
BOUNDARIES AFFECTING CERTAIN PROPERTIES AS DESCRIBED BELOW; 
DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE ClTY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 

PART 1 : That Chapter 1 2, "Unified Devetopment Ordinance," Section 4.2, "Oficial Zoning 
Map," of the Code of Ordii~ances of the City of CoIIege Station, Texas, be amended 
as set out in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all 
purposes. 

PART 2: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon cot~viction therwf shall be 
punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than Two 
Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00). Each day such violation shall continue or he 
permitted to continue, shall be deemed a separate offense. Said Ordinance, being a 
penal ordinance, becomes effective ten (1 0) days after i ts  date of passage by the City 
Council, as provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the City of College Station. 

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 14th day of December, 2006. 

APPROVED: 

- 
RON SILVIA. Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Connie Hooks, City Secretary 

APPROVED: 



ORDINANCE NO. 

EXHIBIT "A" 

Page 2 

That Chapttr 12, "Ut~itied Development Ordinance," Section 4.2, "Official Zoning Map," of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, is hereby amended as follows: 

The following property is rezoned from A-0, Agtlcultural Open to C- 1, General Commercial: 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION 
OF A 

13.16 ACRE TRACT 
MORGAN RECTOR LEAGUE, A-46 

COLLEGE STATION, BIWZOS COUNTY, TEXAS 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION OF ALL THAT CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND LYING AND 
BEING SITUATED TN THE MORGAN RECTOR LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NO. 46, COLLEGE 
STATION, BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS. SALD TRACT BEING A PORTION OF LOT 2, HORSE 
HAVEN ESTATES, ACCORDING TO THE CORRECTION PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 3 158, 
PAGE 335 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS. 

SATD TRACT BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY h1ETES AND BOUNDS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT A !% WCH R O N  ROD FOUND AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE NOKTHEAST 
LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY NO. 6 (EARL RUDDER FREEWAY - VARIABLE WIDTH R.O.W.) 
FRONTAGE ROAD AND THE NORTHWEST LINE OF HORSE HAVEN LANE (60' K.0.U'. AT 
THIS POINT) MARKING THE SOUTH CORNER OF sr\m LOT 2; 

THENCE: N 32" 02' 06" W ALONG THE NORTHEAST LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY NO. 6 FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 674.23 FEET TO A '/I INCH IRON ROD FOUND AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE 
NORTHEAST LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY NO. 6 AND THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF SWITCH 
STATION ROAD (60' R.0.W .) MARKING THE WEST CORNER OF S A I D  LOT 2; 

THENCE: N 42" 09' 43" E ALONG THE SOUTHEAST LME OF SWITCH STATION ROAD, SAME 
BEING THE NORTHWEST LTNEOF S A I D  LOT 2, FOR A DISTANCE OF 620.21 FEET TO A 
POINT; 

THENCE: S 44" 46' 13" E THROUGH SAID LOT 2 FOR A DISTANCE OF 881.07 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF HORSE HAVEN ESTATES, PHASE TWO, ACCORDNG TO THE 
PLAT RECORDED IN VOLUME 7446, PAGE 154 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
B W O S  COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID POINT BEING IN A CLOCKWISE CURVE HAVtNG A RADIUS 
OF 565.00 FEET; 



ORDrNANCE NO. Page 3 

THENCE: ALONG THE COMMON LINE OF S A L D  LOT 2 AND HORSE HAVEN ESTATES, 
PHASE TWO, AND ALONG SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 07" 02' 35" FOR 
AN ARC DISTANCE OF 69.45 FEET (CIIORD BEARS : S 38" 10' 3 I " W - 69.4 1 FEET) TO A POINT 
OY THE NORTHWEST LINE OF HORSE HAVEN LANE MARKING THE ENDMG POINT OF 
S A D  CURVE, SAID POINT MARKING THE TRANSITION OF THE 60.00' R.O. W. TO A 50.00' 
R.O.W.: 

THENCE: ALONG THE NORTHWEST LINE OF HORSE HAVEN LANE (60' R.O.W.) FOR THE 
FOLLOWING CALLS: 

S 41" 41' 46" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 96.28 FEET TO A 518 TNCH RON ROD SET 
MARKING THE BEGINNING OF A CLOCKWISE CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 565.00 
FEET; 

ALONG SALD CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 33" 44' 24" FOR AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 332.71 FEET (CHORD BEARS: S 58" 33' 58" W - 327.93 FEET) TO A 
518INCH IRON ROD SET h1ARICING THE ENDING POINT OF SAID CURVE; 

S 75" 26' 08" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 1 1 1.46 FEET TO A 518 INCH IRON ROD SET 
MARKJNG THE BEGINNING OF A COUNTERCLOCKWISE CURVE HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 635 -00 FEET: 

ALONG SAID CUKVE THROUGH A CENTRAL AVGLE OF 17" 35' 10" FOR AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 194.90 FEET (CHORD BEARS: S 66" 41' 33" W - 194.14 FEET) TO A 518 
INCII IRON ROD SET MARKING THE ENDING POINT 01: SAID CURVE; 

S 60" 59' 45" W FOR A DISTANCE OF 7.15 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING 
CON?'ALNING 5.433 ACRES OF LAND, M O M  OF LESS. AS SURVEYED ON THE 
GROUND NOVEMBER, 2006. BEARING SYSTEM SHOWN HEREIN IS BASED ON THE 
PLAT CALLED BEARINGS OF SAID LOT 2, IIORSE HAVEN ESTATES. 3 1 581335. 

DRAD KERR 
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL 
LAND SURVEYOR No. 4502 



ORDWANCE NO. 

EXHIBIT "B" 

Page 4 



December 14, 2006 
Regular Agenda 

UDO Amendment - Development Plats 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance amending Chapter 12, City of College Station Code of Ordinances, Article 3 of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, regulating the applicability of development plats in the City 
of College Station and its extraterritorial jurisdiction.  
 
Recommendation(s): The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended 
approval of this item at their meeting on November 16, 2006.  Staff also recommends 
approval. 
 
Summary: The TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE (Chapter 212 Subchapter B “Regulation of 
Property Development”) allows municipalities to require a development plat for properties 
that are developing, but not required to final plat.  This gives a city the opportunity to 
acquire easements, rights-of-way, etc. and identify existing conditions on properties that 
otherwise would not have had to plat.  The City of College Station elected to be covered by 
this Section and require development plats with the adoption of the UDO in 2003. 
 
The ordinance has now been in effect for over three years.  In the limited number of times 
the development plat has been required for a submittal, it has been for the development of 
a large-acreage single family home and the plat has effectively served no purpose.  The 
strength of the ordinance essentially lies in its requirements for commercial and multi-family 
developments, discouraging development on properties that do not meet the City of College 
Station’s standards for a lot.   
 
The proposed amendment is to exempt from the development plat requirement tracts over 
five acres that otherwise would not have to plat and that are developing for homestead 
and/or agricultural purposes.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. 16 November 2006 P&Z Draft Minutes 
2. Ordinance  

 



 

P&Z Regular Minutes November 16, 2006 Page 1 of 1 

, 
 
 
 

 

MINUTES  
Regular Meeting  

Planning and Zoning Commission  
Thursday, November 16, 2006, at 7:00 

p.m.  
Council Chambers, College Station City 

Hall  
1101 Texas Avenue  

College Station, Texas  

 
 

 
7. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an amendment to 

the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) regarding the applicability of 
development plats in the City of College Station and its extraterritorial jurisdiction. 
Case # 05-500209 (MH) 

  
Molly Hitchcock, Planning Administrator, presented the amendment to the Unified 
Development Ordinance.  
 
No one spoke at the public hearing.  
 
Commissioner motioned to accept the amendment as presented by staff. 
Commissioner Schroeder seconded the motion, motion passed (4-0). 
  
  

 
 
 
Approved: 
 

 
______________________________________ 
John Nichols, Chairman 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

 
Attest:  
  
 
______________________________________ 
Lisa Lindgren, Staff Assistant 
Planning and Development Services 



ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, “UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE” 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, AS 
SET OUT BELOW; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; DECLARING A PENALTY; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of College Station, Texas, be amended as set out in Exhibit “A”, attached 
hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining 
provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter 

shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be 
punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than 
Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00).  Each day such violation shall continue or be 
permitted to continue, shall be deemed a separate offense.  Said Ordinance, being a 
penal ordinance, becomes effective ten (10) days after its date of passage by the 
City Council, as provided by Section 34 of the Charter of the City of College 
Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 14th day of December, 2006. 
 

     APPROVED: 
 

   __________________________________________ 
   RON SILVIA, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

_______________________________ 
City Attorney 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________________             Page 2 
 
 

Exhibit “A” 
 
 

That Chapter 12, “Unified Development Ordinance,” Section 3.3 “Subdivision Plat Review” 
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, is hereby amended by 
amending paragraph A.2 to read as follows:  
 
 
“3.3  Subdivision Plat Review 

A.  Applicability 

2. Any person who proposes the development of a tract of land within the City 
limits or the extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of College Station 
must have a Development Plat of the tract prepared in accordance with this 
Section.  New development may not begin on the property until the 
Development Plat is filed with and approved by the City.  The Administrator 
may waive the requirement for a Development Plat within the City limits 
when no parkland, infrastructure, or easement dedication is required on the 
subject tract. 

Exemptions: 

a. When an applicant is required to file a Preliminary or Final Subdivision Plat 
by other requirements of this Section, a Development Plat is not required 
in addition to the Subdivision Plat. 

b. The development of a tract of land within the City limits or the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of College Station that meets 
all of the following criteria is not required to file a Development Plat: 

1) The tract is larger than five (5) acres; 

2) The tract has access; and  

3) The development is a single family home for the use of the property 
owner or a member of the property owner’s family, an accessory 
structure(s) of the home, and/or an accessory structure(s) for the 
benefit of agricultural uses.” 

 
 
 



 

 

December 14, 2006 
Regular Agenda  

Appointments to B/CS Library Committee and  
Joint Relief Funding Review Committee 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Connie Hooks, City Secretary                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the 
appointment of committee members to the Bryan/College Station Library Committee to fill 
two positions that expire in December, 2006 and one position on the Joint Relief Funding 
Review Committee that expires December, 2006.  . 
 
Summary:  Members of the B/CS Library Committee serve two year terms.  Katherine 
Edwards and Don Scherr terms expire December, 2006.  Ms. Edwards and Mr. Scherr 
reapplied.   
 
Members of the Joint Relief Funding Review Committee serve three year terms.  The term of 
Rebecca Eplen expires December 31, 2006.  Ms. Eplen resigned in July, 2006.   
 
 
Attachments: 
Applications for B/CS Library Committee 
Applications for Joint Relief Funding Review Committee 
 
 



Joint Relief Funding Review Committee 
 

(3 members from College Station, 
3 members from Bryan) 

  Staff Liaison:
Debbie Eller

    

Name Original 
Appt. 

Address Phone 

Rebecca Eplen 
12/06 

2003 401 Sapphire Drive 
College Station 77845 

690-7467 (H) 
  690-6487 (W) 

J. Kevin Byrne 
12/08 

2001 711 Prestwick Ct. 
College Station 77845 

690-6526 (H) 
361-6200 (W) 

Deborah Deitering     
12/07 

2006 4205 Snug Harbor Drive 
College Station, Texas  77845 

 

690-9406 wk 
690-0673 hm 
 

Rusleen Maurice 
12/08 

1999 3306 Carter Creek Pkwy 
Bryan  

846-5232 (H) 
 

Charlotte Mikulec 
12/06 

2000 2300 Yosemite 
Bryan 

778-8801 (H) 
845-1273 (W) 

Peggy Samson 
12/06 
 
 

2000 2907 Wildflower  
Bryan   

774-0092 (H) 
845-6366 (W) 

 



Duties and Responsibilities  
 
Review all funding requests from charitable or any other assistance type agencies, public 
or private, to the cities.  The committee shall make appropriate recommendation to City 
Council for their consideration.  
 
Membership  
 
Members serve three-year terms.  Members shall be qualified residents and voters of the 
City of College Station. 
 
The committee consists of three representatives from College Station and three 
representatives from Bryan.  
 
Meetings  
 
On call by chairman.  
 
Authority  
City Council Resolution No. 5-26-88-12   
 



I Debbie Cody - Response to Apply For A Citizen Committee Page 1 I 

From: "City of College Station -" einfoQcstx.gov> 
To: ewmason Qcstx.gov> 
Date: 9/27/2006 1 :02:57 PM 
Subject: Response to Apply For A Citizen Committee 

Form Name: Date Submitted: 9/27/2006 12:58:03 PM 
Apply For A Citizen Committee 
Name: Vanessa Wilkerson-Dunn 
Home Address: 301 3 Durango 
Telephone: 979-696-6781 
Fax: 
E-mail: vanessa-w-dunn Q yahoo.com 
College Station Resident for - years: 8 
Subdivision: Southwood Valley 
Voter Registration Number: 
Business Owner: No 
Business Name: Sherwood Healthcare, Inc. 
Occupation: Director of Social Services 
Work Address: 1401 Memorial 
Work Telephone: 979-776-7521 
Work Fax: 979-774-71 18 
Work E-mail: 
Education: B.S. Health Education 
Position Sought (No. 1 being most preferable and No. 3 being least 
preferable): Joint Relief Funding Review Committee, Lincoln Center 
Advisory Committee, Outside Agency Funding Review Committee 
If you currently serve on any other committees, boards or commissions, 
please list them here: 
Please list any experience or interest that qualifies you to serve in 
the position desired: Served on Bryan Parks and Recreation Board, Was 
hired in Bryan ISD in 1992 with Community Block grant funds. 
In compliance with Chapter 552, Government Code (Public Information 
Act), information related to the applicant's home address, home 
telephone number, and e-mail address shall be made available to the 
public, unless the applicant chooses not to release the information. 
Release information?: Yes 

CC: edcody@cstx.gov>, evcasares@cstx.gov> 



1 Debbie Cody - Response to Apply For A Citizen Committee Page 1 

From: "City of College Station -" ~info@cstx.gov> 
To: <wmason @cstx.gov> 
Date: 7/24/2006 11 :37:16 AM 
Subject: Response to Apply For A Citizen Committee 

Form Name: Date Submitted: 7/24/2006 11 :31:26 AM 
Apply For A Citizen Committee 
Name: Jan Richards 
Home Address: 5921 Piper Lane 
Telephone: 777-31 26 
Fax: 
E-mail: j-richards@tamu.edu 
College Station Resident for - years: 20 
Subdivision: canyon creek 
Voter Registration Number: 
Business Owner: No 
Business Name: 
Occupation: university administration 
Work Address: Office of Distance Education 
Work Telephone: 845-4370 
Work Fax: 
Work E-mail: 
Education: master in education 
Position Sought (No. 1 being most preferable and No. 3 being least 
preferable): Joint Relief Funding Review Committee, , 
If you currently serve on any other committees, boards or commissions, 
please list them here: 
Please list any experience or interest that qualifies you to serve in 
the position desired: I have been active in creating fundraising 
activities. I worked with the American Cancer Society Relay For Life and 
was instrumental in our doubling our participation and income. I have a 
degree in business administration and a master in education. I am a 
FranklinCovey facilitator and practice the 7 habits of highly effective 
people. 
In compliance with Chapter 552, Government Code (Public Information 
Act), information related to the applicant's home address, home 
telephone number, and e-mail address shall be made available to the 
public, unless the applicant chooses not to release the information. 
Release information?: No 



From: "City of College Station -" <info@cstx.gov> 
To: <dcody@cstx.gov> 
Date: 1/22/2006 8:39: 1 1 AM 
Subject: Response to Apply For A Citizen Committee 

Form Name: Date Submitted: 1/22/2006 8:21:31 AM 
Apply For A Citizen Committee 
Name: Anne Steen 
Home Address: 1218 Lancelot Cr. 
Telephone: 979-696-4538 
Fax: 979-696-4538 
E-mail: coolnotary@verizon.net 
College Station Resident for - years: Oct 7,2005 
Subdivision: Camelot 
Voter Registration Number: 264000 
Business Owner: No 
Business Name: 
Occupation: RetiredIBookkeeper 
Work Address: 
Work Telephone: 
Work Fax: 
Work E-mail: 
Education: 
Position Sought (No. 1 beirlg most preferable and No. 3 being least 
preferable): Historic Preservation Committee, Joint Relief Funding 
Review Committee, Senior Advisory Committee 
If you currently serve on any other committees, boards or commissions, 
please list them here: VolunteerlHOLD project. I am new in the community 
and am very interested in getting involved in this (my community). 
Please list any experience or interest that qualifies you to serve in 
the position desired: I was chairperson on many committees involving the 
seniors at my church and volunteered my services at the senior facility 
in my community in Moreno Valley CA. 
In compliance with Chapter 552, Government Code (Public Information 
Act), information related to the applicant's home address, home 
telephone number, and e-mail address shall be made available to the 
public, unless the applicant chooses not to release the information. 
Release information?: No 

CC: <vcasares@cstx.gov> 



I Debbie Codv - Res~onse to APP~V For A Citizen Committee Pane 1 I 

From: "City of College Station -" cinfoQcstx.gov> 
To: <wmason Qcstx.gov> 
Date: 1 1 /29/2006 4: 1 3:50 PM 
Subject: Response to Apply For A Citizen Committee 

Form Name: Date Submitted: 1 1/29/2006 3:38:36 PM 
Apply For A Citizen Committee 
Name: Tedi Ellison 
Home Address: 2902 Camille Drive 
Telephone: 979-696-9889 
Fax: 979-693-881 9 
E-mail: tediQellisonlaw.com 
College Station Resident for - years: 22 years 
Subdivision: Southwood Forest 
Voter Registration Number: 
Business Owner: No 
Business Name: The Ellison Firm 
Occupation: Office/Business Mgr. 
Work Address: P.O. Box 101 03, CS, TX 77842 
Work Telephone: 979-696-9889 
Work Fax: 979-693-881 9 
Work E-mail: tediQellisonlaw.com 
Education: Masters DegreeIEducation 
Position Sought (No. 1 being most preferable and No. 3 being least 
preferable): Joint Relief Funding Review Committee, , 
If you currently serve on any other committees, boards or commissions, 
please list them here: B/CS Chamber of Commerce: Executive Com., Board 
of Directors, Legislative Affairs Com. and Transportation Com., CPAC 
rep. from the Chamber; Friends of Sterling C.Evans Library Bd. of 
Directors; RVP/ Easterwood Air Service Committee 
Please list any experience or interest that qualifies you to serve in 
the position desired: This is a great community and if I can serve and 
be of any assistance I would welcome the opportunity. 
In compliance with Chapter 552, Government Code (Public Information 
Act), information related to the applicant's home address, home 
telephone number, and e-mail address shall be made available to the 
public, unless the applicant chooses not to release the information. 
Release information?: Yes 

CC: cdcody@cstx.gov~, <vcasaresQcstx.gov> 



B/CS Library Committee 
 

 
(8 Members)   Staff Liaison:

David Gerling

Name Original 
Appt. 

Address Phone 

Chairman 
Larry Ringer 
12/07 

1998 4717 St. Andrews 
College Station 77845 
 

696-8912 (H) 
845-3141 (W) 

Katherine Edwards 
12/06 

2005 313 Pershing 
College Station 77840 

696-4281 (H) 
845-6293 (W) 

Don Scherr 
12/06 

2005 3206 Salzburg Ct. 
College Station 77845 

696-7382 (H) 
 

Mary Fran Troy 
12/07 

2006 1002 Rose Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

696-2614 (H) 
845-0579 (W) 

Jeanne Mitchell  
12/07 

         2001 2100 Briar Oaks  
Bryan 77802 

846-2673 (H) 
      845-2173 (W) 

 
B. Carroll Johnson 
12/07 

1999  
Bryan 77801 

846-3970 (H) 

Jennifer Bohac 
12/06 

2004 3906 Parkhurst 
Bryan TX 77803 

776-0748 (H) 

James Bradford 
12/06 

2004 2513 Towering Oaks Dr. 
Bryan 77802 

774-0660 (H) 
845-7165 (W) 

 
 

 
                                      

 
Encourage development of the Bryan and College Station Libraries; recommend policies 
and programs for advancement of the Bryan and College Station Libraries; cooperate 
with all other public and private groups in advancing the best interest of the Bryan and 
College Station Libraries.  
 
Membership  
 
Member shall be a qualified resident of the City of College Station.  
Four members from each city. Members serve two year terms.  



 
Meetings  
 
Meetings in Jan., March, May, July, Sept., Nov. - third Tuesday of the month at 5:00 pm 
(location rotates from library to library).  
 
Authority  
 
Action taken at City Council Meeting of October 23, 1997.   
 
 
 
 



I Debbie Cody - Response to Apply For A Citizen Committee Page 1 I 

From: "City of College Station -" cinfo@cstx.gov> 
To : cwmason @cstx.gov> 
Date: 9/24/2006 8:59:19 PIW 
Subject: Response to Apply For A Citizen Committee 

Form Name: Date Submitted: 9/24/2006 8:55:29 PM 
Apply For A Citizen Committee 
Name: Christopher Taylor 
Home Address: P.O. Box 5979 
Telephone: 979-574-371 7 
Fax: 
E-mail: cst8tamu.edu 
College Station Resident for - years: 3 
Subdivision: JP3 
Voter Registration Number: 20604584 
Business Owner: No 
Business Name: 
Occupation: Student 
Work Address: 
Work Telephone: 
Work Fax: 
Work E-mail: 
Education: Senior Philosophy major, Texas A&M Universtiy 
Position Sought (No. 1 being most preferable and No. 3 being least 
preferable): Senior Advisory Committee, Library Committee, Cemetery 
Committee 
If you currently serve on any other committees, boards or commissions, 
please list them here: 
Please list any experience or interest that qualifies you to serve in 
the position desired: I have a great love to serve others and i want to 
gove back to the community that has supoorted me for the past three 
years. 
In compliance with Chapter 552, Government Code (Public Information 
Act), information related to the applicant's home address, home 
telephone number, and e-mail address shall be made available to the 
public, unless the applicant chooses not to release the information. 
Release information?: Yes 

CC: cdcody@cstx.gov~, cvcasares8cstx.gov> 



1 Debbie Cody - Response to Apply For A Citizen Committee Page 1 

From: "City of College Station -" <info@cstx.gov> 
To: <wmason 8 cstx.gov> 
Date: 1 1 1812006 8:42:11 AIM 
Subject: Response to Apply For A Citizen Committee 

Form Name: Date Submitted: 1 1/8/2006 8:38:57 AM 
Apply For A Citizen Committee 
Name: Anne Chambless 
Home Address: 141 2 Pecan Grove 
Telephone: 40659901 85 
Fax: 
E-mail: anne.chambless8gmail.com 
College Station Resident for - years: 0 -- moved to CS 10/30/06 
Subdivision: Shenandoah 
Voter Registration Number: 
Business Owner: No 
Business Name: 
Occupation: Currently stay at home parent 
Work Address: 
Work Telephone: 
Work Fax: 
Work E-mail: 
Education: 
Position Sought (No. 1 being most preferable and No. 3 being least 
preferable): Planning and Zoning Commission, CS Business Development 
Corporation, Library Committee 
If you currently serve on any other committees, boards or commissions, 
please list them here: 
Please list any experience or interest that qualifies you to serve in 
the position desired: I will complete my Master of Public Administration 
in May 2007 
In compliance with Chapter 552, Government Code (Public Information 
Act), information related to the applicant's home address, home 
telephone number, and e-mail address shall be made available to the 
public, unless the applicant chooses not to release the information. 
Release information?: Yes 

CC: <dcody8 cstx.gov>, <vcasares 8 cstx.gov> 



I Debbie Codv - Response to Apply For A Citizen Committee page 1 I 

From: "City of College Station -" <infoQcstx.gov> 
To: <wmason Qcstx.gov> 
Date: 1 1/20/2006 4:58:42 PM 
Subject: Response to Apply For A Citizen Committee 

Form Name: Date Submitted: 11/20/2006 4:31:21 PM 
Apply For A Citizen Committee 
IVame: Donald P. Scherr 
Home Address: 3206 Salzburg Court 
Telephone: 979-820-2002 
Fax: 
E-mail: dpscherrQverizon.net 
College Station Resident for - years: 4 112 
Subdivision: Edelweiss 
Voter Registration Number: 228200 
Business Owner: IVo 
Business Name: 
Occupation: Retired 
Work Address: 
Work Telephone: 
Work Fax: 
Work E-mail: 
Education: 
Position Sought (No. 1 being most preferable and No. 3 being least 
preferable): Library Committee, , 
If you currently serve on any other committees, boards or commissions, 
please list them here: Bryan + College Station Public Library System 
Advisory Board and Childcare Program Board of Covenant Presbyterian 
Church Children's Center. 
Please list any experience or interest that qualifies you to serve in 
the position desired: Currently serving on the Library Board, life-long 
user of libraries, and strong advocate of library usage for educational 
and recreational personal enrichment. 
In compliance with Chapter 552, Government Code (Public Information 
Act), information related to the applicant's home address, home 
telephone number, and e-mail address shall be made available to the 
public, unless the applicant chooses not to release the information. 
Release information?: Yes 

CC: <dcodyQ cstx.gov>, cvcasares Q cstx.gov> 



I Debbie Codv - Res~onse to AKIP~V For A Citizen Committee Paae 1 I 

From: "City of College Station -" <info@cstx.gov> 
To: <wmason Q cstx.gov> 
Date: 1 1/30/2006 8:18:46 AM 
Subject: Response to Apply For A Citizen Committee 

Form Name: Date Submitted: 11/30/2006 8:13:22 AM 
Apply For A Citizen Committee 
Name: Katherine Edwards 
Home Address: 31 3 Pershing 
Telephone: 979-696-4281 
Fax: 
E-mail: kedwardsQ tamu.edu 
College Station Resident for - years: this last time has been 15 
years 
Subdivision: Oakwood 
Voter Registration Number: 148050 
Business Owner: No 
Business Name: 
Occupation: Program Coordinator 
Work Address: 241 Zachry, 3131 TAMU, College Station, TX 77843-3131 
Work Telephone: 979-845-6293 
Work Fax: 979-847-9005 
Work E-mail: kedwards Q tamu.edu 
Education: Master's degree 
Position Sought (No. 1 being most preferable and No. 3 being least 
preferable): Library Committee, , 
If you currently serve on any other committees, boards or commissions, 
please list them here: 
Please list any experience or interest that qualifies you to serve in 
the position desired: 16 yrs as a public school teacher; degrees in 
history, English, and Ed. Psych. 
In compliance with Chapter 552, Government Code (Public Information 
Act), information related to the applicant's home address, home 
telephone number, and e-mail address shall be made available to the 
public, unless the applicant chooses not to release the information. 
Release information?: No 

CC: <dcodyQcstx.gov>, <vcasares@cstx.gov> 



December 14, 2006 
Workshop Agenda  
City Hall Update 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works 
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding the status of a 
site development plan for a new City Hall. 
 
Recommendation(s):   
 
Summary:  Staff will make a presentation that will update Council on the process for 
developing a site development plan for City owned property located on Krenek Tap Road. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: 
 
 
Attachments: 
Location Map 
 
 
 




	Agenda
	Item No. 2 - College Station 2007 State Legislative Program
	Coversheet
	Tex-21 Resolutions 
	College Station Legislative Program 
	Resolution

	Item No. 3 - Annexation – Exempt Areas
	Coversheet
	Annexation Cost Considerations 
	Current Annexation Plan
	Recent Annexation History
	ETJ Development Trends
	Annexation Areas Map
	Area 1 SAM 
	Area 2 SAM
	Area 3 SAM
	Area 4 SAM

	Item No. 4 - Internal Auditor
	coversheet

	Item No. 5 - City Hall Update
	Coversheet
	Location Map

	Item No. 7 - Council Calendars
	Calendar

	Item No. 13.1 - Appointment to Brazos Valley Groundwater Conservation District
	Coversheet
	By Laws
	Board of Directors

	Item No. 13.2 - BRW Change Order No. 2
	Coversheet
	Change Order
	Location Map

	Item No. 13.3 - Rock Prairie Road Widening Needs Resolution
	Coversheet
	Location Map
	Needs Resolution
	Exhibits A

	Item No. 13.4 - Pipeline Crossing Agreement for the Wellborn Road Utilities Relocation Project
	Coversheet
	Agreement
	Location Map

	Item No. 13.5 - Annual Blanket Purchase Order for the Installation of Hot Mix Asphalt
	Coversheet
	Renewal Letter

	Item No. 13.6 - Construction of 6-in and 8-in Gravity Sewer Trunkline in the College Station ETJ

	Coversheet
	Contract
	Bid Tabulation
	Location Map

	Item No. 13.7 - Exception to Policy for Sewer Service to Great Oaks Estates
	Coversheet
	Letter from Indivisa Corporation including map
	Policy on extension of utilities to the ETJ
	Resolution

	Item No. 13.8 - Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition Upgrade RFP 06-129

	Coversheet
	License Agreement

	Item No. 13.9 - Tejas Medical Waste Hauling Franchise Second Reading
	Coversheet
	Franchise Ordinance

	Item No. 13.10 - Northgate Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #16  Participation Agreement 
	Coversheet
	TIF Participation Agreement 
	Northgate TIF Ordinance 
	Northgate Project and Finance Plan 

	Item No. 13.11 - Engineering Design Contract for Parallel Collection Line 
	Coversheet
	Resolution

	Item No. 13.12 - Engineering Design Contract for Well 7 
	Coversheet
	Resolution

	Item No. 13.13 - Engineering Design Contract for Well 7 Collection Line 
	Coversheet
	Resolution

	Item No. 13.14 - Renewal of Annual Price Agreement for Gasoline and Diesel Fuel	
	Coversheet
	Renewal

	Item No. 13.15 - Various Automotive and Truck Replacement Parts
	Coversheet
	Bid Tab Sheet

	Item No. 13.16 - Amended Funding Agreement with Research Valley Partnership 
	Coversheet 
	Amended Funding Agreement 

	Item No. 13.17 - Support of Incentive for Texas Institute for Preclinical Studies (TIPS)
	TIPS Cover Sheet
	Resolution

	Item No. 13.18 - Resolution of Support for the Texas Recreation and Park Account Local Grant Program and Texas State Park System
	Cover Sheet
	1 Resolution
	2 Background Information

	Item No. 13.19 - Parks and Recreation Department User Fees for CY 2007
	Cover Sheet
	1 Proposed Changes to Parks and Recreation Fees for 2007
	2 Resolution
	3 Exhibit A Proposed Fee Schedule

	Item No. 13.20 - Change Order Number 2 to the
Veterans Park and Athletic Complex, Phase II (VPAC) Design Contract 

	Cover Sheet
	1 Change Order 2
	2 VPAC Master Plan
	3 Phase I and Phase II Site Plan
	4 Extension of Veterans Parkway

	Item No. 13.21 - Lincoln Center Entry Sidewalk Cover
	Cover Sheet
	1 Resolution
	2 07 22 Bid Tabulation
	3 Project Location Map
	4 Site Plan

	Item No. 13.22 - Adamson Lagoon Replacement Bathhouse Design Services
	Cover Sheet
	1 Resolution
	2 Resolution Declaring an Intention
	3 Adamson Site Plan

	Item No. 14.1 - Approval of a Development Agreement with Lonestar – College Station Golf Academy, Ltd

	Cover Sheet Item 12.17
	Version 1 - Dev Agrmnt - LS CS Golf Academy 
	Version 2 - Dev Agrmnt - LS CS Golf Academy 

	Item No. 14.2 - Approval of an Economic Development Agreement with Reynolds and Reynolds Company
	Coversheet

	Item No. 14.3 - Horse Haven Estates Rezoning
	Coversheet
	Small Area Map (SAM) & Aerial
	C-1 Zoning District Fact Sheet
	Ordinance

	Item No. 14.4 - UDO Amendment - Development Plats
	Coversheet
	16 November 2006 P&Z Draft Minutes
	Ordinance

	Item No. 14.5 - Appointments to B/CS Library Committee and Joint Relief Funding Review Committee

	coversheet
	Joint Relief Data Sheet
	Joint Relief Applicants
	Library Data Sheet
	Library Applicants

	Item No. 14.6 - City Hall Update
	Coversheet
	Location Map


